
 

 

Agenda - Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a 

Seilwaith 
Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 3  

Senedd a fideogynadledd drwy Zoom 

Dyddiad: Dydd Iau, 21 Mawrth 2024 

Amser: 09.30

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Marc Wyn Jones 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru

Hybrid 
------ 

Rhag-gyfarfod preifat (09.15-09.30) 

Cyfarfod cyhoeddus (09.30-14.00) 

 

1 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau. 

(09.30)   

 

2 Cynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy 

(SFS) - sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda chynrychiolwyr ffermio 

(09.30-10.45) (Tudalennau 1 - 189)  

Aled Jones, Llywydd Undeb Cenedlaethol yr Amaethwyr (NFU Cymru)  

Rachel Lewis-Davies, Cynghorydd Cenedlaethol yr Amgylchedd a Defnydd Tir 

- Undeb Cenedlaethol yr Amaethwyr (NFU) Cymru 

Gareth Parry, Dirprwy Bennaeth Polisi, Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru (FUW) 

Elin Jenkins, Swyddog Polisi - Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru (FUW) 

George Dunn, Prif Weithredwr, Cymdeithas y Ffermwyr Tenant 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Briff ymchwil - Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy 

Papur - Undeb Cenedlaethol yr Amaethwyr Cymru (saesneg yn unig) 

Papur - Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru (FUW) (saesneg yn unig) 

Papur - Tenant Farmers Association (saesneg yn unig) 

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

 

Egwyl (10.45-11.00) 

 

3 Cynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy 

(SFS) - sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda sefydliadau amgylcheddol 

(11.00-12.15) (Tudalennau 190 - 270)  

Rhys Evans, Rheolwr Ffermio Cynaliadwy yng Nghymru, y Rhwydwaith Ffermio 

Cyfeillgar i Natur  

Arfon Williams, Pennaeth Polisi Tir a Môr, RSPB Cymru 

Andrew Tuddenham, Pennaeth Polisi - Cymru, Cymdeithas y Pridd 

Alex Phillips, Rheolwr Polisi ac Eiriolaeth - WWF Cymru 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Papur 1 - y Rhwydwaith Ffermio Cyfeillgar i Natur (saesneg yn unig) 

Papur 2 - y Rhwydwaith Ffermio Cyfeillgar i Natur (saesneg yn unig) 

Papur 1 - Cymdeithas y Pridd (saesneg yn unig) 

Papur 2 - Cymdeithas y Pridd (saesneg yn unig) 

Papur - Cyswllt Amgylchedd Cymru (saesneg yn unig) 

 

Egwyl cinio (12.15-13.00) 

 

4 Cynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy 

(SFS) - sesiwn dystiolaeth gydag academyddion 

(13.00-14.00) (Tudalennau 271 - 281)  

Dr Ludivine Petetin, Ysgol y Gyfraith a Gwleidyddiaeth, Prifysgol Caerdydd 

Yr Athro Iain Donnison, Pennaeth Adran - Sefydliad y Gwyddorau Biolegol, 

Amgylcheddol a Gwledig (IBERS) 

Dogfennau atodol: 

Papur - Dr Ludivine Petetin (saesneg yn unig) 

Papur - Yr Athro Iain Donnison (saesneg yn unig) 

 



 

 

5 Papurau i’w nodi (14.00)   

5.1 Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: Y Bil Diogelu Data a Gwybodaeth Ddigidol 

 (Tudalennau 282 - 283)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr oddi wrth Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, 

Chwaraeon a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol at y Gwir Anrhydeddus Michelle 

Donelan AS, yr Ysgrifennydd Gwladol dros Wyddoniaeth, Arloesedd a 

Thechnoleg mewn perthynas â’r Gofrestr Asedau Tanddaearol Genedlaethol. 

5.2 Cynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy 

 (Tudalennau 284 - 288)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr oddi wrth Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deisebau at y Cadeirydd ynghylch y 

ddeiseb rhif P-06-1388 - Dileu’r gofyniad i ffermwyr gael o leiaf 10 y cant o 

orchudd coed i allu manteisio ar y Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy newydd. 

Llythyr gan y Cadeirydd at Gadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a 

Materion Gwledig mewn perthynas â chynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 

Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy (SFS) 

Llythyr gan y Cadeirydd at y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, 

a’r Trefnydd mewn perthynas â chynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 

Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy (SFS) 

5.3 Rheoliadau Iechyd Planhigion (Ffioedd) (Lloegr) a Rheolaethau Swyddogol 

(Amlder Gwiriadau) (Diwygio) 2024 

 (Tudalennau 289 - 293)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr oddi wrth y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r 

Trefnydd, at y Cadeirydd mewn cysylltiad â Rheoliadau Iechyd Planhigion 

(Ffioedd) (Lloegr) a Rheolaethau Swyddogol (Amlder Gwiriadau) (Diwygio) 

2024 

Llythyr dilynol oddi wrth y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r 

Trefnydd, at y Cadeirydd mewn cysylltiad â Rheoliadau Iechyd Planhigion 

(Ffioedd) (Lloegr) a Rheolaethau Swyddogol (Amlder Gwiriadau) (Diwygio) 

2024 



 

 

5.4 Ardaloedd Draenio Mewnol 

 (Tudalennau 294 - 296)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr oddi wrth Gadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion 

Gwledig at Mabon ap Gwynfor mewn cysylltiad ag Ardaloedd Draenio Mewnol 

Llythyr oddi wrth Mabon ap Gwynfor AS at y Cadeirydd mewn cysylltiad ag 

Ardaloedd Draenio Mewnol. 

5.5 Rheoliadau’r Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig (Dirymu a Darpariaeth 

Ganlyniadol) 2024 

 (Tudalennau 297 - 298)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr oddi wrth y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r 

Trefnydd at y Cadeirydd mewn perthynas â Rheoliadau’r Amgylchedd a 

Materion Gwledig (Dirymu a Darpariaeth Ganlyniadol) 2024 

5.6 Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-25 

 (Tudalennau 299 - 327)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Ymateb y Gweinidog a’r Dirprwy Weinidog Newid Hinsawdd i adroddiad y 

Pwyllgor: Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-25 

5.7 Craffu ar Trafnidiaeth Cymru 

 (Tudalennau 328 - 337)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr oddi wrth Brif Weithredwr Trafnidiaeth Cymru at y Cadeirydd mewn 

perthynas â chraffu blynyddol ar Drafnidiaeth Cymru 

Llythyr oddi wrth Brif Weithredwr Trafnidiaeth Cymru at y Cadeirydd mewn 

perthynas â darparu gwasanaethau yn ystod gemau Pêl-droed yr Ewros 2024 

5.8 Grŵp Rhyngweinidogol ar Sero Net, Ynni a Newid Hinsawdd 

 (Tudalen 338)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr oddi wrth y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd at y Cadeirydd mewn 

perthynas â’r Grŵp Rhyngweinidogol ar Sero Net, Ynni a Newid Hinsawdd 



 

 

5.9 Safle glo brig Ffos-y-Fran 

 (Tudalennau 339 - 342)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr dilynol gan y Cadeirydd at y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd mewn 

perthynas â safle glo brig Ffos-y-Fran 

Ymateb gan Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd at y gan y Cadeirydd mewn 

perthynas â gwaith glo brig Ffos-y-Fran ym Merthyr Tudful 

5.10 Perfformiad Dŵr Cymru 

 (Tudalennau 343 - 347)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Llythyr gan Uwch Gyfarwyddwr Ofwat at y Cadeirydd mewn perthynas ag 

ymchwiliad Ofwat i Dŵr Cymru. 

Ymateb y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd i adroddiad y Pwyllgor: Adroddiad ar 

berfformiad Dŵr Cymru 

 

6 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(vi) a (ix) i benderfynu gwahardd 

y cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod heddiw. 

(14.00)   

 

Cyfarfod preifat (14.00-15.00) 

 

7 Trafod y dystiolaeth a gafwyd o dan eitemau 2, 3 a 4 

   

8 Trafod yr adroddiad drafft ar y Memorandwm Cydsyniad 

Deddfwriaethol ar y Bil Cerbydau Awtomataidd 

 (Tudalen 348)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Adroddiad drafft ar y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar y Bil 

Cerbydau Awtomataidd 

 



 

 

9 Trafod yr adroddiad drafft ar Gomisiwn Seilwaith Cenedlaethol 

Cymru - 2022-23 

 (Tudalen 349)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Adroddiad drafft ar Gomisiwn Seilwaith Cenedlaethol Cymru - 2022-23 

 

10 Trafod blaenraglen waith y Pwyllgor - Haf 2024 

 (Tudalen 350)  

Dogfennau atodol: 

Blaenraglen waith y Pwyllgor - Haf 2024 



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



NFU Cymru’s response toNFU Cymru’s response to
Welsh Government’s Welsh Government’s 

Sustainable Farming Scheme - Sustainable Farming Scheme - 
‘Keeping  Farmers Farming’ ‘Keeping  Farmers Farming’ 

consultationconsultation

Tudalen y pecyn 30



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 1 

 

President’s Foreword 
 
Over the past 12 weeks NFU Cymru has spoken with over 5,000 
farmers and supply chain partners at roadshows, county meetings, 
board meetings, market visits and other events. We have 
methodically presented the Welsh Government proposals and 
recorded feedback from every event to ensure that this response is 
a true and accurate reflection of all those we are proud to represent 
and who put their trust in us to speak on their behalf. It has been a 
sobering and, on occasions, harrowing experience with the level of 
concern, worry, frustration and, at times anger, manifesting itself in 
different ways within the farming community.   
 

This consultation has been undertaken against a backdrop of the emotional and financial turmoil 
caused by the continued impact of bovine TB, the cost and bureaucracy imposed by an All Wales 
NVZ, the demise of Glastir, input costs some 30% higher since 2019 and interest rates at a 15 year 
high. The health and well-being of our farming families must be front and centre in all our minds. This 
is why I have asked the Minister for Rural Affairs to set up an independent review to consider the 
cumulative burden of regulations and policies on Welsh farming.  
 
NFU Cymru has spent these past eight years carefully considering our priorities for a ‘made in Wales’ 
farming policy. We have sought to remain optimistic at the opportunity presented to us to bring such 
a policy to fruition. The opportunity for a comprehensive food and farming policy to support Wales to 
be world leading in the production of climate-friendly food. An opportunity to grow established and 
build new markets at home and abroad. 
 
By following the key principles NFU Cymru first published in 2016 a new domestic agricultural policy 
delivering a productive, profitable, and progressive farming industry can be achieved. These 
principles based around high quality food production; rewarding environmental activity; supporting 
the active farmer; providing on farm investment; science and evidence-based regulation and fair 
funding were the foundations for our subsequent vision for a future policy based on three 
cornerstones of stability, productivity and the environment. 
 
In 2022 we went further and, working with industry colleagues, we created a detailed and 
comprehensive Sustainable Farming Scheme proposal that has been positively received by 
academics, NGOs and politicians from across the political spectrum. Whilst elements of this 
framework have been taken forward within the current proposals, it is a source of deep 
disappointment that the key elements of stability, simplicity, and fair reward for the delivery of 
sustainable farming objectives have been ignored thus far. 
 
The current proposals need a major overhaul, they have not kept pace with the fundamental changes 
secured to the Agriculture (Wales) Act during its passage through the Senedd. The proposals must 
move beyond a scheme focussed predominately on environmental outcomes and instead become a 
genuine agricultural policy that underpins food production, resilient agricultural businesses and rural 
communities, alongside and in harmony with our environmental obligations and ambitions.   
 
We live in uncertain times, a war in Europe, unrest in the Middle East, political instability, and trade 
flows around the world under threat – food security can no longer be taken for granted. Population 
growth, climate change and increasing competition for finite resources make it a matter of increasing 
strategic national interest to ensure that our country can feed itself. Food is a public good and the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme must be more explicit in its support to maintain and enhance food 
production against the backdrop of an increasingly volatile world.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 2 

Farmers need stability. Stability to underpin the continued supply of safe, high quality, affordable food 
from Wales. Stability to invest in their business, to invest in efficiency gains and in the environment. 
Stability provides opportunities for farming families to plan for the next generation, it keeps farmers 
farming and keeps rural communities and our language thriving. A long-term stability mechanism 
must be an integral element of the final Sustainable Farming Scheme. 
 
5,500 jobs lost, a £200 million hit to farm business income, 11% less livestock in Wales, without even 
considering the impact beyond the farm gate. A truly shocking scenario, this cannot happen, it must 
not happen. No government, with the information it has to hand, could surely consent to this? No 
decisions on the Sustainable Farming Scheme can be undertaken until Welsh Government has 
undertaken a full socio-economic assessment of the impact of its proposals on Welsh farming, rural 
communities and the supply chain. If necessary, the SFS should be paused and delayed until such 
time as we can be sure that it can deliver the same level of stability to the whole agri-food supply 
chain and rural Wales as the current support arrangements.  
 
The Universal Baseline Payment must be non-discriminatory to all farm types, sectors, and locations. 
It must provide equal access and reward for tenants and commoners and provide fair reward for 
those managing our most precious landscapes and habitats. The Universal Baseline Payment must 
go beyond costs incurred / income foregone and incentivise the actions that Welsh Government asks 
Welsh farming to deliver for society.  
 
Mandating 10% tree cover on farm will be an insurmountable barrier for too many.  A just transition is 
needed for farming families.  We have world class science institutions on our doorstep, we need to 
make use of their expertise and intrinsic knowledge of Welsh farming systems, our soils, our 
grasslands, cropping and field boundaries, to provide us with alternatives to deliver outcomes that 
help us achieve net zero agriculture whilst maintaining our productive capacity, allowing us to be truly 
world leading in the production of climate-friendly food. 
 
Farmers want to know that their voice is being heard, that they are respected and valued by their 
government. Thousands have shaped this response, and it must be weighted accordingly. 
Thousands more have submitted their own response through the support that NFU Cymru has 
offered through our online tool. We are pleased that both the First Minister and Minister for Rural 
Affairs have committed that every consultation received will be analysed and properly considered - 
We will hold government to account on that commitment.      
 
We must get this scheme right, neither farming families nor government can afford to have a scheme 
that fails to deliver on our shared ambitions for food, nature and climate. A scheme that underpins 
food production, our farmed environment, our communities, our language and culture for our 
generation and those that follow in our footsteps. This response sets out our framework for a future 
farming policy for Wales. It measures Welsh Government’s proposals against our own, we highlight 
the legitimate concerns raised by our members as part of this consultation process and provide a 
pathway for a way forward. We want to work with the Minister to get this right and we expect the 
Minister to reciprocate with a similar genuine desire to work with NFU Cymru. We must get this right.   

 

 

 

 

 

 
Aled Jones, President 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 32



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 3 

 
Contents 

 
1. Introduction  

• The consultation process 

• Rural Support 

• NFU Cymru vision and key principles for reform 

• The Political / Legislative / Economic Context 

• Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023 

• Food Security 

• Competitiveness 

• The economic landscape 

• Public support 
 

2. The SFS Framework 

• Universal Actions  

• Specific Considerations 
 
3. The Sustainable Farming Scheme Process 
 
4. Payment Methodology  
 
5. Transition Period  
 
6. Basic Payment Scheme 
 
7. Regulations 
 
8. Evidence  
 
9. Data Processing and Reporting 
 
10. Effects on the Welsh Language 
  
Annex 1 – The Contribution of Agriculture to the Well-Being of Wales 
 
Annex 2 – Industry proposals for Low Carbon Farming Framework  
 
Annex 3 – NFU Cymru Key Policy Asks 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 33



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 4 

   

1.    Introduction 

 
NFU Cymru welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Sustainable Farming Scheme (SFS) – 
Keeping Farmers Farming consultation described by Welsh Government as the final step in 
delivering the new long-term programme to support the agricultural industry in Wales.   
 
NFU Cymru champions Welsh farming and represents farmers throughout Wales and across all 
sectors. NFU Cymru’s vision is for a productive, profitable and progressive farming sector producing 
world renowned climate-friendly food in an environment and landscape that provides habitats for our 
nature to thrive. Welsh food and farming delivering economic, environmental, social and cultural 
benefits for all the people of Wales whilst meeting our ambition for net zero agriculture by 2040. 
 
The importance of the farming industry in Wales cannot be overstated. Welsh farming businesses are 
the backbone of the Welsh rural economy, the axis around which rural communities turn. The raw 
ingredients that we produce are the cornerstone of the £8.1 billion Welsh food and drink industry 
which is Wales’ largest employer employing over 233,500 people. 
 
We are proud that the Welsh public associate Welsh farmers, first and foremost, with providing safe, 
high quality and traceable food and at NFU Cymru we want to ensure that consumers in Wales, the 
UK and further afield can continue to enjoy and choose the top-quality food that we produce here in 
Wales – now and in the future.   
 
Welsh farmers look after over 80% of the land area of Wales, maintaining and enhancing our natural 
environment – Wales’ key asset. Farming activity supports a diverse range of species, habitats and 
ecosystems, provides a range of ecosystem services including flood alleviation, carbon 
sequestration, climate change mitigation; and delivers the significant backdrop for Wales’ tourism and 
recreation sector. Welsh farmers are key promoters and protectors of our culture, heritage and the 
Welsh language. The Welsh agricultural industry has the highest proportion of Welsh speakers, more 
than any other sector at 43%, more than double the population as a whole.  
 
Overall Welsh farming makes an unparalleled contribution to the economic, environmental, social 
and cultural well-being of Wales in line with the Well-Being of Future Generations Act summarised in 
Annex 1.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 34

https://www.nfu-cymru.org.uk/media/oq2jdr3a/farming-bringing-wales-together.pdf


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 5 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 35



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 6 

 
Welsh Government’s Sustainable Farming Scheme – Keeping Farmers Farming consultation, 
launched in December, has led to one of the largest consultation exercises in NFU Cymru’s history.  
During the consultation window, NFU Cymru has worked tirelessly to ensure that information on 
Welsh Government’s proposals is accessible to many thousands of farmers across Wales. We have 
also had significant engagement with the supply chain – companies with thousands of workers in 
both rural and urban locations, dependent on agriculture for their livelihoods.    
 
We have travelled the length and breadth of Wales with our roadshows. We also arranged special 
meetings for tenant farmers and the supply chain. Our county branches have met, we have 
presented Welsh Government’s proposals at countless other meetings, welcomed hundreds of 
farmers to our group offices and discussed the scheme with hundreds more at livestock markets and 
other gatherings. Within our magazine we have shared details of the proposals to every member and 
our dedicated website pages have received unprecedented levels of engagement. Proposals have 
been considered by each of our Commodity Boards culminating with an extraordinary meeting of  
NFU Cymru Council and all Boards late last month.   
 
Throughout this process we have received a considerable volume of feedback directly and also via 
our extensive member communication channels and online presence. Reaching consensus on Welsh 
Government’s Sustainable Farming Scheme proposals has been straightforward. NFU Cymru’s 
consultation response reflects the position of thousands of farm businesses across Wales. It should 
be properly considered and weighted recognising the fact that it represents the views of those on the 
ground who will be directly affected by Welsh Government’s proposals and who will be central to its 
success.   
 

• The consultation process 
 
The levels of stress and anxiety that the consultation has engendered within the farming community 
will have escaped no one. Compounded by a range of issues such as Welsh Government’s policy 
approach to bovine TB, the Control of Agricultural Pollution Regulations (NVZs), the Glastir ‘cliff 
edge’ and the Habitat Wales Scheme debacle means we are in the midst of an upswell of emotions 
within the farming community that has not been witnessed since devolution.   
 
Welsh Government has been at pains to emphasise that its final consultation for the Sustainable 
Farming Scheme is a genuine consultation, every individual response will be considered.  
 
We have welcomed Welsh Government’s confirmation, on 16 February 2024, that analysis of the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme consultation responses will be undertaken by an independent 
contractor and this analysis will include substantive responses submitted from both individuals and 
organisations, as well as those submitted as part of a campaign. Further clarification has been 
provided by the First Minister and Minister in their joint statement of 27 February 2024, confirming 
every response received including the issues raised at the ten Welsh Government roadshow events 
will be analysed and properly considered. We identify this will be a critical step in demonstrating that 
this consultation is genuine.  
 
Welsh Government states the latest round of proposals reflect the feedback received from farmers 
and the wider industry over three consultations and two phases of co-design and will be aware that 
these are processes that farmers in their thousands have engaged with in good faith. Over 2,830 
farmers, for example, submitted responses to the Brexit and our Land consultation via the NFU 
Cymru template with over 16,000 e-mail communications to Senedd Members.     
 
The overriding feeling, however, is that despite their best efforts their voice has not been heard. In 
many aspects of the proposed policy, little meaningful change has been secured. In other areas, 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 7 

Welsh Government’s position in this final consultation has shifted to one that poses an even greater 
risk to the viability of farm businesses and the rural communities they underpin.  
 
NFU Cymru is also in no doubt that some of the remarks about Welsh farmers during this period 
have been deeply hurtful, extremely unhelpful and unnecessarily polarising. The narrative that 
farmers are resistant to change and unwilling to play their part in decarbonising or doing more for 
nature is a gross misrepresentation of the situation and has been extremely damaging. It is a false 
narrative that stands directly in the way of the progress that we all want to see.   
 
We want to be absolutely clear that farmers in Wales, like the generations before them, have an 
inherent capacity to adapt and change. We recognise our environmental responsibilities and have 
high levels of ambitions around net zero and leading the world in the production of climate-friendly 
food. An example of this is the Low Carbon Farming Framework proposals that the industry 
submitted to Welsh Government in early 2022 and which, despite a positive reply from the Minister, 
has not been taken forward despite NFU Cymru’s repeated attempts. A copy of our proposal is at 
Annex 2. Farmers are not ‘anti-tree’ or ‘anti-nature’ – the work that farmers have already undertaken 
and continue to do on their farms the length and breadth of Wales is testament to this fact. The reality 
is that farmers can only do this work from a position of stability and profitability. This is about securing 
a policy that safeguards the economic, environmental, social and cultural sustainability of farming in 
Wales whilst ensuring we retain and enhance our food producing capacity for the future. 
 
In challenging circumstances, we are grateful to Minister Lesley Griffiths MS for meeting with us 
during the consultation period and allowing us to reflect industry concerns. We used this opportunity 
to set out our asks of Welsh Government (Annex 3) - a number of which are reiterated in this 
consultation response - which we believe are the steps that government now needs to take to restore 
trust and provide the much-needed reassurance to the farming community. Overall, NFU Cymru 
remains steadfast in our commitment to work with Welsh Government to ensure future policy secures 
the supply of safe, nutritious and sufficient food for a growing population whilst sustaining our rural 
communities, language and culture; alongside addressing the climate challenge and maintaining and 
enhancing our natural resources.  
 
We also want to place on record that, in some instances, we have found that the consultation 
process has been hindered by a lack of detailed information. Throughout this response we have 
sought to highlight where we believe there is insufficient detail to comment definitively. As so often is 
the case, the ‘devil is in the detail’ and Welsh Government will need to ensure proper consultation on 
that detail ahead of making final decisions on the scheme. 
 

• Rural Support 
 
Welsh Government’s Sustainable Farming Scheme proposals have been the cause of significant 
stress and anxiety within the farming community. The NFU Cymru team have been deeply affected 
by the sombre reaction of farmers to SFS proposals when they have been shared with them at our 
many meetings. The health and well-being of members of the farming community has been and 
continues to be a source of considerable concern to us through this extremely difficult and unsettling 
period for our industry.   
 
NFU Cymru is a partner of the Wales Farm Safety Partnership and supports the work of the Farm 
Safety Foundation which seeks to tackle the stigma around mental health issues with campaigns like 
#MindYourHead. We are grateful to charities such as RABI, Tir Dewi, the DPJ Foundation, FCN and 
the Addington Fund for the support that they give to individuals and farming families.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 37



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 8 

Problems can arise from financial and emotional pressures, mental or physical health concerns1, 
along with the additional worries associated with weather extremes and disease outbreaks such as a 
bovine TB herd breakdown. Farmers experience high levels of stress and anxiety and are at 
increasing risk of feeling at times that life is not worth living, having a lack of social support and have 
been identified as an occupational group at increased risk of suicide. Family members, whilst often a 
source of support, can also suffer from deteriorating mental health and be in need of support.   
 
NFU Cymru is acutely aware that at a time of unprecedented change for the farming industry 
concerns over new policies and regulations, market instability and escalating costs can be 
overwhelming for some farmers. Many farmers have also expressed anxiety over the sheer 
complexity of the proposed SFS which is adding to fears of being found in breach of the rules at 
inspection. 
 
Whilst farmers take great care looking after their livestock and their land, they can sometimes 
overlook the importance of looking after themselves. Farmers often tend to keep their worries and 
concerns to themselves and some still perceive a stigma attached to mental health matters. This can 
hinder their ability to seek help when it is most needed. It is also a concern to us that there will be a 
percentage of farming families who do not engage with public bodies, organisations and stakeholder 
groups and who may live in relative isolation. These families may not realise that there are charitable 
bodies that may be able to help them in times of need.   
 
NFU Cymru staff have undertaken mental health training with the DPJ Foundation. This has included 
a day’s training for NFU Cymru Head Office staff as well as training for the wider network of Group 
Secretaries located in our offices across Wales. In recent months, our team has also participated in 
refresher training.  
 
At a time of such upheaval, NFU Cymru stresses the need to work together collectively to make sure 
that our farmers and their families know that they are not alone and that there is help and support 
available. The agricultural industry already has a high suicide rate with one farmer a week in the UK 
taking their own life. This alarming statistic must be halted and reversed. We have a collective 
responsibility to ensure that any policies that touch farming families, be it directly like SFS or 
indirectly, proactively support farmers and do not add to their burden and vulnerability. Overall, it is 
vital that the mental health and well-being of farmers is considered as the scheme is developed and 
the transition away from current support begins. 
 
In this context, NFU Cymru also recommends the establishment of an Independent Review Group to 
consider the cumulative burden of regulations and policies on Welsh farmers also taking into 
consideration the wider economic and political context. 
 
Summary 
 
NFU Cymru is pleased to respond to Welsh Government’s Sustainable Farming Scheme (SFS) – 
Keeping Farmers Farming consultation which sets out proposals for a new long-term programme to 
support the agricultural industry in Wales, building on three earlier Welsh Government consultations 
and two programmes of co-design.   
 
The consultation has led to one of the largest engagement exercises in NFU Cymru’s history and the 
overriding feeling has been that, despite our best efforts, our voice has not been heard. In many 
aspects of Welsh Government’s proposed Sustainable Farming Scheme, little meaningful change 
has been secured. In other areas, Welsh Government’s latest position has shifted to one that poses 
an even greater threat to the viability of farm businesses and the rural communities they underpin.  
 

 
1 phw.nhs.wales/services-and-teams/knowledge-directorate/research-and-evaluation/publications/supporting-farming-
communities-at-times-of-uncertainty/ 

Tudalen y pecyn 38

https://phw.nhs.wales/services-and-teams/knowledge-directorate/research-and-evaluation/publications/supporting-farming-communities-at-times-of-uncertainty/
https://phw.nhs.wales/services-and-teams/knowledge-directorate/research-and-evaluation/publications/supporting-farming-communities-at-times-of-uncertainty/


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 9 

Welsh Government has been at pains to emphasise that this is a genuine consultation. We will hold 
Welsh Government to this commitment - every comment that has been made as part of the support 
NFU Cymru has offered to the industry via the online tool alongside the comments received by those 
attending Welsh Government events must be considered. Welsh Government must also recognise 
and give due regard to the fact that this NFU Cymru consultation response represents the views of 
many thousands of farming businesses most directly impacted by proposals and has been formulated 
following meetings where thousands of members have expressed their views.  
 
NFU Cymru vision and key principles for reform 
 
In 2016, following the EU Referendum, NFU Cymru launched the biggest internal consultation in our 
history. During this period, we formulated a set of key principles to form the foundations of a new 
domestic agricultural policy to deliver a productive, profitable and progressive agricultural industry in 
Wales. These principles have been reaffirmed by our membership on multiple occasions in the 
intervening period, global events have reinforced their appropriateness. Set out below, these are the 
principles against which NFU Cymru judges Welsh Government’s proposals for future agricultural 
support: 
 

➢ A policy that underpins and secures the continued supply of safe, high quality, traceable, 
affordable food for our nation, in the context of future global challenges, must be at the heart 
of future agricultural policy. 

➢ All farmers must be fairly rewarded for the environmental / public goods they already deliver 
and will continue to deliver in future for society. 

➢ Policies must be simple to administer, easy to understand and target support at those active 
farmers who take the financial risks associated with food production. 

➢ Investment measures are required to ensure that farming businesses are well equipped to 
face the challenges and maximise the opportunities of a post-Brexit marketplace. 

➢ The regulatory regime must be proportionate and evidence-based and policies must be 
adequately funded to ensure that Welsh farming remains competitive with farmers in the UK, 
EU and globally. 

 

• NFU Cymru vision for a new Welsh agricultural policy 
 
In 2017 following extensive member consultation, NFU Cymru set out its vision for future agricultural 
policy. Our vision comprises a single, integrated, flexible framework based around three cornerstones 
– productivity and environment underpinned by measures to provide stability and address volatility. 
We expect most farming businesses would look to access support and assistance across a range of 
measures within the policy framework. All three of these cornerstones are fundamental to the long-
term policy framework for agriculture in Wales. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 39



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 10 

 

• Stability Measures 
 
Farmers are subject to significant levels of income volatility driven by environmental, economic and 
political factors, the majority of these factors are completely outside the control of any farming 
business. The impacts of the tragic war in Ukraine, economic instability and inflationary pressures, 
trade policy as well as extreme weather events highlight that volatility / instability in our food 
production systems in Wales and globally is as much an issue today as it has ever been. This 
volatility weakens the rural economy, threatens the continuity of supply to our food processors and 
exposes consumers to food price inflation and, in some instances, empty supermarket shelves.  
 
A baseline support payment open and accessible to all active farmers that underpins agriculture and 
food production and the standards required to build trust and integrity in our sustainable production 
systems must form a key part of future Welsh agricultural policy. The standards and conditions 
attached to this support could underpin the development of “Brand Wales”, a concept to help market 
and promote Wales to the world on the basis of high-quality food production underpinned by a strong 
natural asset base. The conditions attached to receiving this support could cover a range of 
environmental, climate change and animal health and welfare measures agreed in a partnership 
approach between government and industry. 
  
Measures to support Welsh agriculture deal with crisis and exceptional and emergency events also 
form a critical component of future agricultural policy. These measures could be required in the event 
of trade bans, extreme downturns in commodity prices, severe agricultural input inflation, exceptional 
weather events and notifiable disease outbreaks. They need to be accessible, adaptable and simple 
to administer.   

 

• Environment Measures  
 
NFU Cymru has proposed a farmed environment scheme that is open and accessible to every farmer 
that wishes to undertake activities that goes beyond the regulatory baseline. Every farmer in Wales 
already contributes and has the potential to further contribute to practical environmental farm 
management that includes the protection and enhancement of existing features on their farm and the 
maintenance of actively farmed land to support biodiversity, carbon, soils, water and air quality.  
 
The aim should be to deliver landscape scale sustainable management of natural resources in line 
with the aspirations of the Environment Act and Natural Resources Policy. This scheme should be 
delivered multi-annually through existing RPW portals. 
 
The ambition would be to have the maximum amount of farmed land under the scheme. The success 
of the scheme will be dependent on the ability of farmers to understand and want to participate. The 
scheme must be designed in genuine partnership with the farming industry and properly trialled and 
piloted ahead of rollout. 
 
Complementary to the farmed environment scheme would be an advanced scheme for farmers who 
wish to go above and beyond the measures available in the farmed environmental scheme. The 
scheme would be suited to those farming in designated areas or with designated sites on their farms, 
those with significant natural constraints and those who have already been involved in agri-
environment schemes for a significant number of years. This option could also have a specific 
element for organic farmers. The scheme could be a mix of points based and capital measures.  
 

• Productivity Measures 
 
Investment measures are required to facilitate the development of farm businesses with funding 
made available to support investment in modern on-farm infrastructure, the latest technology and 

Tudalen y pecyn 40



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 11 

innovation. Our vision proposes instruments like capital grants and incentivisation measures. The 
focus would be on delivering production and resource efficiencies which in turn would also have 
positive environmental impacts, for example, reduced emissions per unit of production. Investments 
in infrastructure and equipment will also benefit water and air quality and improve soil health.  
 
Closely linked with the productivity measures and the advanced farmed environment scheme - and 
based on the concept of supporting and incentivising farmers through an iterative process of 
measurement, action and review - would be a knowledge exchange and skills element. 
 
Through this measure individual farm businesses would be encouraged to participate in a 
programme of targeted and integrated knowledge exchange, advice and incentives across a range of 
specific themes to drive forward measurable improvements in economic and environmental 
performance. Examples of key themes could include climate change mitigation measures, animal 
health and welfare, environmental management and enhancement, grassland management, soil and 
nutrient management as well as health and safety. 
 
An Integrated Sustainable Agriculture Programme  

 
We believe that our policy based on these three cornerstones combine to give a truly integrated and 
sustainable agriculture programme that delivers and enhances our contribution to the well-being 
goals established in the Future Generations Act and the sustainable management of natural 
resources enshrined in the Environment Act.  
 
Collectively the three cornerstones deliver more than the sum of their parts, removing one would 
undermine the effectiveness of the other two. Farming businesses need stability to be able to deliver 
environmental outcomes for society and it is only from a position of stability that farming businesses 
are able to invest in new technology and productivity measures.  
 
Our policy would deliver increased financial resilience; improved environmental performance; 
safeguard and promote self-sufficiency; support the Welsh food and drink industry - Wales’ biggest 
employer; drive investment, innovation and productivity; promote rural jobs and support social, 
cultural, economic and environmental outcomes alongside the continued maintenance and 
enhancement of our treasured Welsh landscape. 
 

• Sustainable Farming Scheme Framework / Scheme Design / Structure  
 
Building on our principles and vision for a new agriculture policy and working in conjunction with 
colleagues in the FUW, in February 2022, NFU Cymru and FUW put forward a detailed Sustainable 
Farming Scheme framework, based on our shared vision for future policy.  
 
The framework proposes entry to the SFS via farmers undertaking a set of universal actions that 
would be suitable for all active farmers and designed to meet a set of agreed sustainability 
objectives. In addition, farmers would be expected to provide annually a set of Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) or sustainability indicators via a centralised data collection system based on an 
evolution of the RPW Online system. In return for farmers undertaking the universal actions and 
providing the required data they would receive an annual sustainability and stability payment. 
 
The sustainability indicators provided by farmers as part of the conditions associated with receiving 
the sustainability and stability payment would, through a portal developed within RPW Online, lead to 
an automatically generated annual farm level sustainability report that would be able to benchmark 
the farms progress year on year and compared to others in their region and sector. The report would 
be able to identify the strengths and weaknesses of the business and identify areas where targeted 
support may be needed to improve the sustainability of the business. NFU Cymru / FUW have held a 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 12 

number of positive discussions with leading academics in this area to consider the feasibility of such 
an automated sustainability review process. 
 
Data supplied by farmers could also be utilised to generate regional / sector and national reports to 
analyse trends and progress made against the agreed indicators. This data would be important to 
government to show progress made towards its national and international obligations; it could help 
inform decisions relating to future policy; and could also be used to help market and promote the 
Welsh brand. 
 
As highlighted above the farm level report will be a key tool in helping the business to identify where 
additional support is needed or the direction that the farming family wishes to take that business. This 
will be the gateway to deliver a range of additional interventions including specialist targeted advice, 
investment support, higher level environment activity and collaborative actions at a landscape or 
catchment scale.    

NFU Cymru / FUW Sustainable Farming Scheme Framework 
 

 
 
The Framework outlined above meets a number of our shared aspirations for future policy, including: 
 

• Targeting resource at the active farming families / businesses who contribute so much to the 
rural economy, society and culture.  

• Minimising discrimination between farming families / businesses in different areas or sectors – 
and ensuring full scheme access for tenants and commoners. 

• Ensuring a critical mass of farmers and farmland are part of the scheme to deliver maximum 
outcomes for Wales. 

• Ensuring a data driven, evidence-based system that will target support and resources where 
they will have most impact and provide maximum value for money. 

• Uniformly evidencing the sustainability attributes of food produced in Wales to create an 
internationally recognised Welsh sustainability brand. 

Tudalen y pecyn 42



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 13 

• Providing a just and smooth transition to a more sustainable future. 
• Ensuring benchmarking and ongoing improvement. 
• Developing Wales’ current world-leading IT and mapping systems to ensure administration 

and running costs are minimised.  
 
NFU Cymru / FUW have presented our framework to Welsh Government, MSs, academics, NGOs 
and at Political Party Conferences. Our framework has created positive and constructive discussion 
with significant support for the outline proposals put forward by the two Unions.  
 
It is against this blueprint that NFU Cymru assesses Welsh Government’s proposals for the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme. In the remainder of this consultation response, NFU Cymru will set out 
where we believe Welsh Government proposals demonstrate alignment with our principles, vision 
and framework for the future scheme and also where a fundamental change is still needed. At this 
late stage in policy development the need for government and industry to come together in genuine 
partnership to design a scheme that is fit-for-purpose cannot be overstated. 
 
On this basis, NFU Cymru is calling for the Minister to establish and chair regular SFS meetings with 
NFU Cymru leaders between now and the final scheme design / payment rates being published with 
a requirement that all additional work commissioned / groups established report back to these 
meetings.  
 
Summary 
 
It is now over seven years since NFU Cymru undertook the biggest internal consultation in our 
history.  Following the EU Referendum, we formulated the following set of key principles to form the 
foundations of a new domestic agricultural policy to deliver our vision of a productive, profitable and 
progressive agricultural industry in Wales.   
 

• A policy that underpins and secures the continued supply of safe, high quality, traceable, 
affordable food for our nation, in the context of future global challenges, must be at the heart 
of future agricultural policy. 

• All farmers must be fairly rewarded for the environmental / public goods they already deliver 
and will continue to deliver in future for society. 

• Policies must be simple to administer, easy to understand and target support at those active 
farmers who take the financial risks associated with food production. 

• Investment measures are required to ensure that farming businesses are well equipped to 
face the challenges and maximise the opportunities of a post-Brexit marketplace. 

• The regulatory regime must be proportionate and evidence-based and policies must be 
adequately funded to ensure that Welsh farming remains competitive with farmers in the UK, 
EU and globally. 

 
NFU Cymru also developed our vision for a future agricultural policy comprising a flexible framework 
based around three cornerstones – productivity and environment underpinned by measures to 
provide stability and address volatility. In February 2022, NFU Cymru and FUW put forward a 
detailed Sustainable Farming Scheme framework, based on our shared vision for future policy.  NFU 
Cymru’s principles and vision for future agricultural policy continue to be reaffirmed by our 
membership and their appropriateness continues to be reinforced by global events.  
 
It is against these principles and vision that NFU Cymru judges Welsh Government’s proposals for 
the Sustainable Farming Scheme. At this late stage in policy development the need for government 
and industry to come together in genuine partnership to design a scheme that is fit-for-purpose 
cannot be overstated and NFU Cymru is calling for the Minister to establish and chair regular SFS 
meetings with NFU Cymru leaders between now and the final scheme design / payment rates being 
published. 

Tudalen y pecyn 43



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 14 

 
The Political / Legislative / Economic Context 

 

• Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023 
 
The legislative context for future agricultural policy is established through the Agriculture (Wales) Act 
2023. This piece of primary legislation, amongst other things, establishes the following Sustainable 
Land Management objectives as the legislative framework for future support for farmers in Wales.   
 

• The first Sustainable Land Management objective is to produce food and other goods in a 
sustainable manner.  

• The second objective is to mitigate and adapt to climate change.  

• The third objective is to maintain and enhance the resilience of ecosystems and the benefits 
they provide. 

• The fourth objective is to conserve and enhance the countryside and cultural resources and 
promote public access to and engagement with them, and to sustain the Welsh language and 
promote and facilitate its use.  
 

These objectives must be met by meeting the needs of the present without compromising the ability 
of future generations to meet their own needs and by contributing to the well-being goals established 
in the Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 
Welsh Ministers must consider all four Sustainable Land Management objectives during the exercise 
of their duties relating to the Act. It is also important to note that for the purposes of the first objective, 
factors relevant to whether food and other goods are produced in a sustainable manner includes, 
among other things, the resilience of agricultural businesses within the communities in which they 
operate and their contribution to the local economy.  
 
Whilst the Act is a framework, with technical details of support to farmers provided for by Welsh 
Ministers through secondary legislation and policy development, it is important to recognise that, in 
the development of future policy, Welsh Ministers must contribute to the Sustainable Land 
Management objectives described above. Given Welsh Government proposes that the Sustainable 
Farming Scheme will be the primary source of government support for farmers in Wales and will 
reward farmers for actions that align with the Sustainable Land Management objectives there is a 
reasonable expectation that future policy will give equal emphasis to them all. 
 
In this context, NFU Cymru identifies that the latest proposals for the Sustainable Farming Scheme 
have not evolved sufficiently from earlier proposals and the scheme design has not kept pace with 
the fundamental changes secured to the Agriculture (Wales) Act during its passage through the 
Senedd. The delivery of environmental outcomes continues to predominate and, as the independent 
modelling published by Welsh Government clearly demonstrates, the consequences of this approach 
are too serious to contemplate.   
 
In line with duties on Welsh Ministers set out in legislation, NFU Cymru believes the scheme must be 
overhauled to address the imbalance so that equal ambition for food production and the resilience of 
agricultural businesses alongside the other SLM objectives is achieved. To support this, Welsh 
Government should develop an objective methodology by which scheme actions can be identified to 
ensure all of the SLM objectives and outcomes are accomplished in a balanced and equitable way. 
 
Overall, NFU Cymru is clear that more emphasis is needed within the Sustainable Farming Scheme 
on measures that directly support the continued production of food; ensure that farming businesses 
are resilient so their contribution to rural communities is safeguarded; and the Welsh language, 
culture and heritage is sustained.    
 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 15 

 

• Food security  
 
NFU Cymru has long been clear that, in the context of the challenges to global food production, 
future agricultural policy must underpin and secure the continued supply of safe, high quality, 
traceable, affordable food. 
 
We recognise that food security is a complex area – it’s increasingly recognised as a central facet of 
our national security and can no longer be taken for granted in an increasingly volatile world.  It is 
about more than keeping food on shelves today and how much it costs; it must also encompass 
safeguarding food supplies for the future. This will be vital in the context of the predicted challenges 
to our global food production system which include global population growth, climate change and 
competition for key resources including land, energy and water – already contributing to instability 
and unrest in some parts of the world.  It is a matter of strategic national importance to ensure that 
our country can feed itself and a high level of domestic production in a volatile world is a critical 
aspect of food security.   
 
Access to safe, high quality, affordable food is a most basic fundamental right for all people in 
society. Through the Well-Being of Future Generations Act 2015, Wales is the first country in the 
world to legislate for the well-being of current and future generations in a way that ties in with the 
United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals. The second UN goal prioritises ending hunger, 
achieving food security, improving nutrition and promoting sustainable agriculture2.  
 
Evidence shows that overall levels of British self-sufficiency stood at 60% in 20203. Recent events 
such as the global COVID-19 pandemic and the war in Ukraine have served as a stark reminder of 
the importance of this goal and focused attention on the importance and fragility of food security, both 
at home and abroad. The disruption to our food output, supply chains, availability and affordability, 
could last for many years.  
 
It is also clear that resource efficient and resilient domestic food production plays an important role in 
limiting our global ecological footprint and displacing the environmental and carbon leakage impacts 
of food supply to overseas, where environmental, animal health and welfare and social standards 
such as worker pay and conditions are often lower.  
 
Wales has a social responsibility to contribute to global food security when food production systems 
elsewhere are expected to face greater challenges and disruption due to climate change impacts. In 
Wales we have the natural resources and world leading farmers to produce a broad range of high-
quality food products for society. As a relatively wealthy nation, Wales has an obligation to contribute 
to global food security by producing what it can and not over-relying on other countries to fulfil its 
food needs.  
 
The Welsh public also support a greater emphasis on food security. A recent NFU Cymru 
commissioned survey by YouGov of over 1,000 adults in Wales showed that 67% of Welsh adults 
want UK food production to be as self-sufficient as possible and of those who do 70% think Wales 
can play a leading or have a major role to play in self-sufficiency. 
 
It is also worth noting that the Prime Minister Rishi Sunak MP in delivering the keynote political 
address at this year’s NFU Conference announced a new annual UK-wide Food Security Index to 
capture and present the data needed to monitor levels of self-sufficiency.  
 
The Agriculture (Wales) Act obliges Welsh Ministers to have regards to statistics published on 
agricultural production and income of agricultural businesses deriving from surveys of the sector 

 
2 THE 17 GOALS | Sustainable Development (un.org) 
3 british-food-leading-the-way.pdf (nfuonline.com) 

Tudalen y pecyn 45

https://sdgs.un.org/goals
https://www.nfuonline.com/media/s4xluxgg/british-food-leading-the-way.pdf


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 16 

when preparing indicators and targets and also when preparing reports under Section 7 of the Act. 
NFU Cymru believe that this UK wide index, alongside other UK and Welsh statistics must be 
considered as part of these indicators and targets and considered when designing the policies 
needed to achieve these indicators and targets. 
 
NFU Cymru believes that just as Welsh Government seeks to ensure, through its policies, that Wales 
makes its contribution to the global challenge of climate change, so it should ensure that we make 
our contribution towards global food security, in line with being a globally responsible Wales.  
Ensuring a stable supply of home-produced, high-quality food should, therefore, be a key objective of 
the scheme.     
 
Our analysis, backed up by Welsh Government’s modelling4, demonstrates that levels of food 
production will not be maintained under current proposals. Whilst Welsh Government continues to 
suggest that a number of the Universal Actions contribute to the SLM outcome of producing food in 
an environmentally sustainable manner, in reality, these actions largely focus on intervening in the 
process of food production in ways that boost the delivery of environmental outcomes. This is not the 
same as a policy that underpins food production, the sustainable growth of the sector or our food 
security.  Other aspects of proposals have the effect of reducing agriculture’s productivity capacity in 
perpetuity.   
 
NFU Cymru is clear that more direct, explicit support to maintain and enhance food production in an 
increasingly volatile world should be central within the Universal Action Layer. A commitment is also 
needed from Welsh Government to develop a comprehensive farm to fork food strategy for Wales 
with ambitious targets for the sustainable growth of the food and farming sector. 
 

• Competitiveness 
 
The increasingly precarious state of food production globally provides impetus for continuing 
government intervention in farming in the vast majority of developed countries.   
 
At an EU level, Members States recognise that the underlying principles of the Common Agricultural 
Policy to provide a stable supply of food, safeguard farmers’ income, protect the environment and 
keep rural areas vibrant remain as relevant today as they have ever been. The 2021-2027 
programme has received a budget allocation of €387 billion, with 72% allocated to direct payments 
via the European Agricultural Guarantee Fund5.   
 
In recent weeks, Scotland’s First Minister Humza Yousaf has confirmed that 70% of future support to 
farmers will be direct payments for producing food6 including headage payments.  In Northern 
Ireland, the Farm Sustainability Payment measure will provide a basic safety net with the majority of 
the budget allocated to it as it follows on from direct support7.  
 
In England, Defra has started to recognise the role of incentives within SFI payments, for example, 
offering £151 per hectare to farmers to manage grassland with very low inputs (compared to £69 per 
hectare in the Habitat Wales Scheme).  
 
Further afield the US Farm Bill is one of the largest and most expensive pieces of legislative policy in 
the US. Over $1 trillion dollars will be spent on the Bill over the next ten years. Whilst much of the 
budget will be committed to nutrition assistance programmes which has an indirect benefit to US 
agriculture the Bill also provides direct support to farmers, conservation programmes and crop 
insurance. 

 
4 Potential economic effects of the Sustainable Farming Scheme Phase 4 Universal Actions Modelling Results (gov.wales) 
5 CAP funds - European Commission (europa.eu) 
6 Scottish farmers win battle over food subsidies (msn.com) 
7 Future Agricultural Policy Decisions for Northern Ireland (Final) (002).pdf (daera-ni.gov.uk) 

Tudalen y pecyn 46

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2023-12/potential-economic-effects-of-the-scheme-phase-4-universal-actions-modelling-results.pdf
https://agriculture.ec.europa.eu/common-agricultural-policy/financing-cap/cap-funds_en
https://www.msn.com/en-us/news/world/scottish-farmers-win-battle-over-food-subsidies/ar-BB1i1lyE
https://www.daera-ni.gov.uk/sites/default/files/publications/daera/Future%20Agricultural%20Policy%20Decisions%20for%20Northern%20Ireland%20%28Final%29%20%28002%29.pdf


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 17 

 
Welsh Government must recognise that farming in Wales operates in national and global markets.  
NFU Cymru’s position has always been that policies must ensure that Welsh farming remains 
competitive with farmers in the UK, EU and globally.   
 
NFU Cymru would express profound concern that, through the development of proposals, Welsh 
Government takes no account of the competitiveness of the Welsh farming industry which, we are 
clear, will be seriously eroded by current proposals. Welsh Government’s proposals do not include a 
direct support element; the proposals for a stability payment is anything but ‘stable’, declining to zero 
within five years; and the cost incurred / income foregone payment methodology proposed for the 
Universal Baseline Payment means that, in effect, agriculture and food production in Wales will be 
unsupported by 2030. This is in stark contrast to our nearest competitors. NFU Cymru remains 
absolutely clear that competitiveness is a structural issue that must be addressed by Welsh 
Government so that farmers in Wales can continue to compete on a level playing field.   
 

• The economic landscape 
 
NFU Cymru is well-aware of the significant challenges faced by all sectors of the economy, by 
governments both national and local and by the public sector as we continue to feel the twin effects 
of both high inflation and high interest rates, and an economy which is struggling to grow. Welsh 
farming has not been immune to these stresses with input costs on farm some 30% higher than they 
were in 2019, increases in output prices have not matched the inflation seen in inputs thus putting 
margins under pressure.     
 
Welsh farmers continue to face a wide range of challenges and significant economic turmoil as a 
result of factors completely beyond their control. Given that the proposed SFS is to be the long-term 
programme to support the agricultural industry in Wales, it is important that we all recognise the 
economic backdrop in which policy is being developed and introduced. 
 
The latest statistics on Farm Incomes was published in February 2024 and relates to the period April 
2022-March 2023. The release coincides with the war in Ukraine and the cost-of-living crisis both of 
which have had a considerable impact on costs for farms in Wales.   
 
It should be noted that the figure generally used to reflect farm profitability for each Welsh farm 
category is ‘farm business income’, which represents the financial return to all unpaid workers 
(farmers, spouses, non-principal partners and their spouses, and family workers) on all their capital 
invested in the farm business. In essence, farm business income is the same as net profit. 
 
On cattle and sheep LFA farms the estimated average income dropped in 2022-23 by 37% to 
£24,300. On cattle and sheep (lowland) farms average income has dropped by 30% to £18,700. The 
87% increase in income on dairy farms can be explained by the rise in output from milk and milk 
products which increased by 49% due to an increase in the milk price. It is important to note that 
between December 2022 and December 2023 the milk price has fallen by 26.7%, this reduction in 
output is likely to be reflected in the year to March 2024 income figures and highlights the inherent 
volatility and uncertainty in commodity markets.   
 
The Farm Business Survey refers to the need for particular attention to be given to the current 
contribution of the Basic Payment Scheme, other subsidies, miscellaneous and diversified income to 
the bottom line. For example, these four contributed around 25% of the total income (outputs) and 
153% of profits, on average, for upland cattle and sheep farms. The report goes on to say that with 
these levels of dependency, it is difficult to see how many Welsh farms with limited options for 
changing farming enterprises and / or systems, can be profitable without relying on non-farming 
income and Welsh Government support payments.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 47

https://www.gov.wales/farm-incomes


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 18 

The table below shows the variation in farm business income over the past nine years, and highlights 
that in 2021-22 nearly 50% of farms had a farm business income below £25,000 with around 10% 
having a negative income. 

 

 
Factors such as bovine TB continues to have a major economic and psychological impact on Welsh 
farming communities, with around 10,000 animals consistently being slaughtered per annum due to 
TB over the past five years. At any one time more than 600 farm businesses in Wales will be 
restricted because of bovine TB with thousands more living with the fear of what their next on-farm 
TB test will bring. Exeter University has found that the consequential losses associated with a TB 
outbreak on farm can be between £3,198 and £55,000 per farm as a result of movement restrictions 
alone. An NFU Cymru member survey on bovine TB that received over 500 responses from cattle 
keepers from across Wales found that the average cost over 12 months to the farms that provided 
cost details was £25,677. Across all respondents, over 30% estimated their costs at over £10,000 
and 13% said the figure was over £50,000. 
 
The Control of Agricultural Pollution Regulations (2021) introduce a Nitrate Vulnerable Zone (NVZ) 
across the whole of Wales. The Regulations came into force on the 1 April 2021 with transitional 
periods for some elements. Welsh Government’s own Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA) stated 
that the regulations will cost Welsh farmers as much as £360 million in infrastructure costs alone – 
with annual compliance and impact costs in addition to this figure.  
 
Since the publication of the impact assessment, the cost of compliance with the regulations has 
increased significantly as a result of increases in building costs, meaning the infrastructure costs of 
compliance alone may now approach £500 million. 
 
Whilst, as a result of NFU Cymru lobbying, Welsh Government has introduced an enhanced nutrient 
management approach for 2024 which will allow farmers to operate above the 170 kg/N/ha limit from 
livestock manures subject to meeting certain conditions, at the time of writing there is no long-term 
sustainable solution in place. Modelling undertaken by AHDB has shown that the impact of the 170 
kg/N/Ha from livestock manures limit will reduce stocking density on Welsh dairy farms by 17% 
representing a substantial threat to Welsh farm incomes and livelihoods, with consequential impacts 
for the supply chain.  
 
Bank of England data shows that agricultural borrowing stood at £17.84 billion in November 2023, a 
marginal fall from the £17.89 billion recorded the previous month.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 48

https://www.nfu-cymru.org.uk/news-and-information/survey-reveals-worrying-emotional-and-financial-impact-of-bovine-tb-on-welsh-farming/#:~:text=Bovine%20TB%20transmission&text=An%20overwhelming%20majority%20(88.9%25),influence%20in%20bovine%20TB%20transmission.


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 19 

 
 

 Agricultural borrowing, July 2009-July 2023 
 
Farm borrowing remains extremely high compared with historic levels, and with around half of all 
farms having existing borrowing, and many needing to borrow in order to cope with immediate and 
long-term challenges – not least the costs of complying with the Control of Agricultural Pollution 
Regulations – the servicing of existing and new loans in a climate of high interest rates will bring 
additional financial pressures for Welsh farm businesses over the coming years.  With interest rates 
having risen to 5.25%, from 0.1% in December 2021, their highest rate since 2008 the ability to 
service increased loan repayments will be a major concern to many farming businesses.   
 
Given the global food crisis and the fact that escalating costs are forcing many farmers to reduce 
production and, in some instances, even consider whether they will be able to continue farming, NFU 
Cymru has consistently called on the Welsh Government to ensure that future policy does not 
constrain farmers’ productive capabilities and inhibit Wales’ vital role in contributing to domestic and 
global food security. 

Agriculture is one of the sectors that have been most heavily shaped by the UK’s membership of the 
European Union, with farmers having historically benefitted from the financial support through the 
Common Agricultural Policy as well as free and frictionless access to the EU’s Single Market. 
 
The UK’s departure from the EU, and the decision to leave the Single Market and the Customs Union 
has brought about fundamental change for the UK-EU trade relationship. While the Trade and 
Cooperation Agreement between the UK and the EU, agreed in late 2020 provides for certain 
preferential arrangements, the nature of the relationship has continued to change. This has resulted 
in farming businesses facing trade disruptions and frictions and British exporters continue to find 
adjusting to the new relationship difficult; new requirements in terms of customs declarations, 
inspections and checks have added significantly to costs and problems, while delays at borders can 
be significant, making Welsh and British products less competitive.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 20 

In addition to the UK-EU trade deal, the UK Government has reached a number of trade agreements 
with other nations. The majority of these represent ‘rollover’ agreements that generally reflect 
agreements that were already in place with the EU. The two most significant new agreements are 
those agreed with Australia and New Zealand, both of which are extremely liberal in terms of 
providing immediate access to duty free transitional quotas for key agriculture products, with eventual 
tariff elimination. 
 
The agreements with New Zealand and Australia have entered into force only recently, 31st May 
2023. While there may be some modest opportunities to increase exports to Australia and New 
Zealand, for instance in relation to finished products e.g. cheese, there is much more in the deals for 
Australian and New Zealand exporters. It is still too early to evaluate if opportunities or concerns 
have been realised. 
  
The government’s own impact assessment estimated that with respect to the New Zealand deal, UK 
agriculture, forestry and fishing and semi-processed foods sectors are expected to experience a 
reduction in gross value added (GVA) of around 0.35% (£48 million) and 1.16% (£97 million) 
respectively.  
 
The Government estimates that because of the Australia deal, we will see a reduction in gross output 
of around 3% for beef and 5% for sheep meat as a result of liberalisation. This is equivalent to wiping 
£87million off the output of UK sheep production and £67million off the UK beef sector and does not 
take into regard the cumulative effect of agreeing similar liberalisation terms with New Zealand. 
Given the reliance of the Welsh farming sector on red meat production we have concerns that the 
impact for agriculture in Wales will be proportionally worse than for other parts of the UK.  
 
In 2022, the UK exported £15.57 billion worth of agri-food. This is up 17.3% on 2021 and 
approaching 2019 figures. In 2022, 75% of the value of Welsh food and drink goods exports went to 
the EU.  
 
However, the apparent recovery of exports to the EU must be viewed through the lens of 
unprecedented levels of inflation. The food and drink sector has experienced particularly high 
inflation with businesses forced to raise prices to meet rapidly rising input costs. In this context, the 
2021 to 2022 growth in export values does not necessarily represent increased exporting activity 
from businesses. 
 
Unfortunately, in volume terms HMRC figures show a significant drop in exports of agri-food products 
since 2019. Overall volumes of agri-food are down more than 20% compared to 2019.  
 
In 2022, the UK imported £47.6billion worth of food and live animals, up 25.6% on the year and 
16.3% higher than 2019 figures. The increase in the value of imports, coupled with stagnation in the 
value of our exports, has led to a significant deterioration in the nation’s Balance of Trade in Agri-food 
products (see below). The UK has been running a trade deficit in food and live animals of circa 
£2.7billion a month during 2022, compared to £2billion in 2019.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 50



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 21 

 
 
NFU Cymru has repeatedly made clear concerns that these and other liberal trade agreements will 
adversely affect our ambitions to sustainably grow the £8.1 billion Welsh food and drink industry – 
Wales’ biggest employer. Just as importantly, there are legitimate concerns as to the social and cultural 
impact of such trade deals and their effect on Welsh language and culture. 
 
NFU Cymru is pleased that Welsh Government, through the consultation, recognises the need to 
protect livelihoods and keep farmers farming. In reality, the SFS does very little to deliver economic 
sustainability on Welsh farms in the challenging context set out above.   
 
A long-term commitment to a stability payment needs to form a central facet of the Sustainable 
Farming Scheme to ensure that the continued delivery of economic, environmental, social and 
cultural outcomes by Welsh farming is secured.  
 

• Public support 
 

During difficult times, farmers continue to be sustained by the strength of support shown to them by 
the public.   
 
A survey of 1,057 adults in Wales undertaken by international market research and data analytics 
company, YouGov, in November 2023, for example, found that 82% of those surveyed supported the 
Welsh Government providing financial support to farmers to produce food.   
 
Interestingly, the data showed that support for Welsh Government providing financial support to 
farmers to produce food was actually higher in many urban regions than the national 82% average, 
for example it was 86% for those surveyed in Cardiff and South Wales Central.  
 
When taking into account Welsh Government’s priorities, 72% of those surveyed said that supporting 
Welsh farmers was a good use of public spending. 
 

-4000

-3000

-2000

-1000

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

1
9

9
8

JA
N

1
9

9
8

SE
P

1
9

9
9

M
A

Y
2

0
0

0
JA

N
2

0
0

0
SE

P
2

0
0

1
M

A
Y

2
0

0
2

JA
N

2
0

0
2

SE
P

2
0

0
3

M
A

Y
2

0
0

4
JA

N
2

0
0

4
SE

P
2

0
0

5
M

A
Y

2
0

0
6

JA
N

2
0

0
6

SE
P

2
0

0
7

M
A

Y
2

0
0

8
JA

N
2

0
0

8
SE

P
2

0
0

9
M

A
Y

2
0

1
0

JA
N

2
0

1
0

SE
P

2
0

1
1

M
A

Y
2

0
1

2
JA

N
2

0
1

2
SE

P
2

0
1

3
M

A
Y

2
0

1
4

JA
N

2
0

1
4

SE
P

2
0

1
5

M
A

Y
2

0
1

6
JA

N
2

0
1

6
SE

P
2

0
1

7
M

A
Y

2
0

1
8

JA
N

2
0

1
8

SE
P

2
0

1
9

M
A

Y
2

0
2

0
JA

N
 2

0
2

0
SE

P
2

0
2

1
M

A
Y

 2
0

2
2

 J
an

2
0

2
2

 S
EP

M
ill

io
n

s 
£

Balance of trade Total Agri Food Imports and Exports (current prices ONS)

Trade Balance 0 Food & live animals Combined Exports

Tudalen y pecyn 51



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 22 

74% of Welsh adults viewed food produced in Wales as high quality and 66% of Welsh adults 
thought that the amount of locally produced food in the public sector should be increased with 67% of 
people wanting UK food production to be as self-sufficient as possible and, of those who do, 70% 
think Wales can play a leading or have a major role to play in self-sufficiency. 
 
This shows a high level of backing amongst the public for supporting farmers financially to produce 
food, also sending a strong signal to Welsh Government for the direction of future policy design.   
 
Summary 
 
NFU Cymru’s key principles and vision for future agricultural policy are closely aligned to Welsh 
Government’s own legislation including the Well-Being of Future Generations Act 2015 and the 
Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023 which establishes four Sustainable Land Management (SLM) 
objectives.  
 
NFU Cymru identifies that the latest proposals have not evolved sufficiently from earlier proposals 
and the scheme design has not kept pace with the fundamental changes secured to the Agriculture 
(Wales) Act during its passage through the Senedd.  The latest SFS proposals continue to prioritise 
the delivery of environmental outcomes. This imbalance must be addressed so that there is equal 
ambition for food production and the resilience of agricultural businesses alongside other SLM 
objectives.  
 
NFU Cymru has long been clear that, in the context of the challenges to global food production, 
future agricultural policy must underpin and secure the continued supply of safe, high quality, 
traceable, affordable food.  The precarious state of food production globally provides impetus for 
continuing government intervention in farming in the vast majority of developed countries. NFU 
Cymru remains clear that the ability of Welsh farmers to remain competitive is a structural issue that 
must be addressed through future policy so that farmers in Wales can compete on a level playing 
field with farmers in the rest of the UK, EU and globally in an increasingly volatile operating 
environment. 
 
Welsh farmers continue to face a wide range of challenges and significant economic turmoil as a 
result of factors completely beyond their control. Given that the proposed SFS is to be the long-
term programme to support the agricultural industry in Wales, it is important that the economic 
backdrop in which policy is being developed and introduced is recognised.  
 
In this context, NFU Cymru is clear a long-term commitment to a stability payment within the SFS 
to recognise the economic, environmental, social and cultural contribution that Welsh farming 
makes to society and to underpin the resilience of food production in Wales and the continued 
secure supply of high quality, safe and affordable food from Wales is needed. Welsh Government 
must also commit to develop a comprehensive farm to fork food strategy for Wales with ambitious 
targets for the sustainable growth of the food and farming sector.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 52



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 23 

 

2. The SFS framework 
 
NFU Cymru continues to broadly support Welsh Government’s proposed overarching Sustainable 
Farming Scheme structure based around the three structures of: 
 

• Universal Actions – required of all participants of the scheme in return for the Universal 
Baseline Payment.   

• Optional Actions – offering farmers the choice to prioritise and undertake actions appropriate 
to their circumstances. 

• Collaborative Actions – offering farmers the chance to work with others to deliver change on a 
larger scale. 

 
We continue to believe this framework has the potential to be a workable model for delivery, closer 
than earlier proposals to NFU Cymru’s vision for future agricultural policy based around productivity, 
environment underpinned by a measure to deliver stability to farm businesses. However, NFU 
Cymru’s support for this framework remains contingent on the principle of equal access for all active 
farmers and development of practical and deliverable actions within the Universal Action Layer that 
are achievable on all farms in Wales, irrespective of farming sector, system and locations. The 
Universal Baseline Payment that farmers receive for undertaking the Universal Actions must also 
deliver at least the same level of stability to farm businesses as the Basic Payment Scheme provides 
currently.  
 
NFU Cymru is clear that Welsh Government’s current proposals for the Universal Action Layer of the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme continues to fail on both counts. Welsh Government continues to 
approach the design of the scheme based largely on previous agri-environment schemes. This 
approach is fundamentally flawed when the Sustainable Farming Scheme is set to be the main 
mechanism of support to farming in Wales replacing both Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 support measures 
provided via the CAP.   
 
On this basis NFU Cymru strongly rejects SFS proposals and we identify that very significant 
modification is required before moving forward.   
 
We place on record our profound disappointment that, despite Welsh Government’s apparent 
commitment to co-production, many of the issues set out in this response are concerns we have 
raised repeatedly, that have still not been addressed. Farmers across Wales are frustrated and 
disappointed that their efforts to provide feedback on successive consultations on the shape of future 
policy have been largely ignored. The high level of stress and anxiety within the farming industry 
about Welsh Government’s plan to introduce the Sustainable Farming Scheme in 2025 when in its 
current iteration it is clearly not fit-for-purpose is palpable.   
 
NFU Cymru remains clear that the issues raised, and reiterated below, represent a very real barrier 
to participation in the scheme. SFS proposals undermine Wales’ agricultural capacity and the viability 
of 16,000 or so farm businesses that rely on the BPS currently. We would also highlight that the 
delivery of Welsh Government’s environmental objectives is highly reliant on farmers being able to 
access the scheme. On this basis, the Sustainable Farming Scheme works for no one.   
 
We identify that a review of the practicality and cumulative administrative burden associated with the 
Universal Action Layer of the scheme is needed before moving forward and we continue to highlight 
that, as proposed, there are likely to be resource capacity issues associated with farmers conducting 
new actions as part of the scheme. In its response to co-design 2, Welsh Government committed to 
undertaking a capacity assessment that included the availability of goods and equipment as well as 
expertise, we note, the consultation is silent on this matter.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 53



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 24 

NFU Cymru reiterates our commitment to work with Welsh Government in genuine partnership to 
ensure that the Sustainable Farming Scheme is overhauled so that the Universal Action Layer is truly 
universal8 and it provides the necessary income stream to ensure it works for farmers, our rural 
communities, consumers and the supply chain as well as the environment.    
 

• Sustainable Land Management Outcomes 
 
We refer to Welsh Government’s proposed Sustainable Land Management outcomes for the scheme 
and note, to a great extent, they mirror the SLM outcomes of the Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023. We 
are concerned, however, that these outcomes have not translated into the Universal Action Layer of 
the scheme. Despite revised SLM objectives and additional SLM outcomes being included within the 
Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023 during its passage through the Senedd, there has been insufficient 
focus to translate these changes into the Sustainable Farming Scheme. To be clear the Universal 
Actions mirror closely what was published in Welsh Government’s July 2022 Outline Proposals 
document which was ahead of the Agriculture (Wales) Bill being introduced into the Senedd in 
September 2022 and in advance of the changes made as the Bill made its way through to the 
Senedd to ultimately become the Act that received the support of all the political parties.   
 
Despite the efforts of Welsh Government to highlight the multiple outcomes, they believe, each of the 
Universal Actions will deliver, in some instances, this analysis is clearly highly questionable. It is 
impossible to deny that, of the 17 proposed Universal Actions, at least ten are heavily focussed on 
environmental delivery. In this regard we believe that Welsh Government is failing in its duty to give 
equal focus to each of the four SLM objectives. Support for actions to underpin food production and 
the resilience of agricultural businesses and their contribution to the local economy are woefully 
lacking.   
 
In addition to the need to remodel the Universal Action Layer of the scheme so that it works for all 
farmers in Wales, we also identify the need to rebalance the Universal Actions so they are more 
closely aligned to the requirements of the Agriculture (Wales) Act whilst delivering economic, 
environmental, social and cultural outcomes in line with the Well-Being of Future Generations Act. 
 
Turning to each of the Universal Actions, we would make the following comments: 
 

• Universal Action 1: Benchmarking 
 
NFU Cymru notes farmers will be required to undertake annual measuring and monitoring through 
the completion of both mandatory and additional optional Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).  
Farmers will be required to submit this data to Welsh Government via an online portal which will 
compare their performance with other farms. 
 
Firstly, NFU Cymru would highlight that Welsh Government’s failure to publish the full list of proposed 
KPIs has hindered proper consultation. Members have repeatedly told us that they are not prepared 
to provide detailed financial and business sensitive information to Welsh Government as part of this 
Universal Action.   
 
NFU Cymru recognises the role that measuring performance can play, enabling farm businesses to 
compare their position with their own past performance and other farmers.  We would emphasise, 
however, that benchmarking can be a blunt instrument – no two farms are the same and 
benchmarking performance can plumet as a result of one issue which could be beyond the farmer’s 
control.  Whilst Welsh Government has sought to provide reassurances that there will be no negative 
consequence for lower benchmarking performance, NFU Cymru is concerned that, through 
proposals, Welsh Government has paid insufficient consideration of the impact to the well-being of 

 
8 Universal – something that is universal relates to everyone (Collins Dictionary)  

Tudalen y pecyn 54



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 25 

farmers under this level of scrutiny together with administrative burden of this Universal Action.  
Farmers were also concerned that efforts to improve performance of one KPI measure could 
negatively impact on another.   
 
There is widespread concern about how KPI data provided to the Welsh Government online portal  
will be used and also safeguarded. The issue of data protection is covered later in this response, 
however, it is possible to foresee data through this Universal Action subject to information request 
and twisted to meet their own ends by aggressive campaigning groups with an agenda of attacking 
the farming industry in Wales.   
 
NFU Cymru is disappointed that Welsh Government places no value on the data provided by farmers 
and only proposes to pay for the farmers time to gather and report the data, potentially undermining 
any value that the supply chain or others may place on this information in the process. If Welsh 
Government wants this data, then the data has a value and farmers must be properly rewarded for 
providing it.   
 
We are also concerned about the costs of operationalising this Universal Action. The development of 
an online portal is likely to be a significant expense as will the proposed guidance and advice to 
support farmers.  In this context, NFU Cymru remains wholly unconvinced of the cost-benefit of this 
Universal Action and we are clear that the marginal gains in performance that can be achieved 
through benchmarking will be insufficient to make up for loss of direct support through the BPS.   
 
The consultation also fails to address Welsh Government’s proposal for supporting farmers who are 
digitally excluded.  More account is needed of Welsh Government’s own  Digital Strategy published 
in 2021 which states that “For people who cannot, or decide not to, participate digitally, we will 
continue to apply the principles of user centred design so that there are alternative ways to access 
public services in Wales. The alternative access routes will be as good as those offered online”.  
 
Finally, Welsh Government’s underlying assumption that farmers do not already undertake 
benchmarking is inaccurate. Many farmers participate in benchmarking via a number of mechanisms 
currently. To assume market failure in this area, therefore, demonstrates a lack of understanding of 
farming in Wales. Welsh Government’s benchmarking approach will need to take account of this and 
be compatible with the data already collected to minimise bureaucracy for the farmer.   
 
Overall, we remain concerned that Welsh Government continues to overplay the role that 
benchmarking can play in underpinning farm business viability in the absence of measures that 
provide stability. Whilst Welsh Government emphasises many factors affecting farm business 
performance are within the control of the individual farmer, the evidence is clear, farmers are also 
subject to significant volatility arising from environmental, economic and political factors beyond their 
control.  
 

• Universal Action 2: Continuous Personal Development (CPD) 
 
Welsh Government proposes that farmers participate in an annual training cycle comprising six 
online learning modules (including mandatory Health and Safety training) on an annual basis with the 
result that over a five-year period some 30 online modules will have been undertaken.   
 
Firstly, NFU Cymru is supportive of efforts to improve the Health and Safety record on Welsh farms. 
The loss of life and injury on farms is deeply concerning to all of us and the safety record of the 
industry must be improved. NFU Cymru place a significant focus on promoting and highlighting 
Health and Safety messages through all our member communication and engagement work. We are 
a strong supporter of the Yellow Wellies campaign and an active partner in the Wales Farm Safety 
Partnership.  We also recognise the role that Continuous Personal Development (CPD) can play in 
contributing to our vision of a productive, profitable and progressive farming industry in Wales. NFU 

Tudalen y pecyn 55

https://gov.wales/digital-strategy-wales-html#section-66659


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 26 

Cymru is proud that we have many award-winning farmers in Wales. Such achievements are not 
necessarily linked to educational attainment, however, Welsh Government should recognise that 
many farmers in Wales are often educated to degree level and beyond and are frequently better 
qualified than the advisers that are paid to advise them.  In addition to formal education, many 
farmers in Wales are active participants in a broad spectrum of ongoing CPD activity.   
 
We note that Welsh Government expects this prior and ongoing CPD to count, however, it is not 
clear how this will be operationalised, how equivalence will be determined, whether participation in 
alternative CPD programmes such as DairyPro, Nroso, BASIS etc will be recognised etc. Farmers 
attend conferences, NFU Cymru meetings etc. where they will also gain valuable information as part 
of their CPD and a system is needed that reflects all of these approaches.    
 
It is also not clear how Welsh Government arrived at the proposal for there to be six courses 
undertaken annually and how Welsh Government aims to ‘pitch’ the training so that it is suitable and 
offers genuine value to all participating farmers who will possess a very broad range of prior learning 
and spectrum of age and ability.   
 
Farmers were also disappointed with proposals to limit payment to covering the cost of farmers time 
for participating in the online training and there is not an element of incentive that has existed 
elsewhere, for example, we are aware the Irish government provided a top-up of €1300 to Direct 
Payments for attending a number of Teagasc knowledge transfer events. 
 
Overall, there was an overwhelming feeling within the farming community that through this, and a 
number of the other proposed Universal Actions, Welsh Government believes farmers are unable to 
run their businesses effectively. Whilst the evidence presents a compelling case for farm support, we 
do not believe Welsh Government should use this to draw false conclusions about the capability of 
farmers, rather a primary function of support is maintaining competitiveness with farmers in the rest 
of the UK, EU and globally.   
 
This Universal Action is also likely to come with a high investment cost for Welsh Government, 
particularly as it proposes to support this Universal Action with other learning activity, such as 
discussion groups and demonstration farms. We are concerned that Welsh Government may be 
simply repeating past investments it has made through the Farming Connect Programme. The cost-
benefit of such interventions remains unclear, and more analysis is needed before moving forward. 
 
Comments made earlier relating to digital exclusion are also relevant to this Universal Action. 
 

• Universal Action 3: Soil health planning 
 
NFU Cymru notes this Universal Action will include soil testing and nutrient planning.  Welsh 
Government proposes to develop and refine this Universal Action over time – this has hindered 
consultation as has the lack of clarity about what Welsh Government proposes in respect of the 
biological and physical measures. NFU Cymru is clear that at this late stage in the scheme 
development process Welsh Government should be providing a clear picture of the requirements of 
each action it proposes.   
 
That said, the benefits of soil analysis and nutrient management planning are well known, and it is a 
well-established practice on many Welsh farms. Soil analysis undertaken by farmers prior to joining 
the scheme within the last five years should be acceptable for the purposes of this Universal Action.  
The results of GPS soil testing should also be accepted. 
 
The logistical and capacity challenges associated with this proposal are, however, likely to be 
significant. Farmers have pointed to nutrient management planning undertaken through Farming 
Connect where the results were received too late in the season to act upon them.  We believe that 

Tudalen y pecyn 56



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 27 

rather than testing on an individual field parcel basis it should be possible to group together field 
parcels that are under the same management. Similarly, the proposal to apply this action to enclosed 
semi-natural dry grassland when the management response is likely to be curtailed by regulation was 
questioned.  
 
Farmers also highlighted the administrative burden associated with inputting data relating to soil 
analysis onto RPW online and significant concerns were raised about how Welsh Government would 
use the data and whether there would be an expectation on farmers to act on soil analysis results.  
Farmers queried if Welsh Government would, for example, be providing grant support for lime which 
has the potential to deliver significant agronomic and environmental benefit and climate change 
mitigation.   
 
Given that Welsh Government proposes that electronic capture of the data will support monitoring, 
evaluation and national reporting, it is clear that this data has a value to Welsh Government. On this 
basis, Welsh Government’s proposal to cover only the farmers time through the Universal Baseline 
Payment with no payment for data is unacceptable to us.   
 
NFU Cymru is also highly concerned around the exploitation of the soil analysis data provided to 
Welsh Government and asks what safeguards there would be to protect individuals and the industry 
as a whole from information requests from campaigning groups who have a strategy of grossly 
misrepresenting farming for their own ends. This is an issue that contributes to high levels of stress 
and anxiety within the industry currently.  
 
Moving to the specific soil sampling proposal, whilst standard soil analysis for P, K, Mg and pH is a 
widespread and well understood practice, testing for soil organic matter is more complex and costly.  
It is not clear what Welsh Government’s purpose is in asking for this analysis to be undertaken, 
however, our discussions with experts suggests that yielding any meaningful results is likely to be 
challenging.   
 
Turning to Welsh Government’s proposals for basic nutrient accounts. Again, farmers highlighted the 
administrative burden associated with this as well as the requirement to keep records of land 
management. Whilst many farmers will be doing this formally or informally, the requirements to keep 
records which are ‘inspection standard’ will inevitably be a cause for anxiety and add to the record 
keeping workload. There was also widespread concern that the requirement for basic nutrient 
accounts could result in a ‘consultants charter’ with high costs to farmers just to meet scheme 
requirements. 
 
NFU Cymru notes Welsh Government also proposes that farmers will need to incorporate Potassium 
and Phosphorus results into the Nutrient Management Plan for Nitrogen required for the Control of 
Agricultural Pollution Regulations (NVZs). NFU Cymru categorically rejects this proposal and identify 
that it is highly unusual for Welsh Government to be presenting this as a scheme requirement when 
such a requirement would clearly be linked to legislative change and should form part of the four-
yearly review established within the Regulations alongside comprehensive consultation and impact 
assessment. 
 
NFU Cymru strongly objected to Welsh Government’s regulatory approach of applying a pan Wales 
NVZ which did not follow the evidence. We will not support further ‘gold-plating’ of this Regulation 
when on a daily basis we encounter farmers who are grappling with the current requirements Welsh 
Government has set in law, with profound impacts to farm business viability as well as mental health. 
Welsh Government’s proposal is completely unacceptable to us and will be resisted in the strongest 
terms. 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 57



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 28 

• Universal Action 4: Multispecies cover crop 
 
Welsh Government proposes that a multispecies cover crop will be required on all land which would 
otherwise be left bare post-harvest for a period of more than 6 weeks.   
 
Again, we note ambiguity in relation to the specific proposals for root crops grazed through the winter 
and also, whether a Rough Surface Risk Assessment will be permitted or not.   
 
The removal of the Rough Surface Risk Assessment currently provided for through cross compliance 
is not acceptable. NFU Cymru has set out previously that allowing a rough surface offers significant 
and widespread benefits and fits into standard agronomic practice across a range of cropping 
systems. This includes the potato sector where crops are particularly vulnerable to poor seedbed 
preparation with impacts to yield and quality. We are concerned that this Universal Action may impact 
on the PGI status of Pembrokeshire Early Potatoes which has been granted on a set of conditions 
that included the method of production including soil preparation. This refers to soil preparation 
beginning in January with ploughing, with the field then left to weather to allow the upturned soil to 
break down.   
 
Farmers queried Welsh Government’s rationale for requiring a multi-species crop to be established.  
If the objective of this Universal Action is to protect soils from erosion then one species, such as 
ryegrass should be sufficient to meet this objective.  Requiring multiple species adds cost and 
complexity without a corresponding benefit. A key requirement for a cover crop is having the ability to 
establish quickly and be fast growing, this can be better achieved by using only one species e.g. 
Westerwolds Ryegrass. 
  
Similarly, farmers highlighted that they should be able to utilise farm saved seed, and therefore, in 
these circumstances it will not be possible to provide seed receipts. Farmers were also clear that 
there should be no restrictions on PPP use before and after the cover crop.     
  
Concerns were also raised about Welsh Government’s farming by calendar approach. NFU Cymru 
does not support proposals to establish the cover crop within 10 days of harvest which is too 
prescriptive.  Weather and field conditions need to be taken into account and the requirement should 
be to establish the crop when conditions are appropriate. Similarly, farmers questioned the logic of 
the 15 February date for the retention of the cover crop when farmers are best placed to judge the 
appropriate timing to establish the next crop based on the prevailing weather and ground conditions.   
 
With respect to the requirement that late harvested crops like maize must be undersown, it is 
important to recognise that this is not possible where the maize crop is grown in rotation, to be 
followed by a winter cereal.   
 
Finally, the interaction between this Universal Action and the Growing for the Environment Scheme 
was queried. Welsh Government proposes that the Rural Investment Schemes currently available 
are likely to continue to be available during the transition period, subject to budget. It is not clear 
whether Welsh Government proposes to continue the Growing for the Environment Scheme 
specifically but it is important to recognise that this directly supports the establishment of cover crops.  
In contrast the payment for this Universal Action is expected to be based on an average across all 
farms whether the farm needs to establish a cover crop or not. 
 

• Universal Action 5: Integrated Pest Management (IPM) 
 
Welsh Government proposes that farmers will complete an annual assessment of plant protection 
products (PPP) and alternative methods employed to reduce chemical usage. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 58



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 29 

We note that Welsh Government proposes not to prescribe the format of this assessment. NFU 
Cymru would support this approach since various templates already exist for IPM including those 
provided by the Voluntary Initiative, LEAF etc. Similarly, Welsh Government requirements for this 
Universal Action should be compatible with IPM requirements for farm assurance etc.  
 
NFU Cymru would also be keen to stress that the overarching aim of this Universal Action should not 
be a reduction in PPP usage per se, indeed, if that is the strategy then this is likely to have 
detrimental impacts on food production and specific Welsh Government policy agendas such as the 
desire to increase horticulture production in Wales. Welsh Government is also inaccurate in its 
assumed benefits of reduced PPP usage. Use of Pesticides are often an essential element of 
minimum tillage farming systems that can have benefits in terms of climate change mitigation / 
protecting soil carbon and organic matter. The benefits that Welsh Government envisaged from 
minimising the use of pesticides will only be realised if yields and profits are maintained. We would 
also highlight that the approval process for any pesticide is very thorough and includes environmental 
and human health considerations.  
 
As with a number of the proposed Universal Actions, farmers have also expressed concern about 
how data provided to Welsh Government on PPP usage will be used by Welsh Government and what 
safeguards there will be to prevent its misuse by others.   
 

• Universal Action 6: Managing heavily modified peatland  
 
We note Welsh Government intends to show farmers if they have modified peatland and this 
Universal Action will require their active management. 
 
NFU Cymru is concerned that Welsh Government has provided no definition of what it means by 
modified peatlands and as far as we are aware a mapping layer does not currently exist to show their 
location and extent in Wales. This has challenged our ability to consult properly with our members 
but it is possible to foresee issues arising with the proposed active management requirements set out 
in the consultation. For example, on a farm with a large extent of modified peatlands it is not realistic 
to require no supplementary feeding. 
 
We also foresee issues with creating an accurate map and, given the poor experience many farmers 
have encountered with the recent mapping exercise for the Habitat Wales Scheme, an effective 
system for removing land that has been inaccurately mapped is going to be essential.  
 
Overall, we question whether this Universal Action can be operational within Welsh Government’s 
proposed timeframe for the scheme and, given the numbers of farmers it is expected to apply to is 
likely to be limited, this would sit more appropriately within the Optional Action Layer. 
 

• Scheme Rule: 10% Habitat  
 
Welsh Government proposes at least 10% of each farm should be actively managed as habitat9.  
 
NFU Cymru notes that Welsh Government proposes that field scale habitats will be included 
alongside other habitat features such as ponds and scrapes, established broadleaf woodland and 
hedgerows that meet the definition of ‘good condition’. 
 
NFU Cymru is also clear that Welsh Government’s proposed classification of habitats eligible for this 
scheme Rule is not comprehensive. It is also prejudicial for farmers in some areas of Wales where 
other features are likely to predominate. Welsh Government has provided no justification for the 
omission of a range of other habitats and features that have been included in previous agri-

 
9 Habitat – the place where a plant or animal naturally or normally lives or grows 

Tudalen y pecyn 59



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 30 

environment schemes. On this basis, in addition to the habitats proposed above, we believe there are 
clear benefits for a range of species to include the following additional habitat features: 
 

• Riparian and water features such as streams, rivers, ditches and irrigation ponds.  

• Other field boundary features such as earth banks and dry-stone walls.   

• All tree features including coniferous forestry.  

• Traditional farm buildings.  

• Non-permanent features such as mixed cropping at a farm level – recognising the diversity of 
cropping and mixed farming is good for nature providing a range of habitat types. 

 
Farms should be paid across each hectare of habitat they have / create and NFU Cymru welcomes 
the commitment from Welsh Government10 that all broadleaf woodland in addition to the woody 
habitats, namely, traditional orchards, scrub, wood pasture and in-field trees will count towards both 
habitat and tree cover requirements.   
 
We note that Welsh Government is proposing, where farmers have enough semi-natural habitats, 
subject to assessment, lesser quality habitats can be considered for tree planting, creating scrapes or 
restoration to higher quality habitats. What is not clear is if Welsh Government is prepared to change 
and relax the existing regulatory regime provided for through EIA to facilitate this.   
 
NFU Cymru is concerned that Welsh Government proposes that only hedgerows that meet its 
definition of ‘good condition’ will be included in the 10% habitat calculation. Our specific comments 
relating to Welsh Government’s hedgerow management are made later in this response, however, 
we strongly assert that all hedgerows should be included within any calculation of habitat extent.  
 

• Universal Action 7: Habitat Maintenance 
 
Welsh Government proposes that the habitats mapped will be classified as one of 11 proposed 
habitat categories, each with a management specification setting out the management outcomes, 
recommendations and restrictions. Our comments relating to Welsh Government’s proposed 
mapping exercise are made later in this response.   
 
We place on record our concerns that Welsh Government has only provided information on the 
management specification for ‘Enclosed Semi-Natural Dry Grassland – Grazed Pasture’ and not the 
full 11 habitat classifications. This has limited our ability to properly consult with our members, 
especially when Welsh Government has stated this is the final consultation on scheme design. 
 
Whilst Welsh Government suggests it is adopting a more flexible approach to habitat management 
than existed previously, many farmers doubt this when the management specification for Enclosed 
Semi-Natural Dry Grassland suggests the opposite is the case. In reality, we identify that farmers will 
largely be in the hands of the RPW inspector on the day as to whether they receive a penalty or not.  
This is not an acceptable position for farmers to be put in.   
 
Concerns have also been expressed that the prescriptive requirements of this Universal Action may 
interfere with pre-existing agreements, for example, with environmental charities, for the 
management of some farmland.   
 
In respect of the management specification for ‘Enclosed Semi-Natural Dry Grassland’, NFU Cymru 
would express concern that, yet again, Welsh Government has resorted to prescriptive sward heights 
as a measurable outcome which farmers will be assessed against upon inspection. We are 
concerned that Welsh Government has taken no account of the fact that this habitat type may be 

 
10 E-mail communication 

Tudalen y pecyn 60



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 31 

utilised as hay meadow with a crop taken in which case achievement of these sward heights between 
15 May and 31 August will be unattainable.   
 
Similarly, the requirement to remove livestock if conditions become too wet will be impossible where 
the farm supports a lot of this habitat type. How farmers are supposed to ensure that dead material 
does not cover 10% of the area overall when cutting or topping is limited to no more than 30% or 
rush or weed species is unclear. It is perverse to include the recommendation to graze natural 
grassland with cattle or horses when there is absolutely nothing in the entire SFS to support livestock 
grazing and wider Welsh Government policies such as those relating to bovine TB and NVZs have 
contributed to a decline in suckler cow numbers. The recommendation to apply lime to maintain a soil 
pH of between 5.5 and 6.5 on neutral grasslands is likely to be prohibitively expensive without grant 
support.   
 
Analysis of the practical application of the management specification for this habitat type suggests 
similar detailed engagement with the farming sector is needed for all the other habitat types and we 
ask how Welsh Government proposes to facilitate this. How, for example, does Welsh Government 
propose that farmers manage dense bracken when use of the key tool in the box ‘Asulox’ has been 
prohibited, unfortunately Asulox has now been withdrawn altogether from the UK market.   
 
Whilst the reference to potential derogations within the management specification is to be welcomed, 
it will provide cold comfort to farmers. In reality, the experience of farmers is that derogations are 
often too slow and extremely difficult to secure.  Proposals provide very limited reassurance that 
farmers will be protected from penalties for issues relating to scheme delivery that are beyond their 
control. 
 
In summary based on the example given on page 29 of the consultation document and given the 
wide range of factors, many of which will be completely outside the control of farming businesses e.g. 
weather, we do not see how any business would be able to sign an agreement confident in their 
ability to manage a habitat to the prescriptive nature provided in the consultation document.    
 

• Universal Action 8: Create temporary habitat on improved land 
 
Welsh Government proposes that where farmers do not meet the semi-natural habitat threshold, they 
will be required to create additional temporary habitat features with six options to choose from.  The 
detailed requirements for one of these options, namely the establishment of mixed ley on improved 
land has been provided.   
 
Again, Welsh Government’s failure to provide this information across  each of the proposed options 
has hindered proper consultation. It is simply impossible for farmers to judge whether the 
establishment of fallow crop margins, unfertilised, unsprayed and unharvested crop headlands and 
rough grass margins are feasible without the most basic information such as the width of the margin 
and the payment rate. 
 
Members have highlighted to us that given the relatively small size of fields in Wales consideration 
needs to be given to the width of margins / headlands, otherwise many fields in Wales could easily 
become unviable for crop production.    
 
Under this Universal Action, NFU Cymru would like to see a broader range of options available to suit 
all farming systems. In previous agri-environment schemes, unsprayed root crops followed by winter 
grazing; winter stubbles with limited winter grazing; and, undersown spring cereals were included as 
options.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 61



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 32 

Farmers have also queried when does a temporary habitat option become permanent and more 
guidance is needed to explain how the scheme which runs to the calendar year fits in with the 
cropping year on arable farms which starts in September.  
 
In terms of payment, it’s unclear how this Universal Action can be fairly rewarded and incentivised 
when creation of temporary habitats is likely to be costly, it is not clear whether farmers will be 
supported via the Growing for the Environment Scheme mechanism. Rates also need to be 
competitive to ensure a level playing field. In England, for example, we understand that the 
‘Establishment of Mixed Leys on Improved Land’ currently provides a payment of £382 per hectare. 
 
Welsh Government also needs a more comprehensive understanding of the cumulative impact of the 
Universal Action Layer of the scheme in terms of reduced agricultural area and the ability to meet its 
aspirations relating to increasing the area of horticulture cropping in Wales and protein cropping.   
 

• Universal Action 9: Designated Site Management Plans 
 
This Universal Action requires farmers with a designated site within their control to have a 
Management Plan in place with Natural Resources Wales (NRW) by 2029. There is a lack of clarity 
within the consultation whether this action applies solely to SSSIs or whether other site designations 
such as SACs will be included. We note Welsh Government suggests this applies to land which 
impacts on a river designated as a SSSI and also refers to buffers around designated sites, however, 
no information has been provided about what this means in practice. We are concerned this 
Universal Action could potentially affect significant numbers of farms.  
 
We also question the feasibility of this proposal when NRW have confirmed to us that just 29.2% of 
the 1,084 SSSI have management agreements in place currently. Our understanding is that NRW 
has had to pause work in this area for the remainder of the financial year due to funding constraints.  
As a result, we are concerned that farmers with designated sites could be prevented from 
participating in the scheme or penalised at a later date for not having the required Management Plan 
in place due to factors completely outside their control.    
 
Whilst describing such sites as the best examples of our natural environment and with a significant 
number of Wales’ SSSI sites located on farmland reflecting positive management practices by 
farmers over generations, we are concerned and disappointed that Welsh Government suggests that, 
given the higher regulatory requirements underpinning SSSI sites, they will not be able to pay the 
associated habitat maintenance component of the Universal Baseline Payment on land within an 
SSSI. 
 
NFU Cymru does not agree with Welsh Government’s position which sends entirely the wrong 
message to farmers at a time when Welsh Government has increasing ambitions around targets for 
biodiversity11.   
 
SSSI designations are made under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. Section 28 provides 
powers for management schemes aimed at both conserving or restoring all or part of the site in 
accordance with guidance from Welsh Ministers. National Assembly for Wales Guidance (2001) 
states that agreements should not be used simply to prevent new operations that could destroy or 
damage SSSI features. They should contribute towards the positive management of SSSIs to sustain 
their special interest. The basis for calculating agreement payments must be based on income 
foregone, any additional costs resulting from the commitment and the need to provide an incentive to 
encourage positive management measures to be adopted. That Welsh Government seems to imply 
that favourable status can be achieved only through regulation is deeply concerning and 
misunderstands the legislation.    

 
11 Environmental principles, governance and biodiversity targets: White Paper | GOV.WALES 

Tudalen y pecyn 62

https://www.gov.wales/environmental-principles-governance-and-biodiversity-targets-white-paper


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 33 

 
In this context, we are clear it is entirely possible to provide support via the Universal Action Layer of 
the scheme, in line with SLM objectives. Welsh Government’s proposal not to pay the habitat 
maintenance element of the Universal Baseline Payment on these sites is perverse to us given the 
dominant narrative from Welsh Government in recent years has focussed on fair reward for the 
delivery of environmental goods.   
 
Given the current limitations on NRW set out above and the lack of firm proposals for the Optional 
Action Layer of the scheme, farmers face the very real prospect of these sites providing no 
meaningful income stream to farm businesses, despite likely higher costs of management.  Some 
farms have very large proportions of their farms under designation and are left financially exposed by 
this proposal. They are further disadvantaged that such designations are likely to place limitations on 
the delivery of other Universal Actions, for example, UA10.    
 
Welsh Government’s proposal that land within an SSSI is prioritised for inclusion within the scheme’s 
Optional Action layer is wholly inadequate. By Welsh Government’s admission the introduction of the 
Optional Action and Collaborative Action Layers will be subject to further development and budget 
availability. 
 
In proposing that SSSIs are excluded from the habitat maintenance category of the Universal 
Baseline Payment, Welsh Government also incorrectly assumes that SSSIs are designated on the 
basis of the flora and fauna that the site supports when, in fact, SSSIs can also be designated in 
recognition of their geological or physiographical features.   
 
We also highlight that the distribution and extent of designated sites may lead to the effects and 
impact of not supporting this land at the Universal Action Layer being felt more acutely in some 
regions and sectors such as Wales’ SDA areas and coastal areas.   
 
Overall, NFU Cymru is clear that Welsh Government’s proposed approach to designated sites is 
without legal basis and places farmers with such sites in a disadvantaged position. They are 
effectively being penalised for areas they have been managing under strict conditions with NRW for 
many years. Given the importance of SSSI designations and the stated objectives of the Agriculture 
(Wales) Act 2023 we believe this position to be untenable. 
 

• Universal Action 10: Ponds and scrapes 
 
This Universal Action will require farmers to manage existing ponds and scrapes and create new 
scrapes in line with stated thresholds. 
 
Given the objective of this Universal Action is to boost wildlife associated with water features on farm 
NFU Cymru is concerned at its narrow focus. There are a broad range of water habitats on Welsh 
farms ranging from rivers, streams, ditches, irrigation ponds and reservoirs and reedbeds – all of 
which are important for biodiversity. Given Welsh Government has placed significant emphasis on 
improving water quality in Wales, NFU Cymru believes all of these features should be recognised as 
habitat and included within the thresholds for this Universal Action. Welsh Government’s proposal to 
exclude irrigation ponds and storage reservoirs is irrational given that these are important havens for 
wildlife and abstraction licences limit abstraction from these sites so that biodiversity is not impacted.   
 
Welsh Government’s proposed area thresholds have not been explained or justified, and they appear 
high across all farm sizes. An area of 1000m2 on farms up to 80 hectares appears very significant 
and burdensome given that the minimum area to be eligible for the scheme is proposed to be 3 
hectares and the average size of farm in Wales is 48 hectares. As a result we question whether 
these thresholds derive from Wales and work in a Welsh context.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 63



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 34 

The planning requirements associated with this Universal Action appear far from resolved. Ponds are 
likely to need either full planning or prior notification (minimum £1000 per feature). Most planning 
authorities are likely to require an ecological survey of the site (an additional £1000 per feature). Any 
body of water greater than 100m2 will require a SuDS report (£2500 per report). If new ponds and 
scrapes remain accessible to livestock then some planning authorities are likely to insist upon a 
phosphates report (an additional £1000). The position with respect to scrapes is not clear, however, 
individual planning authorities / planning officers may decide that planning is required so the above 
costs will be applicable. Permission cannot be assumed recognising that it will be necessary to prove 
that the proposal is ‘reasonably necessary for agriculture’ which is a determinant factor in any 
application. Given that many farmers are likely to require multiple new features then it is possible to 
envisage that this Universal Action is going to have upfront costs of thousands of pounds in fees 
alone and it is far from clear that these costs are going to be covered in the Universal Baseline 
Payment. 
 
In addition, members who have discussed with their contractors the costs associated with 
constructing ponds and scrapes to the required standard have been quoted figures that run into 
thousands of pounds.   
 
In this context, NFU Cymru believes it is completely unrealistic to expect farmers to achieve this 
Universal Action, never mind, achieving it within the first year of joining the scheme. 
 
Farmers highlighted that this Universal Action is also highly contradictory with a number of other 
proposed actions including UA4 which requires farmers to keep soils covered to protect soils from 
erosion and UA15 given the increased liver fluke and broader disease burden that is likely to arise 
e.g. Schmallenberg.   
 
The level of concern is such that a team of scientists and vets from the Department of Life Sciences, 
Aberystwyth University, recently published an open letter in the Vet Record raising their concerns 
about this Universal Action and the liver fluke risk. Despite improved understanding and the 
availability of treatments, liver fluke still costs UK agriculture around £110 million annually. The letter 
identifies that climate change and drug resistance is causing further issues and the proposals will 
jeopardise the fluke free status on the 20% of Welsh farms that are estimated to be fluke free 
currently. NFU Cymru also wish to point out that there is no licenced product available to address 
liver fluke in dairy cows currently.   
 
It is also important to recognise the Universal Action stands in the way of Welsh Government 
guidance to poultry keepers to maximise the distance between poultry units and places where wild 
birds congregate on ponds etc to reduce the risk of infected wild birds spreading notifiable diseases 
such as highly pathogenic avian influenza. 
 

• Universal Action 11: Hedgerow management 
 
Welsh Government proposes that hedgerows that are regularly shaped by trimming or cutting will 
need to meet the Welsh Government definition of ‘good condition’ by the end of the fifth year in the 
scheme.  
 
Firstly, it is presumed that Welsh Government proposes this Universal Action should apply only to 
hedgerows under the farmers management control. 
 
There was unanimous agreement that all hedges, irrespective of condition, should count towards as 
habitat and tree cover. Given that hedges are clearly a collection of trees which sequester carbon, 
their omission from the tree cover calculation is perverse. Their role in sequestration is increasingly 
recognised with, for example, a hedgerow carbon code being developed.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 64



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 35 

It is also important to recognise that hedgerows range from newly planted, recently laid or coppiced, 
through to dense established hedgerows through to tall and overgrown hedgerows. There is also 
significant regional variation. They are dynamic systems and, in our view, aiming to maintain them in 
one fixed state as per Welsh Government proposed definition of ‘good’ is neither possible nor 
desirable given the variation that exists currently.   
 
Through adopting a fixed stance of what constitutes a hedgerow in ‘good condition’, we believe this 
Universal Action has the potential work against the SLM objective of conserving and enhancing the 
landscape by discouraging hedge laying – a practice that has taken place in Wales since the 
sixteenth century with each locality having its own particular style passed down through the 
generations.  Hedging is a traditional country skill, central to Welsh culture and inherent to the Welsh 
landscape we see today, also providing valuable employment in our rural communities.   
 
We also ask what analysis Welsh Government has undertaken to assess the condition of hedgerows 
currently against this benchmark. The consequences for farmers for not meeting the conditions of 
this requirement by the end of the fifth year are not clear but we are concerned that farmers who 
enter the Sustainable Farming Scheme are exposing themselves to significant liability with this 
Universal Action. 
 
Farmers highlighted that achieving the proposed dimensions is likely to prove impossible in all parts 
of Wales for a variety of reasons e.g. wind, salt, depth of soil cover. Welsh Government is proposing 
these measurements from the top of the bank makes the requirement even more challenging and is 
baffling given that these are important habitat features in their own right. The requirements are also 
highly contradictory. It is not clear how trees can be established in hedgerows where the hedgerow 
already exists and it was also highlighted that trees kill a hedge and inhibit its ability to be stockproof. 
 
The option on arable land, where the normal agricultural practice requires that a winter arable crop is 
planted before 31 August, farmers should continue to be able to cut back the relevant hedges or 
trees from 1 August, in line with the current GAEC derogation.  
 
Overall, many farmers across Wales expressed the view that Welsh Government’s definition of ‘good 
condition’ is too prescriptive and will be impossible to achieve.   
 

• Scheme rule: 10% tree cover 
 
The NFU Cymru policy position with respect to tree cover is set out in our Growing Together strategy. 
We are supportive of measures that facilitate and reward farmers for additional woodland planting in 
line with the ‘right tree, right place’ principle achieved through integrating trees into farming systems 
rather than replacing them. NFU Cymru, however, rejects in the strongest terms Welsh Government’s 
proposals to mandate 10% tree cover as a requirement of the Universal Action Layer of the scheme.   
 
Welsh Government suggests that the 10% tree cover requirement is routed from the UK Climate 
Change Committee (CCC) Balanced Pathway which recommends planting a cumulative 43,000 
hectares of mixed woodland in Wales by 203012. However, there is ambiguity in how these figures 
have been derived and it needs to be more clearly explained.   
 
At NFU Cymru’s Annual Conference in November 2023 the Head of Land, Agriculture and Nature at 
the CCC stressed that the race to achieve net zero cannot be achieved by ‘throwing farmers under 
the bus’. Achieving net zero cannot be at the expense of rural communities and they do not want to 
see a repeat of what happened to the mining industry in the 1980s.13 Welsh Government’s second 
Carbon Budget14 (2021-2025) states that whilst they ‘have accepted the recommendations from the 

 
12 Advice-Report-The-path-to-a-Net-Zero-Wales (1).pdf 
13 Adviser marks down government for climate policies | Wales Farmer 
14 42949 Second All Wales Low Carbon Delivery Plan (2021-2025) (gov.wales) 

Tudalen y pecyn 65

https://www.nfu-cymru.org.uk/media/rx5jui5k/growing-together.pdf
file:///C:/Users/rlewis-davies/Downloads/Advice-Report-The-path-to-a-Net-Zero-Wales%20(1).pdf
https://www.walesfarmer.co.uk/news/23914397.adviser-marks-government-climate-policies/
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-10/net-zero-wales-carbon-budget-2-2021-25.pdf


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 36 

CCC about what the decarbonisation targets should be, they are setting out their own path about how 
to get there…..reflecting the geography, culture and economy of Wales’. 
 
NFU Cymru has long been clear that Welsh Government’s climate policies must ensure that the 
burden of decarbonisation does not fall unequally on farming and our rural communities. Given the 
role of farming in meeting Welsh Government’s climate objectives across agriculture, land use, land 
use change and forestry and heat and power, farmers are set to be one of the sectors most affected 
and policies are needed that progress Wales’ ambitious targets in ways that are sustainable and fair 
safeguarding the multiple economic, environmental, social and cultural benefits that Welsh farming 
provides. 
 
Welsh Government’s second Carbon Budget is clear it is committed to a land sharing approach, 
however, the thresholds established within the Universal Action Layer suggests a land sparing 
approach with impacts for food production and the broader sustainability of rural areas.   
 
Requirements for 10% tree cover, do not represent a just transition for family farms, particularly those 
businesses that fall way short of this target currently. Welsh Government’s intransigence in 
continuing to mandate this is baffling and has been a source of significant frustration and anxiety 
within the industry, particularly, when the track record of restocking on Welsh Government’s own 
Woodland Estate (WGWE) consistently fails to meet target, currently representing over 5% of the 
productive area or in excess of 5,300 hectares (or over 110 averaged sized farms). 
 
There is widespread agreement that if the purpose of increasing tree cover is supporting Welsh 
Government’s net zero goals, then surely the focus should be on carbon, as opposed to the numbers 
of trees planted, which would facilitate the consideration of a broader collection of actions. There are 
a range of options that could be more efficient in delivering decarbonisation and there is a need to 
enable, through policy, a more dynamic and varied approach.   
 
In our response to Welsh Government’s Outline Proposals for the Sustainable Farming Scheme, 
NFU Cymru set out the barriers that exist to securing 10% tree cover on all farms. These are 
widespread, as evidenced by Welsh Government’s Co-design 2 process which found that 43% of 
respondents were unwilling to undertake this Universal Action – over two thirds of which said it was 
not feasible for their farm type or system. 
 
NFU Cymru notes that Welsh Government has sought to address issues for the tenanted sector 
(covered later in this response). The area of permanent features such as roads, yards, hard 
standings, ponds are to be excluded from the ‘plantable’ area. Welsh Government also now 
recognises that it is not appropriate to plant trees on habitat land, though whether this extends to 
organo-mineral soils, BMV land and designated landscapes is unclear and, again, clarity is needed. 
 
However, many other issues that NFU Cymru has highlighted are to be considered on a case-by-
case basis adding to the already considerable administrative burden and levels of uncertainty for 
individual farmers. Natural constraints such as high altitude or coastal locations, Welsh Government 
suggests, can be addressed through careful selection of hardy species or planting on more sheltered 
plots – exemplifying Welsh Government’s total lack of focus on the need for successful outcomes.   
Why any farmer in such a predicament would wish to pursue tree planting on their more sheltered 
plots when these are likely to be invaluable for livestock or crop production is also beyond 
comprehension and shows a complete lack of understanding of farming in Wales.  
 
Other fundamental issues highlighted previously by NFU Cymru remain unaddressed and are 
repeated here:   
 

• Farmers impacted by regulation and seeking to achieve compliance with the N limits from 
organic manures established in the Control of Agricultural Pollution Regulations (2021) (NVZ) 

Tudalen y pecyn 66



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 37 

will be looking to maintain and expand their spreadable area and will not have the land to 
spare for trees. 

• The current regulatory framework means that trees planted on agricultural land represents a 
permanent and irreversible change in land use. 

• In many instances tree planting is likely to result in a reduction in the value of the land and no 
business can afford to reduce the value of the capital asset. Where that farm business has 
associated borrowings, then there are likely to be impacts for the loan to capital ratios. Banks 
are likely to prevent farmers from taking forward actions that lead to devaluation where they 
are lending money against the value of this land. 

• The position in relation to licenses on land that prevents activities such as tree planting 
without prior agreement of the licensor e.g. on land adjacent to a wind farm. 

 
It is disappointing that through latest proposals, Welsh Government further undermines the 
confidence of farmers in this requirement. We note, for example, at Universal Action 13, Welsh 
Government implies that capital funding for all tree planting options cannot be guaranteed.  Similarly, 
Welsh Government suggests that maintenance and income foregone payments on newly created 
woodland may be for up to 12 years.  This does not even match the current commitment made in the 
Woodland Creation Scheme and it has not escaped the notice of farmers that Welsh Government 
can guarantee payments of 12 years to drive the profits of external investors who have no interest in 
Wales or the rural communities affected but can make no similar assurances to family farms who are 
being mandated to deliver tree planting as part of a scheme.   
 
We highlight again, that few farmers can afford to wait for a crop of timber to mature for their income; 
nor can the many local businesses dependent on farming for their livelihoods. As a result, farmers 
are unlikely to be able to afford to plant trees at scale without appropriate mechanisms to ensure 
planting and ongoing management costs are met and long-term financial support is provided to 
enable income to be derived on a regular basis as the trees grow. The economic rationale for tree 
planting is further undermined where the objective of planting is not commercial conifers and there is 
no crop to harvest at a future date.  
 
Current proposals assume 100% tree survival passing all the risk and liability to farmers, when the 
on-the-ground experience is that tree establishment is unreliable, particularly in a changing climate 
and it is a case of not if but when the next tree disease emerges. There are also risks of failure due to 
pests, increasing risk of wildfire etc. There is also no reference of the need for home-grown saplings 
which will play a crucial role in preventing the importation of devastating pests and diseases and that 
are suited to local conditions.  
 
We also identify that Welsh Government’s current proposal not to pay farmers to meet legal 
obligations on SSSI land have also severely impacted on farmer confidence. Once established, trees 
are also protected by regulation and there is now a complete lack of trust and confidence in Welsh 
Government that this permanent change of land use will be supported after 2030 if similar principles 
are applied. 
 
This is completely unacceptable. NFU Cymru is clear that what farming needs is long-term ‘cast iron’ 
guarantees that tree cover established through the scheme for the delivery of Welsh Government’s 
climate change objectives will be properly rewarded. These assurances have not been forthcoming, 
and in the face of reduced agricultural productivity, reduced land values and the lack of guaranteed 
support beyond 2029 together with the risks and liabilities of delivering 100% success over this time 
period endeavouring to deliver 10% tree cover would be simply illogical on the vast majority of farms 
where this threshold is out of reach currently.   
 
It is important to highlight that any devaluation in land as a result of tree planting has the potential to 
impact on the loan to value ratio requirements set by agricultural lenders with consequential impacts 
for farm business resilience. 

Tudalen y pecyn 67



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 38 

 
On this basis, NFU Cymru remains clear that farmers cannot be mandated to plant 10% tree cover at 
the Universal Action Layer of the scheme. We advise Welsh Government that pursuit of such a 
proposal will never be accepted by the majority of Welsh farmers who fall below the 10% threshold 
currently and run counter to the delivery of Welsh Government’s overall objectives. Instead, Welsh 
Government needs to focus its efforts on properly supporting farmers to deliver its net zero ambition 
in a partnership approach. We recognise that tree planting will form part of the solution but urge 
Welsh Government to consider and enable the delivery of the full range of alternatives to deliver net 
zero goals.   
 
NFU Cymru would highlight that in advancing the 10% tree cover target, Welsh Government is 
overlooking and potentially impacting on the very substantial carbon stocks held in soils and 
grasslands. The ARCZero project in Northern Ireland, for example, assessed above ground and 
below ground Carbon on seven farms using aerial LiDAR and soil organic matter sampling to 1 metre 
depth and found that 97% of CO2e was in the soil. Research undertaken by Welsh Government’s 
Soils Evidence Programme determined that activities associated with afforestation such as planting, 
management and harvesting, disturb soil and may cause soil carbon loss during first rotation forestry, 
clearly undermining decarbonisation efforts.  
 
Without prejudice to the above, in September 2023, NFU Cymru described a range of alternatives to 
the arbitrary tree cover requirement. Alongside improving production efficiencies, this included:  
 

• The inclusion of hedges within the 10%  

• The inclusion of other woody features on farm such as scrub / gorse  

• The inclusion of parklands on a whole parcel basis 

• Tree planting density – planting more trees in a smaller space 

• The inclusion of biomass crops such as Miscanthus, Willow and other short rotation coppice 

• The role of biochar and other innovations such as enhanced rock weathering, methane 
inhibitors in the diet. 

  
Despite Welsh Government references to renewable energy and energy efficiency as a SLM 
outcome, there is nothing on renewables within the scheme at all. This is a significant omission if a 
key objective is to support farming’s journey to net zero. We again refer Welsh Government to NFU 
Cymru’s Net Zero vision.  
 
Given the strong resistance to Welsh Government’s current proposals, NFU Cymru is calling for 
Welsh Government to undertake a review of the 10% tree cover scheme requirements, that 
considers the mandatory element of the requirement and the opportunity to consider alternatives that 
deliver the same outcome but using a range of approaches summarised above. Given the highly 
contentious nature of proposals and the apparent gulf that exists between farmers and government, 
NFU Cymru strongly recommends the formation of a science panel to look at and evaluate 
alternatives to tree planting. The tree planting requirement must be put on hold until the science 
panel has undertaken its evaluation. 
 
Finally, NFU Cymru would reiterate our profound concerns, in the context of the challenges to global 
food production, about the impact this and the 10% habitat proposal will have on Wales’ agricultural 
capacity, the viability of Welsh farms and levels of employment on farm and across the supply chain.  
We are clear that these Actions may see farms having to reduce production to a level that will result 
in their core business being unviable, whilst also undermining the ‘critical mass’ of Wales’ key 
production sectors.  
 
We have previously requested that Welsh Government undertake an assessment of the cumulative 
impact of the proposed tree cover and semi-natural habitat targets on Wales’ agricultural productive 
capacity, food production and supply chain.  It is disappointing that, at this advanced stage, this vital 

Tudalen y pecyn 68



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 39 

analysis has not been undertaken and Welsh Government is pushing ahead from an unevidenced 
position.  
 

• Universal Action 12: Woodland maintenance  
 
NFU Cymru notes this Universal Action requires farmers to maintain existing woodland. 
 
NFU Cymru continues to be concerned at Welsh Government’s continued reference to the UK 
Forestry Standard (UKFS) within proposals which is the standard for commercial timber cropping and 
not farm woodlands.   
 
Whilst Welsh Government proposes that this Universal Action will not require blanket stock exclusion, 
except where this is needed to meet the requirements of existing management plans or funding 
arrangements, in reality, delivery of the outcomes specified are likely to necessitate stock 
management and we are concerned that farmers are not going to be properly compensated for this 
or supported with the fencing and ongoing maintenance and management costs to allow this to 
happen. This represents another example whether the costs and liabilities are being passed on to the 
farmer for scant reward. 
  

• Universal Action 13: Create new woodland and agro-forestry 
 
This Universal Action requires farmers to integrate additional trees and woodland to meet the 10% 
tree cover scheme requirement. NFU Cymru’s opposition to the 10% rule is set out earlier in this 
response. 
 
Firstly, NFU Cymru is clear that all options to increase tree cover must be covered by capital funding.   
 
We also highlight that the current disparity in fencing rates that exists between schemes that support 
tree planting are untenable and open to challenge. Welsh Government has uplifted payment rates to 
pay 100% of 2023’s actual costs of woodland creation through both the Small Grants – Woodland 
Creation Scheme for agriculturally improved areas of less than 2 hectares and the Woodland 
Creation Scheme for establishing larger areas of woodland over 2 hectares. The revised payment 
rate for fencing under these schemes is now set at £8.32 per metre. In addition to payment for 
planting there are maintenance payments and an annual premium payment to compensate for the 
loss of agricultural income of £350 per hectare annually for 12 years.  Payments under the Basic 
Payment Scheme (BPS) are approximately £123 per hectare with £112 paid on the first 54 hectares.   
 
It has not escaped our notice that Welsh Government has opted not to provide a similar uplift to 
cover actual costs for the Small Grants – Environment Scheme with fencing, for example, remaining 
at £5.56 per metre. This scheme does not attract any annual premium or maintenance area-based 
payments. 
 
NFU Cymru welcomes the reference to natural regeneration which could avoid some of the issues 
related to new planting such as sourcing of saplings and labour, rates of success, logistical issues 
such as steep, inaccessible slopes. The scheme would need to recognise that this is not cost neutral 
and there would be capital costs and income foregone costs associated with this option. NFU Cymru 
is also clear that regeneration is a long-term approach beyond the five years of the scheme and the 
entire parcel area should count towards the 10% without risk of penalty.    
 
In addition to the examples of agroforestry put forward in the consultation, NFU Cymru would support 
hedgerow establishment which should also count in any tree cover assessment. Hedgerows are 
widely acknowledged as a form of agroforestry as are streamside (and other riparian) corridors which 
should also be included.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 69



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 40 

NFU Cymru notes proposals that farmers will be supported to plant trees with knowledge transfer and 
advisory activities. Our comments relating to advice and guidance provision are made later in this 
response, however, we are clear that this provision is going to be insufficient to unlock the resistance 
to tree planting described above.  We are also concerned at the continuing reference to UKFS and 
the use of woodland planners is likely to result in a ‘consultants charter’ which adds cost and delivers 
funding to everybody except the farmer. 
 
In terms of the measurable outcomes described, the labour requirements associated with vegetation 
control are likely to be significant and labour cannot be assumed to be available. This highlights the 
very real issues associated with mandating 10% tree cover and why advisors, in the main, 
recommend farmers start with relatively small areas that are manageable.   
 
The requirement to ensure 100% tree survival is also likely to place an unrealistic cost and burden on 
farmers when the 10% requirement is likely to mean some very extensive areas of new planting on 
some farms. Farmers were extremely concerned that this could lead to significant penalties. Tree 
planting is not straightforward – successful establishment cannot be assumed. There are a range of 
issues that can affect newly planted and growing trees not least damage by pests and extremes in 
weather conditions such as prolonged dry periods – expected more frequently in a changing climate. 
This exposes farmers to costly risks and liabilities. Risks need to be fairly shared in future 
mechanisms for woodland creation. We are clear that current proposals do not facilitate this.   
 
The extent to which carbon credits generated from new planting under Universal Action 13 could be 
eligible for trading in carbon markets remains unclear. The potential of this action, as well as the 
existing woodland creation schemes, to be accessible to those who are not actively farming leading 
to widespread land use change is also a major concern with the potential of tenanted farms being 
taken back in hand and farms not being made available for letting - reducing opportunities for young 
farmers and new entrants. 
 

• Universal Action 14: Historic environment – maintenance and enhancement 
 
NFU Cymru continues to be concerned that no accurate definitive map of historic environment 
features exists upon which to base this Universal Action, past experience has shown that many 
features have been identified erroneously.   
 
Welsh Government’s proposal to include traditional farm buildings into this Universal Action is highly 
concerning.   
 
The maintenance of historic buildings has significant cost implications, particularly if the building is 
listed.  Buildings requiring listed building consent are likely to face professional fees for ecology, 
structural survey and architects on top of the building costs. Even unlisted traditional buildings will 
require specialist input for maintenance and costs of £5,000 are likely for relatively modest repairs.   
 
For such farms the costs and liabilities are such that they will be unable to participate in the scheme 
as it will end up costing them money. Comprehensive grant support will, therefore, be necessary.   
 
Concerns about health and safety were also raised.   
 
There are also specific issues for tenant farmers where traditional farm buildings are included within 
the tenancy. Where the repair liability falls to the landlord, the requirements of this Universal Action 
may not be met. The landlord may also use this as an excuse to take the traditional buildings out of 
the tenancy for other development purposes which depending on their location would be highly 
problematic for the tenant.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 70



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 41 

Proposals also include reference to historic boundary features which may include dry stone walls and 
traditional slate fencing. The cost of maintaining such features will be high and burdensome on some 
Welsh farms and so, again, need to be supported via capital grants.    
 
Overall, the ambition of Universal Action 14 with the emphasis on both maintenance and 
enhancement is likely to place an excessive burden on farms with such features.   
 

• Universal Action 15: The Animal Health Improvement Cycle (AHIC) 
 
NFU Cymru supports the principle of continuous improvement of animal health and welfare on farm 
and believes it is a sensible use of public money. Healthy animals are productive animals which 
means they are more efficient and will have a lower carbon footprint. We also welcome the 
recognition by Welsh Government that a highly prescriptive approach would not work in this area as 
the health status and necessary actions will differ from farm to farm. It is therefore positive that as 
part of UA15 farmers and vets, working together, are able to analyse and identify areas of focus 
relevant to the individual farming enterprise.  
 
Welsh Government currently has a pilot project underway to trial and test many of the elements of 
the AHIC. Alongside the practical elements of health planning, we hope that this project will also be 
collecting data about the cost incurred both in farmer / vet time to complete the plan but also about 
the interventions that are advised. We urge Welsh Government to share the findings of this trial with 
industry on an iterative basis and to work with farming stakeholders, such as NFU Cymru, to learn 
any necessary lessons.  
 
We note that only the cost of farmer time (for meeting and reporting) and the cost of the vet visit are 
considered as cost incurred / income foregone for the payment. However, interventions to improve 
health and welfare may require capital investment in new or improved infrastructure and technology 
on farm. For example, improving ventilation in sheds / housing systems to reduce the risk of 
respiratory infections or installing / improving cow tracks to tackle lameness. However, on farm cash 
flow may limit a farmer’s ability to invest in these areas, not least because many of them will require 
significant sums of money. If the payment rate for UA15 only covers the cost of farmer and vet time, 
we are concerned that there will not be the money available within the business to carry out the 
identified interventions. In this context we are concerned that the consultation is silent on the subject 
of capital grants as these would be a crucial tool for enabling farmers to make the on farm 
investments identified as part of the AHIC process.  
 
Our members raised concerns about the consequences of not fully achieving the actions identified as 
part of this process as progress is often influenced by factors outside of the farmers direct control, for 
example climatic conditions. Disease eradication usually requires a long-term approach and any 
actions identified as part of the AHIC cycle must be proportionate and reasonably achievable within 
the defined timescale. In this context, we must also mention bovine TB as it must be recognised that 
a bTB outbreak on farm has the potential to severely limit or even reverse progress in other areas of 
animal health and welfare. We would not want to see farmers penalised for not completing actions 
set out in the AHIC, when they are limited by the bTB status of their farm.  
 
Delivery of this Universal Action places most of the ownership onto private vets and farmers. Whilst 
we agree that these are the two groups arguably best placed to deliver improvements in health and 
welfare, there is a need to ensure consistency across Welsh farms and veterinary practises. Welsh 
Government must ensure sufficient and clear guidance is available to ensure this Universal Action is 
interpreted, implemented and monitored in a consistent way across Wales.  
 
We are also concerned about how UA15 will be inspected. We note that the AHIC template itself will 
not need to be submitted but presumably, it must be made available during an inspection. Given the 

Tudalen y pecyn 71

https://www.gov.wales/vets-and-farmers-working-together-animal-health-pilot-scheme


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 42 

inspector is unlikely to be veterinary trained, how will compliance with the AHIC be inspected and 
how will progress against the actions identified be established or measured.   
 
We must also recognise that the farm animal veterinary resource in Wales is already stretched, we 
are concerned about the capacity of the veterinary sector to undertake this work across Wales. 
Welsh Government must ensure that the AHIC process and information collected / required is 
realistic and fits around the existing farming calendar so as not to unduly create additional burden for 
both farmers and vets.  
 
The requirement to monitor, calculate and report antibiotic use on farm is already happening on many 
farms across Wales and is a key requirement within farm assurance. Welsh Government should 
explore with industry where best practise can be adopted from the already successful voluntary 
approaches. Welsh farmers are extremely concerned about sharing this data with Welsh Government 
particularly given how this data may be used / interpreted by aggressive anti farming groups with a 
single agenda. This aggregated data is potentially extremely valuable to Welsh Government and if 
provided then must be recognised in the applicable payment rates.  
 
NFU Cymru members also wish to highlight that antibiotic use can be influenced by factors outside of 
a farmers control, for example, an abortion storm during lambing. Therefore, we would not want to 
see Welsh Government penalising farmers if the average antibiotic use they reported increased. We 
accept that if use dramatically increased there may be a need for further investigation, but Welsh 
Government must recognise that it is normal for averages to fluctuate. 
 
This Universal Action also has a lot of overlap with the requirements of farm assurance, for example 
Red Tractor or FAWL schemes. NFU Cymru would advocate that given the level of overlap between 
Farm Assurance and the proposed AHIC that proof of active membership of Farm Assurance would 
mean that the farm is compliant with this Universal Action, we do not wish to see duplication of 
activity which is time consuming and costly for the farmer. This would be a positive example of the 
principle of earned recognition to demonstrate compliance with a government scheme requirement. 
Equally we recognise that a proportion of farmers in Wales will not be a member of a farm assurance 
scheme. Ultimately membership of a private assurance scheme is a decision of the farming business 
based on the value of assurance to the business and businesses that are not in farm assurance 
should not be discriminated against or penalised in the context of SFS.  
 

• Universal Action 16: Good animal welfare  

 
Animal welfare is a highly subjective area and Welsh farmers are proud to produce to some of the 
highest standards of animal welfare in the world. Whilst we agree there should always be an ambition 
to strive for improvement, policies in this area must be based on science and evidence. 
 
It should be noted that farmers across Wales will already be undertaking – or employing a consultant 
to undertake on their behalf – regular body condition and mobility scoring. As part of day-to-day 
animal husbandry, any animals which are lacking condition or exhibit lameness on the farm will be 
treated or dealt with as appropriate on a case-by-case basis.  
 
Whilst we accept that lameness and body condition are important indicators and there is always room 
for improvement, our members were concerned at the implication by Welsh Government in the 
wording of this Universal Action that the animal welfare on Welsh farms was compromised.  
 
NFU Cymru members questioned how Welsh Government will ensure the online training in these 
areas is pitched at the right level. Many farmers will already be very capable and qualified in these 
areas, they may well be trained, qualified and experienced to levels above those that will be 
employed to provide the online training. Many farmers reported to us that they felt it was patronising 

Tudalen y pecyn 72



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 43 

of Welsh Government to mandate training to individuals already qualified and experienced in this 
area.   
 
Our members have also asked if contractors are able to undertake the training and if they can count 
as the trained individual that is required by UA16. This is not because farmers want to avoid the 
training but because some farm businesses may be using a contract shepherd or stockperson and 
so, they may be the correct person to undertake this activity, but they may not be directly employed 
(i.e. on the payroll) of the farm business as many people who offer this service are self-employed.  
 
NFU Cymru has multiple concerns about the requirement to record the lame number of animals in 
the herd or flock each year. We are unclear if there is a requirement for this information (i.e. a 
number) to be submitted to Welsh Government or if the required self-declaration merely needs to 
confirm that the activity took place.  
 
We would like to understand the purpose for which Welsh Government need the data and what they 
plan on using the data for. As discussed elsewhere in this response we have serious concerns about 
data ownership and protection which are very relevant in this context. We are especially concerned 
that any data submitted in this area could be obtained by organisations or individuals through a 
Freedom of Information request and subsequently, data which was submitted in good faith by 
farmers to Welsh Government could be used against them.  
 
We understand from Welsh Government officials that at this stage, there are no plans to link 
performance (e.g. number of lame animals) to payment rates. NFU Cymru members would like to 
state on record that they would be very concerned if this intention was to ever change. There are 
multiple reasons for lameness or poor body condition, some of which are outside of a farmers control 
e.g. extreme weather conditions. In cases where there are clear and unequivocal animal welfare 
breaches there are existing mechanisms to address this.  
 
As with the other Universal Actions related to animal health and welfare there is cross over with farm 
assurance schemes. Consideration should be given for where earned recognition can be found and 
how data collected or recorded as part of farm assurance can be utilised. For example, the Red 
Tractor Dairy Standards contain requirements around health planning and recording which include 
the use of mobility scoring and body condition scoring.  
 

• Universal Action 17: Good Farm Biosecurity 

 
NFU Cymru supports Welsh Government’s ambition to take a proactive approach to disease control 
and prevention, based on the principle that “prevention is better than cure”. In this respect, we 
believe that supporting farmers to have good biosecurity has merit provided it is practical and 
achievable across the range of farm types operating in Wales.  
 
Our members have raised multiple questions about the requirement to have wash stations with 
disinfectant available on the entry and exit to the farm. We understand from Welsh Government 
officials that a bucket / brush would not meet this requirement and to be compliant, farmers would be 
expected to have a more formal structure or piece of equipment in place. Given the use of a bucket 
and brush with approved disinfectant is standard practise for visitors on many farms, including private 
and APHA vets, we would like to understand more from Welsh Government about what the additional 
risk they perceive is which necessitates investment in a more substantial wash station.  
 
Our members have also questioned the positioning of the wash station, many farms have public 
rights of way (PROW) over their land or in some cases, through their farmyard. Many farms also 
operate across multiple sites. Farmers would therefore like to understand more about where the 
required wash stations should be positioned and how Welsh Government will inspect their use, for 
example it would not be feasible to expect a farmer to ensure every footpath walker, postman, milk 

Tudalen y pecyn 73



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 44 

tanker, feed lorry, cleanse and disinfect their footwear and vehicles every time they enter or cross the 
farm.  
 
Our members also raised questions about what constitutes a “livestock secure farm boundary”. For 
example, would electric fencing be sufficient or would Welsh Government expect a more permanent 
fence / hedge / stone wall. In this context, our members would like more information about how this 
requirement will be applied in situations where farms include unenclosed hill land (not common land) 
that, is in many instances, unfenced. In these systems, it would not be possible for an individual 
farmer to secure all their boundaries given the intrinsic nature of these landscapes. There are a 
significant number of boundary disputes or disagreements over farmland, Welsh Government must 
also recognise that it may not be within the gift of a farmer to secure the farm boundary if it does not 
belong to them. We would also highlight that this requirement may unfairly disadvantage tenant 
farmers where the boundaries of the land they rent may not be in good repair and the cost of 
installing / upgrading new fencing may be prohibitive, especially if on short term tenancies where 
there is less security of tenure. Many farms also have extensive boundaries with the Welsh 
Government Woodland Estate and there can be no assumption that NRW will maintain their 
boundaries to the standard required.  
 
Welsh Government must also recognise that securing a farm boundary and installing new fences can 
be a significant investment for a business. It is not clear if the cost of installing or upgrading and 
maintaining boundaries is included in the cost incurred / income forgone calculations, we believe it 
should be.  
 
There is a need to recognise that biosecurity can be compromised through public access e.g. gates 
left open.  
 
Good farm biosecurity is an important part of disease prevention and control, so it is sensible for 
farmers to discuss their various protocols with their own private vet. The biosecurity assessment 
required evidence related to the disease status of incoming animals. We would highlight that whilst 
often herd health status will be declared at the point of sale, whether that sale be private or via an 
auction mart, it is not mandatory for this information to be displayed or made available for all 
diseases. A farmer therefore should not be penalised for not recording something they may not know.  
 
It is important to highlight the frustration that farmers have with government in relation to biosecurity 
and bovine TB. Welsh Government is prepared to leave an extremely important vector in disease 
spread i.e. Infected wildlife, run rampant in parts of Wales, whilst mandating farmers to operate to 
strict biosecurity, movement and testing controls. This issue makes conversations between 
government and industry on wider biosecurity protocols challenging at best. 
 
We would also like to understand what evidence Welsh Government will require that the biosecurity 
actions have been completed, for example it talks about quarantine, will farmers be required to 
photograph the animal in quarantine or will having facilities to allow this to happen be sufficient. In 
this context, it must also be noted that many farms may not have dedicated quarantine facilities and 
as such, may use for example a section of an existing livestock building gated off or even a field, that 
may vary depending on the nature and number of livestock or time of year e.g. harvest time or at 
certain times of year areas of the farm with quantities of acorns are not suitable for livestock grazing.  
 
When considering the cost incurred / income foregone for this Universal Action, Welsh Government 
state payment will reflect farmer time, the cost of the vet visit and adherence to the biosecurity plan. 
We would like to understand more about what is meant by adherence to the biosecurity plan and 
what costs or income foregone Welsh Government plan to include. For example, will this include the 
up front cost of purchasing a wash station, if this is what Welsh Government require and stock proof 
double fencing.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 74



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 45 

We would also like to highlight that having a farm biosecurity policy is a key requirement of farm 
assurance. For example, 98% of the dairy industry is covered by Red Tractor Assurance, as part of 
this scheme members are required to have in place a documented biosecurity policy which must be 
updated with any changes in practice in relation to the farm health and performance reviews. The 
policy must consider the risks from incoming stock (bought-in and returning livestock), equipment, 
vehicles, farm visitors that have access to livestock, working dogs and domestic pets on the farm 
have a worming routine. There are also requirements to consider the access that grazing livestock 
have to muck heaps and land spread with slurry or manures. Similar requirements exist within the 
FAWL scheme for livestock. With this in mind, we believe that there should be a role for earned 
recognition in demonstrating compliance with the Universal Action (i.e. farmers compliant with Farm 
Assurance should automatically be deemed compliant with this Universal Action and not be expected 
to duplicate this activity for the SFS). In this context, the farmer is already required to keep records to 
demonstrate compliance with farm assurance, Welsh Government should seek to minimise 
duplication and should not require records in a different format or on a different pro-forma. We should 
note that not all farmers are members of farm assurance schemes and any farmer not in farm 
assurance should not be precluded from meeting this Universal Action. 
 
Finally, we identify that clarification is needed on the requirements of this Universal Action on 
holdings that do not keep livestock. 
 

• Universal Code for Habitats 
 
Welsh Government proposes a Universal Code for Habitats which builds on the Whole Farm Code 
approach of previous agri-environment schemes, however, we note that Welsh Government appears 
to propose no payment for adhering with the Code which is at odds with previous approaches. This 
does not align with NFU Cymru’s key principle that farmers should be fairly rewarded for the 
environmental outcomes they already deliver and will continue to deliver.   
 
We seek clarification from Welsh Government that this Code will apply only to those habitats mapped 
in the Habitat Baseline Review. We also express concern that the Code has the potential to add to 
the complexity of the scheme, bearing in mind that participating farmers, it is proposed, will have to 
be compliant with a set of rules, all the requirements of the Universal Actions, including detailed 
specifications for each existing habitat type. We are concerned that the cumulative effect of all these 
requirements places a high burden on farmers to cross check what they can or can’t do in multiple 
places; it will add complexity and increase the risk of breach at inspection; also contributing to high 
levels of stress and anxiety. 
 
We note the Code will require farmers not to use supplementary feed on habitat land, except for the 
provision of licks or blocks to enable coarse forage to be utilised, or where required specifically for 
the welfare of livestock. We do not support this requirement and believe this to be overly restrictive, 
particularly on those farms that have a large extent of habitat land as is the requirement not to apply 
organic and inorganic manures.   
 
Welsh Government itself recognises that many semi-natural habitats are dependent on livestock 
grazing to secure their long-term future and we believe that this requirement stands directly in the 
way. More emphasis is needed, in scheme design, to pro-actively support livestock grazing and we 
ask Welsh Government to consider what the impact of a reduction of 122,000 LSUs will be.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 75



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 46 

Specific Considerations 
 
Turning to the specific considerations set out by Welsh Government within the consultation. Firstly, 
NFU Cymru would place on record our disappointment, that despite the commitment from Welsh 
Government in its response to co-design15 to continue to work with the specialist Working Groups to 
support the continued evolution of proposals, this has not happened. We identify a key opportunity to 
shape the latest iteration of SFS proposals so that they work for all farms has been missed.   
 

• Tenant Farmers 
 
NFU Cymru is pleased that Welsh Government continues to recognise that if the Sustainable 
Farming Scheme does not work for tenant farmers, it does not work at all.   
 
With around 30% of land in Wales under some form of tenancy or let, is it vital that Welsh 
Government recognises that equal access to the Sustainable Farming Scheme is essential for tenant 
farmers for their continued farm business viability, together with the achievement of Welsh 
Government’s own objectives for the scheme. NFU Cymru has long highlighted that a vibrant, thriving 
tenanted sector is also vital for Welsh farming as a whole providing opportunities for new entrants 
and young farmers. 
 
NFU Cymru has welcomed the opportunity to participate in Welsh Government’s Working Group on 
this issue to set out the specific challenges faced by the sector in the development of the Sustainable 
Farming Scheme and we are pleased that Welsh Government has made efforts to modify the 
scheme to address some of the concerns relating to accessibility that have been raised.   
 
This includes amending the contract duration to annualised agreements and introducing a scheme 
rule so land can be removed, without financial penalty mid-way through the scheme year. Welsh 
Government also proposes that, where woodland and trees have been retained by the landowner or 
additional planting is precluded by the terms of the tenancy agreement, this land area will not be 
included in the 10% tree cover calculation.   
 
Whilst Welsh Government proposals go some way to enabling tenant farmers to access the scheme, 
NFU Cymru is clear that within the latest proposals, a number of further fundamental issues for 
tenants arise with the result that current proposals do not facilitate equal access to the scheme and 
tenant farmers remain disadvantaged.   
 
Specifically, tenant farmers may not have to meet the 10% tree cover requirement but nor will they be 
able to access the associated component of the Universal Baseline Payment. In trying to address 
one issue, the inability of many tenant farmers to meet the 10% requirement due to the nature of their 
tenancy agreement, Welsh Government have now created another issue in that the Universal 
Baseline Payment that tenants receive will be lower than would be the case if they owned a similar 
hectarage of land, exemplifying yet again that the Universal Action Layer is not Universal. The 
proposals for tenant farmers are discriminatory and NFU Cymru is clear that it is unacceptable to 
disadvantage the tenanted sector in this way.     
 
There are also concerns about the ability of tenant farmers to deliver a number of the other Universal 
Actions, for example, the creation of new features under, for example, Universal Action 8: Creation of 
temporary habitat on improved land and Universal Action 10: Ponds and Scrapes, and the extent to 
which these activities may be restricted by the terms of the tenancy. It is important to recognise that 
many tenancy agreements prohibit non-agricultural activity as defined in the Agriculture Act 1947. It 
is important to note that a breach of the terms in tenancy could lead to notice to quit.   
 

 
15 Sustainable Farming Scheme Outline Proposals: co-design response | GOV.WALES 

Tudalen y pecyn 76

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/pdf-versions/2023/8/4/1692270663/sustainable-farming-scheme-outline-proposals-co-design-response.pdf


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 47 

Our members also raised concerns about Universal Action 14: Historic environment – maintenance 
and enhancement. The ability of the tenant to meet the requirement to maintain traditional farm 
buildings in a stable condition is likely to be dependent on the terms of their tenancy agreement. The 
tenant may not have the resources to undertake this action which is likely to be prohibitively 
expensive. Whilst these traditional buildings may be redundant, it is important to recognise that many 
farmers would not want to see these features removed from the tenancy as their conversion to other 
uses by the landlord may not be desirable due to their location on the farmyard, interfering with 
farming activity.   
 
Overall, scheme requirements have the potential to weaken the position of tenants with their landlord 
which is highly concerning. Tenant farmers are also concerned about Welsh Government’s proposed 
payment methodology and the move to pay the Universal Baseline Payment on the basis of costs 
incurred and income foregone calculations. This, together with the fact that there is only a time 
limited stability mechanism, is likely to jeopardise many farm businesses, particularly tenant farmers 
with rent to pay and hindered by more limited diversification opportunities.    
 
NFU Cymru also remains concerned around the long-term sustainability of the tenanted sector where 
the balance of incentives shifts away from food production towards environmental delivery. It is 
possible to foresee landlords taking their farms back in hand for tree planting or to take up the 
temporary habitat creation options – a trend that is increasingly being observed in England currently.  
Whilst we note a number of the proposed Universal Actions have been oriented towards the active 
farmer, we also observe a lack of safeguards to prevent landlords entering the Sustainable Farming 
Scheme, receiving the payment and passing on the contractual obligations to their tenants.   
 

• Cross Border Farms 
 
NFU Cymru notes agriculture and land management policy in Wales is the responsibility of Welsh 
Government and it will only be possible to fund activity on Welsh land. For the purposes of the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme, Welsh Government proposes that the business and the Welsh land 
will need to meet the eligibility requirement to qualify for the scheme.   
 
Whilst, according to the consultation, Welsh Government proposes to continue to consider 
opportunities to ensure the scheme requirements are appropriate for cross border farms, NFU Cymru 
believes this issue has received insufficient consideration in the development of proposals thus far.  
There are some 600 or so cross border farms and there needs to be careful and thorough work to 
ensure there are no unintended consequences for individual businesses.  
 
Every farm is different and it is possible to foresee cross border farms being disadvantaged through 
no fault of their own. A number of Universal Actions and scheme requirements are likely to prove 
difficult unless undertaken on a whole farm basis, for example, benchmarking, the animal health and 
welfare requirements and the carbon assessment. Cross border farms could be disadvantaged just 
because, for example, the tree cover or habitat land on their farm happens to be on the England side 
of the border.   
 
Cross border farmers suffered many years of delayed payments as a result of ineffective working 
between RPA and RPW. It has been pleasing to see this issue has been resolved in recent years. It 
cannot be fair that we are now re-entering a system where cross border farmers will be discriminated 
against just because of the location of their farm. 
 
NFU Cymru’s comments relating to a level playing field are made earlier in this consultation 
response. Overall, NFU Cymru is concerned that the regulatory and bureaucratic burden for cross 
border farms is likely to be excessive, we are clear more work is needed in this area so that the 
implications for cross border farms are properly understood and addressed before moving forward. 

Tudalen y pecyn 77



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 48 

We are disappointed that the Welsh Government commitment to set up a Working Group to consider 
the specific issues of Cross Border Farms has yet to be established.   
 
NFU Cymru would also be supportive of a bespoke package of advice and support to ensure a 
smooth transition to the new approach.   
 

• Certified Organic Farms 
 
Welsh Government suggests that farmers with organic certification will be ideally placed for a smooth 
entry into the Sustainable Farming Scheme. Welsh Government also proposes to introduce a range 
of Optional Actions during the Transition Period many of which are aligned with organic practices.   
 
In January, Welsh Government announced support payments to fully-certified organic farmers in 
2024 recognising ‘the viability of organic holdings is dependent upon receiving a premium for organic 
produce which is not always available’. In this context, it is disappointing that Welsh Government 
appears not to recognise the need for specific organic support on a longer-term basis.   
 
We note that Welsh Government proposes to introduce an additional element of financial stability 
through the Stability Payment during the Transition Period. However, we are clear that current 
proposals are anything but ‘stable’ and if Welsh Government is truly committed to organic production 
systems in Wales then these will need to be properly rewarded through future policy. 
 

• New Entrants 
 

As custodians of the countryside, every farmer wishes to leave their farm in a better position for the 
next generation. Eight years ago, NFU Cymru launched our Next Generation Programme, which now 
has its third cohort of members, to ensure the views of young farmers and new entrants are heard 
and promoted. Young people are the lifeblood of rural Wales and members of our next generation 
group are passionate about producing world renowned climate-friendly food for a growing population 
in an environment and landscape that provides habitats for our nature to thrive.  
 
Last summer NFU Cymru launched a report titled “Framing the future for the next generation” at the 
Senedd as part of NFU Cymru’s Celebration of Welsh Food and Farming Week. This report 
celebrated the contribution young farmers make in Wales and featured a list of 10 recommendations 
as to how Welsh Government can support the next generation of farmers in Wales. It included 
specific asks on the future Sustainable Farming Scheme in relation to ensuring the scheme worked 
for all farm types and tenures, a smooth transition period and the use of capital grants. It highlighted 
that accessing finance can be a huge barrier for new entrants and so we also suggested Welsh 
Government should explore opportunities to make it easier for the next generation of farmers to 
access finance.  
 
Given the challenges that are faced in ensuring this policy works for the next generation of farmers, 
NFU Cymru was pleased to be invited by Welsh Government to join a Working Group as part of the 
co-design process to look at how this issue could be tackled. We actively participated in several 
meetings and felt there was value in bringing the sector together to discuss this complex issue. We 
therefore find it incredibly disappointing that this Working Group was not allowed to finish its work 
and that Welsh Government halted proceedings before a final report or recommendations could be 
made.  
 
In the consultation document, Welsh Government state that new entrants and young farmers are 
important and bring new talent, ideas, and entrepreneurial energy into Welsh farming. However, with 
no apparent financial support or any other specific provisions available for new entrants in the current 
proposals, it is unclear how those warm words are translated into meaningful policy that tackles the 
barriers that exist for those starting out in farming. This is in stark contrast to policy elsewhere around 

Tudalen y pecyn 78

https://www.nfu-cymru.org.uk/media/gxdeoifz/nfu-cymru-next-generation-report-final-english.pdf


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 49 

the world, for example under the current CAP, Member States are obliged to spend a minimum of 3% 
of their initial envelope for direct payments towards the objective of generational renewal. It is up to 
Member States to decide how to use this money but the intention to support the next generation of 
farmers is clear. This puts the next generation of farmers in Wales at a competitive disadvantage to 
their European farming counterparts.  
 
Welsh Government rightly identify that access to skills can be a barrier and we welcome the 
commitment that Welsh Government will continue to offer skills development and mentoring to those 
starting out in our industry. Whilst there is a question mark about the extent to which advice and 
guidance makes in securing the viability of a farm, there is a productivity benefit which stems from an 
incentivised programme of knowledge exchange and advice. In this respect, there is a clear role for 
Farming Connect and the levy bodies to play in delivering this, so it is vital that programmes are cost 
effective, deliver value for money, are industry led and operate where true market failure exists.  
However, our members are keen to stress that no amount of advice and guidance can compensate 
for overly burdensome and prescriptive Universal Actions, which do not adequately reward farmers 
for the work undertaken. 
  
Many young or new farmers enter the industry via the tenanted sector. Therefore, ensuring the 
scheme works and is attractive for the tenanted sector is not only central to the viability of the 
businesses concerned and for delivery of Welsh Government’s objectives, but also to enable the 
scheme to support and facilitate new entrants.  
 
Our Next Generation Group of members also wish to point out their concerns for the lack of stability 
offered by the transition period which is foreseen as part of these proposals. Without this stability, 
there is a risk that the investment that is necessary in Welsh farm businesses to support the next 
generation will not be made, succession plans will be stifled, and young people will leave both 
farming and rural Wales in search of a more secure and stable career path.  
 

• Common Land 

 

In 2022, NFU Cymru convened a Focus Group to explore the challenges and opportunities for 
farmers with common land as new agricultural policy is developed in Wales, the cumulation of this 
work was a policy position paper launched at the 2022 Royal Welsh Winter Fair. In the intervening 
period, NFU Cymru welcomed the opportunity to participate in the Welsh Government Working 
Group on Common Land, though regrettably the work of this Group stalled midway through the 
process.  NFU Cymru also arranged visits for the Minister for Rural Affairs and officials to improve 
understanding of the specific issues for farmers with common land as we transition to new schemes. 
 
Common land is a vital resource to those farm businesses who hold common land rights, to the rural 
economy, particularly in Wales’ upland areas and to wider society for the multiple benefits it provides.  
Common land also plays an invaluable role in our cultural heritage, language and traditions. Its 
ongoing management is central to the delivery of Welsh Government’s climate, nature and wider 
objectives.   
 
Almost 10% of agricultural land in Wales is common land – 94% of which is located within Wales’ 
Severely Disadvantaged Areas (SDA). Common land is currently included as ‘eligible area’ for the 
purposes of Pillar 1 BPS Direct Payments and in excess of 3,000 farm businesses declare common 
land for the purposes of claiming BPS annually – in some instances making up the majority of their 
eligible area.  In contrast, despite very significant investment in facilitation support via the Commons 
Development Officers, only around two thirds of common land was under collaborative Glastir 
Commons agreements. 
 
NFU Cymru has long been clear, that without continuing support, the economic position of Welsh 
farms businesses who manage common land is threatened and further losses of the proactive 

Tudalen y pecyn 79

https://www.nfu-cymru.org.uk/media/mvoowppc/nfu-cymru-common-land-publication_english_final.pdf


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 50 

management, through grazing, so central to the condition of common land could occur. The right to 
graze the common is fundamental to the viability of the farming business and will have been for 
generations, the common land allocation being as integral to the viability of that business as the ‘in-
bye’ land of that holding.  
 
In this context, NFU Cymru is profoundly disappointed and highly concerned at the latest Welsh 
Government proposals which do not include common land within the Universal Action Layer. This is 
because, Welsh Government say, common land rights holders cannot take sole responsibility for the 
management or condition of a fixed area of common land.   
 
Yet again, Welsh Government is proposing a Universal Action Layer without having a comprehensive 
understanding of what is and what is not possible across the spectrum of Welsh farms with the result 
that key groups representing significant numbers of farmers will not have equal access. All in all, 
NFU Cymru believes Welsh Government’s position with respect to the Universal Action Layer for 
farmers with common land is unsound and discriminatory.   
 
Early in Chapter 2, Welsh Government states whilst the Universal Actions are mandatory, some 
Actions are not applicable to all farms. Indeed, from our analysis (above) it is clear the Universal 
Action Layer is far from universal. What is not clear is why Welsh Government appears prepared to 
introduce an element of flexibility in some instances without respecting that similar flexibility will need 
to be applied in other instances. We would highlight that across the proposed Universal Action Layer, 
there are a number, for example, UA1, UA2, UA15, UA16, UA17 that relate to the farm business 
itself.   
 
With over 40% of common land understood to be designated SSSI, it is clear that common land 
rights holders are likely to be contributing significantly to the delivery of Welsh Government’s climate 
and nature objectives already through the ongoing management of common land. It is illogical for 
Welsh Government to be advancing a scheme that does not see common land within the declared 
area for the Universal Baseline Payment.   
 
Welsh Government’s proposals for common land, via Commons Management Plans in the 
Collaborative Layer of the scheme are wholly inadequate and underpinned by flawed assumptions.  
For example, such an approach is reliant on achieving agreement when the evidence is clear this is 
not possible in all instances. Through this proposal, the viability of individual farm businesses is being 
put into the hands of others and this is grossly unfair.   
 
The Collaborative Layer of scheme is yet to be developed and there is uncertainty around funding.  
We are concerned that this collaborative approach is also reliant on the owner of the common who 
may wish to pursue an approach to benefit financially that interferes with right of common, for 
example, tree planting. NFU Cymru is clear that the right of common must be protected. 
 
Similarly, the proposal that the Commons Management Plan could also be developed with input from 
supporting organisations is also concerning. Wales has a long legacy of approaches on common 
land that have interfered with stocking and grazing regimes to such an extent that in some instances 
the ability to proactively manage the common has been lost leading to damaging impacts for wildlife 
and building up levels of vegetation that represent a significant risk of wildfire etc.  
 
Farming on common land is a centuries old, traditional practice often with local, geographically 
distinctive native breeds of livestock. Many flocks are ‘hefted’ to graze particular areas of the 
common – a knowledge of belonging that is engrained and passed down from ewe to lamb, 
generation after generation. While farmers readily introduce new innovations and technologies to 
improve management and productivity, it is widely acknowledged that hefted flocks and the specialist 
skills required to keep them are central to the effective management of common land. In many 
instances, hefted flocks also retain resistance to key diseases such as those carried by ticks. 

Tudalen y pecyn 80



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 51 

Naturally developed immunity to such diseases means that our hefted flocks are an irreplaceable 
resource, both genetically and for the ongoing management of common land. Hill breeds also form 
the foundation of Wales’ stratified flock system. Despite their critical role, our hefted flocks and the 
skills needed to manage them are declining in many parts of Wales. The approach to future 
agricultural support must ensure the viability of these traditional farming systems is protected so that 
the sustainable management of common land is achieved for the benefit of all going forward. 
 
We note that Welsh Government, in the development of their common land offer, proposes to set out 
how they expect funding to be allocated. However, the consultation provides scant reassurance to 
commoners that payment levels will be equivalent to the levels of support provided via the Basic 
Payment Scheme and Glastir Commons. Farmers on common land are already facing funding 
reductions in the transition to the Habitat Wales Scheme for 2024.   
 
Welsh Government suggests it is proposing an additional element of financial support for individual 
graziers through the Stability Payment. Our comments relating to the proposed Stability Payment are 
made later in this response but clearly ‘stability’ is something of a misnomer. It is also not clear if 
Welsh Government is proposing that the Stability Payment on common land will include an additional 
payment to reflect agri-environment scheme payments as per farmers with organic certification. 
 
Overall, NFU Cymru is clear that given the significance of common land to Wales, the Sustainable 
Farming Scheme must be accessible to all common land right holders across the proposed three 
layers of support. As with the BPS currently, common land must continue to be included as eligible 
for the purposes of future support, including the Universal Baseline Payment. This should be paid 
directly by Welsh Government to the farmer apportioned to rights held.   
 
Future agricultural support for common land must be targeted at common rights holders (the 
occupier, including tenants, of the land who has the benefit of those rights) and not the owners of the 
common or any other party. Future policy must recognise that it is rights holders who actively 
manage commons through grazing, and it is this management that is central to the delivery of 
environmental outcomes. In addition, strategies are needed that maintain and restore grazing 
livestock, including cattle, native breeds to address undergrazing. Fundamentally, future policy on 
commons must recognise the crucial role of grazing and reward what is already there in terms of 
active management rather than driving destocking and further loss of this irreplaceable resource.   
 
Summary 
 
NFU Cymru believes the proposed framework for the Sustainable Farming Scheme has the potential 
to provide a workable model for delivery, however, our support for this framework is contingent on the 
principle of equal access for all active farmers and on the development of practical and deliverable 
actions within the Universal Action Layer that are achievable on all farms in Wales, irrespective of 
farming sector, system and location. The Universal Baseline Payment that farmers receive for 
undertaking the Universal Actions must also deliver at least the same level of stability to farm 
businesses as the Basic Payment Scheme provides currently. 
 
Welsh Government continues to approach the design of the Sustainable Farming Scheme based 
largely on previous agri-environment schemes. This approach is fundamentally flawed when the 
scheme is set to be the main mechanism of support to farming in Wales replacing both Pillar 1 and 
Pillar 2 measures.  A major overhaul of the scheme is needed and a review of the practicality and 
cumulative administrative burden associated with the delivery of the proposed Universal Actions 
must also be undertaken.   
 
NFU Cymru is supportive of measures that facilitate and reward farmers for additional woodland 
planting in line with the ’right tree, right place’ principle, however, we reject in the strongest terms 
Welsh Government’s proposals to mandate 10% tree cover as a requirement of the Universal Action 

Tudalen y pecyn 81



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 52 

Layer of the Scheme. Welsh Government’s intransigence in continuing to mandate this is baffling and 
has been a source of significant frustration and anxiety within the industry. Fundamental issues 
highlighted previously remain unaddressed and Welsh Government’s latest proposals have only 
served to further undermine the confidence of farmers in this scheme rule. Farmers need long-term 
‘cast iron’ guarantees that tree cover established on Welsh farms for the delivery of Welsh 
Government’s climate change objectives will be rewarded. These assurances have not been 
forthcoming, and in the face of reduced agricultural productivity, reduced land values, and the lack of 
guaranteed support beyond 2029 together with the risks and liabilities of delivering 100% success 
over this time period, endeavouring to deliver 10% tree cover would be simply illogical on the vast 
majority of farms where this threshold is out of reach currently.   
 
We identify there are a range of options that offer significant potential to contribute to decarbonisation 
goals through a more dynamic and varied approach. A review of the 10% tree cover scheme rule is, 
therefore, needed and alternatives to tree planting should be examined by an independent science 
panel before moving forward.  
 
NFU Cymru also continues to be highly concerned that the Universal Action Layer does not provide 
universal access for all active farmers in Wales. It is wholly unacceptable to us that Welsh 
Government proposes that the Optional and Collaborative Action Layers can be used as 
mechanisms to address the failings in design at the Universal Action Layer, for example, in respect of 
common land and SSSIs. NFU Cymru is clear Welsh Government must ensure equal access to the 
Universal Baseline Payment recognising: 
 

• The integral role that common land rights allocations provide in the economic viability of 
upland farms and the need for common land to be included within the Universal Baseline 
Payment that is made to the farming business.   

• Support for farmers with designated sites including the habitat maintenance element must be 
provided within the Universal Baseline Payment.   

• That tenant farmers are not financially penalised as a result of their inability to undertake all 
the scheme requirements at the Universal Action Layer.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 82



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 53 

 

3. The Sustainable Farming Scheme Process 

 

• Scheme eligibility 
 
NFU Cymru has long argued that future support must be targeted at active farmers undertaking the 
financial risks associated with food production. We note Welsh Government’s proposed eligibility 
criteria include undertaking agricultural or ancillary activities on agricultural land; having at least 3 
hectares of eligible agricultural land in Wales or 550 standard labour hours; and, exclusive 
occupation and management control of the land for at least 10 months of the calendar year. 
 
The definition of ancillary activity is provided for within the Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023. This 
provides policymakers with significant latitude to fund activities on land used for agriculture that are 
non-farming. Similarly, we believe the proposal that applicants have at least 3 hectares (for the Basic 
Payment Scheme it is 5 hectares) or be able to demonstrate more than 550 hours in agriculture or 
ancillary activities has the potential to open up the scheme to an increased number of non-farming 
claims. Welsh Government should undertake further work  to understand this potential issue. NFU 
Cymru believe that support should be targeted at the farms that produce the majority of food and who 
rely on the farm for a significant proportion of their income. We remind Welsh Government that the 
sustainable production of food is the first of the four SLM objectives and the eligibility criteria should 
proactively enable the delivery of this important goal. A scheme that deemphasises agriculture in 
favour of ancillary environmental or forestry activity is likely to be a driver of land use change 
reducing Wales’ productive agricultural capacity and opportunities for new entrants to farming.   
 
In this context, NFU Cymru welcomes the fact that Welsh Government proposes a number of 
Universal Actions that are closely aligned to being an active farmer. However, Welsh Government 
also suggests that some Universal Actions are not applicable to all farms, so the extent to which a 
non-active farmer could be exempted and still receive some or all of the proposed Universal Baseline 
Payment is unclear. 
 
We recognise that by proposing annualised agreements and that farmers applying for the scheme 
must have ‘management control’ of the land for 10 months of the year that Welsh Government are 
seeking to address issues that NFU Cymru have previously highlighted in relation to land tenure and 
rental arrangements that are commonplace in Wales. We do, however, highlight that maintenance 
with some of the land based Universal Actions for the full calendar year will likely pose challenges to 
many active farmers who will not have management control for the entire year. Further consideration 
should be given to this issue, to ensure that they are able to access the scheme on the same basis 
as those that own the land they farm, recognising that the current position in relation to BPS eligibility 
is that farmers are required to declare the land that they have at their disposal on the 15 May.   
 
Welsh Government has provided no explanation of its proposal to deem features like ‘ineligible 
ponds, rivers and streams’ as not eligible for the scheme. This appears contrary to the SLM 
objectives.   
 
Finally, we note that Welsh Government has opted not to include information on the proposed 
eligibility for the Collaborative Action Layer of the scheme. We note that earlier proposals referred to 
collaboration between farmers, land managers and potentially others. Whilst NFU Cymru recognises 
the role of collaborative approaches, Welsh Government must ensure that there are in-built 
safeguards to ensure that the scheme is limited to genuine farmer-led collaboration focussed on 
actions rather than being used as a core funding stream for environmental NGOs and campaigning 
groups. 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 83



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 54 

 

• Operating model 
 
NFU Cymru strongly supports proposals to use the Rural Payment Wales (RPW) operating model to 
deliver the scheme building on the success of RPW Online and the Single Application Form (SAF) 
process. We have long highlighted that SAF is an approach that farmers are familiar with, and which 
already has extensive mapping capability. Our vision was for the transition from the BPS to the SFS 
to be an evolution rather than a revolution, with different elements of the SFS being added to the SAF 
throughout the transition period to ensure a smooth and incremental transition.    
 
NFU Cymru supports the annual SAF as the mechanism to apply for the Universal Baseline Payment 
and we agree that flexibility to accommodate changes in land or tenure and other matters will need to 
be maintained. We are supportive of Welsh Government proposals to maintain the proposed 
application window, closing on the 15 May. 
 
We note Welsh Government suggests that applicants may be required to update customer records 
during the year to confirm the completion of Actions. Our specific comments relating to the Universal 
Action Layer are made above, in particular in relation to the collection, holding and use of data, 
however, NFU Cymru strongly believes that more work is needed to reduce the administrative and 
reporting burden associated with the scheme, as currently proposed. Farmers are already working 
very long hours, some of them off-farm or on diversified activities to supplement their farm incomes.    
Our assessment is that the scheme is excessive for both farmers and the agents and advisers that 
support them. We are highly concerned that the complexity is likely to lead to missed reporting 
deadlines and penalties. We are concerned that the increased complexity and reporting throughout 
the calendar year will impinge on the previous excellent delivery of payments to Welsh farming.    
 
NFU Cymru also has concerns that the complexity of the scheme will result in high operational costs 
for Welsh Government and that funding will be drawn from the overall budget for the scheme, in 
contrast to previous CAP systems where operational costs were outside of the CAP budget. 
 

• Habitat Baseline Review and Data Confirmation 
 
NFU Cymru notes proposals for the Level 1 Habitat Baseline Review which will be used to determine 
the extent of tree cover, hedgerows, habitats and other features such as ponds and scrapes, historic 
features and designated sites. The process is expected to commence later this year with the Data 
Confirmation Exercise which will inform the Habitat Baseline Review. 
 
NFU Cymru is supportive of an online process for the Habitat Baseline Review which is easier and 
more cost effective to operationalise than field surveys. Ahead of implementation, NFU Cymru 
believes full evaluation of the Habitat Wales Scheme should be undertaken. Applications for this 
scheme were invited via an Expression of Interest (EOI) process on Rural Payments Wales (RPW) 
Online where the area of eligible habitat land was mapped and presented to applicants. In addition to 
habitats supported under Glastir, habitat was identified using published maps on DataMapWales. 
These maps were based on the Phase 1 Habitat Survey which took place over 30 years ago and, in 
many instances, did not stand up to ground truthing. This has led to many examples of land that were 
incorrectly identified as habitat and, conversely, land that is habitat not being included as eligible 
habitat for the purposes of the scheme.   
 
Whilst Welsh Government sought to remedy this at the EOI stage by allowing farmers to remove 
incorrectly mapped habitat in ‘exceptional circumstances’, there remain a high number of farmers at 
the contract offer stage with inaccurate habitat maps which they are unable to amend, leaving many 
farmers in the invidious position of having to sign contracts they know to be wrong to secure part of 
the income they previously received via Glastir. We know that many farmers took the decision not to 
apply for the scheme due to the inaccuracies of the habitat maps on RPW online.     

Tudalen y pecyn 84

https://datamap.gov.wales/


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 55 

 
As a result of the mapping errors, implementation of the Habitat Wales Scheme has become 

extremely complicated and stressful for farmers and their advisers. On this basis, many farmers have 

lost confidence in the validity of the mapping process and there are clearly lessons to be learned 

before Welsh Government advances a similar process for the Habitat Baseline Review, remembering 

that habitat is just one of multiple features Welsh Government wants to confirm as part of this review.  

NFU Cymru has concerns about the administrative burden the data confirmation exercise will place 

on farmers and their agents. This is being exacerbated by an overtly complex and prescriptive suite 

of Universal Actions. For example, we identify mapping the status of hedgerows on Welsh farms 

against Welsh Government’s definition of ‘good condition’ is, in itself, likely to be a very significant 

task.   

 

Overall, Welsh Government must put more focus on ensuring the accuracy of mapping data 

presented to farmers. A clear process by which farmers can remove or add features that have been 

inaccurately mapped is needed that properly respects the fact that it is farmers that know their farms 

best and are likely to have a greater understanding of what is on their farms rather than a dated map. 

 

It is also hoped that the feedback received to this consultation will lead to a revised suite of Universal 

Actions, that are, in fact, universal and that are less complex and prescriptive which will ultimately 

lead to a simplified mapping process.   

 

Finally, NFU Cymru notes that Welsh Government is also proposing a more in-depth Level 2 Habitat 

Baseline Review to support the Optional Layer of the scheme. NFU Cymru is generally supportive of 

this approach but would welcome input into the development of this process to ensure it is efficient 

and cost effective. 

 

• Carbon calculator 

 
In 2019, NFU Cymru and NFU set the ambitious goal of reaching net zero greenhouse gas emissions 
(GHG) across the whole of agriculture in Wales and England by 204016. 
 
Farming, as both emissions source and sink, is uniquely placed as a sector to be part of the solution 
through climate-friendly food production; the trees, hedges, grassland and soils that store and 
sequester carbon together with on-farm renewable energy generation.   
 
NFU Cymru’s assessment is that Net Zero Agriculture can only be delivered if we act across a range 
of internationally recognised inventories. The NFU Cymru pathway has been discussed with the UK 
Committee on Climate Change (UKCCC) and is challenging, but attainable, with the right support. 
 
Our analysis shows there is no single solution to this problem. To achieve our aim a range of 
measures are needed that fall under three broad headings of: 

• Improving farming’s productive efficiency to reduce our greenhouse gas emissions – enabling 
farming to produce the same quantity of food, or more, with less inputs in smarter ways; 

• Farmland carbon storage in soils and vegetation – improving land management and 
enhancing land use to capture more carbon; and   

• Boosting renewable energy and the wider bioeconomy to displace greenhouse gas emissions 
from fossil fuels and to create GHG removal through photosynthesis and carbon capture.  

 
At the same time as reducing our impact on the climate, we are also clear that we should not reduce 
our capacity to feed consumers with high quality, affordable Welsh food. Wales must not achieve its 
climate ambitions by exporting Welsh production, or greenhouse gas emissions, to other countries.  

 
16 achieving-net-zero.pdf (nfu-cymru.org.uk) 

Tudalen y pecyn 85

https://www.nfu-cymru.org.uk/media/qixnek52/achieving-net-zero.pdf
https://www.nfu-cymru.org.uk/media/qixnek52/achieving-net-zero.pdf


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 56 

This would not be a globally responsible or sustainable approach. It is also important to recognise 
that farmers are on the front line when it comes to climate impacts and associated disruption to food 
production.   
 
It is now two years since NFU Cymru along with other industry organisations proposed the Low 

Carbon Farming Framework to Welsh Government (Annex 2). Funded via the domestic rural 

development funding, this proposal delivered Welsh Government’s ambition for agriculture during the 

second Carbon Budget (2021-2025) and would have incentivised all farmers in Wales to undertake a 

simplified carbon assessment, via RPW Online, building on the detailed mapping data already 

provided to Welsh Government on an annual basis. For the first time, the carbon assessment 

process would have been mainstreamed on Welsh farms providing a baseline and informing action 

for individual farms, together with accurate emissions and sequestration data for the purposes of 

Welsh Government reporting. 

 

It is a source of significant disappointment to us that, despite positive feedback from Ministers at the 

time, Welsh Government has not worked with us to advance this proposal. In the intervening period a 

lot has happened. Administrations in Northern Ireland and Scotland have supported carbon 

assessments through their policies. In the context of NFU Cymru’s Net Zero ambition, many more 

farmers have become interested in understanding their carbon position and there has also been 

significant focus on carbon auditing from the supply chain with the result that proposals for carbon 

auditing within the Sustainable Farming Scheme will now need to take into account what is already 

happening on Welsh farms, so farmers are not duplicating effort. We would highlight that many 

supply chains already require some level of carbon assessment and have mandated which tool(s) to 

use, it would not be acceptable to us if these businesses were subsequently mandated to use 

another tool to satisfy the Welsh Government requirement.    

 

We are also clear that any carbon audit tool must treat Welsh farms as systems and include carbon 

sequestration and renewables so that the full contribution across internationally agreed inventories is 

reflected. 

 

Welsh Government would be wise to take note of results of a recently published DEFRA research 
project, ‘Harmonisation of Carbon Accounting Tools for Agriculture’. Whilst this was a short-term 
project, it did clarify several issues: 

• All of six calculators tested were able to provide farmers and growers with a baseline 
understanding of emissions and then help the business think about the next practical steps. 

• No one calculator consistently gave the highest or lowest emissions when looking across 
different production systems and when carbon sequestration was included the differences 
between calculators increased. 

• Calculators give different results for a number of reasons. For example, the tools ask for 
varying amounts of data. Generally, the less data a calculator asks for, the more 
assumptions it has to make but then it’s easier to fill in. 

• In addition, farm businesses can be very complex e.g. have different enterprises, use 
contractors etc, so it’s very difficult for tools to capture all this diversity. 

 

Taking the above into account we do question how Welsh Government will be able to specify a 

carbon calculator to use, be confident that it is the right one for all sectors and all farm types and 

continue to be the right one given the constantly evolving science and evidence in relation to this 

issue.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 86



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 57 

NFU Cymru is also clear that this data has a value to Welsh Government, in terms of reporting 

requirements. The proposal to simply cover the cost of the farmers time is, therefore, wholly 

inadequate as the basis of payment. A number of the tools are not free to use and they have 

accompanying annual subscription costs. We also identify, many farmers are likely to need support to 

undertake a carbon audit and the cost of this must be reflected in the payment rate as should proper 

recompense for the value of that data. Many farmers and their supply chain partners see this 

information as being valuable commercial data, data that their supply chain contracts may prevent 

them from sharing with other parties including government.  

 

Overall, whilst NFU Cymru understands the intention behind this proposal, we consider that far more 

work is needed to make it operational. Welsh Government must recognise that the process of carbon 

auditing is no small task and in aligning the implementation of the proposal to coincide with the 

introduction of the Scheme this is likely to increase the burden on farmers who will already be 

grappling with the other SFS requirements, all of which will be new to farmers.   

 

• Scheme rules, validation, on-the-spot-checks, warnings and penalties 

 

Welsh Government proposes to develop scheme guidance and a set of verifiable standards setting 

out scheme rules, actions and evidence required to meet the conditions of the scheme. Payments to 

farmers may be affected if these rules are not met. NFU Cymru comments on the practicality and 

deliverability of the Universal Actions and scheme rules are made earlier in this response. We are 

clear that a number of the Universal Actions such as hedgerow management and tree planting pose 

an unacceptable level of risk and liability to farmers and, as such, they are not supported.  

 

We highlight that farmers’ perception of rules and regulations were summarised in the Public Health 

Wales report “Supporting farming communities at times of uncertainty”17 published in 2019. This 

report identified that regulation, administration and digitalisation was a key challenge for farmers in 

Wales.   

 

In that report stakeholders reflected on farming as being a highly regulated industry, including 

managing demands from inspections, paperwork, notifiable disease and crop pest outbreak 

management, and administration in some cases (if a farm spans England and Wales) across two 

systems.  

 

Many reflected on high levels of stress due to the complexity, and anxiety about changing regulations 

and fear of making mistakes that can result in financial penalties. Some highlighted incidences where 

an inspection led to an immediate financial penalty without a discussion on whether it could be 

resolved quickly, nor consideration of the significant distress caused, especially if the farmer was 

already struggling financially. This was a frequently described scenario, particularly amongst those 

farmers who have gone on to develop poor mental health, and from farming partners commonly 

dealing with the consequences, including suicide. The move to digitalisation was also highlighted as 

a challenge, in particular, for those with lower levels of literacy or digital literacy, or in areas with poor 

internet connectivity, as well as a reluctance from some, particularly older farmers, to embrace digital 

technology. 

 

In this context, whilst we accept that Welsh Government will need to develop scheme rules to outline 

the requirements of the scheme, we identify this will be a key area of concern to our members. On 

this basis we strongly believe that, in the development of scheme rules, Welsh Government must 

prioritise simplicity. Welsh Government must recognise that the Sustainable Farming Scheme is an 

 
17 phw.nhs.wales/services-and-teams/knowledge-directorate/research-and-evaluation/publications/supporting-farming-
communities-at-times-of-uncertainty/ 

Tudalen y pecyn 87

https://phw.nhs.wales/services-and-teams/knowledge-directorate/research-and-evaluation/publications/supporting-farming-communities-at-times-of-uncertainty/
https://phw.nhs.wales/services-and-teams/knowledge-directorate/research-and-evaluation/publications/supporting-farming-communities-at-times-of-uncertainty/


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 58 

entirely new approach and based on the past experiences of successive CAP reforms, it will take 

time for farmers to become familiar with the new requirements so flexibility will be needed.   

 

We also identify that farmers are going to need considerable support to understand and implement 

the scheme at farm level. The Farm Liaison Service provides invaluable support to farmers on 

scheme related information and requirements. We also call on Welsh Government to ensure that the 

‘When the inspector calls’ guide is updated to take account of the SFS and is provided to all SFS 

participants at the earliest opportunity.   

 

We note that Welsh Government proposes that a number of the scheme rules will be consistent with 

previous support schemes and cross compliance. NFU Cymru does not support this proposal. We 

take this opportunity to highlight that whilst a number of cross compliance requirements i.e. Statutory 

Management Requirements are underpinned by legislation, this is not the case for the Good 

Agricultural and Environment Conditions (GAEC). Cross compliance is therefore a mixture of 

statutory requirements as well as obligations created by the competent authority (Welsh 

Government). Cross compliance is a frequent cause of complaint amongst our members as failure to 

meet any of these cross compliance requirements can result in a financial penalty, which is often out 

of proportion to the breach committed - a breach that may not have had any environmental or animal 

health / welfare impact.  

 

On this basis we do not support proposals to ‘cut and paste’ cross compliance into the scheme rules 

for the Sustainable Farming Scheme. We believe that a thorough review and analysis of the current 

cross compliance regime needs to be undertaken prior to consideration of which elements should be 

incorporated into the scheme rules for the Sustainable Farming Scheme. Welsh Government should 

work with the industry to devise standards which are relevant to Wales.  

 

The assumption that farmers can simply absorb the costs associated with meeting cross compliance 

requirements is also fundamentally flawed in the absence of the BPS, particularly, when farmers 

elsewhere continue to be supported. We strongly reject Welsh Government proposals to add further 

regulations into scheme rules such as legal responsibilities like Public Rights of Way and CRoW 

Open Access land, the new Workplace Recycling Regulations and invasive non-native species which 

represent ‘gold plating’ and expose farmers to ‘double jeopardy’.   

 

We highlight that existing public access legislation has long been a concern for NFU Cymru placing 

significant costs, burdens and liabilities on farmers in Wales. There are many examples of actions by 

access users that lead to increased costs and economic impacts on agricultural businesses. This 

includes damage to crops, livestock worrying, mixing of livestock management groups and animal 

health related issues such as Neospora. In this context, we have long emphasised the need for a 

partnership approach with the Local Authority and Local Access Forums with a system of 

prioritisation and with adequate funding to deliver an agreed programme of works.   

 

We also believe that Welsh Government should also review notice of inspection periods, so they are 

more reasonable and also consider building in the option of voluntary checks prior to full inspection.  

 

NFU Cymru is also highly concerned that Welsh Government is implementing such changes through 

secondary legislation with the specifics of each scheme provided for within scheme rules and 

guidance. Whilst this offers maximum flexibility for government, we believe this provides insufficient 

scrutiny and safeguards for farmers.    

 

Digital connectivity also continues to be source of major frustration in many parts of Wales. There is 

the potential for farmers, who through no fault of their own have no broadband or limited access, 

being excluded from the necessary advice and guidance they need to comply with the future 

Tudalen y pecyn 88



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 59 

regulatory landscape. It is vitally important that government and regulators recognise this and that 

those who are digitally excluded are not prevented from having the information that is required to 

ensure that they are aware of the scheme related requirements and kept up to date whenever any 

changes are made.   

  

Overall, NFU Cymru is extremely concerned about the mounting levels of anxiety within the farming 

community and has called for the establishment of an Independent Review Group to consider the 

cumulative burden of regulations and policies on Welsh farming business also taking into 

consideration the wider economic and political context. 

 

We note Welsh Government proposes to include an ‘exceptional circumstances’ provision to consider 

where scheme participants are prevented from fulfilling obligations or Actions due to events outside 

their control. NFU Cymru supports a force majeure clause within the scheme rules in addition to 

greater flexibility at the scheme development stage to ensure that the Universal Action Layer is 

practical and achievable. We highlight that regulation, as well as, the requirements of support 

schemes, is often heavily dependent on things outside of the farmer’s control, such as the weather.  

Multiple aspects of the proposed Sustainable Farming Scheme are environmental and subject to 

complex biological processes reinforcing the need for flexibility and a sensible force majeure or 

exceptional circumstances provision. Making use of force majeure / exceptional circumstances 

provision should also be a tool available to the Inspector at the point of inspection rather that leaving 

the farming family with the stress and anguish of being penalised and having to go through the 

appeal process to get the penalty overturned.   

 

The provisions need to extend to the consideration of ill health within a partnership / limited company. 

Many farm businesses operate as partnerships and limited companies, our experience to date is that 

this can make it difficult for ill health of one individual to be considered under the force majeure 

provisions. The reality is that within each business, various individuals will have their own roles and 

responsibilities, and some include parents whose practical involvement in the day-to-day farming 

activities is limited. NFU Cymru would welcome a more pragmatic approach to the consideration of ill 

health, which recognises the practical reality within the farming business, rather than focusing on a 

hypothetical assumption that where there is a partnership or limited company it is easy for obligations 

to be transferred to another individual.   

  

We recognise that Welsh Government proposes different ways to monitor farms and check 

compliance including physical inspection and earth observations. Farmers need to be informed that 

the inspection is taking place and an opportunity to comment on the inspection prior to any penalty 

being applied. This is not always the case particularly with remote inspection techniques.   

 

NFU Cymru continues to be concerned about the level of complexity Welsh Government is proposing 

for monitoring and checking, this is a significant source of anxiety amongst farmers. The aim should 

be for any monitoring and checking to be necessary and proportionate. Welsh Government and Rural 

Inspectorate Wales will also need to ensure that they do not overreach in the development of the 

inspection regime recognising that they do not hold the necessary knowledge in many aspects of the 

Universal Action Layer, for example, veterinary expertise. 

 

Given the potential overlap with a number of the requirements of the Universal Action Layer and farm 

assurance, we would encourage Welsh Government to consider the role that earned recognition 

could play. Earned recognition is about using third party schemes to assess risk, and therefore, the 

need and frequency for the state or its agencies to inspect, respecting that ultimately, membership of 

a farm assurance scheme is a decision for an individual farming business based on the value of 

assurance to that business.   

 

Tudalen y pecyn 89



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 60 

We note that in circumstances where there is a level of non-compliance, where it is ‘felt’ that financial 

penalties are required, Welsh Government propose a set of verifiable standards and a sanctions 

matrix.   

 

It is important to recognise that the disproportionate system of penalties applied in previous schemes 

act to deter farmers from participating in future schemes as they a fearful of inspections and being 

found in breach. The impacts of these penalties can also be crippling for farm businesses and impact 

on health and well-being. 

 

NFU Cymru strongly believes there should not be penalties for minor breaches and administrative 

errors. In many cases such minor breaches and administrative errors cause no environmental or 

animal health concern. NFU Cymru is also clear that it should not be possible to backdate penalties. 

Where Welsh Government ‘feels’ a sanction is appropriate then Welsh Government must consider a 

range of factors including proportionality. We strongly support the use of warning letters where 

possible. Overall, NFU Cymru is clear this is an opportunity to relook at the whole system in relation 

to warnings and penalties to deliver a more proportionate approach.   

 

NFU Cymru would also support the introduction of a procedural code for inspectors and enforcers 

dealing with the regulation of farms. The code should aim to professionalise the inspection and 

enforcement regimes, setting standards for investigations and evidence collection, the enforcement 

approach, penalty application and appeals. The code should also provide safeguards for farmers, 

such as the right for farmers to know the evidence against them and to have a fair opportunity to 

answer the case against them before the decision to apply a penalty is made. 

 

• Appeals 

 

We note that Welsh Government proposes a change from the existing appeals process which 

includes an assessment by an independent panel and the final decision made by Welsh Ministers to 

a two-stage review process involving different officials to those who made the original decision.   

 

There was widespread concern at this proposal which will limit access to justice for SFS participants.  

Whilst Welsh Government suggests that it intends to adopt a proportionate approach to non-

compliance, farmers are yet to see this in practice in the context of highly complex and prescriptive 

scheme requirements. On this basis, NFU Cymru believes that an independent appeals panel must 

continue to be a feature of the appeals process. There is a lack of trust that it can be left entirely to 

Welsh Government officials to be prosecutor, judge and jury. 

 

We also believe the independent appeals process should be strengthened and expanded from its 

very limited jurisdiction with the panel only being able to confirm whether RPW has followed the 

correct procedures in accordance with the regulations. We believe the appeal process established for 

the Sustainable Farming Scheme must have far more wide-ranging powers with the ability to 

investigate further the detail of the case, consider mitigating circumstances and whether the sanction 

applied is proportionate to the breach. The appeal procedure, staff and secretariat associated with 

the appeal process should be separate and independent of the Inspectorate.  

 

We would suggest that whilst it is important a number of members of the independent panel have 

expertise in agriculture it will be important that there are also members who have legal and / or 

tribunal expertise. We would strongly recommend that the appeal process must operate to strict time 

periods. Our current experience is that many appeals within the RPW Independent Appeal process 

can take years between submission of the Stage 2 Appeal and an Appeal Hearing being undertaken. 

This is unacceptable, causing great strain and pressure on the appellants as they await the 

opportunity to put their case before the panel.     

Tudalen y pecyn 90



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 61 

 

• Advice and Guidance 

 
Welsh Government’s proposal is to continue to offer a range of advice, guidance and learning. There 
are also numerous references to the provision of advice and guidance to support farmers within the 
SFS Universal Action Layer including with some specific Universal Actions; skills development and 
mentoring to new entrants; together with the possibility of facilitation support for common land 
management agreements.   
 
Whether Welsh Government is proposing that advice and guidance is delivered via Farming Connect 
is unclear – we note that specific references to Farming Connect within the current consultation are 
limited, with two specific mentions of the Farming Connect programme (contrasting to 40 references 
to Farming Connect within the previous SFS Outline Proposals consultation). Overall, we identify that 
more information is needed to clarify Welsh Government’s proposals for advice and guidance 
provision, including scope, funding allocations and sources of that funding.   
 
We identify that advice and guidance may be required to address a number of needs. Firstly, there 
are the advice and guidance requirements associated with the operational aspects of the SFS 
including for those farmers that are digitally excluded, recognising the very significant change farmers 
are facing with the transition away from the legacy CAP architecture. Secondly, there is the advice 
and guidance provision including knowledge transfer relating to the development of farm businesses.   
 
NFU Cymru welcomes Welsh Government’s proposal to use Rural Payments Wales (RPW) online as 
the operating model for SFS. This approach most closely align with the key NFU Cymru principle for 
future agricultural policy which emphasises the need for a scheme that is simple to administer and 
apply for. We have long argued that the scheme should be designed so that any farmer, at the 
Universal Action Layer, should be able to apply, comply and complete all the Actions without the 
need for advisers and consultants. We believe advice and guidance provision should be prioritised 
for the Optional and Collaborative Action Layers which are likely to be more complex and delivered 
via bespoke contracts. 
 
Traditionally, Farming Connect has not fulfilled the role of providing advice and facilitating access to 
support schemes such as BPS. Advice on the specific requirements of Welsh Government schemes 
has been provided via the Farm Liaison Service (FLS). Our members very much appreciate the 
trusted relationships they have developed with the FLS team across Wales, it is our strong 
recommendation that the FLS be retained and they build on their strong track record of delivery to 
provide support to farmers accessing the Sustainable Farming Scheme via the RPW online portal.   
 
We also highlight that thousands of farmers are supported on an annual basis with the completion of 
their SAF by agents such as NFU Cymru County Advisers and Group Secretaries who also fulfil an 
invaluable role sharing scheme related information and appealing scheme related penalties etc.  
These representatives have developed trusted relationships with farmers over many years and are 
likely to continue to be the ‘first port of call’ for many farmers on matters relating to future support.   
 
NFU Cymru would have concerns if Welsh Government proposed to provide additional investment in 
the Farming Connect programme that duplicated the current offer provided by the FLS and private 
agents where market failure does not exist. We highlight that Farming Connect would also possess 
limited operational experience in this field and is based around ‘ad hoc’ interventions of advice and 
general awareness raising which does not lend itself to the type of service required which is more 
iterative in nature. There is also the issue of liability over where responsibility and accountability 
would lie in the event that the advice / support provided was inaccurate leading to an adverse impact 
on the farm business.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 91



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 62 

NFU Cymru has concerns that, in addition to the annual declaration process, Welsh Government is 
currently proposing significant reporting requirements in relation to Universal Actions that will 
increase the burden on farmers and those who support them currently, also increasing the risk of 
scheme breaches as a result of overlooked reporting deadlines etc. We believe Welsh Government 
must do more to ensure the burden of reporting outside of the annual SAF process is more 
proportionate than currently proposed to avoid the capacity issues that are likely to arise.   
 
In the context of limited funding, NFU Cymru does not believe that investment in advice and guidance 
provision to remedy an overtly complex scheme design represents good value for money. That is not 
to say that NFU Cymru is not supportive of the provision of advice via Farming Connect to farmers for 
the delivery of specific scheme requirements. NFU Cymru would highlight that there is ambiguity 
within the current SFS proposals in relation to a number of Universal Actions and scheme 
requirements and whether it is proposed that Farming Connect will support their delivery, for 
example, Universal Action 1: Benchmarking, Universal Action 3: Soil Health Planning or the Carbon 
Calculator.   
 

• Advice and guidance provision relating to the development of farm businesses 

 
NFU Cymru has long been clear in its vision for future agricultural policy, based around a single, 
integrated, flexible framework of three cornerstones – productivity and environment underpinned by 
measures to provide stability and address volatility. NFU Cymru believes the latest scientific 
research, development of innovative tools, technologies and practices and knowledge exchange are 
all critical to solving the productivity and resource efficiency challenges that Welsh farmers face. In 
this context, NFU Cymru is supportive of targeted and integrated knowledge exchange, advice and 
incentives across a range of themes to drive forward productivity and deliver measurable 
improvements in economic and environmental performance. Examples of key themes include climate 
change mitigation measures, animal health and welfare, environmental management and 
enhancement, grassland management, soil and nutrient management and health and safety. Skills 
and training in key areas such as machinery and equipment are also very important, particularly for 
new entrants and young farmers.   
 
We are clear, however, that the potential contribution of advice and guidance from Farming Connect, 
or indeed other providers, is overstated by Welsh Government. It is not the ‘silver bullet’ and will be 
insufficient to make up for the loss of a stability mechanism to underpin farm business viability and 
support farmers to address volatility associated with factors beyond their control. This is evidenced 
by the independent evaluation18 of Farming Connect which concluded that “Farming Connect plays 
an important role in creating the foundations for change leading to small scale incremental 
changes19. On this basis increased levels of investment in advice and guidance measures above 
current levels without a clear business case would be highly concerning to us.   
 
We also highlight that advice and guidance on technical and farm business development matters is 
available to farmers from a range of sources. We have long highlighted the need for better co-
operation and collaboration to avoid duplication, repetition and event saturation. This includes the 
unions, AHDB, HCC, agriculture suppliers, banks, accountants, solicitors etc.  We identify fuller 
analysis of market failure in this sphere would be helpful. A full evaluation to understand impact and 
modelling to demonstrate the likely cost benefit of advice and guidance interventions is also needed.   
 
The independent evaluation of Farming Connect also identifies that many businesses are “capacity 
and resource constrained”, underscoring the need for investment support to drive improved 
productivity. In this context we believe the SFS must include greater emphasis on grant support to 
facilitate the investment in modern on-farm infrastructure, the latest technology and innovations.  

 
18 Evaluation of the knowledge transfer, innovation and advisory services programme: final report | GOV.WALES 
19 Emphasis added 

Tudalen y pecyn 92

https://www.gov.wales/evaluation-knowledge-transfer-innovation-and-advisory-services-programme-final-report


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 63 

 
Overall, we identify that Welsh farmers are likely to require significant scheme related support ahead 
of and during the transition to the Sustainable Farming Scheme. NFU Cymru would support the 
establishment of a government and industry implementation group to ensure the support is 
appropriate and fit-for-purpose.  
 
Summary 
 
NFU Cymru is supportive of Welsh Government proposals to use the Rural Payments Wales (RPW) 
operating model and the annual Single Application Form (SAF) mechanism for administering the 
Universal Baseline Payment of the Sustainable Farming Scheme. These systems and processes are 
familiar to farmers, however, we identify more work is needed to ensure the administrative and 
reporting burden associated with the scheme is greatly reduced. We are concerned that the 
increased complexity and reporting throughout the calendar year will lead to missed reporting 
deadlines and penalties and impinge of the previous excellent delivery of payments to Welsh farming.   
 
NFU Cymru is also supportive of an online process for the Habitat Baseline Review which is easier 
and more cost effective to operationalise. However, ahead of implementation, full evaluation of the 
Habitat Wales Scheme must be undertaken and lessons must be learned.   
 
In the development of scheme rules, Welsh Government must prioritise simplicity. NFU Cymru does 
not support proposals for scheme rules to be consistent with cross compliance with the addition of 
other legislative requirements. We highlight that a number of cross compliance requirements are 
underpinned by legislation, this is not the case for the Good Agricultural and Environment Conditions 
(GAEC). The assumption that farmers can simply absorb the costs associated with meeting cross 
compliance requirements in the absence of BPS is fundamentally flawed. NFU Cymru is extremely 
concerned about the mounting levels of anxiety within the farming community and calls for the 
establishment of an Independent Review Group to consider the cumulative burden of regulations and 
policies on Welsh farming businesses. 
 
NFU Cymru supports a force majeure clause within scheme rules. We strongly believe there should 
not be penalties for minor breaches and administrative errors, warning letters should be used where 
possible. NFU Cymru believes that the independent appeals panel must continue to be a feature of 
the appeal process and the process should be strengthened and expanded.   
 
Whilst NFU Cymru is supportive of targeted and integrated knowledge exchange, advice and 
incentives across a range of themes to drive forward productivity and improvements in economic and 
environmental performance, NFU Cymru does not believe that investment in advice and guidance 
provision to remedy an overtly complex scheme design represents good value for money. Future 
advice and guidance provision should not duplicate the current offer provided by the FLS and private 
agents.   
 
Welsh farmers are likely to require significant scheme related support ahead of and during the 
transition to the Sustainable Farming Scheme. NFU Cymru would support the establishment of a 
government and industry implementation group to ensure the support is appropriate and fit for 
purpose.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 93



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 64 

 

4. Payment Methodology 
 

• Funding 
 
Welsh Government has confirmed that it does not have budget certainty beyond the financial year 
2024-25.   
 
NFU Cymru recognises that all areas of Welsh Government expenditure continue to face 
unprecedented levels of strain and that the rural affairs budget is no exception to this. NFU Cymru 
warmly welcomed Welsh Government’s announcement in December that the payment rates for the 
Basic Payment Scheme in 2024 would be the same as those in 2023 and 2022. In the context of the 
significant inflationary pressures and escalating costs, we believe that maintaining direct payments at 
the current rate should be a priority for Welsh Government given the economic, social and cultural 
benefits which accrue from supporting domestic primary production, providing much-needed certainty 
to a sector which is going through an extremely challenging time at present.  
 
We are clear, however, that in order to meet our ambition to deliver sustainable growth of the food 
and farming sector, to further improve our environmental performance and the delivery of 
environmental outcomes for society alongside net zero, a well-funded, multi-annual budget for Welsh 
farming must be secured. 
 
NFU Cymru strongly believes that support for agriculture, so vital to underpin our rural communities, 
represents a very good return on investment for the Welsh Government. The total Rural Affairs 
budget for 2023-24, including the Basic Payment Scheme at £238 million was originally set at £482 
million, and represented 2.1% of a total Welsh Government budget of £22,968 million. In exchange 
for this very modest outlay, farmers look after over 80% of the geographical area of Wales and 
produce the safe affordable food we all eat. This food which also enjoys a fantastic reputation for 
quality, provenance and environmental credentials around the UK home nations and in a range of 
export markets near and far. By supporting Wales’ farmers through the Basic Payment Scheme 
(BPS) in 2022 to the tune of £238 million, the sector produced a gross output of £2.1billion in the 
same year.  Investment in support for agriculture by the Welsh Government, therefore, produces a 
return on investment of almost £9 for every £1 given in support.  
  
In terms of future funding, NFU Cymru has long been clear that ‘not a penny less’ in line with 
Ministerial commitments means the value of Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 funds including the domestic co-
financing obligation on Welsh Government for rural development together with the monies arising as 
a result of the Bew Review, in total circa £380 million per annum.  
 
However, it is important to recognise that this figure is based on the EU budget which was set at the 
end of 2013 ahead of the 2014-2020 CAP programming period so its real terms value has been 
steadily eroded by inflation, particularly over the last two years which have seen very high rates of 
agricultural inflation. The Bank of England Inflation calculator for example, shows the BPS budget 
would need to increase by £79 million to £317 million just to keep pace with the inflation which we 
have seen over the last decade or so, or expressed another way, the budget is worth over 30% less 
in real terms than it was when it was set in 2013. The total CAP replacement funding of £380 million 
needs to increase to over £507 million – just to keep up with inflation.  
 
We are clear, that if Welsh Government has genuine ambitions for environmental delivery beyond 
current levels, this ambition needs to be appropriately and sustainably resourced through the 
provision of a realistic, multi-annual funding commitment commensurate with the scale of this 
ambition. Farmers will only be a position to invest in productivity and deliver environmental outcomes 
for society from a position of stability.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 94



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 65 

The confidence of Welsh farmers in Welsh Government’s support for the sector has been rocked by 
the in year 7.8% budget cut to the 2023-24 Welsh Government Rural Affairs Budget in October 
followed by the 10.5% cut to the 2024-25 budget announced in December. 
 
We reiterate our call from earlier consultation responses that a funding plan is needed to make the 
case to the Welsh and UK Treasury. The failure to undertake this work represents a fundamental 
failing in our view and leaves Welsh Government’s Rural Affairs budget exposed and vulnerable, as 
demonstrated with the recent in year budget cut and subsequent cut to the 2024-25 draft budget  
which have dwarfed the cuts to other departments.   
 
Given the scale of Welsh Government’s ambition we strongly believe there are compelling arguments 
that the scheme, could in part, be funded from other budget lines, such as climate change (13% of 
Welsh Government’s budget) recognising the contribution of agriculture towards the delivery of these 
policies. 
 
Ahead of the next Westminster General election NFU Cymru will press all the main political parties to 
make funding available to support agriculture across the home nations for the length of the next 
Parliament. The budget made available should be uplifted to take account of the significant 
inflationary pressures we have been subject to over the last few years, whilst also taking account of 
the additional requirements and undertakings being asked of farmers in relation to food production, 
the environment and climate.   
  
In conjunction with this funding commitment, we would like to see a corresponding commitment from 
Welsh Ministers that funds allocated by a future UK Government to support farmers are spent for 
those purposes and those purposes alone. We would see such a commitment on the part of Welsh 
Ministers as the natural corollary of the obligation the Agriculture (Wales) Act already imposes on 
Welsh Ministers at Section 11 regarding the preparation of multi-annual support plans giving 
information about the expected use of Welsh Ministers’ powers to provide support under Section 8.   
  
In summary, NFU Cymru is very much of the view that support for agriculture represents a good 
return on investment for Welsh Government, with a modest outlay of just 2% securing a host of 
positive benefits for Wales. Our view is that these funding allocations should be uplifted to take 
account of the fact that we are now over ten-years on from when the baseline was established. In the 
intervening time there have been periods of very high inflationary pressure together with the higher 
level of ambition Welsh Government now has for farming in delivering key climate and nature 
objectives alongside securing the stable supply of safe, high quality and affordable food.    
 
Outside of the CAP and during this period of transition, we are concerned about the lack of 
transparency in relation to replacement rural development funding, including the £40 million Welsh 
Government domestic co-financing element. The annual budget for the Glastir area-based contracts, 
for example, was circa £34 million.  As far as we are aware the budget for the replacement interim 
habitat scheme has not yet been published, if it is less than the £34 million allocated to Glastir, then 
how has the remainder of this funding been used to support farming. A similar level of clarity is 
sought in respect of the £20 million announced to support farmers with compliance with the Control of 
Agricultural Pollution Regulations (2021).   
 

• Payment methodology 
 
Welsh Government proposes to provide farmers with a Universal Baseline Payment for carrying out a 
set of Universal Actions. NFU Cymru’s feedback on the practicality of the suite of Universal Actions 
proposed are set out earlier in this response.  
 
We understand that the Universal Baseline Payment will be based on the area of the farm and made 
up of four separate payment categories; namely the maintenance of existing woodland, woodland 

Tudalen y pecyn 95



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 66 

creation, habitat maintenance and a payment value per hectare covering all the other Universal 
Actions on the total eligible area. Our members have expressed profound disappointment at the 
omission of a specific payment category for food production. 
 
Welsh Government has opted not to provide information on payment rates for the Universal Baseline 
Payment and this has been a source of very significant frustration within our membership; severely 
hampering our ability to consult properly on proposals. That Welsh Government expects farmers to 
properly analyse the proposed scheme and what they will be required to deliver in the absence of this 
basic information is quite honestly beyond comprehension. 
 
We note that Welsh Government now proposes that the Universal Baseline Payment will be based 
on costs incurred / income foregone calculations. This proposal is wholly inconsistent with Welsh 
Government’s stated position thus far and the findings at the co-design stage20 which emphasised 
the need for sufficient funding to carry out the actions and sustain a viable farm business. 
 
In ‘Brexit and our Land’ (2018), for example, Welsh Government stated that ‘Glastir is limited, 
providing funding that is restricted to costs incurred and income foregone. This leaves insufficient 
incentive for participation’ and ‘By supporting the delivery of public goods from land, Welsh 
Government’s objective is to provide a valuable new income stream…..for the long-term’. 
 
In ‘Sustainable Farming and our Land’ (2019), Welsh Government identified ‘providing a meaningful 
and stable income stream to farmers going beyond cost incurred, income foregone’ as a key 
objective to the scheme.   
 
The Agriculture (Wales) Bill White Paper published in late 2020 stated ‘the Sustainable Farming 
Scheme should reward farmers appropriately for the production of outcomes rather than compensate 
for the cost of inputs’ and ‘We propose moving away from traditional agri-environment schemes 
which paid farmers on the basis of compensation for income foregone and additional costs incurred’. 
 
Welsh Government’s SFS Outline Proposals in 2022 stated ‘Payment rates will consider factors 
beyond a cost incurred, income foregone model and give farmers a fair and stable income’ and in 
developing a baseline payment, ‘we will need to take account of a range of factors including 
outcomes, the cost to farmers for undertaking actions plus any necessary incentive to encourage 
uptake’.   
 
It is interesting to observe that simultaneous to making the above commitments, Welsh Government 
apparently commissioned a partnership of organisations led by ADAS to estimate farm-level costs of 
Universal Action delivery21. It is surprising to us that, despite the reassurances above, this study was 
undertaken on costs incurred / income foregone basis. The study identifies that this is a dominant 
basis for setting agri-environment payment rates despite acknowledged weaknesses. We remind 
Welsh Government, that the scope of the SFS is established in law and extends well beyond 
designing a replacement for Glastir.   
 
NFU Cymru is shocked and dismayed that Welsh Government now expects farmers to deliver the 
onerous requirements of the Universal Action Layer on the basis of zero margin or incentive. 
 
Even within the constraints of the cost incurred / income foregone payment methodology, recognition 
of the need to provide an element of incentive is well established. EC RDR 1257/99, for example, 
allowed an additional 20% of costs plus income foregone as an incentive.  
 

 
20 Sustainable Farming Scheme Co-design final report (gov.wales) 
21 ADAS: Potential economic effects of the Sustainable Farming Scheme.  Phase 2 Report on estimating farm-level costs of 
Universal Action delivery (December 2022). 

Tudalen y pecyn 96

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-07/sustainable-farming-scheme-co-design-final-report.pdf


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 67 

National Assembly for Wales Guidelines on Management Agreement Payments (2001) on SSSIs 
states the basis for calculating agreement payments must be based on income foregone, any 
additional costs resulting from the commitment and the need to provide an incentive to encourage 
positive management measures to be adopted.  
 
Defra have also recognised the challenges that income foregone plus costs poses to farmers and, in 
2021, confirmed that this was not always the most effective way to reward farmers.   

 
Farmers the length and breadth of Wales have been aghast at Welsh Government’s about turn on 
this issue and it has contributed significantly to the high levels of anger and frustration that has 
accompanied this consultation.    
 
The economic position of farmers is set out earlier in this consultation response. This position and the 
role of the BPS in underpinning farm business viability, are matters that Welsh Government is fully 
cognisant of, as evidenced in earlier consultation responses and in annual Farm Business Income 
figures published by Welsh Government. That Welsh Government would wish to pursue a course of 
action that will leave a large proportion of farm businesses struggling for survival is inconceivable to 
us and entirely contradictory with the title of the consultation ‘Keeping Farmers Farming’.   
 
In this context, NFU Cymru categorically rejects Welsh Government’s proposal that SFS payments 
will be calculated on a cost incurred / income foregone basis. We are clear that farmers should be 
fairly rewarded for the environmental / public goods that they already deliver and will continue to 
deliver in the future. If Welsh Government wants to secure environmental delivery on Welsh farms, 
farmers cannot work for nothing and they need fair treatment by government. Payment rates need to 
be geared to provide meaningful income and incentive. 
 
We note that Welsh Government suggests it is considering how payment rates can include factors 
beyond costs incurred / income foregone recognising the social value provided by the outcomes 
being delivered but this will take time. Farmers have expressed the view that Welsh Government has 
had plenty of time to do this work already. The fact that this work hasn’t been prioritised 
demonstrates a very weak commitment from Welsh Government to provide fair reward to farmers in 
reality. 
 
NFU Cymru’s position is that the Universal Baseline Payment must go beyond costs incurred / 
income foregone, recognising the value to society of the actions being undertaken, including food 
production, by Welsh farmers and also incentivising the actions Welsh Government want undertaken 
on Welsh farms. 
 
NFU Cymru notes Welsh Government’s comments relating to capping and the suggestion that 
capping proposals would be consulted on through the stakeholder group in advance of the 
introduction of the scheme. NFU Cymru strongly believes all aspects of the scheme design should be 
subject of proper consultation and comprehensive modelling to understand the redistributive effects 
on individual farms businesses, as has been the case in past reforms of the CAP. Decisions relating 
to the final scheme design must be evidence-led. We identify that Welsh Government’s decision to 
apply capping, without consultation and modelling, within the Habitat Wales Scheme is severely 
impacting some farm businesses and represents a substandard and unevidenced approach to 
policymaking.   
 
Without prejudice to our stated position above and turning specifically to the cost incurred / income 
foregone for each of the four Universal Baseline Payment categories: 
 
With respect to the Universal – Maintenance of existing woodland category, firstly as highlighted 
earlier in this response, NFU Cymru strongly rejects Welsh Government’s assertion that it will be 
unable pay on SSSI land and we ask Welsh Government to look at this again. 

Tudalen y pecyn 97



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 68 

 
In terms of the Universal – Woodland Creation, we note that Welsh Government proposes to cover 
the costs of managing the area of newly established woodland and the income foregone with regard 
to the area of additional newly created woodland. Welsh Government states the payment may be 
payable for up to 12 years from planting. It has not escaped our attention that tree planting 
undertaken under the Woodland Creation Scheme guarantees support for 12 years and it is unclear 
why Welsh Government is expecting farmers participating in the Sustainable Farming Scheme to 
undertake tree planting on unequitable terms. 
 
With respect to the Universal – Habitat maintenance, we note Welsh Government proposes to cover 
the cost of managing existing semi-natural habitat and the costs (including income foregone) of 
creating and managing newly created temporary habitat. Again, our comments relating to Welsh 
Government’s proposal to exclude SSSI land have been made earlier in this response. We strongly 
reject Welsh Government proposal.   
 
Welsh Government also fails to consider what, in many circumstances, will be a significant 
devaluation of land values.  
 
In respect of the Universal Actions, NFU Cymru is clear that the aspects Welsh Government is 
prepared to consider for the payment is far from comprehensive as shown by the examples in the 
following table:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 98



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 69 
Universal - 
Actions 

Costs incurred and income 
foregone considered for 
the payment  

Cost incurred and income foregone not currently considered could 
include 

UA1 - 
Benchmarking 

Data gathering and reporting 
time for Key Performance 
Indicators 

Farmer time  
Gathering information including time with accountant / other advisers. 
Cleansing data 
Record input onto database. 
Programme and IT costs. 
Liaising with experts to discuss the data and findings. 
Benchmarking 

UA2 - 
Continuous 
Personal 
Development 

Time cost to complete 
mandatory learning 

Cost of training attendance fee 
Farmer time including cost of cover labour. Not all learning courses may 
achieve the required pass mark first time. 
Travel time and cost. 
IT and internet connection costs. 
Farming is a skilled occupation and should be reflected in the rate per hour 
allocated. 

UA3 - Soil Health 
Planning 

Farmer time to undertake 
actions 
 
Sample kit/postage costs 

Format and mode of reporting will be critical in working out the farmer time. 
Will have to arrange replacement labour if doing the work himself. 
Farmer will need a suitable augur and testing kit. 
Some will choose professional to do the sampling work and this has to be 
factored in it costs incurred. 
 
Lab fees can be significant per sample particularly where carbon is required to 
be measured.  
 
Digging soil trenches and counting earthworms significantly adds to the costs 
incurred and need recognition in the payment for this action 

UA4 - 
Multispecies 
Crop Cover 

Costs of establishing and 
managing an appropriate 
cover crop 

Establishment and termination. 
Machinery and labour costs, fertiliser for establishment, herbicide when crop is 
terminated. 
Alterations to the normal timing of field operations for subsequent land use in a 
rotation. 
Cropping sequency changes 
Obligation to have multispecies significantly increases the cost and may need 
more than one field pass. 
Value of the crop as feed or fodder likely to be minimal 

UA5 - Integrated 
Pest 
Management 

Planning and reporting time Time allocation for each of the following collect, record and report. Reading of 
detailed guidance material related to safe use and application of pesticides and 
recording in office and pesticide store. 
IPM assessment will involve external advice and further reading of detailed 
guidance material 

UA6 - Managing 
heavily modified 
peat 

Costs of not exposing peat to 
additional degradation or 
erosion 

Upfront capital works block grips and revegetating bare peat.  
Subsequent on-going management costs. 
Income foregone from displaced farming activities. Diversion of land from 
dairying or horticulture to extensive or no grazing (latter would also require 
scrub and invasive weed control). Reduced stocking on beef and sheep 
system. 
Fall in land value where drainage maintenance will not be allowed and 
incursion of rushes. 

UA9 -Designated 
Site 
Management 
Plans 

Farmer time for developing 
an appropriate management 
plan 

Time involved here should not be underestimated. Involves one or often 
several site visits detailed discussion with more than one NRW staff member 
involving multiple visits before coming to an agreed plan. Subsequent regular 
scrutiny of that plan 

UA10 - Ponds 
and scrapes 
 

Ongoing costs of 
maintenance of scrapes and 
ponds 
 
Costs of scrape creation 
 
Costs of pond restoration 

Costs of ponds and scrape creations and associated planning costs 
Pond / scrape maintenance cleaning inlets, debris, fallen trees, scrub 
clearance bank repair excess algal growth clearance. 
Feeder ditches maintenance 
Loss of Gross Margin as these must be created on improved grassland/arable 
fields. 
Field management costs will increase based on where they are sited. 
Liver fluke control cost 
Lamb losses 
Additional shepherding 
 

UA11- Hedgerow 
management 

Hedge management and 
small maintenance tasks 
e.g., gapping up 

This will be a significant cost to bring all traditional boundaries up to the 
specified standard by year 5. 
 
Extra cost for stockproof hedge/earth bank maintenance   

Tudalen y pecyn 99



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 70 

 
Overall NFU Cymru is clear that the payment methodology as currently proposed is unequal and 
discriminatory towards certain groups of farmers including tenant farmers, farmers with common land 
and farmers managing SSSI land.  
 
Proposals for the Universal Baseline Payment based on cost incurred / income foregone converted 
into an area based payment has the potential to discriminate against smaller farms where the costs 
of delivering 17 Universal Actions are likely to greatly exceed the area payment received. 
 
We are highly concerned that Welsh Government’s proposed payment methodology does not provide 
the replacement income stream to farmers that it has promised. We are clear that farmers will be 

(include all 
traditional 
boundaries) 

Extra cost for stockproof wall/ stone faced bank maintenance. 
 
Coppicing, hedge laying, hedge trimming, weed control gapping up hedges 
and walls, import of stones. 
 
Safeguarding of hedgerow trees during hedge maintenance – sapling cost, 
individual tree maintenance, additional cost of hedge trimming, tree care during 
spraying 
 
Buffer zone maintenance including reduction in stock carrying capacity. 

UA14 - Historic 
environment – 
maintenance and 
enhancement 

Routine maintenance and 
management costs 

Scrub clearing and repairing erosion. 
Temporary fencing when work is being done. 
Re-siting of feeders 
Rabbit control 
Loss of production in not being allowed to drain and subsoil. 
Reduced stocking loss of income 
Restrictions on stone gathering from sites which could be used for gateways 
etc elsewhere on the farm. 
Derelict buildings wall capping costs to prevent further deterioration- this is a 
significant cost. 

UA15 - Animal 
Health 
Improvement 
Cycle 

Farmer time to meet with 
their vet 
 
Cost of vet visits 
 
Reporting time (e.g. 
antibiotic use) 

Plan advice and implement which involves both the farmer and his vet and 
third parties and including lab fees and interpretation. Recording requirements 
are quite detailed and have to be factored in whether treatment involves one 
animal or a thousand animals often needing individual animal ID. 

UA16 - Good 
Animal Welfare 

Farmer time to complete 
proficiency training and 
complete mobility and 
lameness scoring 

Time and skill requirements for doing condition scoring and lameness and 
mobility scoring should not be underestimated. It must be done across the 
whole of the herd or flock with an additional split of potentially several different 
groups. Subsequent discussion with the vet needs to be factored in as is the 
cost of treatment management changes, culling or feeding that will be required 
following the action. 

UA17 - Good 
Farm Biosecurity 

Farmer time to meet with 
their vet 
 
Cost of vet visit 
 
Adherence to biosecurity 
plan (e.g., cleansing and 
disinfection, monitoring) 
 
Farmer time to review and 
revise biosecurity plan 

Costs incurred will vary enormously as to what capital spend must be incurred 
to meet UA. Wash stations what type and how many. Length of fencing to 
make farm perimeter stockproof. Cost to farmer of vet visits ongoing 
adherence cost disinfection clothing etc and a regular review of the plan. 
Significant differences depending on type and number of enterprises on the 
farm.  

Carbon 
Calculator 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Farmer time to complete Farmer time can be significant to complete. Data collection significant 
If Welsh Government decide that only a specified calculator is used this means 
starting from scratch for many. 
Calculators need expert advice during inputting data and subsequent 
interpretation of the data will be an incurred cost. 
 
Costs will be very different if calculator must be done every year or done in the 
first or last year of the agreement. This is not clear in the consultation. 

Tudalen y pecyn 100



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 71 

unable to participate in the scheme if economic sustainability is not put on an equal footing with the 
environmental outcomes Welsh Government wants farming to deliver.   
 
The payment methodology also takes no account of the value of the data provided by farmers to 
government. Asking farmers to pass over the ownership of this valuable data to government without 
paying for the data is unacceptable. Proposals are also almost entirely silent on the matter of capital 
grants to support the high investment costs of participating in the scheme particularly in the first year. 
It is not realistic to expect farmers to pay these costs without capital grant support across the relevant 
Universal Actions.   
 
Welsh Government’s proposal to review costs incurred and income foregone following consultation 
and routinely as part of the scheme development will provide cold comfort to farmers. A payment 
methodology based on this approach is wholly inadequate and cannot be supported.   
 

• Stability Payment  
 
NFU Cymru has long highlighted the need for future policy to be oriented around the three 
cornerstones of productivity and environment underpinned by measures to provide stability and 
address volatility. Farmers are subject to significant levels of income volatility driven by 
environmental, economic and political factors completely beyond their control. Recent events such as 
the global pandemic, the tragic war in Ukraine, economic instability, escalating costs and trade policy 
as well as extreme weather events have highlighted that volatility / instability is as much an issue 
today as it has ever been.   
 
The importance of the current mechanism for providing stability to farm businesses – the Basic 
Payment Scheme – is widely understood. Welsh Government, in its ‘Brexit and our Land’ 
consultation (2018) highlighted the significant role that CAP support plays in the financial viability of 
medium and large farms…. ‘forming the major component of farm business income’22. In December 
2023, the Minister for Rural Affairs, Lesley Griffiths MS prioritised maintaining the BPS ceiling at £238 
million for 2024 despite the significant pressures across Welsh Government budgets23 - a move that 
was very much welcomed by the industry. 
 
On this basis, NFU Cymru has continually emphasised the need for future policy to include a stability 
payment; we are clear that it is only from a position of economic stability that farmers can continue 
producing high quality, affordable food for consumers, deliver environmental outcomes for society 
and invest for the future.   
 
NFU Cymru is, therefore, extremely disappointed with Welsh Government’s derisory attempt at a 
Stability Payment within proposals which are wholly inadequate and not fit-for-purpose. Concerns are 
compounded by Welsh Government’s disregard of the need to provide an element of economic 
stability via the Universal Baseline Payment which is entirely absent within a cost incurred / income 
foregone payment structure. We are clear that to describe what Welsh Government currently 
proposes as a Stability Payment is highly misleading. It is anything but stable and provides no 
stability to farm businesses24 given that it is declining to zero within a very short period of time. This is 
not a stability payment, it is a transitional payment between two fundamentally different schemes.  
Even less stability is provided for many tenant farmers, farmers with common land and SSSI sites 
who face the prospect of much reduced or zero Universal Baseline Payment on part of their holdings.   
 
We highlight that the stability of thousands of farm businesses has already been impacted by the 
transition to the current system of direct support from the Single Payment Scheme to the BPS and 

 
22 Brexit and our land - securing the future of Welsh farming (gov.wales) 
23 Written Statement: Publication of Basic Payment Scheme (BPS) financial budget ceiling for 2024 and BPS 2023 balance 
payments (19 December 2023) | GOV.WALES 
24 Stability – a situation in which something is not likely to move or change (Cambridge Dictionary) 

Tudalen y pecyn 101

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2018-07/brexit-and-our-land-consultation-document_1.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/written-statement-publication-basic-payment-scheme-bps-financial-budget-ceiling-2024-and-bps-2023
https://www.gov.wales/written-statement-publication-basic-payment-scheme-bps-financial-budget-ceiling-2024-and-bps-2023


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 72 

bringing all entitlements to a flat rate by 2019; the Glastir ‘cliff edge’ compounded by the fact that 
inflation has significantly eroded the real terms value of what is, in effect, levels of support that were 
established over ten years ago. The resilience of many farm businesses has already been tested to 
the absolute limits.   
 
We question whether the ‘Stability Payment’, which it is proposed, will reflect last year’s BPS 
payment rate will be sufficient to induce farmers over to the SFS and Welsh Government seems to 
be ignoring the high costs, effort and administrative burden of delivering the Universal Actions.  
 
Our vision for transition was for an evolution from the BPS to the SFS with the stability payment 
(BPS) maintained but additional sustainability actions and indicators added onto the stability payment 
incrementally from 2025. 
 
Finally, we note that Welsh Government suggests that the proposed payment methodology provides 
flexibility to reflect future changing budget scenarios and priorities. We do not believe this statement 
aligns with the obligations on Welsh Ministers set out at Section 11 in the Agriculture (Wales) Act 
2023 and highlight that this provides absolutely no certainty to participating farmers. It is perverse 
that, at the same time, Welsh Government is expecting those same farmers to make a permanent 
commitment to land use change, limiting their ability and that of future generations, to make a living 
from the land in perpetuity. On this basis alone, we believe it is totally unrealistic for farmers to enter 
the scheme as currently proposed. 
 
Overall NFU Cymru’s position is that stability must mean stability. A long-term commitment to a 
stability payment within the SFS is needed that recognises the economic, environmental, social and 
cultural contribution that Welsh farming makes to society and to underpin the resilience of food 
production in Wales and the continued secure supply of high quality, safe and affordable food from 
Wales. 
 
Summary 
 
NFU Cymru has long been clear that, in order to meet our ambition to deliver sustainable growth of 
the food and farming sector, to further improve our environmental performance and the delivery of 
environmental outcomes for society alongside net zero, then a well-funded, multi-annual budget for 
Welsh farming must be secured. In terms of future funding, ‘not a penny less’ in line with Ministerial 
commitments means the value of Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 including the domestic co-financing obligation 
on Welsh Government together with the monies arising as a result of the Bew Review, circa £380 
million annually. Taking inflation into account this needs to increase to over £507 million. The Rural 
Affairs Budget is just 2% of the Welsh Government’s overall expenditure currently and we are clear 
that a budget is needed that matches the scale of ambition for Welsh farming with compelling 
arguments for the scheme to receive funding from other budget lines such as climate change. 
 
Welsh Government’s decision not to provide information on payment rates for the Universal Baseline 
Payment within the consultation has been the source of very significant frustration. Current proposals 
to base the Universal Baseline Payment on cost incurred / income foregone calculations are wholly 
inconsistent with Welsh Government’s stated position thus far and has left farmers aghast. That 
Welsh Government would wish to pursue a course of action that will leave a large proportion of 
farming businesses struggling for survival is inconceivable to us and entirely contradictory with the 
title of the consultation ‘Keeping Farmers Farming’. NFU Cymru categorically rejects this proposal 
and is clear that the Universal Baseline Payment must go beyond cost incurred / income foregone 
and provide meaningful income and incentive recognising the value to society of the actions being 
undertaken by Welsh farmers. A Welsh Government cross departmental group with key stakeholder 
involvement is also needed to consider how payment rates for the Universal Baseline Payment can 
properly recognise the social value of the outcomes being delivered that extends beyond 

Tudalen y pecyn 102



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 73 

environmental public goods. No decision on payment rates can be made until this work has been 
completed. 
 
NFU Cymru has also continually emphasised the need for future policy to include a stability 
mechanism and we are clear that Welsh Government’s derisory attempt at a stability payment within 
proposals are wholly inadequate and not fit for purpose. Concerns are compounded by Welsh 
Government’s disregard of the need to provide an element of economic stability via the Universal 
Baseline Payment which is entirely absent within a cost incurred / income foregone payment 
structure. We are clear that to describe what Welsh Government currently proposes as a ‘Stability 
Payment’ is highly misleading. It is anything but stable and provides no stability to farm businesses 
given that it is declining to zero within a very short period of time. Even less stability is provided for 
many tenant farmers, farmers with common land and SSSI sites who face the prospect of much 
reduced or zero Universal Baseline Payment on part of their holdings.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 103



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 74 

 

5. Transition Period 
 
Welsh Government proposes the Transition Period will commence in 2025 and end in 2029.   
 
NFU Cymru’s position has been and remains that the transition should not be attempted until all 
relevant aspects are ready to commence the transition process (including the development of policy, 
the application process and IT systems). We also believe the transition cannot start until there is 
confidence that new schemes provide the same level of stability to farm business, our rural 
communities and the supply chain as the BPS currently does.   
 
Based on current proposals and the economic analysis provided in Chapter 8 of the consultation, 
NFU Cymru does not have that confidence. We also question whether a transition which, in reality, is 
four years not five, provides sufficient time for farm businesses to adapt. In this context, NFU Cymru 
strongly believes that retaining flexibility over the start date, duration and flexibility to pause the 
transition would be prudent to safeguard jobs. 
 

• Optional Action Layer 
 
NFU Cymru has long recognised the need for the Sustainable Farming Scheme to include a higher 
tier of actions that farmers can opt to deliver over and above the Universal Action Layer.   
 
The Optional Actions, we expect, to be more complex and targeted than the Universal Action Layer 
and it is at this level that NFU Cymru believes that on-farm specialist advice may be needed. From 
past experience we would like to see contracts for delivery at the Optional Action Layer developed in 
partnership with the farmer and based on what is practically achievable on the ground.  NFU Cymru 
would also support a strong emphasis on measures that improve on-farm productivity including 
capital grant funding alongside support to deliver environmental outcomes.     
 
Whilst the delivery mechanism for the Optional Action Layer is unclear, we do have some concerns 
about the complexity of a model based on the current Rural Investment Schemes approach (plethora 
of different schemes, application windows and deadlines) which will further add to the administrative 
burden on farmers participating at the Universal Action Layer.    
 
NFU Cymru is concerned that based on the information provided proposals for the Optional Action 
Layer of the scheme have progressed little from earlier consultations and will require proper 
consultation when proposals are further developed.  
 

• Collaborative Action Layer 
 
Limited information is provided within the consultation on the Collaborative Action Layer of the 
scheme which Welsh Government say will support a range of activity including landscape scale 
action, innovation and knowledge transfer, co-operation and added value.   
 
Welsh Government has opted not to set out the proposed eligibility criteria, previously suggesting 
that just two farmers would be required to be part of a collaborative project supported under this 
measure.  Whilst NFU Cymru recognises the role of collaboration, we are clear that within the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme the focus should be on ensuring that action is farmer-led and 
pressures to design approaches more suited for eNGOs should be strongly resisted. The Sustainable 
Management Scheme, for example, proved largely inaccessible for farmers and projects funded via 
this approach and led by environmentalists were accompanied by high management / administration 
costs and comparatively lower levels of action on the ground and so did not represent good value for 
money in general.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 104



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 75 

Great care will also be needed to ensure that knowledge transfer and innovation activity does not 
duplicate or replicate the activities of other providers such as the levy bodies who receive funding 
from farmers and who have an industry development role as part of their remit.  
 
Similarly, whilst respecting that Welsh farming underpins a multi-billion pound food and drink sector 
in Wales, NFU Cymru believes that added value and supply chain opportunities are of such 
importance to the wider economy of Wales that investment in such projects to, for example, increase 
levels of local and regional processing should be prioritised in regional economic funding streams in 
line with a comprehensive farm to fork food strategy with ambitious targets for the sustainable growth 
of the food and farming sector. Rather than the SFS investing in the supply chain directly, we identify 
the most important objective of the policy from a supply chain perspective should be maintaining and 
enhancing levels of production on farm so that critical mass is maintained and the investment that 
Welsh Government has made in the supply chain previously is protected.   
 

• Rural Investment Schemes 
 
Ahead of the introduction of the full Optional and Collaborative Action Layers, Welsh Government 
proposes to continue to deliver a range of procured and demand-led agricultural and environmental 
schemes, subject to budget availability. We note the examples provided and we ask Welsh 
Government to provide the objective criteria by which schemes will be prioritised. With the falling 
away of comprehensive rural development programming, we identify that strategic planning, effective 
scrutiny and oversight is lacking. We are concerned that the recent budget cuts to the Rural Affairs 
Budget announced by Welsh Government in October and December appear to have impacted on the 
Rural Investment Schemes budget hardest. This does not engender confidence in government 
support for investment activities on farm.    
 
A number of examples, we suggest, are targeted less at farmers and more at other actors such as 
eNGOs. We are also confused at Welsh Government’s reference to the Animal Health and 
Improvement Cycle Pilot which we understand will involve a small number of vets (22) each working 
with three farms to test the deliverability and scalability ahead of the SFS introduction in 2025.   
 
Overall, we identify that Welsh Government appears to propose that the Optional Action and 
Collaborative Action Layers can be used as mechanisms to address the failings in design at the 
Universal Action Layer, for example, in respect of common land and SSSIs. This is totally 
unacceptable and, in reality, there is a lack of meaningful information within the consultation on 
timeframes, budgets and payment methodology to provide anything like the much-needed level of 
reassurance to farmers. On this basis, you cannot blame farmers in this situation from delaying the 
transition to SFS for as long as possible. Welsh Government’s suggestion to prioritise access to the 
Optional Action, Collaborative Action as well as the transitional schemes to those who have joined 
the SFS seems unfair and further disadvantages farmers who are already disadvantaged by scheme 
design. There is also a lack of clarity about how this proposal would see groups of farmers treated, 
for example, on common land some of whom may have transitioned to SFS and others may not.   
 
Summary 
 
NFU Cymru’s position is that stability must mean stability and a long-term commitment to a Stability 
Payment within the Sustainable Farming Scheme is needed. NFU Cymru is also clear that the 
transition to new schemes should not be attempted until all relevant aspects are ready to commence 
the transition process (including the development of policy, the application process and IT systems).  
The transition cannot start until there is confidence that the new scheme provides the same level of 
stability to farm businesses, our rural communities and the supply chain as the BPS currently does.   
 
NFU Cymru is concerned that based on the information provided proposals for the Optional Action 
and Collaborative Action Layers of the scheme have progressed little from earlier consultations and 

Tudalen y pecyn 105



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 76 

will require proper consultation when proposals are further developed. Welsh Government’s proposal 
to prioritise access to the Optional Action, Collaborative Action as well as the transitional schemes to 
those who have joined the SFS seems unfair and further disadvantages farmers who are already 
disadvantaged by scheme design. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 106



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 77 

 

6. Basic Payment Scheme 
 
The importance of the Basic Payment Scheme to the majority of farmers as a major component of 
farm business incomes is well known. This is particularly the case in Wales where smaller family 
farms tend to predominate and where around 80% of agricultural land is designated Less Favoured 
Area (LFA). The challenging climate and terrain limit the range of products from these areas and their 
remoteness means they are isolated from markets, with infrastructure and services logistically more 
difficult. 
 
The proposal is that the BPS will be phased out over the transition period to zero in 2029 to be 
replaced by the SFS which is to be the primary long-term mechanism of support for the agricultural 
industry in Wales. In reality, as we have highlighted earlier in this response, the payment 
methodology for the SFS as currently proposed is not a support mechanism and there is no 
commitment from Welsh Government to provide the long-term stability measure that is needed to 
replace the BPS. On this basis, NFU Cymru cannot support the proposed model of tapering which is 
too rapid and allows insufficient time for farm businesses to adjust.   
 
We also note that previously, in its response to co-design, Welsh Government made a commitment 
to test new approaches to make sure they work before removing existing support.   
 
In terms of BPS entitlements and proposals to restrict the transfer of BPS entitlements, we identify 
that, ahead of the rules being published later this year, more scenario planning would be beneficial to 
ensure that no-one is disadvantaged through no fault of their own.   
 
Summary 
 
The importance of the Basic Payment Scheme to the majority of farmers as a major component of 
farm business income is well known. On the basis of Welsh Government’s proposed payment 
methodology for the Sustainable Farming Scheme and diminishing stability payment, NFU Cymru 
cannot support the proposed model of tapering for the BPS which is too rapid and allows insufficient 
time for businesses to adjust.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 107



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 78 

 

7. Regulations 
 
NFU Cymru understands and accepts the need for sensible and proportionate regulations not only as 
a government tool for controlling, directing, or managing an activity, but also as a means to protect 
the environment, human and animal health, and consumers’ economic interests. Farming and food 
production intersect with many of these areas and therefore attracts a range of different regulations 
often from a range of different regulators.   
 
Good regulation promotes the fundamental value of an economic activity by setting enabling rules 
while applying appropriate controls on that activity so that the risk of harm, economic or otherwise, is 
minimised. While an absence of regulation might lead to a failure to control risky behaviour, it should 
also be noted poorly drafted or implemented regulation can lead to burdens on business that are 
disproportionate to the benefit derived.  
 
Such rules may restrict businesses from undertaking activities that are valuable to society, create 
perverse impacts, or fail to provide the protections intended. NFU Cymru wants to see a regulatory 
environment that encourages sustainable business growth and investment.  
 
Given the extent that regulation influences farm practice, it is not surprising that farmers have had 
their fair experience of bad regulation NFU Cymru has therefore long campaigned for reform. Calls 
for regulatory reform do not necessarily mean an opposition to regulation but rather a desire to see 
the details of design and implementation of regulation improved. Many potential issues that we come 
across are a result of poor design or implementation, rather than any inherent failure in the 
identification of an issue requiring a regulatory solution.  
 
Farmer confidence surveys undertaken by the union have repeatedly shown most farmers believe 
that regulation and legislation have a negative effect on their businesses. Poor regulation is 
characterised by approaches that have not engaged in advance with businesses to consider how 
regulation is best targeted or implemented. Often it is related to administrative burdens that are 
disproportionate to the desired outcome, regulation that damages productivity and regulation that 
often appears to unnecessarily tie up both the farmers and regulators’ time in what would otherwise 
be avoidable work.  
 
Whenever Welsh Government regulate, they need to consider any areas of regulatory duplication as 
well as overlap between regulators and their work, the coherence between different regulations, as 
well as the lack of information, misunderstanding and misinterpretation which often surrounds 
regulation. 
 
Having left the European Union there is of course now a scope for regulatory divergence between the 
UK home nations which did not exist when we were part of the EU. NFU Cymru is of the view any 
race to the bottom in terms of standards of animal and human health and protection of the 
environment amongst the home nations should be resisted. That does not however mean that the 
desirable corollary to this is to increase the regulatory baseline, and we would suggest that Welsh 
Ministers should be very careful about any ratcheting up of standards in Wales, particularly if the 
regulatory baseline in the other home nations is standing still or indeed is falling. To demand higher 
standards of Welsh farmers than those standards which might be operative in other parts of the UK 
will only serve to place Wales’ farmers under a competitive disadvantage, particularly when we 
consider the impact of the UK Internal Market Act 2020. 
 
As a Union we opposed the approach of the Retained EU Law Act 2023 on the basis that we 
considered what was set out in the Act to be haphazard, unpredictable, and risky. We do though 
recognise that our departure from the EU has opened up some possibilities in terms of regulatory 
reform, and we believe that there is now an opportunity for Welsh Government, working with 

Tudalen y pecyn 108



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 79 

stakeholders such as NFU Cymru to look at regulatory requirements which are redundant (and can 
be done away with), which may overlap or be duplicated between bodies or which can be reformed 
and simplified.    
 
NFU Cymru believes that rules should be designed in such a way that reflects how farm businesses 
operate in practice. Failure to do so can result in issues with compliance or unnecessary artificial 
changes to farm activity. We therefore welcome the intention stated in the second paragraph of 
Chapter 7 which speaks of support schemes which are more responsive, adaptable, and flexible to 
meet the needs of our Welsh agricultural industry. 
 
As a union, NFU Cymru is opposed to the publication of information about support. We would like to 
take this opportunity to re-state our position that if Welsh Government is minded to publish 
information about levels of support paid, then we would ask that a de minimis threshold of £1250 is 
introduced, with recipients of sums below this threshold published in an anonymised format only.   
 
NFU Cymru accepts and understands that where public money is spent there should be mechanisms 
to ensure that it is spent correctly and that on occasion this will involve the use of appropriate checks.   
Checks should not be conducted in an insensitive or heavy-handed manner and we would also add 
that any check and penalties applied should be proportionate.  
 
We note and understand that the content of secondary legislation is not being consulted upon as part 
of this consultation. We would however ask that when it comes to the exercise of regulation making 
powers under Sections 10 and 12, and indeed the exercise of any regulation making power under the 
Agriculture (Wales) Act, that the Welsh Government consult fully with stakeholders on proposed 
regulations before any draft is laid before the Senedd. 
 
NFU Cymru would also make the point that where data is collected in supporting of monitoring the 
impacts of a scheme, that the strongest possible safeguards are put in place around the collection, 
processing, retention, and handling of such data. Further consideration must be given in relation to 
how data will be used, the privacy of the data considering GDPR and FOI legislation, and the value of 
the data being provided by farmers in relation to government needing this data to meet its statutory 
obligations. 
 
It is highly concerning that Welsh Government’s approach to secondary legislation and scheme rules 
gives wide-ranging powers to Welsh Government to unilaterally and fundamentally alter scheme 
requirements and rules. For example, the tree cover rule could be increased in the future. 
 
NFU Cymru reiterate the need for the establishment of an Independent Review Group to consider the 
cumulative burden of regulations and policies on Welsh Farming Business also taking into 
consideration the wider economic and political context.  
 
Summary 
 
Farmer confidence surveys undertaken by the union have repeatedly shown most farmers believe 
that regulation and legislation have a negative effect on their businesses. NFU Cymru wants to see a 
regulatory environment that encourages sustainable business growth and investment and believes 
rules should be designed in such a way that reflects how farm businesses operate in practice.   
 
We note and understand that the content of secondary legislation is not being consulted upon as part 
of this consultation. It is highly concerning to us that Welsh Government’s proposed approach to 
secondary legislation and scheme rules gives wide-ranging powers to Welsh Government to 
unilaterally alter scheme requirements and rules.   
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 109



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 80 

8. Evidence 
 
Good and effective policy making relies on strong and robust evidence and analysis to inform and 
underpin it. Our reflections on the evidence and analysis undertaken thus far is that it focusses, in the 
main, on the environmental outcomes delivered via the scheme. It reflects neither the SLM objectives 
of the Agriculture (Wales) Act or the well-being goals of the Well-Being of Future Generations Act. 
There is need for the evidence and analysis to provide equal recognition and align with the SLM 
outcomes including food production, the role of farming in helping rural communities to thrive, the 
resilience of agricultural businesses, sustaining the Welsh language and landscape.   
 
Other countries know and appreciate the social value of a stable supply of food, that is why there 
continues to be a robust Common Agricultural Policy in the EU and we identify that a Welsh 
Government cross departmental group with key stakeholder involvement is needed to consider how 
payment rates for the Universal Baseline Payment can properly recognise the social value of the 
outcomes being delivered that extends beyond environmental public goods. 
 
NFU Cymru would highlight that in the most recent CAP Reform policy development period (2011-
2015 CAP Reform period) just such a group was established involving key stakeholders alongside 
Welsh Government policy officials from a range of departments. This group was responsible for 
commissioning work and analysing and refining all papers produced against a set of clear objectives 
that had been agreed by the group. 
 
The group undertook extensive work modelling a wide range of different scenarios with the aim of 
seeking to minimise disruption for Welsh agriculture against a backdrop of significant uncertainty. 
Stakeholders and government found great value in this group and the outputs achieved. This is in 
stark contrast to our involvement in the evidence supporting this consultation paper which has 
involved one meeting by Welsh Government officials at which the completed evidence was presented 
to stakeholders.  
 
There is still an opportunity to address this issue and NFU Cymru is committed to providing the 
resource necessary to support government if such a group were to be established. 
 
A key and immediate piece of work would be to commission a socio-economic assessment to: 
 

• Assess the impact on Welsh farming, rural communities and the wider supply chain of the 
withdrawal of the BPS. 

• Assess the impact of the current SFS proposals on Welsh farming, rural communities and the 
supply chain.  

 
We are clear that no decisions on next steps should be undertaken until the economic assessment 
has been completed. 
 
For the longer term we would ask that Welsh Government commit to the establishment of a food, 
farming, rural businesses and supply chain impact assessment and modelling programme that 
provides the same level of detail and advice that the ERAMMP model provides for the environment. 
 
NFU Cymru recognises and values the work undertaken by ERAMMP, we have firsthand experience 
of this based on our involvement in the Brexit Scenarios work that modelled changes in land use in a 
range of post Brexit trade scenarios. It is worrying that no similar level of modelling or analysis has 
been undertaken to model the economic, social and cultural impact of policy interventions by 
government in relation to the SFS.  
 
The Welsh Government commissioned agricultural economic modelling research from an ADAS-led 
consortium paints a truly shocking scenario for Welsh Agriculture. Whilst we respect that Welsh 

Tudalen y pecyn 110



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 81 

Government are at pains to point out that this work was undertaken on an earlier version of the 
proposals and whilst we fully respect that any modelling and impact assessment must make a 
number of assumptions, nevertheless, it is hard to fathom how Welsh Government has not taken 
greater consideration of this work in advance of publishing what they term the final consultation on 
this issue. The failure to address this matter gives the impression that Welsh Government are at best 
prepared to accept this scenario becoming a reality or at worst, complicit in seeing this as a scenario 
that meets their policy aspirations.    
 
Welsh Government have told us that the modelling undertaken assumed stock exclusion / reduction 
limits present in earlier versions of the proposals that are not now in the current proposals. Whilst that 
may be the case, it would be our opinion that the outcomes being sought by Welsh Government have 
not changed and therefore whilst the current consultation may not explicitly request stock exclusion / 
reduction the reality is that to achieve the outcomes required this will still be the case. 
 
We note that in the First Minister / Minister statement dated 27 February 2024 makes reference to an 
updated economic analysis being undertaken. Without prejudice to our comments above in relation to 
the need for a more comprehensive economic analysis we question how different the results will be if 
the modelling is repeated on the current proposals.   
 
It is clear from reading the evidence published in relation to the economic effects of the Sustainable 
Farming Scheme that Welsh Government continue to view the scheme through the lens of an agri- 
environment scheme rather than as a replacement for all Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 schemes of the CAP. 
This is a critical weakness. 
 
By not including fixed costs / capital costs in the costs incurred / income foregone methodology a 
significant element of a farming business’ costs in complying / undertaking actions within the SFS are 
excluded. It is also clear that the work undertaken shows the weakness of what Welsh Government 
term a ‘Universal Action’ when many of the actions are not ‘universal’ to all. An example of this being 
the use of the average cost of complying with UA4 (Multispecies Cover crop) across all farm types 
being unfair on arable growers who will bear the full costs of undertaking such a requirement. Similar 
examples exist for many other Universal Actions reiterating our call for the Universal Actions to be 
truly ‘universal’.  
 
Our position with regards to Welsh Government’s decision to base the Universal Baseline Payment 
solely on a costs incurred / income foregone methodology are made in our comments in relation to 
Chapter 6 of the consultation and will not be repeated here. Save to say that we believe Welsh 
Government have ample opportunity to consider innovative ways to go beyond costs incurred / 
income foregone. For example, the UK allocation under the WTO Agreement on Agriculture (AoA) for 
‘Amber Box’ support provides ample headroom for Welsh Government to consider making use of this 
support mechanism. ‘Amber Box’ support comes under the WTO Aggregate Measure of Support 
(AMS). The UK has a limit of some €6 billion under the AMS deriving from the allocation we received 
on our departure from the EU. The levels of funding we would require in Wales to provide a genuine 
incentive / margin for the Universal Baseline Payment, even if use of the Amber Box was required, 
would be relatively insignificant set against the total headroom that the UK has secured. 
 
Throughout the consultation period NFU Cymru has engaged closely with supply chain partners.  
Many attended our roadshows, a number have invited us for further discussions on the proposals 
and on the 27 February nearly 100 different supply chain organisations attended a meeting hosted by 
NFU Cymru to discuss the impact of the current proposals beyond the farm gate. The organisations 
we have met range from local agricultural contractors to machinery dealers and vet practices up to 
the major milk and meat processors, food service companies, banks, and retailers. We have met with 
representatives of a significant proportion of the £8.1 billion food and drink supply chain, who employ 
233,500 people in addition to those businesses who rely on the £1.4 billion annually that farmers 
spend on key inputs and services.  

Tudalen y pecyn 111



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 82 

 
There is widespread concern at the impact the proposed SFS could have on the entire supply chain, 
with Welsh Government’s own impact assessment predicting a £200 million hit to farm income and 
around 11% less livestock in Wales, every business could see the negative consequences this could 
potentially have for their businesses. We must have a policy which protects jobs on farm and within 
the wider supply chain.  
 
The future prosperity of the agri-food supply chain is not just an issue for rural Wales, the sector has 
successful thriving businesses the length and breadth of Wales, located in and employing people 
from rural and urban Wales. The consequences of a Sustainable Farming Scheme that impacts on 
Welsh farming’s productive capacity will likely have a similar impact on the whole agri food supply 
chain.     
 
Welsh dairy production is worth almost £850 million to the Welsh economy and accounts for almost 
half (47%) of the total output of Welsh agricultural production. Around 50% of milk produced in Wales 
is processed in Wales, the sector supports 1,250 jobs in the wider dairy manufacturing sector. If the 
modelling undertaken became a reality on Welsh farms, then it could see Wales producing over 368 
million litres less milk. To put this into context, that is equivalent to taking over 648 million pints of 
milk off the shelves around the world. 
 
PGI Welsh Lamb and Beef exports are worth around £270 million to the economy of Wales. We have 
a global reputation for quality, and we have an ambition to grow both volume and value of high 
quality, climate-friendly PGI Welsh Lamb and Beef in both current and new export markets across the 
globe. Welsh Government’s own economic appraisals put the value of the Welsh meat and meat 
products sector at £1.4billion, with 64 business units located across Wales and 6,000 employed in 
these units. Many of these plants rely on a critical mass of produce so cannot afford to see a 
reduction in stock numbers from farms in Wales. 

Specific modelling is needed to understand the impact of proposals on the supply chain.  
 
Analysis presented on the social value of outcomes is flawed in that it considers only the values 
associated with environmental outcomes delivered via the scheme. It reflects neither the SLM 
objectives of the Agriculture (Wales) Act or the well-being goals of Well-Being of Future Generations 
Act. In determining social value, Welsh Government will also require analysis on wider social values 
to align comprehensively with the SLM outcomes including food production, the role of farming in 
helping rural communities to thrive, the resilience of agricultural businesses, sustaining the Welsh 
language and landscape.  
 
Welsh Government state that it is still their intention to consider the social value in their payment 
methodology, but they say it will take time to get right. If that is the case, then the SFS should be 
paused until such time as it is possible to get this right. Providing equal access and reward with no 
postcode lottery for the benefits to society farmers are undertaking through their participation in the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme alongside a long-term stability payment to recognise the economic, 
environmental, social and cultural contribution that Welsh farming makes to society and the resilience 
of food production in Wales are so important that the transition to the SFS cannot begin until these 
matters have been resolved.   
 
Summary 
 
Good and effective policymaking relies on strong and robust evidence and analysis to inform and 
underpin it. Our reflections on the evidence and analysis undertaken thus far is that it focusses, in the 
main, on the environmental outcomes delivered via the scheme. There is need for the evidence and 
analysis to provide equal recognition and align with the SLM outcomes including food production, the 
role of farming in helping rural communities to thrive, the resilience of agricultural businesses, 
sustaining the Welsh language and landscape.   

Tudalen y pecyn 112



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 83 

 
A policy is needed that protects jobs in farming and the supply chain and Welsh Government must 
commission socio-economic assessments to understand the impact on Welsh farming, rural 
communities and the wider supply chain of the withdrawal of the BPS together with the impact of SFS 
proposals. NFU Cymru is clear that no decisions on next steps can be undertaken until this economic 
assessment has been completed and considered in regular SFS meetings with the Minister and NFU 
Cymru leaders.    
 
For the longer term, NFU Cymru would ask that Welsh Government commit to the establishment of a 
food, farming, rural business and supply chain impact assessment and modelling programme that 
provides the same level of detail and advice that the ERAMMP model provides for the environment.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 113



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 84 

9. Data Processing and Reporting  
 
Part 3, Chapter 1 of the Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023 provides Welsh Ministers with powers to enable 
data to be collected from the agricultural sector. We note that Welsh Government indicates that it 
may share information collected with a range of government agencies and data will be managed and 
used by Welsh Government in accordance with legal obligations including the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000, Data Protection legislation and Environmental Information Regulations 2004.  
NFU Cymru is disappointed that compliance with the relevant data protection legislation was not set 
out explicitly within the provisions of the Act.   
 
Farmers have a long track record of supplying a range of data as part of the requirements of 
receiving support under various CAP schemes such as the Basic Payment Scheme and Glastir and 
in return for providing this information (amongst other outcomes) the farmer has received payment. 
 
In the development of both the Agriculture (Wales) Act and the Sustainable Farming Scheme, NFU 
Cymru has emphasised that any data collection should only be if it is absolutely necessary and 
proportionate to the purposes for which the data is required. Thought should be given to the burden 
placed on farm businesses to provide the data.   
 
With the publication of Welsh Government’s consultation, the extent of the data provision 
requirements for SFS participants has become much clearer. The requirements of a number of the 
Universal Actions including UA1, UA3, UA5 and UA16 mean that both the volume and level of detail 
are an order of magnitude greater than existing scheme requirements.  Many farmers feel this is 
highly intrusive. The purpose for the data collection in many instances has been poorly explained and 
there is significant opposition to pass ownership of valuable data from farmers to government. Welsh 
Government must be clear with whom data collected will be shared and why it needs to be collected.   
 
Whilst we accept, in principle, that data collected may be considered essential for compliance with 
the scheme and other data may be requested by government to support farm businesses to improve 
their performance, NFU Cymru remains absolutely clear that where data provided to Welsh 
Government has value, for example, in evidencing national and international reporting obligations, 
then this data should have a value attached to it and be included within the Universal Baseline 
Payment. Based on the information provided on the payment methodology in Chapter 4 this does not 
appear to be the case.   
 
NFU Cymru is also extremely concerned that, once provided to Welsh Government, private 
information about farm businesses may be subject to information requests by individuals and 
campaigning groups with an anti-farming agenda. The administrative burden associated with a 
greater volume of subject access requests in future also merits consideration. Welsh Government 
has also not set out its proposals for data retention in relation to the scheme. Overall, much closer 
analysis of the data requirements associated with the scheme is needed with this in mind.  
 
Welsh Government will also be aware of past data breaches that have exposed farming families to 
an unacceptable burden of anxiety and risk. It is also possible that data provision associated with the 
scheme could undermine the market, for example, where processors or retailers currently support 
and reward producers for the provision of carbon assessment related data.   
                                                     
NFU Cymru also believes that the administrative burden on farm businesses associated with the 
Universal Action Layer are excessive and should be streamlined. Welsh Government needs to 
remember that it is also proposing that existing cross compliance, and with it a significant record 
keeping burden, are moved across to scheme rules for the scheme.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 114



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 85 

Proposals for data submission to RPW online and the Welsh Government online portal described 
under Universal Action 1 adds an additional layer of complexity. A strategy for the digitally excluded 
is also needed. 
 

• Reporting, monitoring and evaluation 
 
In terms of information gathered to determine how well the scheme is working from an operational 
perspective, making adjustments where necessary etc, NFU Cymru identifies it is important that 
Welsh Government embeds this level of flexibility into the scheme design so lessons can be learned.   
 
NFU Cymru would suggest the continuation of the RPW stakeholder group which has been 
invaluable in supporting the delivery of CAP schemes. In addition to the monitoring of information 
provided by scheme participants, Welsh Government should also collect basic data relating to 
monitoring, breaches, enforcement, appeals etc recognising that breaches, rather than reflecting on 
the farmer can be reflective of poor scheme design. We also strongly believe that external scrutiny in 
an advisory capacity is needed that is able to support delivery given that Senedd scrutiny will be 
largely retrospective. 
 
Summary 
 
The requirements of a number of the Universal Actions including UA1, UA3, UA5 and UA16 
mean that both the volume and level of detail are an order of magnitude greater than existing 
scheme requirements. Many farmers feel this is highly intrusive. The purpose for the data 
collection in many instances has been poorly explained and there is significant opposition to pass 
ownership of valuable data from farmers to government.  
 
In the development of both the Agriculture (Wales) Act and the Sustainable Farming Scheme, 
NFU Cymru has emphasised that data collected by Welsh Government is absolutely necessary 
and proportionate to the purposes for which the data is required. Further consideration must be 
given in relation to how the data will be used, the privacy of the data considering GDPR and 
Freedom of Information legislation, and the value of the data being provided by farmers in 
relation to Government needing this data to meet its statutory obligations. 
 
In terms of information gathered to determine how well the scheme is working from an operational 
perspective, it is important that Welsh Government embeds this level of flexibility into the scheme 
design so lessons can be learned.  External scrutiny in an advisory capacity is needed that is able to 
support delivery given that Senedd scrutiny will be largely retrospective.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 115



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 86 

 

10 . Effects on the Welsh language 
 
The Well-Being of Future Generations Act places a duty on public bodies to work to enhance 
economic, environmental, social and cultural well-being in Wales. This includes working towards 
seven key well-being goals which includes ‘A Wales of vibrant culture and a thriving Welsh 
language’. The fourth objective of the Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023 establishes the objective of 
‘conserve and enhance the countryside and cultural resources and promote public access to and 
engagement with them, and to sustain the Welsh language and promote and facilitate its use’.  
Therefore, culture and heritage, including the Welsh language, are considered as a key aspect of the 
future of farming in Wales, alongside the objectives relating to food production, climate change, and 
ecosystem resilience. 
 
The Welsh Government Strategy ‘Cymraeg 2050 - A million Welsh speakers’ – a strategy document 
for the promotion and facilitation of the use of the Welsh language - identifies the Welsh language as 
‘one of the treasures of Wales’ and establishes a vision for 2050 of a Welsh language that is thriving, 
where the number of Welsh speakers has reached a million and where there is recognition by all of 
its contribution to the culture, society and economy of Wales.  
 
In this context we would refer to evidence that recognises the role of Welsh farmers as key promoters 
and protectors of our culture, heritage and the Welsh language. The Welsh Government Agriculture 
in Wales document from 2019 provides a summary of the number of Welsh speakers based on 2011 
census results. Overall, 43% of workers in Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries speak Welsh 
compared to an average of 17% across all workers in Wales. This figure is the highest percentage of 
any sector. Four of the top six counties in terms of the proportion of Welsh speakers are also four of 
the top six counties in terms of the population employed in Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries 
(Gwynedd, Anglesey, Ceredigion, Carmarthenshire).  
 
Farming Connect’s ‘Iaith y Pridd’ - a project funded via Welsh Government’s Rural Development 
Programme 2014-2020 - concluded that the relationship between the various factors – both positive 
and threatening – which face the agricultural industry, rural Wales and the Welsh language, overlap 
to such an extent that there is no point, nor is it possible, to separate one from the other – in 
protecting and expanding an individual factor, the other will also benefit, but by threatening an 
individual factor, they will all lose out.  
 
Overall, NFU Cymru would highlight the evidence is unambiguous in highlighting the role of farming 
within our communities in terms of the preservation of the Welsh language. It is our strong view that a 
thriving Welsh language in rural areas is underpinned by thriving Welsh farms now and in the future; 
proposals or policies that weaken family farms and the farming sector will ultimately weaken our 
Welsh language and what defines us as a people and a nation.  
 
In this context it is important to recognise there are no Universal Actions in the SFS relating to the 
Welsh language. Welsh Government’s modelling demonstrates how the economic sustainability of 
farm businesses is undermined by SFS proposals as they currently stand with the direct loss of 11% 
on farm labour. NFU Cymru is clear that there is insufficient emphasis on supporting the continuation 
of farming through the scheme and this undermines the ability of rural communities to thrive and 
safeguard the use of the Welsh language for current and future generations.    
 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 116

https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/sites/farmingconnect/files/documents/Iaith%20y%20Pridd%20report.pdf


NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 87 

 
Annex 1 - The Contribution of Agriculture to the Well-Being of Wales 
 
The Welsh Government Well-Being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 is designed to improve the social, 
economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. The Act establishes seven goals that all public 
bodies, including Welsh Ministers, must work to achieve. The contribution that farming makes to achievement 
of all seven goals is unparalleled by any other industry, as highlighted in the following below: 

Well Being of Future 
Generations Act:  
 
Well-being Goals 

NFU Cymru: Agriculture is the Answer 

A prosperous Wales • 50,400 employed full or part time in farming in Wales 

• £2.1billion Gross Output 

• Farming underpins a food supply chain worth over £8.1billion 

• Over 233,500 people in Wales are employed in the agri-food 
sectors –Wales’s biggest employer 

• The Welsh countryside managed by farmers provides the 
backdrop for the tourism industry worth over £2.8billion  

• The Welsh agricultural industry is a key generator of wealth 
and employment for the people of Wales 

A resilient Wales • Farmers care for 81% of total land area of Wales – that’s over 
1.84m hectares 

• Farmers care for over 90% of the land area of Wales  

• 600,000 ha of environmentally designated areas 

• Farming supports a diverse range of species, habitats and 
ecosystems 

• Farmers provide a range of ecosystem services including 
carbon sequestration and management, water quality and water 
quantity management for flood alleviation  

• Nearly 30% of agricultural land in Wales is tenanted 

• 106,000km of hedgerows and dry stone walls across Wales 

• Wales woodland and forestry cover extends to 306,000 hectares 

• Low carbon, local energy installations have the potential to meet 
57% of Wales’s electricity consumption and the evidence shows 
a large proportion of projects are located within Wales’s rural 
local authorities  

• GHG emissions from agriculture have declined by 20% since 
1990 and further decreases are being achieved through 
production efficiency measures 

• Welsh farmers play a key role maintaining and enhancing 
our natural environment and supporting the provision of a 
full range of ecosystem services 

A healthier Wales • Welsh agriculture is a key provider of safe, nutritious, high 
quality Welsh food which plays a fundamental contribution in 
supporting the physical and mental well-being of the people of 
Wales 

• Welsh farmers are known to operate to some of the highest 
standards of welfare and production in the whole world 

• Welsh farming also delivers a significant proportion of Wales’s 
access provision which includes 16000 miles of footpaths, 3000 
miles bridleways, 1200 miles of cycle network, and 460,000 ha 
of open access land 

• Welsh farming makes a key contribution to the physical and 
mental well-being of the people of Wales 

Tudalen y pecyn 117



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 88 

  
A more equal Wales • Rural Wales is home to 33% of the Welsh population. 

• The vitality and potential of rural areas is closely linked to the 
presence of a competitive and dynamic farming sector.  The 
NFU Cymru ‘Why farming Matters to the Welsh Economy’ 
shows that each family farm is typically economically linked to 
some 40-80 other businesses in the region 

• Through direct and indirect employment in rural 
communities, Welsh farming underpins the rural economy 
and contributes to a more equal Wales 

A Wales of cohesive 
communities 

• Farming in Wales is predominantly made up of small family 
farms with the average size of 48 hectares. 

• Local communities in rural Wales are heavily dependent on 
agriculture for financial and social prosperity.      

• Leadership and voluntary roles in rural communities 

• Welsh farmers make a key contribution towards the 
provision of attractive, viable, safe communities in rural 
areas 

A Wales of vibrant culture 
and thriving Welsh language 

• Agriculture has the highest proportion of Welsh speakers of any 
sector. 

• 43% of workers in Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries speak 
Welsh compared to an average of 17% across all workers in 
Wales. 

• Farming is the bedrock of rural communities across Wales which 
have been shaped by farming activity spanning hundreds of 
years.  Farmers continue to maintain these traditions, preserving 
rural culture and sense of place   

• Welsh farmers are key promoters and protectors of our 
culture, heritage and the Welsh language 

A globally responsible 
Wales 

• Current levels of self-sufficiency at a UK level are at 60%  

• Future challenges to our global food production system include 
climate change, a growing UK and global population, water 
scarcity.  Given its climate and rainfall, Wales is predicted to be 
an area of favoured production in the future 

• Welsh farmers have a key role to play feeding the people of 
Wales and in contributing to global food security now and 
in the future.   

 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 118



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 89 

Annex 2 – Industry proposals for Low Carbon Farming Framework 
 
Policy context  
 
In April 2019, Welsh Government declared a ‘climate emergency’ signalling greater ambition for climate 
action in Wales. For agriculture1 , Welsh Government’s second Carbon Budget (2021-2025) identifies 
that this will be a period of transition as a future domestic agricultural policy outside the EU is developed 
and implemented.  
 
In the coming months, Welsh Government is expected to bring forward the Agriculture (Wales) Bill to 
the Senedd. This will establish the primary legislation for future agricultural policy and support. Welsh 
Government identifies the Agriculture Bill will be fundamental to delivering the long terms aims of 
agricultural reform and the ‘climate and nature emergencies’ over the next 15-20 years.  
 
Sustainable Land Management has been put forward by Welsh Government as the overarching 
principle for future agricultural policy delivered through the proposed Sustainable Farming Scheme 
(SFS). Key outcomes for the SFS include reduced GHG emissions and increased carbon storage, 
aligning with the farming industry’s ambition for net zero agriculture by 2040.  
 
The timeline for the period of transition was set out by the Minister for Rural Affairs in September 2021. 
In summary, the Basic Payment Scheme (BPS) is expected to continue in 2022 and 2023 with an 
indicative budget allocation of £238m in 2024-25 included in the draft Welsh budget.  
 
Extensions to Glastir Advanced, Commons and Organics will be offered to contract holders for 2022 
and 2023 in line with Rural Development Programme (RDP) 2014-2020 N+3 rules. Other RDP funded 
projects aimed at supporting the transformation of the sector including the Red Meat Development 
Programme, the Dairy Improvement Programme, the Sustainable Production Grant, Farm Business 
Grant and Farming Connect will also end in 2023.  
 
The Sustainable Farming Scheme is not expected to start until 2025.  
 
Through Carbon Budget 2, Welsh Government has committed to a range of pilots and interventions 
supporting the transition to the SFS to encourage the uptake of low carbon farming practices quickly 
and at scale.  
 
The recent draft Welsh Budget includes indicative allocations of £6.8m in 2022-23, £79m in 2023-24 
and £118m in 2024-25 for the Rural Economy and Sustainability Programme (the successor RDP) 
providing a potential funding mechanism. 1 14% of all Welsh Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions in 
2019  
 
Net Zero Agriculture  
 
Welsh farming is already a world leader in sustainable food production; through climate-friendly food 
production, the trees, hedges, grassland and soils that store carbon on Welsh farms together with on-
farm energy generation, agriculture in Wales plays a key role in tackling climate change and is uniquely 
placed to be integral to the solution whilst continuing to make a positive contribution to global food 
security and the rural economy.  
 
It is recognised that industry efforts to combat climate change need to go further and faster and this 
requires a focus in the three key areas of:  
 
• Improving farming’s productive efficiency  
• Enhancing land use to capture more carbon  
• Boosting renewable energy and the bioeconomy  

Tudalen y pecyn 119



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 90 

 
There are no ‘silver bullet’ solutions to tackling climate change and a long-term commitment to a range 
of policy measures supporting the transition to net zero agriculture will be needed.  
 
It is also recognised that every farm is unique and is starting the journey from a different place. For 
individual farmers determining the starting point or baseline is, in itself, a difficult process given the 
complexity and lack of standardisation of the carbon audit tools available on the market. This limits 
confidence in the results and hinders the on-farm action needed to make progress. Improved data 
capture is now urgently needed so farmers are able to better understand their own farm carbon balance 
as well as the impact of changes in farming practice and uptake of techniques to reduce GHG 
emissions.  
 
The Low Carbon Farming Framework  
 
In line with Welsh Government policy and the farming industry’s commitment to maximising the 
contribution of agriculture to a net zero economy, this paper puts forward proposals for a Low Carbon 
Farming Framework funded via the Rural Economy and Sustainability Programme. This industry-led, 
national pilot for the period 2023-2025 meets Welsh Government’s key policy objective of promoting 
the uptake of low carbon farming practices quickly and at scale; providing clear line of sight to the 
proposed future Sustainable Farming Scheme.  
 
Through the Low Carbon Farming Framework, Welsh farmers will be supported to understand their 
own farm carbon balance. This would be achieved by developing the RPW online capability and 
building on the mapping and cropping data already supplied annually. Data provision is central to 
facilitating an iterative process of measurement, action and review so that progress towards net zero 
can be determined at farm, sectoral and Wales level. The Low Carbon Farming Framework incentivises 
change working across the key areas of improving farming’s productive efficiency, evidencing and 
potentially capturing more carbon and boosting renewable energy; also linking to other policies and 
initiatives (for example, the proposed Welsh Government Woodland Creation Scheme).  
 
The proposal serves as a pan-Wales national scale ‘proof of concept’, providing a model that can be 
replicated across a wider suite of public goods supported in the future Sustainable Farming Scheme.  
 
Low Carbon Farming Framework  
 
The underlying concept is based on supporting farmers through an iterative process of measurement, 
action and review.  
 
The components of the Low Carbon Farming Framework combine to form a clear pathway by which 
the baseline is established, areas of improvement are identified and progress is measured on an annual 
basis with farmers supported to take action that is targeted to their business need; This outcome 
focussed delivery will encourage an accelerated rate of change at farm and industry level when 
compared to existing interventions:  
 
Carbon data capture mechanism – A carbon data capture mechanism delivered by building the 
capability of the existing RPW online portal will capture the farm level data required to determine a 
basic but standardised and ‘benchmarkable’ farm carbon balance that takes into account carbon 
sources and sinks. This will provide a carbon baseline for individual farm businesses from which action 
can be taken; also enabling the carbon position for ‘Welsh farming plc’ to be determined and year on 
year progress to be measured. 
 
Incentivised data provision - The provision of data to the carbon data capture mechanism, 
comprising mapping and relevant farm business Key Performance Indicators, is rewarded to secure 
widespread uptake across the farming industry; recognising the farmers time and effort involved as 

Tudalen y pecyn 120



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 91 

well as some baseline sampling costs such as Soil Organic Matter (SOM). Measurement Review Action 
Widespread uptake is needed to meet Welsh Government’s objectives of promoting uptake of low 
carbon farming practices quickly and at scale. An incentivised approach also provides the critical mass 
required to determine the net carbon position of Welsh farming as well as the quantitative data required 
to assess the effectiveness of the full range of policy interventions through the evaluation process.  
 
Farm Carbon Balance – The data provided is subject to analysis via the RPW online portal providing 
key outputs including an individual Farm Carbon Balance showing the farms net position taking into 
account all GHG sources and sinks. The analysis will include recommendations to focus next steps 
(i.e. engagement in the Low Carbon Farming Scheme) using a traffic light red, amber, green approach 
determined through analysis and benchmarked against the industry average.  
 
Welsh Farming Carbon Balance – Based on the data provided it will be possible to determine the net 
carbon position of ‘Welsh farming plc’ enabling further analysis to meet Welsh Government climate 
budget reporting requirements.  
 
Low Carbon Farming Scheme – The Farm Carbon Balance recommendations will guide the farmers’ 
engagement in the Low Carbon Farming Scheme and is evidence led targeting the most beneficial 
actions for the individual farm.  
 
The Low Carbon Farming Scheme comprises integrated knowledge transfer, advice, skills, incentives 
and investment support driving farm level action. The scheme works across the three key focus areas 
of improving production efficiency; enhancing carbon sequestration and energy and renewables; also 
linking to wider Welsh Government measures and interventions such as the proposed Woodland 
Creation Scheme to reduce duplication and maximise impact.  
 
Annual Carbon Review – farmers provide data to the Carbon Data Capture Mechanism via the RPW 
online portal on an annual basis enabling the iterative process of measurement, action and review. 
This facilitates targeting of interventions at the farm level; builds individual and collective knowledge 
on effectiveness of those interventions ensuring maximum impact and value for money; whilst also 
demonstrating measurable progress in the areas of reduced GHG and increased carbon storage during 
Welsh Government’s second Carbon Budget.  
 
The above framework will build on the knowledge and experience of the HerdAdvance and Stoc+ 
projects delivered by AHDB and HCC as part of the Dairy Improvement Programme and the Red Meat 
Development Programme. Although these projects are focussed on improving Animal Health and 
Welfare, the same principles apply to this ‘proof of concept’. This area of work will also benefit from 
other development work being undertaken by both organisations.  
 
 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 121



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 92 

Annex 3 - NFU Cymru Key Policy Asks 
 
SUSTAINABLE FARMING SCHEME 
 
Stability must mean Stability 
 

• A long-term commitment to a Stability payment within the SFS to recognise the 
economic, environmental, social and cultural contribution that Welsh farming makes to 
society and to underpin the resilience of food production in Wales and the continued 
secure supply of high quality, safe and affordable food from Wales. 
 

• A Universal Baseline Payment that goes beyond costs incurred / income foregone, 
recognising the value to society of the actions being undertaken by Welsh farmers and 
that incentivises the actions that Welsh Government want undertaken on Welsh farms. 

 

• A review of the practicality and cumulative administrative burden associated with the 
delivery of the proposed Universal Actions. 

 
Universal must mean Universal 
 

• A review of the 10% tree cover scheme requirements, that considers the mandatory element 
of the requirement and the opportunity to consider alternatives that deliver the same outcome 
but in different ways (e.g. Northern Ireland work). 

 

• The formation of a science panel to look at and evaluate alternatives to tree planting. The 
tree planting requirement to be put on hold until the science panel has undertaken its 
evaluation. 

 

• Ensuring that the Universal Baseline Payment provides equal access and fair reward to 
all active farmers, recognising: 

 
➢ The integral role that common land rights allocations provide in the economic 

viability of upland farms and the need for common land to be included within the 
Universal Baseline Payment that is made to the farming business. 

 
➢ Support for farmers with designated sites including the habitat maintenance 

element of the Universal Baseline Payment 
 

➢ That tenant farmers are not financially penalised as a result of their inability 
to undertake all the scheme requirements. 

 
Immediate Actions that can be undertaken within the consultation period: 
 

• An urgent meeting for NFU Cymru with the Minister. 
 

• The Minister to establish and Chair regular SFS meetings with NFU Cymru leaders 
between now and the final scheme design / payment rates being published. All additional 
work commissioned / groups established to report back to these meetings. 

 

• Commitment that the Minister / Welsh Government will consider every response to the 
SFS consultation from those living in Wales and directly impacted by the proposals. 

 

• Commitment that all views and opinions in relation to the SFS expressed by farmers at 
the Welsh Government SFS Roadshows are considered – government to publish a 

Tudalen y pecyn 122



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 93 

summary of the views expressed at the Roadshows. 
 

• Recognition and due regard given to the fact that the NFU Cymru consultation response 
represents the views of many thousands of farming businesses and has been formulated 
following meetings where thousands of members have expressed their views. 

 

• A Socio-Economic Assessment to be undertaken that: 
➢ Assesses the impact on Welsh farming, rural communities and the wider supply 

chain of the withdrawal of the BPS 
➢ Assesses the impact of the current SFS proposals on Welsh farming, rural 

communities and the supply chain. 
 

• No decisions on next steps to be undertaken until the economic assessment has 
been completed. 

 

• A long-term commitment to the establishment of a food, farming, rural businesses and 
supply chain impact assessment and modelling programme that provides the same level of 
detail and advice that the ERAMMP model provides for the environment. 

 

• Recognition and fair reward for the value of the data that farmers will be providing to 
Welsh Government. Further consideration to be given in relation to how the data will be 
used, the privacy of the data considering GDPR and FOI legislation, and the value of the 
data being provided by farmers in relation to government needing this data to meet its 
statutory obligations. 

 

• A Welsh Government cross departmental group with Key Stakeholder involvement to 
consider how payment rates for the Universal Baseline Payment can properly recognise 
the social value of the outcomes being delivered that extends beyond environmental public 
goods. No decision on payment rates to be made until this work has been completed. 

 
OVERARCHING POLICY ASKS 
 

• The establishment of an Independent Review Group to consider the cumulative burden of 
Regulations and Policies on Welsh Farming Business also taking into consideration the 
wider economic and political context. 

 

• A commitment to develop a comprehensive farm to fork food strategy for Wales 
with ambitious targets for the sustainable growth of the food and farming sector in 
Wales. 

 
WIDER POLICY ASKS 
 
BOVINE TB 
 

• Welsh Government to immediately agree changes to the On Farm Slaughter Policy in 
line with the recommendations of the NFU Cymru TB Focus Group. 

 

• The TB Programme Board, once established, to be able to commission an independent 
evaluation of bovine TB eradication strategies around the world and their relevance to 
the disease situation in Wales, providing recommendations independent of government 
to the Minister. 

 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 123



NFU Cymru Consultation Response 

 

 Page 94 

WATER QUALITY 
 

• The £20m announced by the Minister in October 2022 to be made immediately available 
to the industry to support investment on farm. 

 

• A Wales Wide Review of Planning authorities and NRWs approach to applications for 
new infrastructure on farm with the aim of Welsh Government issuing guidance to LPAs 
to streamline and reduce the burden in undertaking work on farm to meet regulatory 
requirements and for environmental betterment. 

 

• The 4-year Review of the Control of Agricultural Regulations to be expedited and 
undertaken prior to 31st December 2024. A review group to be established involving 
government and Industry to allow for proper consideration of alternative measures under 
Article 45 of the Act that could be introduced from 1st January 25, when the current 
Enhanced nutrient management approach is due to end. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 124



Submitted on Thursday 7 March
Tudalen y pecyn 125



Sustainable Farming Scheme
Keeping farmers farming

Welsh Government Consultation Response

by the Farmers’ Union of Wales

7th March 2024

Tudalen y pecyn 126



Contents

1.0 Summary...........................................................................................................................................3

2.0 About the Farmers’ Union of Wales..................................................................................................6

3.0 Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023............................................................................................................ 6

4.0 A Welsh Way Forward....................................................................................................................... 8

5.0 Sustainable Farming Scheme process............................................................................................. 11

5.1 Scheme eligibility......................................................................................................................11

5.2 Operating model.......................................................................................................................12

5.3 Habitat baseline review............................................................................................................ 13

5.4 Carbon calculator..................................................................................................................... 14

6.0 Payment methodology....................................................................................................................15

6.1 Payment capping...................................................................................................................... 18

6.3 Stability payment......................................................................................................................20

6.3 Basic Payment Scheme............................................................................................................. 20

7.0 Universal Actions............................................................................................................................ 21

7.1 UA1: Benchmarking..................................................................................................................22

7.2 UA2: Continuous Personal Development................................................................................. 23

7.3 UA3: Soil health planning......................................................................................................... 24

7.4 UA4: Multispecies cover crop...................................................................................................25

7.5 UA5: Integrated Pest Management.......................................................................................... 26

7.6 UA6: Managing heavily modified peatland.............................................................................. 26

7.7 Universal Code for Habitats......................................................................................................26

7.8 UA7: Habitat maintenance....................................................................................................... 27

7.9 Scheme rule - at least 10% of each farm is managed as habitat.............................................. 27

7.10 UA8: Create temporary habitat on improved land................................................................. 28

7.11 UA9: Designated Site Management Plans.............................................................................. 28

7.12 UA10: Ponds and scrapes....................................................................................................... 29

7.13 UA11: Hedgerow management.............................................................................................. 29

7.14 UA12: Woodland maintenance...............................................................................................30

7.15 Scheme rule - at least 10% under tree cover as woodland or individual trees...................... 30

7.16 UA13: Create new woodland and agro-forestry..................................................................... 35

7.17 UA14: Historic environment - maintenance and enhancement............................................. 36

7.18 UA15: The Animal Health Improvement Cycle....................................................................... 36

7.19 UA16: Good animal welfare....................................................................................................36

7.20 UA17: Good farm biosecurity................................................................................................. 37

8.0 Universal Actions modelling results................................................................................................ 38

9.0 FUW modelling on direct farm support.......................................................................................... 40

9.1 Model 1: Increases in profit received for livestock...................................................................40

9.2 Model 2: Increases in profit received per hectare....................................................................41

9.3 Model 3: Reductions in input costs.......................................................................................... 41

10.0 FUW proposals for a Sustainable Farming Scheme framework.................................................... 44

11.0 Optional and Collaborative Actions.............................................................................................. 46

1Tudalen y pecyn 127



12.0 Specific considerations..................................................................................................................47

12.1 Tenants................................................................................................................................... 47

12.2 Cross border farm businesses.................................................................................................48

12.3 Certified organic farms........................................................................................................... 48

12.4 New entrants to farming........................................................................................................ 48

12.5 Common land......................................................................................................................... 49

13.0 Business advice and support.........................................................................................................50

14.0 Regulatory framework.................................................................................................................. 50

14.1 Appeals process......................................................................................................................51

15.0 Welsh language.............................................................................................................................51

2Tudalen y pecyn 128



1.0 Summary

The Farmers’ Union of Wales (FUW) has discussed the Sustainable Farming Scheme: Keeping farmers

farming consultation with members from all regions of Wales and all sectors in thirteen regional

meetings; each of which were attended by hundreds of members, as well as with others who have a

direct or indirect interest in the agricultural industry.

Engagement has also taken place at twelve FUW County Executive meetings and meetings of the

Union’s ten Standing Committees. As such, the views expressed below represent the democratically

established views of an organisation which represents some 6,000 Welsh farmers who would be

directly affected by any changes to Wales’ agricultural policies and support schemes.

These views can be summarised as follows:

1. Recent protests have made a clear statement about the strong feeling of frustration and the

groundswell of concern with regards to the current situation and future direction of

agricultural policy in Wales.

2. The significance of these proposals for the future direction of agriculture in Wales cannot be

underestimated and therefore farmers expressed frustration at the fact that the consultation

paper was published two weeks before Christmas and closes during one of the busiest times

in the farming calendar.

3. The Sustainable Farming Scheme (SFS) in its proposed form is immensely bureaucratic for

both farmers and administrators, and would be detrimental to Welsh agriculture and the

thousands of rural businesses which rely either directly or indirectly on agriculture for a

proportion of their income.

4. This is highlighted in part by the modelling results of the potential economic effects of the

SFS which demonstrate the varying degrees in which the scheme would be unsustainable for

Welsh agriculture and the wider rural economy.

5. While the Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023 outlines the four Sustainable Land Management

(SLM) objectives which now provide the legislative framework for the SFS, these latest

proposals still fail to encompass wider Welsh goals and objectives including those defined in

the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 - most notably economic and social objectives.

6. The FUW has always advocated that protecting family farms and food production must be

placed at the heart of any future policy. It is therefore disappointing to see no mention of the

‘social value’ or financial reward for producing sustainable food despite the fact that the first

SLM objective is ‘to produce food and other goods in a sustainable manner’.

3Tudalen y pecyn 129



7. Achieving the SLM objectives and other Welsh Government targets relies on the uptake of

the SFS by the vast majority of active farmers in Wales. As such, the scheme must be

accessible and provide equal rights to all active farmers.

8. The Welsh Government must ensure all Universal Actions and Scheme Rules are accessible

and achievable by all and do not represent barriers to scheme entry. The 10% tree cover

requirement, for example, represents a major barrier to scheme entry and will result in a

significant reduction in farm output and land value.

9. This should be facilitated by the re-establishment of the common land, new entrants and

tenants working groups to relook at the barriers which remain for these specific groups of

farmers, as well as the establishment of other relevant groups.

10. Farmers in Wales continually feel targeted for having to make progress towards net zero and

to make extra efforts to offset the emissions of other sectors. The agricultural sector accepts

the need for change and improvements in the context of a post-Brexit policy framework and

the climate emergency; however, the Welsh Government must rethink its environmental

proposals to develop a sustainable pathway to net zero.

11. The FUW therefore calls on the Welsh Government to establish an independent panel tasked

with evaluating the science around net zero and carbon sequestration to help develop the

SFS in such a way that takes into account all actions farmers can undertake to make progress

towards net zero in a sustainable way.

12. The proposed policy framework remains relatively unchanged compared with the proposals

that were published in 2021, and there remain some huge gaps of fundamentally important

detail relating to scheme rules and verifiable standards, especially given the Welsh

Government’s ambition to launch the scheme in around ten months’ time.

13. As such, the FUW believes that the current timescale and expectation for Welsh farming

businesses to be able to transition into an entirely new scheme by 2030 is unrealistic. The

introduction of the scheme should be paused to allow for a rethink through genuine

co-design between the Welsh Government and both farming unions.

14. There was also a great deal of frustration amongst farmers given the absence of any financial

information within the final consultation. The lack of such detail has made it extremely

difficult for farmers to provide comments and views on various proposals in regards to their

specific circumstances.

15. Members noted that the SFS proposals advocate replacing all forms of direct support with a

high-level agri-environmental scheme, using a costs-incurred/income foregone payments

model and a budget similar to the current BPS budget. The economic modelling paper which

accompanies the consultation confirms this, and quantifies the inevitable devastating

economic and production impacts of such a plan.

4Tudalen y pecyn 130



16. The Welsh Government’s abandonment of previous legal objectives relating to maintaining

food production and the economic sustainability of farm businesses and rural communities,

in place previously for almost eight decades, should be reversed - if necessary by amending

the Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023.

17. To this end, it is imperative that scheme payment rates are calculated in agreement with

farming unions by using evidence gathered from economic impact assessments and farm

business data to ensure payments go beyond income foregone and costs incurred and

thereby ensure the scheme is economically sustainable for farm businesses and others

involved in agricultural supply chains.

18. The Universal Baseline Payment must provide long-term stability for farming businesses and

the wider rural economy that relies on agriculture. It must also provide a meaningful income

stream for farming businesses which properly rewards farmers for undertaking Universal

Actions and compensates for the loss of the BPS. The payment rates must also recognise the

innumerable social and cultural contributions farming makes to rural communities.

19. Such payments must also be capped and favour family farms under any future policy in order

to ensure money is directed at family farms rather than allowing the sort of unlimited

payments which investors and companies have taken advantage of in other parts of the UK

and EU, to the detriment of family farms, communities and the reputation of the Common

Agricultural Policy (CAP) in general. Such capping and other mechanisms should take account

of the number of families and individuals supported by each farm business.

20. The Welsh Government should be submitting a strong case to the UK Treasury for a

long-term funding commitment for Welsh agriculture in order to properly finance ambitions

that include those referred to at 17. and 18. and avoid further cuts to the rural affairs budget.

21. Since key competitors in other countries and regions will continue to receive direct support,

such as Scotland with their recent announcement to maintain a 70% direct payment, Welsh

farmers would be placed at a competitive disadvantage if these proposals were implemented

in their current form, thereby damaging Wales’ agriculture industry and undermining the

wide variety of economic, social and cultural benefits related to farming.

22. Notwithstanding the above concerns, members noted that even if the SFS proposals were

adequately funded and fully supported by all stakeholders, their implementation represents

such a step change in terms of mapping, administration and other requirements that their

introduction in January 2025 would inevitably lead to major problems. This would represent

a significant departure from Wales’ legacy over the past two decades in terms of having

introduced new schemes relatively smoothly compared with other UK administrations.

5Tudalen y pecyn 131



2.0 About the Farmers’ Union of Wales

The FUW was established in 1955 to exclusively represent the interests of farmers in Wales. Since

1978 the union has been formally recognised by UK Governments, and subsequently by Welsh

Governments, as independently representing those interests.

The FUW’s Vision is thriving, sustainable, family farms in Wales, while the Mission of the Union is To

advance and protect Wales’ family farms, both nationally and individually, in order to fulfil the

Union’s vision.

In addition to its Head Office, which has over thirty full-time members of staff, the FUW Group has

another 80 members of staff based in twelve regional offices around Wales providing a broad range

of services for its members.

The FUW is a democratic organisation, with policies being formulated following consultation with its

twelve County Executive Committees and eleven Standing Committees.

3.0 Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023

The Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023 (“the Act”) now provides the legislative framework through which

the Welsh Government can provide support to farmers to make progress towards the four

Sustainable Land Management (SLM) objectives, namely:

1. To produce food and other goods in a sustainable manner

2. To mitigate and adapt to climate change

3. To maintain and enhance the resilience of ecosystems and the benefits they provide

4. To conserve and enhance the countryside and cultural resources and promote public access

to and engagement with them, and to sustain the Welsh language and promote and facilitate

its use

It is a major concern that the Welsh Government proactively opposed efforts to include the

economic sustainability of farming and agriculture as an objective, representing a departure from

principles put in place by the Labour Party in its 1947 Agriculture Act, and continued under the

Treaty of Rome and the Lisbon Treaty until the UK’s departure from the EU.

While the FUW supported the inclusion of food production and the Welsh language through working

closely with Members of the Senedd and other stakeholders in amendments to the Act, it remains a

concern that these two objectives and various other Wellbeing Goals and the economic sustainability

of family farms are not explicitly supported within the Sustainable Farming Scheme (SFS) proposals.

Given that the Welsh rural affairs budget now relies almost entirely on EU Common Agricultural

Policy (CAP) legacy funding from the UK Treasury and the Welsh Government’s allocation of such

6Tudalen y pecyn 132



funding for agriculture, the need to justify the spending of public money on agriculture is often

referred to as an explanation to implement an environmentally based scheme or re-prioritise funding

to other departments.

It should be noted that the Welsh rural affairs budget for 2024-25 has been cut by a total of £62

million (around 13%) year on year despite the fact that this budget represents just 2% of overall

Welsh Government spending.

The FUW would also draw attention to the 2021-2027 CAP framework which encompasses nine

specific objectives that are based on economic, social and environmental outcomes, namely:

1. To ensure a fair income for farmers

2. To increase competitiveness

3. To rebalance the power in the food chain

4. Climate change action

5. Environmental care

6. To preserve landscapes and biodiversity

7. To support generational renewal

8. Vibrant rural areas

9. To protect food and health quality

The FUW believes these principles go much further than the SLM objectives outlined within the Act

and encompass both the FUW-NFU Cymru Welsh Way Forward principles (see 4.0 Welsh Way

Forward), those described by the Wellbeing Goals and other priorities for Wales.

Whilst it could be argued that some of the CAP objectives are included within the list of purposes set

out in the Act for which Welsh Ministers may provide support, they are excluded from the

overarching SLM objectives, the objectives of which will be used as a measure of success within

progress reports and so forth.

As such, the FUW maintains that the SLM objectives should have included objectives such as those

set out within the CAP framework. This is a framework farmers in Wales have worked with since 1973

which provides a far broader set of priorities through which the Welsh Government could have used

to better justify public spending on agriculture - and it is also a framework that will continue to

support farmers in the EU.

Nevertheless, the SFS must at the very least provide meaningful support and income to active

farmers in Wales for producing sustainable food in line with the first SLM objective, namely ‘to

produce food and other goods in a sustainable manner’.

Under the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (“The Wellbeing Act”), “sustainable

development” means the process of improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural

well-being of Wales by taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle.

7Tudalen y pecyn 133



While the United Nations’ definition of SLM is clearly sensible in terms of “…ensuring the long-term

potential of resources and the maintenance of their environmental benefits”, it is notable that the

Welsh Government’s definition within the SFS consultation refers to “a holistic approach to

incorporate environmental, economic, cultural and social resources in such a way that the needs of

the current generation are balanced with our obligations to future generations” rather than a

broader range of Welsh objectives.

The Wellbeing Act encompasses a far broader set of principles which are defined by the seven

Wellbeing Goals and forty-six National Wellbeing Indicators; principles which relate to language,

prosperity, equality, employment and renewable energy production to name but a few.

The FUW therefore maintains that the SFS framework should encompass the broader objectives of

the Wellbeing Act in such a way that ensures the positive outcomes which fall directly within the

scope of the Wellbeing Act, such as jobs, prosperity, language and education, are achieved as a result

of a policy designed with such objectives clearly in mind.

Furthermore, such concerns also relate to the numerous reports the Welsh Government will be

required to produce setting out future plans and measuring progress towards the SLM objectives.

The FUW believes that these reports should go beyond the SLM objectives outlined in the Act and

take into consideration the Wellbeing Goals as well as other Welsh objectives, including current and

future economic challenges and competition faced by farm businesses and rural communities.

Current and future challenges must not be underestimated in the context of global pandemics and

ongoing conflicts.

The evaluation of the SFS must also take into account a broad range of farm business data including,

but not limited to, the cost and amount of time required to undertake each Universal Action, impact

on livestock numbers and farm output, any resultant land devaluation and the level of employment

on-farm and within rural businesses which rely directly or indirectly on agriculture for a proportion of

their income.

4.0 AWelsh Way Forward

An appropriate alternative policy framework should be designed to take account of the SLM

objectives alongside other key objectives of the Wellbeing Act and other Welsh priorities, thereby

not only ensuring compliance with that Wellbeing Act but also the long term wellbeing of Wales.

Following consultation with thousands of Welsh farmers and others with a direct interest in future

Welsh rural policies during the summer of 2018, the FUW and NFU Cymru produced a joint vision

paper entitled A Welsh Way Forward which was published on 24th October 2018.

8Tudalen y pecyn 134



The paper sets out key principles aimed at placing Welsh food, farming, livelihoods, communities and

the environment on a firm post-Brexit footing, and in a way which encompasses not only the SLM

principle but also the broader Wellbeing Goals and other Welsh priorities.

Those principles comprise:

1. Stability - The priority for Welsh Government must be to provide stability in a world of

uncertainty

● Wales’ food and farming industry already faces unprecedented challenges and

uncertainty as a result of issues which are outside Welsh Government control

● The risk that far reaching reforms to rural support will add to an already unstable

situation is great, and the priority for Welsh Government must be to provide stability

using the tools they have available

● Significant changes should only be considered once we have a clearer knowledge of

our future trading relationship with our main trading partners

● Transition to future policies should only begin following thorough investigation of the

impacts on every business, sector and region of Wales, and a full assessment of the

Welsh Government’s ability to deliver any plans

2. Family Farms - Wales’ future rural policies must keep food producing families on the land

● The family farm is the backbone of our rural and wider communities, producing top

quality, safe and affordable food for the consumer

● These families deliver for our economy, environment, landscape, language and culture,

and should be placed at the centre of Welsh Government policies

● As such, the family farms which take the financial risks associated with food

production alongside all forms of work on the land should be placed at the centre of

any future policy through a strengthened Active Farmer rule

3. Supporting Rural Communities and Welsh Jobs - Direct support which underpins safe top

quality food production must be maintained to avoid causing irreparable damage to Wales

● Our farmers are kingpins in food supply chains which sustain a multi-billion pound

food and drink industry and hundreds of thousands of Welsh jobs

● Our industry continues to operate and compete in a global marketplace, competing

with farmers across the UK, the remaining EU and the rest of the world

● Abandoning direct support that underpins safe high quality food production at a time

when our key competitors have no intention of doing the same would cause

irreparable damage to the economy, environment, landscape, language and culture of

Wales

● Wales must design a policy that actively supports all sectors and areas of Wales,

ensuring fairness between neighbours and regions, and a level playing field with

farmers elsewhere

9Tudalen y pecyn 135



4. Sustainable Agriculture - Wales must continue to invest in measures that drive productivity,

improve efficiencies and support farmers to increase market potential whilst meeting

environmental and climate change obligations

● Leaving the EU has created the opportunity to provide better targeted support to help

farming families increase market potential, and drive improvements in productivity

● Much can be learned from the delivery of previous Rural Development schemes in

Wales and in other nations and countries which have succeeded in driving forward

productivity and efficiency improvements across the farming industry

● Farming organisations have previously outlined detailed proposals for integrating

investment measures, skills and knowledge exchange and data capture in order to

drive forward measurable improvements in economic and environmental

performance, including in relation to mitigating climate change

● Such principles should form the foundation of a future scheme aimed at economic

resilience

5. Rewarding Environmental Outcomes - Welsh farmers have delivered positive public

outcomes for the nation for centuries, and must be fairly rewarded for what they have

already delivered, continue to deliver and will deliver in the future

● Historically, Wales has been seen as an exemplar in terms of rewarding farmers for

delivering public and environmental goods through schemes such as Tir Gofal, which

was devised following successful piloting

● We now have the opportunity to build upon previous experience and knowledge by

ensuring farmers are better rewarded for what they deliver for society

● This should be achieved through an additional scheme which complements the key

policy of providing stability through direct support to food producing family farms

Notwithstanding the fact the Welsh Way Forward policy framework was published in 2018, the FUW

maintains that any future Welsh agricultural policy must consider each of these five key principles on

equal footings.

The SFS in its proposed form equates to a high-level environmental scheme which would fail to

provide long-term economic stability to family farm businesses and be detrimental to rural

communities and Welsh jobs.

As such, the FUW calls on the Welsh Government to pause the introduction of the SFS to allow

adequate time for a rethink of the proposals through genuine co-design with both farming unions.

10Tudalen y pecyn 136



5.0 Sustainable Farming Scheme process

5.1 Scheme eligibility

The FUW has no clear objections to the proposed scheme eligibility. The Welsh Government’s shift

away from an ‘open to all’ policy originally proposed in the Brexit and Our Land consultation has

previously been welcomed. However, a definitive active farmer criteria must be retained in order to

avoid a significant increase in the number of companies or land-based charities being eligible for the

scheme, and in so doing taking money away from genuine family farms and working people.

It is therefore vital that the Welsh Government appropriately interprets the definition of agriculture

and ancillary activities that are defined within the Act in a way which recognises the economic needs

of genuine family farms.

Considering the production of food and the management of agricultural land in situ will be essential

for avoiding the creation of loopholes, although the Welsh Government and Rural Payments Wales

(RPW) will need to recognise situations whereby ‘farmers’ have low stocking rates on large areas of

agricultural land.

Similarly, the FUW is not opposed to the lower criteria of having at least 3 hectares of eligible land or

demonstrating at least 550 standard labour hours. However, the Welsh Government must assess how

any changes might result in increases in those registering for support with RPW given the impact on

the overall budget and the dire problems experienced in England in 2005.

In most cases, the requirement to have exclusive occupation and management control of the land for

at least 10 months of the year will not affect farmers with Farm Business Tenancy (FBT) agreements.

However, FUW members have questioned how farmers who have management control of land

parcels for 10 months of the year will be able to comply with the Universal Actions associated with

that land for the full 12 months.

Agreements involving short-term grazing licences where the landlord retains full management

control of the land throughout the year also need to be considered in this context.

Grazing licences are becoming increasingly popular as farmers allow multiple farmers to graze their

land during different times of the year and as more intensive farming systems seek more land for

grazing, forage and/or to comply with the Control of Agricultural Pollution regulations.

In almost all cases, the landlord retains full management control of the land and currently receives a

Basic Payment Scheme (BPS) payment. The Welsh Government must consider how landlords can

continue to access support through the SFS under these circumstances without creating a two-tiered

renting market for graziers.

11Tudalen y pecyn 137



5.2 Operating model

The FUW has always advocated for the current RPW Online and SAF systems to be maintained and

developed as a central feature of a future scheme where data is used to ensure the long term

economic and environmental sustainability of Wales as a whole, and Wales’ family farms as

individual units.

The current RPW Online system has been developed in true partnership with stakeholders which has

led to a system which efficiently and accurately collects annual data relating to 170 types of land use

on hundreds of thousands of field parcels and areas, at a resolution of 0.01 hectares, while also

collecting many other types of data relevant to Wales’ wellbeing, business practices, carbon

sequestration and other environmental goods. Such data covers around 90% of Wales land area and

the overwhelming majority of Welsh farm businesses.

The FUW therefore welcomes the proposals to retain current RPW Online and associated systems as

the main mechanism for data collection, payments and administration for farmers and the Welsh

Government.

However, the RPW Online system should be developed throughout a transition period to include new

data provision requirements rather than introducing an overly complex operating system from the

outset. This approach would minimise significant risks such as system failure and data inaccuracies

and reduce the pressure on the Welsh Government’s RPW department that is already

under-resourced.

In this context, it is notable that previous agri-environment schemes have only ever been able to

secure a few hundred contracts in any single year, whereas the SFS will replace all current support

mechanisms and therefore may require the production of 16,000 or more contracts over a short time

period or single year. It is also notable that the Welsh Government has been unable to implement

what is by comparison a relatively small number of Habitat Scheme contracts in a timely fashion, and

has had to resort to forcing farmers to accept major mapping inaccuracies as being definitive.

Whilst a move away from resource-intensive processes such as the farm sustainability review is

welcomed, SFS contracts and annual declarations will undoubtedly involve a greater amount of data

than current SAF applications and therefore the successful processing of such contracts will have to

be considered.

Alignment between RPW Online and other data collection systems such as EID Cymru and BCMS

would also allow for a central system where farmers can submit and access their data to avoid

duplication.

The evolution of RPW Online should also include the continuation of the RPW Online Stakeholder

group which allows industry representatives to provide feedback on the development process.

12Tudalen y pecyn 138



The FUW is also supportive of the move from multi-annual contracts to SAF-type annual declarations.

This process is well-known by Welsh farmers and FUW staff who offer support in completing such

forms on an annual basis and therefore retaining the current application window dates is also

welcomed.

However, some farmers questioned whether the split payment dates in October and December

would continue to be appropriate under the SFS given when the costs for undertaking various

Universal Actions would be incurred and when data collection would have to be completed.

The Welsh Government must also provide clarity around the penalty matrix that may apply, including

for farmers who cease to participate in the scheme after a number of years but are unable to

complete actions they had agreed to over a longer period.

This process will need to be flexible to accommodate for changes in land tenure and for those that

may cease to participate due to matters outside of their control.

5.3 Habitat baseline review

As outlined above, the move away from resource-intensive processes such as the farm sustainability

review which would have required repeated visits by consultants is welcomed.

However, the Habitat Wales Scheme identified major flaws and inaccuracies within the mapping data

provided by RPW as part of the Expression of Interest process. These included but were not limited

to:

a. Entry level Glastir habitat options were not identified on the maps

b. Various examples of habitats being mapped incorrectly

c. Commercially planted coniferous woodlands being incorrectly identified as permanent dry

grassland (no inputs), open country or enclosed wetland

d. Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) land being identified incorrectly as eligible land

e. Multiple habitats being incorrectly identified within the same field parcel

As this process has highlighted, there is certainly a need for the Data Confirmation process to take

place in sufficient time to ensure all mapping errors and inaccuracies are corrected before the SFS is

launched. This is imperative given how the Welsh Government intends to administer the scheme

using habitat classifications and remote sensing as a way of measuring compliance and calculating

payments.

As such, the Data Confirmation process should take place over as long a time as possible to allow

time for farmers, or FUW staff on their behalf, to make corrections. However, the Welsh Government

must also acknowledge the resources required to undertake this task given that it may involve

multiple meetings and visits with each member.

13Tudalen y pecyn 139



Many FUW members who had requested to make changes to their Habitat Wales Scheme maps

during the Expression of Interest (EOI) process received contract offers with various changes which

did not correspond with their requests, while others received contract offers that simply refused to

acknowledge notified corrections. Those members questioned whether they would have further

opportunity to amend their maps following the Data Confirmation process and Habitat Baseline

Review if the Welsh Government for whatever reason does not agree to make those changes.

In this context, it’s also important to acknowledge problems experienced by farmers in relation to

previous agri-environment contracts:

a. Confusing and complex contracts that lead to inadvertent breaches and subsequent

penalties

b. Repeated changes to contract versions, often without the knowledge of farmers

c. Contradictions between contract requirements and Natural Resources Wales (NRW)

objectives in relation to protecting SSSIs

d. Widespread errors in mapping layers leading to inappropriate and/or impractical contract

specifications and decisions

5.4 Carbon calculator

In principle, the FUW supports the proposal for every farmer to undertake a carbon assessment on

their farming business. The agenda around carbon emissions and making progress towards net zero

is growing rapidly and therefore understanding current emissions as an agricultural sector and as

individual units at the very least will help identify areas for improvement.

It will be important to take into consideration the fact that some farm businesses have already

completed a carbon assessment through Farming Connect or as a requirement for their milk buyer

whilst the majority will have no experience with such complex data collection and input.

The effectiveness of carbon calculators relies almost entirely on the quality of the data provided.

Many carbon calculators require large amounts of technical data which can take months to collect.

The Welsh Government must consider developing a system whereby data farmers already provide

through various systems can feed into these carbon calculations in order to avoid duplication, while

also using such generic data to automatically provide generic estimates of carbon footprints.

The FUW also supports the Welsh Government’s recognition of the need to agree on a standardised

calculator. It has been proven that inputting the same data into various carbon calculators will

provide highly variable results and make benchmarking between farms almost impossible.

As such, the FUW believes that a stakeholder group should be established in conjunction with the

Welsh Government to identify and agree on a standard calculator that farmers can use themselves

for this process, using as much information already collected by Government bodies (IACS, EID

Cymru, BCMS etc.) as possible.

14Tudalen y pecyn 140



It is also essential that any carbon calculator provides consistency and takes into account all carbon

stores through land use, land use change and forestry, as well as renewable energy production, as

part of calculating the farm business’ carbon footprint in its entirety.

The majority of carbon accounts consider agriculture and land use, land use change and forestry as

two different sectors and therefore a farm business’ carbon footprint does not necessarily decrease if

agricultural land is converted into forestry or any other use.

This is a crucial point to consider if Welsh data is to be compared with carbon information from other

UK or global countries where their methods of measuring carbon may differ significantly in such a

way that suggests food produced in other parts of the world is being produced using more efficient

farming methods. Moreover, assessments of the carbon footprints of farms must be honest in terms

of taking account of farms in their entirety in order to ensure that farmers and the public value

actions taken on farmland.

FUW members raised serious concerns with regards to how data captured through carbon

assessments and other Universal Actions such as benchmarking would be used by RPW Online and

the Welsh Government in future.

The completion of a carbon audit undoubtedly provides useful data for the farm business and

identifies areas for improvement. However, there is certainly a feeling of concern amongst farmers

that this data will be used by the Welsh Government to enforce new regulations or additional

scheme requirements in future, or that it may be used by private companies in a way that is

detrimental to sectors, regions or individual businesses.

As such, it is essential that such data is anonymised if it is to be used to demonstrate the sector’s

overall footprint as well as benchmarking between others within sectors or regions of Wales. The

Welsh Government must also recognise the value of this data and the time involved in providing such

information within the payment methodology.

6.0 Payment methodology

The FUW has previously welcomed the provision of a universal baseline payment for all farmers

entering the scheme, based on the assumption that this would provide genuine income akin to that

provided by the BPS.

Currently around £238 million (75% of the EU CAP legacy funding) is provided to Welsh farmers

annually under the BPS system which makes up around 80% of Welsh farm incomes. Around half of

the remaining 25% of CAP funding was previously provided to businesses in the form of income

foregone and costs incurred payments through primarily Glastir schemes.

15Tudalen y pecyn 141



The BPS underpins the majority of farm businesses in Wales and supports such businesses to

produce sustainable food, manage the environment and play a pivotal role in Wales’ communities

and the rural economy.

Any reductions in direct farm support would result in detrimental impacts on Wales’ livestock supply

chains (see 8.0 Universal Actions modelling results and 9.0 FUW modelling on direct farm support).

Therefore, the value of current BPS direct farm support payments cannot be compared to the

universal baseline payment that is currently being proposed by the Welsh Government.

Current direct payments are a legacy of EU direct payments, which by law were designed “...to

function as a safety net and make farming more profitable, guarantee food security in Europe, assist

them in the production of safe, healthy and affordable food and reward farmers for delivering public

goods not normally paid for by markets.”

Under the SFS proposals, the Welsh Government intends to abandon these longstanding EU

principles by calculating universal baseline payments using values for costs incurred and income

foregone - notwithstanding the possibility of a ‘social value’ payment for each of the four payment

rates.

Such a complete departure from previous principles would represent an inevitable and catastrophic

loss in terms of the safety net, increased profitability, guaranteed food security and assistance in the

production of safe, healthy and affordable food previously in place.

The Welsh Government has consistently assured the industry that payments under this scheme

would go beyond costs incurred and income foregone and would properly reward farmers for

undertaking various actions and maintaining existing environmental features on their farm.

As such, if farm incomes are not to be impacted severely and catastrophically by proposed changes,

baseline payments must, by the end of a transition period, equate to the sum of costs incurred and

income foregone and the loss of direct support.

Moreover, as costs incurred and income foregone values are typically calculated using averages, it

might be assumed that half of the farmers participating in the scheme would be at a net loss in terms

of the costs of complying with the Universal Actions under this proposed payment methodology,

while in any case the vast majority would see a reduction in farm income in the absence of some

form of additional payment akin to the BPS; this is a basic assumption that appears to be confirmed

by the published modelling.

Furthermore, given that under the proposals it is only the ‘social value’ element of the payment that

will compensate for the loss of BPS payments, and the timescales involved, it is a serious concern

that the Welsh Government is still trying to identify ways to incorporate an extremely complex and

significant ‘social value’ matrix into the payment methodology - something that is already inbuilt in

the EU principles recently abandoned and proactively opposed by the Welsh Government.

16Tudalen y pecyn 142



It should also be noted that the consultation paper and Environment and Rural Affairs Monitoring

and Modelling Programme (ERAMMP) report on natural capital only make reference to the ‘social

value’ of environmental outcomes and do not refer to the ‘social value’ of sustainable food

production, Welsh jobs and all of the other socio-economic contributions farmers make to rural

Wales.

The ERAMMP report also suggests that the ‘social value’ of various environmental outcomes could

vary between different areas of Wales due to variables such as population densities. This has the

potential to create a postcode lottery whereby farmers in different parts of Wales receive different

payments for carrying out the same actions at the same cost, a concern the FUW has raised on

numerous occasions since the initial proposals to introduce a ‘public goods’ scheme.

For farmers with higher than average costs incurred and income forgone values, assigning

provenance dependent ‘social value’ payments will compound any existing SFS income disparity if

such producers also reside in an area classified as being of lesser social value. This would represent

an unfair and anti-competitive scenario and moves to avoid such payment disparity must be sought.

The FUW maintains that all farmers that participate in the scheme should receive a universal baseline

payment as a direct payment which provides long-term stability for farming businesses and the wider

rural economy that relies on agriculture. It must also provide a meaningful income stream for all

farming businesses which properly rewards farmers for undertaking Universal Actions and

compensates for the loss of the BPS. The payment rates must also recognise the innumerable social

and cultural contributions farming makes to rural communities.

As such, in addition to having major concerns regarding the impact of the proposals for all farms,

which the modelling work suggests would be catastrophic for large numbers, the decision to exclude

commoners from accessing baseline payments, despite repeated assurances to the contrary by

Minister Lesley Griffiths, means that thousands of Welsh farm businesses which rely on common

rights would be affected even more acutely should the SFS be introduced in its current form.

The Scottish Government recently announced plans to provide 70% of future support in the form of

direct payments from 2027 onwards with the remaining 30% being targeted at environmental

measures alongside the continuation of Less Favoured Area (LFA) payments.

The FUW would support such plans in Wales in order to provide economic stability to farming

businesses and ensure parity between UK nations which avoids placing Welsh food producers at a

competitive disadvantage within the UK internal market and in an even less favourable position

against global competitors.

However, it should also be noted that Welsh farmers are already having to contend with higher

regulatory baselines which include bureaucratic and costly Control of Agricultural Pollution

regulations and the tightening of bovine TB restrictions.

There was also a great deal of frustration amongst farmers given the absence of any financial

information within the final consultation. The lack of such detail has made it extremely difficult for

17Tudalen y pecyn 143



farmers to provide comments and views on various proposals in regards to their specific

circumstances.

It is imperative that scheme payment rates are calculated in agreement with farming unions by using

evidence gathered from modelling reports and farm business data to ensure payments go beyond

income foregone and costs incurred. If the Welsh Government is unable to properly reward farmers

for undertaking the Universal Actions and complying with the scheme rules, the scheme must be

redesigned in such a way that reduces the amount of the budget that is used to compensate for costs

incurred and income foregone.

The Welsh Government should also use this opportunity to review ways in which they can reward

farmers for maintaining SSSI designated sites through the universal baseline payment given the value

of these areas to the natural environment.

The FUW would also question how the Welsh Government will be able to promise payments for

long-term Universal Actions which involve permanent land use change, such as up to 12 years for

woodland creation, given the uncertainty around future funding from the UK Treasury.

In this context, the £331 million the Welsh Government received per year on average for agriculture

and rural development during the 2014-2020 EU CAP period is now worth around £450 million

according to the Bank of England Inflation Calculator, which uses CPI inflation data from the Office

for National Statistics.

The Welsh Government should therefore be either:

a. Submitting a strong case to the UK Treasury for a long-term funding commitment for Welsh

agriculture of around £450 million per year in EU CAP legacy funding in order to properly

finance a renewed scheme that meets ambitions that are akin to those in the EU and fit their

overarching principles, and deliver objectives that are within the means of such a budget, or

b. Calculating the total cost of delivering and paying for the SFS in its current form while

maintaining farm incomes and food production at current levels, and submitting these to the

UK Treasury to demonstrate total funding requirements.

6.1 Payment capping

The FUW has supported the capping of direct agricultural payments since 2007 (after farm employee

wages, number of partners and other factors are taken into account) on the grounds that this

ensures money is directed at family farms rather than allowing the sort of unlimited payments which

investors and companies have taken advantage of in other parts of the UK.

For similar reasons the FUW also proposed that redistributive payments should be allowed under EU

regulations - which the EU accepted. The FUW therefore successfully lobbied for the introduction of

18Tudalen y pecyn 144



both payment capping and redistributive payments in Wales at the lowest rates allowed by EU

Regulations at the time.

No such systems were introduced in England, meaning there is no limit to what larger farms and

estates can claim.

Under the current system, around 77% of Welsh farmers receive less than £20,000 through the BPS

per year and the average payment is £15,000, whilst some e-NGO’s, (including those which are

amongst the UK’s richest charities) and businesses receive over £2 million per year (including

payments made from English land).

In 2020, the top three recipients of (direct) farm payments (BPS) in the UK were:

1. National Trust (England) - £2,984,000

2. Beeswax Dyson Farming Ltd. (England) - £2,845,000

3. RSPB (Scotland) - £1,587,000

In 2020, the top three recipients of all (CAP) payments in the UK (including Rural Development

Programme (RDP) payments, which were not capped in any of the UK nations) were:

1. National Trust - £12,222,000

2. Menter a Busnes - £11,194,000

3. RSPB - £10,178,000

Welsh Government modelling in 2013 and 2014 demonstrated categorically the degree to which

redistributive payments increase support for small and medium sized farms, thereby recognising

economies of scale, while preventing the loss of monies from regions and counties where average

farm sizes are smaller. An equivalent principle was previously applied under the Tir Mynydd LFA

Scheme.

The Welsh Government’s own modelling demonstrates that failure to introduce a payment cap and

some form of redistributive/tapered payment will disadvantage the majority of Welsh farmers and

lead to the loss of large sums of money from many Welsh regions and counties.

The FUW therefore maintains the view that payment capping and redistributive payments should be

maintained under future policies, coupled with a strict ‘active farmer’ rule, to ensure money goes to

the family farms that make the greatest contribution to rural economies and communities, and that

the capping and redistributive rates should be lowered subject to careful consideration of factors

such as the number of families a farm supports as partners and employees and the direct and

indirect impact on businesses.

19Tudalen y pecyn 145



6.3 Stability payment

The phasing out of a stability payment throughout the transition period equates to the phasing out

of stability, and clearly suggests that the universal baseline payment will not provide the stability

farm businesses currently/previously received through the BPS and EU agri-environment schemes.

Even with the additional ‘top-up’ stability payment, the modelling results suggest economic losses of

between £59 million (25%) and £82 million (35%) in Farm Business Income across Wales (see 9.0

Universal Actions modelling results).

If the scheme was to provide a universal baseline payment the value of which incorporated the

principles already in place under (EU) direct payments, as suggested above (6.0 Payment

Methodology), a ‘top-up’ stability payment would not be necessary.

As such, while the FUW acknowledges the Welsh Government’s recognition of the need for a smooth

transition, what is proposed is a general transition from relative financial stability to major losses for

the vast majority of businesses, due to the failure of the universal baseline payment to compensate

for the stability currently provided by the BPS.

It is also concerning to note that new entrants will not be eligible for the proposed stability payment

if they enter the industry after 2024, which risks placing them at a competitive disadvantage if the

universal baseline payment comes nowhere near to current BPS levels.

6.3 Basic Payment Scheme

Notwithstanding the views expressed above in regards to the payment methodology and stability

payment that genuinely replace BPS derived income, the FUW accepts the need to phase out the BPS

during the transition period.

However, the Minister for Rural Affairs, North Wales and Trefnydd, Lesley Griffiths, has on numerous

occasions assured the industry that the SFS will not be launched until it is ready. The FUW welcomes

this statement given the lessons to be learnt from farmers in England who have already lost around

half of their BPS payments on average while the UK Government has failed to phase in a universal

replacement scheme.

In light of this, and given the FUW’s view that the scheme in its current form will not be sustainable

and the need to rethink some predominant proposals over such a short timeframe, the Welsh

Government must consider extending the BPS at current rates until the SFS is genuinely ready and fit

for purpose.

The FUW commends the Welsh Government for acknowledging the need to proceed with a longer

timeframe than was originally proposed in the Brexit and Our Land consultation; however, it is

20Tudalen y pecyn 146



imperative that the Welsh Government does not fall at the final hurdle following six years of

discussions.

Given the significant changes these proposals represent for the farming industry, FUW members

expressed the view that the transition should take place over a 10 year period to provide a smoother

process for all. This will naturally depend on how proposals around the Universal Actions and

payment methodology develop.

In regards to BPS entitlements, the continuation of trading and/or leasing of entitlements will be

crucial for those that do so on an annual basis and in cases of inheritance or succession. However,

any restrictions in regards to the trading and/or leasing of entitlements may discriminate against

those that have no intention of participating in the SFS and wish to receive BPS, albeit at a tapering

amount, until the end of the transitional period.

The FUW therefore proposes that the rules around BPS entitlements should remain as they are until

the BPS is phased out. The Welsh Government would still have the ability to use 2024 claim values as

a benchmark for the stability payment; similarly this is influenced by the final scheme design around

the payment methodology.

7.0 Universal Actions

The current proposals around the completion of 17 mandatory Universal Actions attempts to place

every farm business in Wales in the same box and does not provide flexibility for farmers to

undertake actions which will provide the best outcomes for their businesses, the environment and

Welsh society.

The Welsh Government must ensure all Universal Actions and Scheme Rules are accessible and

achievable by all and do not represent barriers to scheme entry. The 10% tree cover scheme rule, for

example, represents a major barrier to scheme entry and will result in a significant reduction in farm

output and land value for most farms who did accept such a rule.

The scheme proposals in their current form would be immensely bureaucratic and take a significant

amount of time for each and every farming business to undertake.

However, FUW members remain concerned about the future direction of agricultural policy in Wales

and therefore raised questions regarding the Welsh Government’s ambitions for some of the

Universal Actions following the transition period. There is a natural concern that some requirements

that already restrict businesses will become more stringent in future without any additional financial

reward as the industry has previously experienced with farm assurance schemes.

As highlighted above, the lack of any financial information has made it extremely difficult for farmers

to provide comments and views on various proposals in regards to their specific circumstances.

21Tudalen y pecyn 147



According to the economic modelling report, approximately 53,000 hectares of woodland and

habitat would be created as a result of the current proposals if all farms agreed to participate. As

such, farmers are questioning their ability to change the use of this land in future if they decide to

cease their participation for any reason.

Many of these actions also require online resources, complex data collection and input and the

annual declarations will undoubtedly involve a greater amount of data than current SAF applications.

The Welsh Government must therefore consider how to ensure fair access for elderly farmers and/or

those who aren’t IT literate or don’t have a broadband connection.

Finally, the consultation paper and the recent statement from the First Minister and Minister for

Rural Affairs suggest that the basic principles of data protection have not been considered when

designing this scheme, namely:

a. Lawfulness, fairness and transparency

b. Purpose limitation

c. Data minimisation

d. Accuracy

e. Storage limitation

f. Integrity and confidentiality (security)

g. Accountability

Under the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) Guidance for privacy notices, the information

supplied to the data subject prior to the collection of such data needs to be clear and specific in

order for the individual to make an informed decision and ensure transparency.

The principle of Data Minimisation refers to collecting the required data for that given purpose. The

primary purpose of data collection in this instance is to administer and verify SFS payments.

Any privacy notice should also be clear when mentioning any other use of data therefore the

repeated use of the word ‘may’ in chapter 9 of the consultation provides little clarity with regards to

how and where this data will be used.

The retention and storage of any data collected through this scheme must also be clarified as well as

any reasoning why such data is shared with other departments or third parties.

7.1 UA1: Benchmarking

A large proportion of dairy farmers in Wales will already have experience with measuring Key

Performance Indicators (KPIs) and benchmarking through discussion groups or requirements within

their milk contracts, however, the Welsh Government should not assume that this is the case for all

farming systems. In fact, the majority of those who are likely to enter the SFS won’t have had any

previous experience with data collection or input at this level.

22Tudalen y pecyn 148



In which case, the Welsh Government must ensure that the list of mandatory and enterprise-specific

KPIs are kept as simple and straightforward as possible to reduce the need for support from

consultants, which would inevitably dilute the recognition of the value of such data. This is also

pertinent given that consultancy costs are likely to be outside the calculations for costs incurred

payments.

However, for those few farming businesses that already collect and provide some of this data

through established systems such as EID Cymru, BCMS and NMR, the system must be able to retrieve

this information automatically in order to avoid duplication and further bureaucracy.

FUW members also questioned the reliability of some data for the purpose of benchmarking.

Comparisons between individual businesses across different parts of Wales can be misleading if

variable factors such as farming systems or extreme weather events aren’t taken into account.

Farmers are particularly concerned about their businesses being effectively controlled by the Welsh

Government and the potential impact it could have on their mental health if they were seen to be in

the bottom 10% of a category of producers due to inconsistencies between data sets or factors

outside the farmers’ control.

The FUW therefore proposes that the SFS should provide the framework (system and support) for

farmers to record various KPIs for their own business and to make their own improvements with

support through the Optional Layer of the scheme.

Similarly, as highlighted above, there are broader concerns around how this data could be used in

future to legislate or introduce additional requirements, and ensuring that this process is GDPR

compliant.

The Welsh Government must also consider:

a. The time it will take farmers to collect and input this data (costs incurred)

b. The transition for farmers to reach the point in which they have the ability and capacity to

collect such data

c. Understanding the extent of data already collected by farmers - this should influence which

KPIs are mandatory from day one and allow for a transition to introduce others over time

d. The value of this data to the farmer and to the Welsh Government (reward through universal

baseline payment)

7.2 UA2: Continuous Personal Development

Many FUW members felt that the proposals relating to Continuous Personal Development (CPD) are

patronising and insulting to the agricultural industry in Wales, and many highlighted that there is a

23Tudalen y pecyn 149



far greater need to educate the civil servants who formulate agricultural policies regarding basic

farming principles, as well as providing them with practical experience of farming.

The FUW would question the Welsh Government’s decision to require farmers to undertake a

minimum of 6 CPD modules every year. Whilst acknowledging the fact that training can be beneficial,

particularly in regards to health and safety, having a minimum requirement of 6 will not provide best

value for public money as farmers will be expected to complete modules which have no relevance to

their businesses or farming systems, resulting in a perfect example of a tick box exercise.

It’s also important to note that these current proposals would require a sole trader to undertake the

same amount of training as a family partnership or a limited company. The minimum amount of

training needs to be flexible and take into account the size of the business and/or type of enterprises.

The Welsh Government must also clarify how previous training and qualifications will be considered

in regards to this Universal Action. Social alternatives such as discussion groups or demonstration

farm visits should also be included.

Many farmers through farm assurance and other schemes already complete courses, therefore FUW

members questioned whether these would count as equivalent modules and if there could be an

option to complete fewer modules on a multi-year rotational basis.

Finally, the average age of Welsh farmers is now over 60 and the majority above this age currently

rely on family members or support from farming unions to complete various tasks electronically,

while many still do not have access to reliable broadband. The ability of these individuals and those

located in hard to reach places to access online modules and undertake assessments will be

extremely limited.

The Welsh Government’s own figures suggest that 170,000 people in Wales (7% of the population)

are not online.

Furthermore, a survey carried out in 2021 by the FUW, in cooperation with the National Federation

of Women’s Institutes-Wales (NFWI-Wales), Country Land and Business Association (CLA), National

Farmers Union Cymru (NFU Cymru) and Wales Federation of Young Farmers Clubs (Wales YFC) found

that 66% of respondents from a rural area in Wales stated that they, or their household, had been

impacted by poor broadband.

7.3 UA3: Soil health planning

The FUW welcomes moves away from previous proposals for every farmer to soil test 100% of their

holding at the time of scheme entry.

However, before the SFS is launched, the Welsh Government should evaluate the capacity in

laboratories across Wales to undertake soil testing, even at the proposed rate of 20% per year. There

24Tudalen y pecyn 150



is also a cost associated with each of these samples which could increase significantly if it were to be

introduced as a mandatory requirement for every farm in Wales.

The FUW would also question why the 20% testing requirement includes habitat areas classed as

enclosed semi-natural dry grasslands when the Universal Code for Habitat prevents the application of

any fertilisers or lime to improve the soil quality. In that context, farmers have questioned whether

they would be penalised for not following the proposed management actions as a result.

As farmers across Wales get to grips with the record keeping requirements of the Control of

Agricultural Pollution regulations, the proposal to incorporate potassium and phosphorus results into

the already complex workbook raises concern. There is also a lack of detail with regards to how the

Welsh Government intends to use this data and/or amend the requirements of this Universal Action

once all farms have tested 100% of the applicable areas.

There is also a risk associated with making it compulsory for tenants and/or landlords to share any

previous soil testing information with the incoming farmer and whether this could have an effect on

the purchase or rental value of these field parcels.

7.4 UA4: Multispecies cover crop

The FUW welcomes the recognition of the over-winter grazing of fodder crops such as stubble

turnips which are becoming an increasingly popular alternative to concentrate feed.

It is also noticeable that the cover crops should be sown ‘as early as possible’ although the final

scheme rules and verifiable standards should include exemptions for poor weather conditions which

would prevent sowing from taking place within 10 days as suggested.

The Welsh Government should also consider further exemptions for various crop types and

production systems. For example, many will decide to allow six weeks after sowing maize before

undersowing another crop to avoid competition between both species; timescales will differ based

on characteristics such as topography.

This is especially pertinent for organic arable systems whereby undersowing increases crop moisture

which causes germination in storage post-harvest and increased disease risk with limited options for

control.

There also needs to be consideration for those that don’t currently sow a cover crop over winter in

order to reduce their use of herbicides and sow spring crops earlier. This Universal Action will

increase costs and herbicide use within such systems and will contradict the aims of Universal Action

5: Integrated Pest Management.

In terms of all such exemptions, these should be available retrospectively rather than requiring

farmers to apply for exemptions before they are necessary, since experience with BPS, Glastir and

25Tudalen y pecyn 151



other schemes has shown that the Welsh Government is slow in processing and responding to such

applications, often to the extent that responses are not issued until after they are needed. It is also

the case that sudden changes in circumstances, such as weather conditions, mean exemptions would

effectively be needed instantaneously.

7.5 UA5: Integrated Pest Management

These requirements are already in place and overseen by farm assurance schemes. As such, it is

essential that procedures and records already in place are recognised in order to avoid duplication.

7.6 UA6: Managing heavily modified peatland

FUW members didn’t have any particular comments or concerns to raise with regards to the

management prescriptions of this Universal Action.

As highlighted above (5.3 Habitat Baseline Review), the accuracy of the habitat maps on RPW Online

for the administration and verification of the scheme will be crucial.

7.7 Universal Code for Habitats

Many farmers that have engaged with previous agri-environment schemes will be familiar with these

management prescriptions, and their inclusion once again emphasises the fact that the SFS as

proposed is a high level environmental scheme that will place major restrictions on farms while

delivering what will, in the absence of a major increase in the CAP replacement budget, likely to be a

fraction of the total payments previously in place for participants of such schemes.

The accuracy of the habitat maps on RPW Online will be crucial, particularly in regards to the

requirements referring to the spreading of slurry or any other organic and inorganic fertilisers on

effectively any land which has a composition of less than 25% sown agricultural species.

This is in complete contradiction with the Control of Agricultural Pollution regulations whereby

farmers must calculate their nitrogen loading on the amount of spreadable area available.

With a proposed payment methodology of which two-parts rely on calculations for income foregone

and costs incurred, the Welsh Government must take into consideration how such management

prescriptions could cause secondary impacts such as non-compliance with other Welsh Government

regulations or clauses within milk supply contracts.

26Tudalen y pecyn 152



7.8 UA7: Habitat maintenance

While FUW members appreciate the need for appropriate management and maintenance of existing

habitats, the need for flexibility and the correct identification of habitat, and rules that are

appropriate for business needs were highlighted.

The FUW therefore opposes the prescriptive nature of the current proposals given the degree to

which they fail to take into account local habitat requirements and business needs, historic land use

and developments in terms of scientific understanding of the benefits of certain practices.

In this context, members noted that a vast area of Wales used for hundreds of years to grow arable

crops was now considered to be habitat, while recent research by Aberystwyth University has

highlighted that flooding could worsen unless liming practices on uplands are restored and

maintained, since lime encourages earthworm populations which in turn increases water infiltration.

If such a requirement is introduced, the accuracy of the habitat maps on RPW Online will be crucial

as will be both the Data Confirmation process and Habitat Baseline Review in ensuring that farmers

are in agreement with the maps provided. The burden for RPW of processing corrections to what are

widely accepted as grossly inaccurate maps cannot be underestimated, highlighting the need for a

realistic SFS implementation date and transition period.

For all habitat types, the Welsh Government must consider and review any of the aims, outcomes,

recommendations, restrictions and derogations if for any reason they result in unintended

consequences and the targeted results are not achieved. In this scenario, members questioned

whether penalties would apply if the desired outcomes were not achieved.

Reductions in Livestock Units (LUs) may also create challenges for managing certain types of habitats

which thrive on the mixed grazing of cattle and sheep.

The FUW would welcome further discussions with the Welsh Government in finalising the details

around the aims, outcomes, recommendations, restrictions and derogations for each habitat type.

The practicalities of these management prescriptions must be considered in the context of costs

incurred and income foregone at the very least given that, for example, reducing stocking rates on

enclosed semi-natural grasslands to 0.7 LUs per hectare could mean having to purchase hundreds of

extra silage bales due to a shortage of fodder over winter.

7.9 Scheme rule - at least 10% of each farm is managed as habitat

The FUW is completely opposed to making it mandatory for every farmer within the scheme to

manage at least 10% of their land as habitat.

This scheme rule would reduce the productivity and economic viability of vast numbers of farms,

potentially by up to 10%, and currently poses a significant barrier for entering the scheme, especially

27Tudalen y pecyn 153



for those farming improved areas of Wales. It would also compromise the quality of vast areas of

higher grade land that should be preserved for food production.

Nevertheless, the Welsh Government’s inclusion of hedgerows and the ground flora of certain

woodland areas into the definition of habitat is welcomed.

The SFS proposals represent the biggest change in agricultural policy in Wales since the UK joined the

EU CAP in 1973. As such, the Welsh Government must appreciate that farmers will not be able to

comply with this scheme rule within 12 months as they face a plethora of other challenges and many

will choose not to participate.

Therefore, the FUW believes the Welsh Government should withdraw this as a scheme rule and

instead introduce an overarching scheme aim of increasing areas of habitat by a proportion that is

manageable and realistic, and does not compromise production or the economic viability of farming

businesses (see 10.0 FUW proposals for a Sustainable Farming Scheme framework).

This would allow farmers to continue to receive support to maintain and manage current habitat

areas with the option of creating new habitat through the Optional Actions layer of the scheme.

7.10 UA8: Create temporary habitat on improved land

In light of the above, the FUW believes that this Universal Action should be offered as an Optional

Action.

FUW members also questioned whether the establishment of mixed leys or wildlife cover crops on

improved land would require the use of herbicides to spray off the productive grass ley beforehand.

7.11 UA9: Designated Site Management Plans

The FUW is particularly concerned by the fact that the Welsh Government is unable to support

farmers to maintain and manage SSSIs through the universal layer of the scheme. Some farms are

almost entirely categorised as SSSI and would therefore be placed at a severe disadvantage

compared to other producers across Wales if they don’t receive maintenance payments - thereby

having the perverse effect of penalising those farming what have been categorised as Wales’ most

precious land.

Furthermore, the FUW believes that further support should be made available through the Optional

Layer of the scheme to support the implementation of these management plans.

Due to budgetary pressures, Natural Resources Wales (NRW) took the decision in October 2023 to

pause the signing of further Section 15 Management Agreements for SSSIs until the end of the

28Tudalen y pecyn 154



current financial year. The ability of NRW to continue with these plans during the next financial year

also remains unclear.

The Welsh Government must therefore seriously consider NRW’s capacity to issue management

agreements for all SSSI areas over the next five years.

7.12 UA10: Ponds and scrapes

In light of the comments regarding the scheme rule of having at least 10% of each farm being

managed as habitat, the FUW also believes this Universal Action should be included as an Optional

Action.

It is clear from the consultation paper that the Welsh Government has failed to consider the

practicalities of creating new ponds and scrapes and the hazards they bring.

The creation of new ponds and scrapes will be limited by a number of factors such as soil type,

Environmental Impact Assessments (EIAs) and planning permission, as well as the need to obtain

permission from the landlord.

Whilst the management prescriptions for ponds allow for greater flexibility in terms of stock

exclusion, the Welsh Government should at least provide capital grant support to do so if the farmer

requires as such water features can act as favourable breeding grounds for livestock infections such

as fluke and for the transmission of avian influenza and Escherichia coli.

7.13 UA11: Hedgerow management

The FUW is generally supportive of this Universal Action and the need to maintain hedgerows in

good condition.

However, the practicalities of some of the management prescriptions must be addressed. The height

and width of hedgerows is often restricted by physical barriers such as ditches, roads and other

permanent features. Exemptions to the 1.5 / 2 metres height or width requirements should therefore

apply to take these into consideration as moving other features can be costly and unrealistic.

It’s also worth noting that hedgerows of less than 1.5 / 2m can provide better shelter and habitat for

wildlife species in some cases. In coastal areas, these criteria should be reduced to a more realistic

target such as 1m.

The requirement to have standard trees spaced along the length of the hedgerows with a minimum

of 1 tree per 50m length on average is also unrealistic. Some hedgerows may be made up of species

that do not naturally grow into full trees, meaning gaps would have to be created within hedgerows

large enough for an individual tree to be planted - likely causing environmental damage.

29Tudalen y pecyn 155



This also has the potential to result in boundary disputes and complications between landlords and

tenants when trying to decide who owns and has management control of those individual trees

within hedgerows.

It should also be noted that for certain types of boundaries, such as cloddiau (banks) with hedges on

top, allowing trees to grow above a certain height will increase the risk that they are uprooted by

wind, causing severe damage to the habitat provided by the clawdd. This is particularly the case in

coastal areas, where such boundaries often predominate.

Having hedgerows that are stock proof in their own right is also often impractical and therefore the

annual side trimming of certain boundaries should be permitted if there are animal welfare issues

with livestock, and especially youngstock, getting caught in vegetation.

It should also be noted that some hedgerows, due to the restricted size of many fields across Wales,

are less than 20m in length although they should still be considered as habitat.

It is also disappointing to note that other boundaries such as traditional stone walls which offer

unique habitat to certain wildlife species are not being considered as habitat features within the

scheme, and such boundaries should therefore be included.

7.14 UA12: Woodland maintenance

As with maintenance of current habitat features, the FUW appreciates the need to appropriately

manage and maintain current woodland areas on-farm.

Given that current BPS recipients do not receive a payment on these areas, support payments to

maintain these areas and reward farmers for doing so would be welcomed. However, such funding

must reflect the full costs that management entails.

As highlighted above in regards to ponds and scrapes, although it will not be a scheme requirement

to stock exclude these areas, most farmers would prefer to do so given the risks associated with

livestock wandering into woodlands. As such, the Welsh Government should consider offering capital

grants for those that wish to fence off existing woodland areas on their farms.

7.15 Scheme rule - at least 10% under tree cover as woodland or individual trees

This proposal remains the most controversial and significant barrier to scheme entry for vast

numbers of farmers, and it is disappointing that only limited concessions have been made since it

was originally proposed. This is despite the fact that the FUW and others have consistently

highlighted the problems inherent to the proposal, and the co-design results highlighted that 43%

30Tudalen y pecyn 156



would not be able undertake this action, completely undermining the Welsh Government’s ambition

to ensure more than 16,000 farm businesses enter the SFS.

The average economic and employment value of forestry per unit area is consistently a fraction of

that of agriculture, while for deciduous woodland the figures are so low as to be close to zero.

Similarly, the value of woodland per hectare is generally lower than that of agricultural land.

Such factors, coupled with the fact that once agricultural land is converted to woodland it is

effectively permanently lost to agriculture due to legislation, combine to make the planting of large

areas of farmland with trees highly unattractive for Welsh farm businesses, particularly from an

economic point of view.

This is highlighted in the economic impact assessment published alongside the consultation, which

also underlines the areas of Wales and sectors where the 10% target represents the biggest

challenges (Figures 1 and 2 below)

Figure 1

31Tudalen y pecyn 157



Figure 2

The significant barriers for all sectors, and in particular for arable and dairy farms, represented by the

10% target are apparent from these figures, and these, combined with the huge estimated falls in

Farm Business Income brought about by the loss of productive farmland to tree planting and other

adverse impacts from proposed SFS scheme rules clearly show why large numbers of businesses will

not participate in the scheme in its current form.

It is also notable that the requirement to plant more than 28,200 hectares of woodland if all farms

sign up to the SFS represents the planting of more trees in Wales in the coming five years than have

been planted over the past fifty - a goal that brings with it huge challenges in terms of labour and the

supply of saplings.

The modelling also highlights the likelihood that Welsh food production will be significantly reduced

as a result of such tree planting, leading to a likely increase in food production and imports from

countries which have far lower environmental (and health and welfare) standards than those in place

in Wales - leading to potential increased deforestation in those countries that outweighs the positive

impacts of any additional tree planting in Wales. This would be a perverse outcome that would go

against Wales’ wellbeing objective in terms of being globally responsible.

The Welsh Government’s proposals around 10% tree cover clearly originate from its target to plant a

total of 180,000 hectares of trees by 2050 in Wales, which in turn has stemmed from advice received

by the UK Climate Change Committee (CCC).

32Tudalen y pecyn 158



The purpose of the UK CCC is to ‘advise the UK and devolved governments on emissions targets and

to report to Parliament on progress made in reducing greenhouse gas emissions and preparing for

and adapting to the impacts of climate change’.

Calculations around future carbon budgets are extremely complex, therefore at best the advice the

UK CCC is able to provide to each of the UK nations is based on complicated algorithms and desktop

assumptions. It is not the role of the UK CCC to advise each of the UK nations on how to achieve

these targets.

However, the Welsh Government has implemented this 2050 tree planting target without any

thought around how to achieve it in practical terms and therefore farmers feel unfairly targeted by

this proposed scheme rule as a result of the Welsh Government’s inability to consider net zero in a

holistic way.

To this end, the UK CCC, the FUW and many other organisations have supported a ‘right tree in the

right place’ policy and yet this message has been lost within the Welsh Government during the

development of the SFS. In this context, FUW members do recognise the fact that individual trees

and woodland do provide some benefits such as shaded areas for livestock and habitat for wildlife

species. However, it has been proved in many cases that tree planting can be hugely damaging to

ground nesting birds such as the endangered curlew.

The FUW fully appreciates the pressures created by the climate emergency and the need for every

individual and sector in Wales to work towards net zero. However, there is a need to generate a far

better understanding of carbon emissions and sequestration on-farm first and foremost in order to

fully understand the options available to farmers to play their part.

For instance, is it estimated that around 410 million tonnes of carbon is currently stored in Welsh

soils and yet this is likely to be extremely variable and therefore there is a need to understand the

relationships between different land management practices and carbon cycles. The Environment and

Rural Affairs Monitoring & Modelling Programme (ERAMMP) suggest that actively changing land use

from grassland to woodland involving tree planting can lead to initial losses of soil carbon, whereas

other studies have found that soil carbon declines by 10% when converted to forestry.

It is clear from research studies to date that there are many tools in the box farmers can use

alongside tree planting to work towards the same end goal.

Research conducted by Farming Connect found that the greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) of beef

enterprises in Wales are already 17% less than the benchmark future for upland suckler spring

calving cows published in The Farm Management Handbook 2022/23.

For sheep enterprises, Welsh emissions on a per kg of deadweight basis were 9.3% lower than the

UK benchmark figure for hill ewe flocks.

33Tudalen y pecyn 159



Hybu Cig Cymru - Meat Promotion Wales (HCC) has also found that a combination of management

practices which improve production efficiencies can reduce emissions by more than 20% for the

sheep sector and 11% for the beef sector.

Whilst barriers to on-farm renewable energy production still exist, these developments offer

solutions which work alongside food production, support UK energy security and Welsh Government

targets for renewable energy production, and are options farmers are willing to explore.

While figures vary significantly depending on a number of variables, solar panels can be considered

to reduce carbon emissions by orders of magnitude more carbon per unit area compared with tree

planting.

For example, a hectare of deciduous trees can capture between 300 and 350 tonnes of carbon over a

100 year period - equating to between 3 and 3.5 tonnes of carbon, or between 11 and 13 tonnes of

CO2, per year.

By comparison, given that solar panels in the UK can be expected to produce between 150 and

200kWh of electricity a year per square metre, and that the carbon intensity of UK electricity

production is around 0.265kg per kWh (a figure which includes existing renewable energy

production, and therefore underestimates the positive impacts of offsetting), an area of between

200m2 and 330m2 of solar panels can be expected to offset as much carbon production as an entire

hectare of trees.

Such figures equate to solar panels being between 30 and 50 times more effective than tree planting

per unit area in terms of offsetting carbon emissions. While the FUW certainly does not advocate the

inappropriate use of agricultural land for solar energy production, it is notable that achieving the

carbon equivalent of the 10% tree planting target by using solar power would mean farms giving up

an average of not 3% (as is the case for meeting the tree planting target) , but 0.1% of their farmland.

Similarly, a single 15kW wind turbine or 10kW hydro turbine on a farm might be expected to reduce

carbon emissions by around the same amount as planting a hectare of trees, and such benefits

would be far greater for the larger turbines of the type already present on a number of farms.

The FUW is of the view that there is clearly a significant opportunity for utilising renewable energy

production on Welsh farms in ways which are far more effective than tree planting at mitigating

climate change, and in ways which would bolster UK energy security without compromising

significant areas of farmland.

The FUW therefore calls on the Welsh Government to establish an independent panel tasked with

evaluating the science around net zero and carbon sequestration to help develop the SFS in such a

way that takes into account all actions farmers can undertake to make progress towards net zero in a

sustainable way.

34Tudalen y pecyn 160



Other points the Welsh Government must consider as part of this process include:

a. Implications for tax relief on agricultural land that is planted with trees

b. How the carbon sequestered by trees is managed within carbon markets

c. Whether there are enough saplings and available workers to reach tree planting targets

d. The liability on the farmer if trees are destroyed by disease i.e. ash dieback or by wildfires

(this also applies to UA12: Woodland maintenance)

e. How the requirement conflicts directly with the Control of Agricultural Pollution regulations,

whereby farmers must calculate their nitrogen loading on the amount of spreadable area

available

f. Clear guidance on exemptions for tenants which addresses how trees on all rented areas of

land will be considered

g. How costs incurred and income foregone calculations will include depreciation in land value

h. How such depreciation will be dealt with by banks which have accepted agricultural land as

security against loans and overdrafts

i. Implications for wildlife populations and disease risk, and the need to provide support for

species management to improve the condition of existing woodland and the establishment

of new woodland

In light of the above, the FUW is fully opposed to making it mandatory for every farmer within the

scheme to have at least 10% tree cover on their farm.

The FUW believes the Welsh Government should withdraw this as a scheme rule and instead use the

findings of the independent panel to introduce an overarching scheme aim which focuses on

reducing the carbon footprint of the agricultural sector in a sustainable way, which is manageable

and realistic, and does not compromise production or the economic viability of farming businesses

(see 10.0 FUW proposals for a Sustainable Farming Scheme Framework).

This would allow farmers to continue to receive support to maintain and manage current woodland

areas with the option of looking at ways to reduce their carbon footprint, which may include the

creation of new woodland, through the Optional Actions layer of the scheme.

7.16 UA13: Create new woodland and agro-forestry

In light of the above, the FUW believes that this Universal Action should be offered as an Optional

Action alongside other actions which target support towards more efficient farming methods.

The Welsh Government should also rethink its intention to plant ‘less productive areas’ of Wales

given that the areas of Wales categorised as Less Favoured Areas (LFA) and Severely Disadvantaged

Areas (SDA) are 79% and 56% respectively.

35Tudalen y pecyn 161



7.17 UA14: Historic environment - maintenance and enhancement

FUW members questioned how the Welsh Government will expect farmers to maintain certain

historical features such as traditional farm buildings and to what extent. It may be uneconomical to

repair certain features without support that may run into tens of thousands of pounds, and therefore

this will have to be factored into the payment methodology.

It is also unclear whether, under the SFS, the onus would be on the farmer to repair third party

criminal damage to historical features or damage caused by wildlife and whether failure to do so

would result in a financial penalty.

This is another Universal Action that needs to consider tenancy agreements given that in the

majority of cases the landlord retains the control of any historical buildings or features. The tenant

may need to seek permission from the landlord to undertake certain maintenance works.

These requirements may also place yet further barriers on those that may seek to renovate derelict

agricultural buildings into residential properties or holiday accommodation.

Similarly, the FUW would welcome further discussions and co-design with the Welsh Government on

finalising the list of measurable outcomes and restrictions for each historical feature.

7.18 UA15: The Animal Health Improvement Cycle

FUW members were not opposed to this Universal Action in principle. However, they questioned the

need for it to be included given that the majority of farmers already complete Animal Health

Improvement Cycles as part of their farm assurance. The FUW would oppose any moves to

implement an AHIC that goes above and beyond current farm assurance requirements. Aside from

the lack of any evidentiary support for an increase in standards, there is concern that this could

result in an animal health ‘arms race’ as buyers continue to strive to differentiate their product from

the current welfare baseline, which is already above that in the vast majority of countries around the

globe - countries which are increasingly at liberty to import sub-standard products into the UK.

As such, it’s imperative that the RPW Online system can automatically communicate with other data

collection systems in order to avoid duplication and increased pressure on veterinary practices.

7.19 UA16: Good animal welfare

Please note section 7.2 UA2: Continuous Personal Development.

36Tudalen y pecyn 162



The Welsh Government should also consider exemptions for those that have i) already completed

training on lameness and body condition scoring and/or ii) body condition score their stock and

check for lameness on a regular basis.

7.20 UA17: Good farm biosecurity

The FUW maintains that the need to have wash stations on each and every farm must be considered

in the context of cost and effectiveness.

The installation of wash stations will be costly in terms of concrete, running water systems in some

cases and the purchase and disposal of chemicals, all of which will have to be compensated for

within the payment methodology. The Welsh Government should provide guidance on how farmers

should dispose of their waste chemicals and whether a costly permit from NRW is required.

FUW members also queried how such a proposal would be implemented and cost effective on farms

with multiple access points, including those that are split into discrete units and separate holdings.

Members questioned the effectiveness of having wash stations available for certain individuals to

clean their equipment when focussing on the biosecurity risk of public rights of way may be more

beneficial in terms of animal health - particularly on farms which are crossed by busy National Trails

such as the Wales Coastal Path.

The ability of farmers to secure all land boundaries may also be difficult in some circumstances when

it is the legal responsibility of neighbouring landowners to do so - including those who may not be

farmers and may not be participants in the SFS. In this context, FUW members continue to

experience issues with the poor maintenance of boundaries along Welsh Government owned land

managed by NRW.

The wording around the requirement to undertake a biosecurity assessment with the vet on the

disease risks associated with sourcing and the introduction of incoming animals also suggests that

this would require a vet visit every time a farmer brings new stock onto the farm, given that the

disease risk will differ between groups of animals. Veterinary practices are already under immense

pressure and such an approach would only increase bureaucracy for both farmers and vets.

As part of the biosecurity risk assessment, both the disease status and provenance of incoming

animals must be recorded. As per the FUW’s response to the Welsh Government’s 2021 Refreshed

Bovine TB Programme consultation, there is significant concern amongst members that this UA could

lead to financial penalties for purchases classified as risky and that this could lead to a two tier

market and the devaluation of low risk stock from high risk areas.

The ability to evaluate the disease risk of livestock will heavily rely on the diseases in question and

the health data that’s available for those animals at time of purchase. It is unclear whether the

37Tudalen y pecyn 163



biosecurity risk assessment pertains to a set of predetermined diseases or whether farms can

prioritise those diseases that have the most meaningful impact upon their own individual business.

Whilst the FUW does not oppose the principle of risk based trading, discussions surrounding risk

based trading must recognise the balance between the need for information, the burden of collating

such information and the resultant detrimental effects on some flocks and herds. Defining the overall

disease risk of a potential purchase is complex and multi-faceted and requires significant further

discussion with industry and veterinary experts prior to implementation. As such, the FUW would

oppose moves within the SFS to introduce risk based trading by the back door.

8.0 Universal Actions modelling results

The FUW has consistently called for rigorous economic modelling and analysis to be undertaken that

includes the impact on those directly working within agriculture but also secondary and tertiary

businesses based in rural areas that rely directly or indirectly on agriculture for a proportion of their

income.

The FUW therefore welcomed the publication of the ADAS modelling results of the potential

economic effects of the SFS alongside the consultation. However, for such an important scheme as

the future of agriculture in Wales, the modelling is simplistic and clearly hasn’t received the attention

an analysis of this type deserves.

The Minister for Rural Affairs also claims that this modelling report is based on an earlier version of

the scheme and is therefore out of date. The FUW would seriously question the inability of the Welsh

Government to at the very least publish a valid economic impact assessment alongside the final

consultation.

This is particularly the case given that vast sums have been spent over many years by the Welsh

Government on environmental modelling (ERAMMP), resulting in the publication of numerous

reports comprising hundreds of pages. While such modelling is welcome, the disparity between this

and the 23 page report on economic modelling published at the 11th hour suggests an indifference

on the part of the Welsh Government to the impacts of its plans on Welsh businesses and jobs, and

the Welsh economy.

In summary, the modelling results suggest:

a. A reduction of up to £199 million in Farm Business Income (a reduction of 85%)

b. A loss of up to £125 million in farm outputs

c. 122,000 fewer Livestock Units

d. 11% fewer Standard Labour Requirements (SLRs) on-farm (between 2,500 and 5,500 jobs)

e. Even with the additional ‘top-up’ stability payment, the modelling results suggest economic

losses of between £59 million (25%) and £82 million (35%) in Farm Business Income

38Tudalen y pecyn 164



f. Close to 100% of farms experiencing a reduction in Farm Business Income in all scenarios

considered

The modelling report also shows the average area of every farm in different parts of Wales that

would need to be planted with trees to reach the current 10% tree cover target. While the average

for all of Wales is around 3.5 hectares per farm, for some areas such as Ceredigion and northwest

Wales the average is over 4 hectares which would equate to a financial loss of up to £100,000 worth

of productive agricultural land, in addition to possible tax implications of converting farmland to

woodland.

It should be noted that this report assumes an uptake of 100% and fails to take into account any

economic impacts beyond the farm gate. As such, and given the fact that during selected FUW

regional meetings only 10% of the farmers present expressed the view that they would consider

entering the scheme in its current form (mainly due to financial reasons rather than aspirations), the

potential economic impacts of the scheme are likely to be far greater.

Even if the modelling report is based on an earlier version of the scheme, the policy framework

proposed by the Welsh Government has not changed greatly since 2021 and therefore the economic

analysis is likely to remain valid, meaning the scheme in its current form still remains to be

unsustainable for Welsh agriculture and the rural economy.

The UK’s susceptibility to recent global events has rarely been exposed so starkly as during the past

three years. The Covid-19 pandemic and the conflict in Ukraine have demonstrated the volatility of

global supply chains and the UK’s reliance on imports of key commodities such as oil and gas.

It’s also important to note that the demand for animal products in developing countries is

anticipated to more than double by 2030 and that 60% more food will be needed worldwide by 2050

to feed an estimated 9.7 billion people.

Any reduction in livestock numbers represents a serious threat for the future of food production in

Wales and the impact that will have on UK food imports, food miles and the offshoring of emissions

to other countries. It’s therefore vital that the SFS underpins the supply of high quality sustainable

food produced by family farms in Wales. This cannot be underestimated in the context of current

events, and it must also be noted that reductions in livestock numbers, such as those estimated in

the modelling results, will threaten the viability of Wales’ food processing sector which requires a

critical mass of throughput to be economically sustainable.

The SFS must be sustainable in all meanings of the word - socially, environmentally and economically.

The Welsh Government must distinguish the difference between a resilient agricultural industry e.g.

being able to recover quickly from difficult conditions, and a sustainable agricultural industry e.g.

able to be maintained at a certain level.

It is therefore imperative that the Welsh Government analyses this data to rethink the scheme

through genuine co-design with both farming unions and to avoid these detrimental impacts.

39Tudalen y pecyn 165



9.0 FUWmodelling on direct farm support

The FUW recently published a report entitled “The Role of Farm Support in Wales’ Livestock Supply

Chains”.1 Under two scenarios, whereby BPS payments are reduced by 50% or removed altogether,

this report models how, where farms make no other changes to their farming practices, farm profits

for each farm might be maintained at average levels through:

1. Increases in profit received for livestock from the market

2. Increases in profit received per hectare of land farmed or

3. Reductions in selected input costs

In the context of these results, it should be noted that the ADAS modelling report predicts reductions

in FBI of between 25% (with a diminishing ‘top-up’ stability payment) and 85% under an assumption

of 100% uptake. The figures summarised below for both the scenarios whereby BPS payments are

reduced by 50% for those that enter the scheme and such payments are removed altogether for

those that cease to receive any form of direct farm support in future are therefore analogous in

many respects to the current SFS scheme proposals.

9.1 Model 1: Increases in profit received for livestock

The modelling shows that, in the absence of other changes to farm businesses, the increases in profit

received for livestock enterprises required to maintain farm incomes, where BPS payments are

reduced by 50% and 100%, are significant for all farm categories considered.

For the scenario where the BPS is reduced by 50%, these range from a required increased profit per

ewe of between £18.09 (hill cattle and sheep) and £24.06 (lowland cattle and sheep) coupled with an

increased profit per cow of between £120.63 (hill cattle and sheep) and £160.39 (lowland cattle and

sheep).

If it were assumed that all offspring (i.e. lambs and calves) are ultimately sold as finished animals at

average weights (i.e. 32kg for lambs and 480kg for calves), then based on the Welsh Government’s

2021 liveweight prices of £2.65/kg for lamb and £2.23/kg for finished cattle, market prices would

have to rise by between 16% and 21% for lamb and by between 13% and 17% for finished cattle

under a scenario whereby BPS payments are cut by 50% in order to maintain farm incomes.

This equates to increases in market prices of between 35% and 43% for lamb and between 26% and

33% for finished cattle for the scenario whereby BPS payments are cut by 100%.

Such increases would necessitate either farmers receiving a far greater share of the profits made by

processors and retailers further along the supply chain, an increase in the prices paid by consumers,

or a combination of both. However, such changes may be difficult to sustain given pressures on

1 https://www.fuw.org.uk/images/pdf/the_role_of_farm_support_in_wales_livestock_supply_chains-fuw_november_2023.pdf

40Tudalen y pecyn 166



processors’ margins and household incomes as well as increased competition from cheaper imports

from countries that continue to benefit from significant farm support (for example EU countries) or

lower production standards and economies of scale (for example Australia).

9.2 Model 2: Increases in profit received per hectare

Given the area-based and redistributive elements of BPS payments, the increases in profit per

hectare required to maintain farm profit for all farm types were found to be similar, with figures

highest for upland and lowland cattle and beef farms - reflecting the generally smaller size (and

therefore larger contribution of redistributive payments) of such farms.

While this reflects obvious impacts per hectare of reductions in an area based payment scheme, the

figures do highlight the challenges of increasing profitability per hectare given reductions in support

payments.

For example, lowland cattle and sheep farms would have to increase their profits received per

hectare by £88 in order to maintain farm income for the scenario whereby BPS payments are cut by

50%. This increases to £176 for the scenario whereby BPS payments are removed altogether.

Moreover, while some have rightly highlighted the role that Government supported investments in

technology, equipment and infrastructure can play in improving, for example, productivity and

animal health and welfare, it is difficult to envisage scenarios whereby such investments increase

profits per hectare by hundreds of pounds, as would be required to make up for the loss of part or all

of the BPS or similar direct support.

This is particularly the case given that, while such investments on more productive/intensive (for

example arable) farms might be expected to increase profits per hectare by tens or scores of pounds,

such increases are far more difficult to realise on the far less productive LFA and SDA land that makes

up around 80% of Welsh farmland.

9.3 Model 3: Reductions in input costs

The results highlight the significant savings that would have to be made for all farm types if farm

profits were maintained purely by reducing expenditure on key inputs, with annual reductions for

different categories ranging from £113 (upland cattle and sheep expenditure on other contracting/

machinery hire) where BPS payments are cut by 50% to £6,708 (hill sheep expenditure on feeds)

where BPS payments are cut by 100% (see Table 3 in Appendix 1).

While it is clearly unrealistic for such significant cuts to be made without severe impacts for farm

infrastructure, productivity, animal health and welfare etc., and that different farms and sectors

would choose to make cuts in different areas depending upon circumstances, by apportioning cuts

41Tudalen y pecyn 167



proportionately to current expenditure the model provides useful insights into the potential direct

and knock-on effects of cuts.

However, as already stated, different farms and sectors would choose to make cuts in different areas

depending upon circumstances, and while efficiencies might be found in all categories, costs in some

would be deemed more expendable than others, and therefore be more vulnerable to cuts,

irrespective of the scale of these.

For example, while expenditure directly related to production, such as feed and fertiliser costs, might

remain relatively unchanged on an individual farm in order to maintain levels of production (at least

in the short term), this would necessitate major cuts in other areas, such as those relating to the

more general maintenance of the farm (fences, hedges etc.) and farm machinery (machinery repairs

and maintenance) and/or animal health and welfare (reductions in vet visits, vaccination

programmes etc.).

While such cuts might make up for the loss of payments in the short term, they would inevitably

have long term implications for farm productivity.

Above all else, such reductions in expenditure highlight the impacts for the wider economy, and in

particular the rural economy, and the potential impacts on businesses such as veterinary practices,

agricultural merchants, garages etc. - with clear consequences for rural employment. Such impacts

would extend to those businesses that are not necessarily regarded as agricultural, but which rely

directly or indirectly on farms for a proportion of their income.

Furthermore, these results, based on the scaling up of such figures based on the total number of

farms in the Farm Business Survey (FBS) data set (8,937), provide a useful illustration of the total falls

in income for businesses linked directly and indirectly with agriculture that might be experienced in

the scenarios considered.

Moreover, given that these reductions represent only a proportion of the total expenditure in those

categories, it should be noted that the figures in the report by no means represent maximum

possible reductions.

For example, while a total reduction of £12.15 million for veterinary and medicine expenditure might

be expected if all farms reduced their expenditure proportionally across key input areas in order to

maintain profit levels if the BPS was removed altogether, the total expenditure in that category for all

farms in the FBS livestock categories is estimated to be £34.61 million.

As such, while it is impossible to precisely model the impacts of cuts to BPS or equivalent funding on

those who rely directly or indirectly on expenditure by farms, it is clear that such cuts would have a

major knock on effect on many Welsh non-farming businesses, with some sectors potentially losing

tens of millions in income, with inevitable impacts for business viability, employment and so forth.

42Tudalen y pecyn 168



In reality, the ways in which farms, farm types and sectors would react to the loss of part or all of the

funding that, on average, makes up 96% of livestock farm profits (without taking account of unpaid

labour costs) would vary significantly.

For example, some may be able to change to what have over recent years been more profitable

agricultural sectors, such as dairy or poultry production, while others may successfully diversify into

tourism or other sectors.

However, as well as being limited for many by affordability, land topography and fertility etc. and

restrictions such as landscape designations - not to mention environmental restrictions - the scope

for diversification into any area is also limited by ceilings relating to market saturation, as

experienced recently by many farms that have diversified into certain types of holiday

accommodation.

It should also be noted that the skillset of a vast proportion of those who may attempt to diversify

their income by working off-farm will be primarily in agriculture - a sector that, by definition, would

be far less able to afford the services of those with such a skillset in the advent of such cuts to

support.

As such, policy makers and others must be sober and realistic about the limited scope for

diversification to make up significantly for losses imposed as a result of such changes.

It should also be noted that a significant proportion of expenditure in the wider economy by the circa

6,000 farms not included in the FBS population is also derived from BPS payments - expenditure

amounting to tens of millions which is not accounted for in this analysis.

Given the focus of the Welsh Government’s SFS proposals on environmental outcomes, it should be

noted that agri-environmental payments made from the rural development budget have not been

factored into this analysis.

This is justified on the grounds that under EU Regulations, and in line with World Trade Organisation

rules, payment rates were calculated based on the costs incurred and income foregone of

compliance with agri-environment scheme rules, and therefore should not, on average, have

contributed directly to profits.

In this context, it is worth noting that while the Cross Compliance rules associated with the Basic

Payment Scheme (Statutory Management Requirements and Good Agricultural and Environmental

Conditions rules) will generally have costs associated with them, and therefore undermine the

contribution of the BPS to farm profit, any replacement regime that has far more stringent

restrictions will significantly undermine overall farm profitability, thereby requiring either higher

associated scheme payments, or increases in returns or cuts to expenditure as described to maintain

current levels of farm profit.

This is a factor already exemplified by the fact that many dairy farmers have stated that participating

in the SFS would not make economic sense for their businesses based upon current proposals. Such

43Tudalen y pecyn 169



valid business decisions should naturally raise concerns in terms of any future scheme attracting

sufficient numbers of farms to ensure a critical mass of Welsh land is entered into the scheme such

that desired economic, environmental, social and cultural aspirations are met.

10.0 FUW proposals for a Sustainable Farming Scheme framework

In light of the various concerns raised throughout this consultation response in regards to each

individual Universal Action and the proposed payment methodology, and given that:

a. These proposals come against a backdrop of continuous and costly (including in terms of

mental health) bovine TB breakdowns and bureaucratic agricultural regulations - most

notably in terms of the agricultural pollution regulations

b. The proposed policy framework remains relatively unchanged compared with the proposals

that were published in 2021

c. There remain some huge gaps of fundamentally important detail relating to the payment

methodology, scheme rules and verifiable standards

d. The Welsh Government intends to launch the SFS in around ten months’ time

e. The economic analysis undertaken to date suggests impacts that would be extremely

detrimental to Welsh agriculture and the rural economy

The FUW calls on the Welsh Government to pause the introduction of the SFS to allow adequate

time for a rethink of the proposals through genuine co-design with both farming unions.

In 2021, the FUW and NFU Cymru proposed an alternative SFS framework and presented it to the

Welsh Government as outlined below.

44Tudalen y pecyn 170



Figure 3: The jointly proposed FUW - NFU Cymru Sustainable Farming Scheme framework, 2021

In broad terms, this proposal is not dissimilar to that currently being proposed by the Welsh

Government i.e. the receipt of a sustainability and stability payment for providing annual data and

undertaking universal scheme requirements designed to meet Welsh objectives, with data then used

to target further support in the form of professional advice, grant funding, higher environmental

payments or collaborative catchment-area based funding i.e. Optional and Collaborative Actions.

In reflection of the current SFS proposals and the joint FUW - NFU Cymru proposals, the FUW

believes that the revised framework outlined below should be used as the basis for further co-design

between both farming unions and the Welsh Government.

The FUW therefore welcomes the Welsh Government’s recent commitment to genuinely consider

how the SFS should be redesigned in order to allay the broad range of concerns and fears expressed

by Welsh farmers over recent weeks, and proposes the following course of action:

1. The Welsh Government and key stakeholders, notably the Welsh farming unions, should

agree on revised overarching objectives of the SFS, such that they align with the Welsh Way

45Tudalen y pecyn 171



Forward principles and the nine objectives that underpin the 2021-2027 EU CAP framework

that governs our main competitors

2. Those overarching objectives must include minimising adverse economic impacts and

disruption for businesses, sectors and regions. If necessary, changes reflecting this should be

made to the Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023

3. A small focussed SFS design stakeholder group that includes the farming unions should be

established to consider changes to the SFS and associated payment rates, with the option to

create sub-groups or panels that consider the details of different elements of the SFS - for

example, in relation to broad policy areas such as woodlands, animal health etc.

4. Possible changes considered or proposed by the group/sub-groups should then be assessed

using the economic model developed by ADAS, and evaluated in terms of meeting the

overarching objectives - particularly those relating to economic sustainability

5. The group should also assess the overall budget required to deliver different versions of the

SFS, such that a case can be made to the UK Government for funding, and changes can be

made to the final scheme if that funding falls short of what is required

6. The group should also consider options for transitioning from the BPS to the final SFS scheme

and ensure that the final SFS proposals are practical in terms of their administration by

Welsh Government

7. As already stated, the FUW believes that the introduction of the SFS should be delayed until

properly assessed improvements, as described above, have been made to ensure it is fit for

purpose

The above approach has previously been successful in introducing major changes to schemes,

including over relatively short timescales, and has been advocated by the FUW in terms of the SFS

since 2018.

11.0 Optional and Collaborative Actions

As highlighted above, the FUW is generally supportive of the framework to allow further funding

opportunities through the Optional and Collaborative layers of the scheme. Fair and equal access to

these options for all active farmers in Wales irrespective of whether they receive a universal baseline

payment is also welcomed.

While it’s understandable that the Welsh Government has focussed its attention on developing the

Universal Actions within the scheme design, it is disappointing to note that the Optional and

Collaborative layers have received very little attention over the past two years given that many

46Tudalen y pecyn 172



farmers in specific circumstances i.e. grazing large areas of common land or SSSI areas will

undoubtedly rely heavily on this additional funding.

As such, the FUW believes that these options should be prioritised and introduced at the earliest

possible opportunity:

a. Funding for managing designated SSSIs

b. Payments for common land (in addition to baseline payments on common land)

c. Support for certified organic producers

d. Financial support for on-farm renewable energy production as an alternative to tree planting

to offset carbon emissions

e. Shortening of supply chains for Welsh products

The FUW also supports the continuation of current Rural Investment Schemes alongside the SFS.

12.0 Specific considerations

12.1 Tenants

While the FUW welcomes the concessions for tenants with regards to the 10% tree cover

requirement and the move to annual declarations for those with shorter term agreements, FUW

members have raised a number of practical examples which must be addressed to ensure that

tenants have fair and equal access to the scheme.

For instance, the Welsh Government will need to clarify how land that is rented for between 10 and

12 months of the year will be considered given that the tenant will have management control of that

land for the required number of months but will be unable to guarantee that land complies with the

Universal Actions for the full year.

Historical tenancy agreements have also prevented tenants from entering agri-environment type

schemes such as Glastir. Such clauses will need to be considered in the context of complying with

habitat management requirements i.e. creating ponds or cleaning ditches without permission from

the landlord, and conflicts with the good husbandry requirements within tenancy agreements.

In regards to grazing licences, landlords typically retain full management control of the land and

receive a BPS payment and therefore should be eligible to enter the SFS. However, this may require

the landlord to receive confirmation from the grazier that they have undertaken the Universal

Actions i.e. enterprise specific benchmarking, CPD etc, and poses the risk of creating a two-tiered

market whereby the landlord only seeks graziers who have entered the scheme.

The FUW would welcome further meetings of the tenancy working group to address these practical

and legal issues before the scheme is launched. The Minister has on numerous occasions stated that

47Tudalen y pecyn 173



if the scheme doesn’t work for tenants it doesn’t work at all, and therefore it is crucial that these

concerns are addressed.

12.2 Cross border farm businesses

The FUW appreciates the inability for the Welsh Government to pay for any actions on land in

England. However, the Welsh Government must take into account and align any whole farm actions

and data collection exercises between policies on both sides of the border wherever possible.

12.3 Certified organic farms

The FUW welcomed the recent Welsh Government announcement of an organic support scheme for

certified producers for this year in light of the loss of the Glastir Organic scheme. Whilst on average

the payment rates offered this year are around 30% lower than those received under Glastir, it is

positive that this will be used to incorporate an additional stability payment for organic producers

throughout the transition period.

As the Welsh Government has previously acknowledged, such support will be welcomed by the

sector as the majority rely on support to produce food using organic practices as the premiums they

receive for their products vary rarely reflect the additional challenges and costs associated with

farming in this way.

As such, it is crucial that the Welsh Government avoids any gap in support for organic producers and

prioritises additional support for the sector through the Optional and Collaborative layers of the

scheme.

12.4 New entrants to farming

Although the Welsh Government claims to have removed barriers for new entrants to the industry,

such as removing the need for entitlements, the FUW remains concerned that the issues discussed

by the new entrants working group have been dismissed, including the need to provide additional

financial support to young and new entrants.

Whilst all farmers who choose to enter the SFS will be expected to surrender their entitlements, this

will be particularly impactful for new entrants who may have recently had to spend thousands of

pounds buying entitlements as a considerable investment.

As highlighted above, it is also concerning to note that new entrants will not be eligible for the

proposed stability payment if they enter the industry after 2024 which risks placing them at a

48Tudalen y pecyn 174



competitive disadvantage if the universal baseline payment comes nowhere near to current BPS

levels.

The FUW maintains that the SFS must provide a mechanism for new and young entrants to receive

additional financial support.

12.5 Common land

As already highlighted, commoners must have access to baseline payments if severe economic

impacts are to be avoided for the circa 3,000 commoners who currently receive BPS, some 2,000 of

whom rely on common land for between 25% and 100% of their BPS payments. Such dire economic

impacts would extend to entire communities in vast areas of Wales, given the predominance of

common land in many Welsh parishes where the majority of farmers rely on common land.

Minister Lesley Griffiths has repeatedly provided assurances that commoners would receive baseline

payments, and this commitment should be honoured.

The fact that common land has been eligible for area based payments, in the form of Tir Mynydd, the

Single Payment Scheme and the Basic Payment Scheme, for more than 20 years where they comply

with universal scheme requirements demonstrates that it is possible to continue such an

arrangement. The Welsh Government’s decision to ignore the calls of the FUW and others to ensure

the SFS allows access by thousands of commoners to baseline payments therefore represents a dire

failure on its part that must be rectified.

Whilst separate agreements akin to Glastir Common Land Element may be a viable alternative on

some commons, the large number of Welsh commons that were effectively excluded from such

agreements due to varying circumstances demonstrates the obstacles that exist for many, and why it

is essential that commoners continue to have access to a baseline payment. Members also

highlighted that any Optional and Collaborative Actions agreements for common land should be

administered through a central system such as RPW, and certainly should not require the

establishment of Commons Councils.

It should be noted that Commons Councils are unlikely to address problems, and may well

exacerbate them, given the legal requirements for the structure and workings of a Commons Council

set out in Part 2 of the Commons Act 2006, and the degree to which such Councils may further

disempower graziers.

It should also be noted that the running costs of a Commons Council can be extremely prohibitive

and orders of magnitude higher than the costs of running a Graziers Association, due to the legal

requirements set out in the Commons Act 2006; for example, the estimated annual running cost of a

Cumbrian Commons Council was £40,000 based on the running costs of the Dartmoor Commons

Council.

49Tudalen y pecyn 175



As such, any requirement to form such Councils to access payments would further disenfranchise

and discriminate against graziers compared with their non-commoner counterparts.

The FUW would support the re-establishment of the common land working group to identify ways in

which management agreements could operate and how payments could be administered.

13.0 Business advice and support

The FUW is supportive of the continued provision of business advice and support through the

Farming Connect model - the benefits of such support to date are undeniable.

However, as highlighted above, the SFS represents the biggest change in agricultural policy in Wales

for decades and involves a far greater emphasis on environmental actions and outcomes. The

majority of farmers will have limited experience in areas such as online training, recording KPIs, soil

testing and woodland and habitat management.

Previous Farming Connect programmes have included little focus on some of these areas and it is

therefore envisaged that the future providers of such a service will be required to find the relevant

expertise to provide bilingual support across these key areas.

Further support will also be required in the form of business advice to support farmers in adapting

their businesses as a result of the additional requirements of the SFS or ceasing to receive any direct

farm support e.g. reducing livestock numbers or productive areas of land. In this context, those that

decide not to enter the SFS should still be able to access advice and support through Farming

Connect.

However, in light of current and future budgetary pressures within the Welsh Government and given

the fact that funding for business advice and support will ultimately result in less money being

directed to farm businesses, the FUW maintains that such support must be relative to the overall SFS

budget and the number of participants.

14.0 Regulatory framework

The FUW welcomes the suggestion to align the scheme rules with current cross compliance rules.

However, the FUW is opposed to expanding the scheme rules to include the proposed 10% tree

cover and 10% habitat targets as highlighted above, or additional requirements such as workplace

recycling etc.

The majority of farmers in Wales already produce food to a much higher standard than cross

compliance in accordance with farm assurance schemes such as Red Tractor and FAWL and therefore

the Welsh Government shouldn’t be looking to increase complexity and bureaucracy within the SFS.

50Tudalen y pecyn 176



The Welsh Government must also ensure that the regulatory framework of the scheme, to include

the scheme guidance, verifiable standards, scheme rules etc., are all finalised and made available in

good time ahead of the SFS being introduced. These crucial details must be clear and concise for

farmers to be able to make an informed decision on whether to enter the scheme or not - lessons

can be learned from the Welsh Government’s decision to expect farmers to comply with the Habitat

Wales Scheme requirements from 1st January before being offered a contract.

The FUW would also take this opportunity to once again emphasise members’ opposition to

introducing National Minimum Standards and Civil Sanctions where those standards are not present

or only are in place for those participating in support schemes in countries producing food that

competes with Welsh produce.

14.1 Appeals process

In light of the comments and concerns raised throughout this response, FUW members believe that

the current appeals process and independent appeals panel should be retained.

As farmers adapt to such significant changes to the future of farm support, members felt the need to

retain the current appeals process given the increased risks of mistakes and administrative errors,

including by the Welsh Government.

15.0 Welsh language

While the Welsh language is just one aspect of Wales’ culture, its national and international

significance cannot be underestimated: The number of individuals who speak Welsh is around 170%

higher than for the next most commonly spoken Celtic language (Breton, spoken by an estimated

206,000 people).

Welsh speakers make up 61% of all Celtic language speakers, despite the fact that Wales’ population

comprises less than 20% of the population of all Celtic countries and communities (including

Brittany).

The average proportion of the population of Celtic countries other than Wales who speak their

respective Celtic language is around 3%, with the proportion highest in Brittany (6%); by comparison,

the proportion of adults and children in Wales who speak Welsh is around 20%.

Most importantly, Welsh is by far the single most important Celtic language still in use in homes and

the workplace across large geographic areas; by comparison, other Celtic languages are, to all intents

and purposes, variously preserved within small numbers of individual families, small geographical

pockets, or are solely used in formal, religious and/or educational situations.

51Tudalen y pecyn 177



While the Amaeth Cymru Data and Evidence Group’s 2016 report Farming in Wales and the Welsh

Language found that a far higher proportion of those in the ONS Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing

employment category speak Welsh (29.5%) than in any other category, the Welsh Government

obtained figures which allowed this figure to be further refined, revealing that 43% of those in the

category are able to speak Welsh.

Based on the number of workers per km2 of agriculture compared to forestry, and the differences in

GVA, it’s fair to assume that the majority of Welsh speakers within the Agriculture, Forestry and

Fishing sectors are in fact employed within the agricultural sector.

The 43% figure compares with 27% of workers in education, the sector with the second largest

percentage share after agriculture, forestry and fishing, and 17% for all Welsh workers, meaning the

prevalence of Welsh speakers in the agricultural industry is 153% higher than for Wales as a whole.

The Amaeth Cymru report referred to above also found that in communities where between 30%

and 80% of the community speak Welsh, the proportion who do so within the agriculture category is

significantly higher than the overall average, and higher than for all other work types; for example, in

communities where the proportion who speak Welsh is between 40% and 50%, the proportion who

do so within the agriculture category is 64%. In many parts of Wales the farming community remains

crucial to the retention of the language as a living community language.

As such, any proposals which compromise Welsh farm businesses, farming communities or Welsh

agriculture in general represent a significant threat to the industry within which the greatest

percentage of Welsh speakers is preserved; the estimated job losses suggests that the current

proposals represent just such a threat.

In this context, it is worth highlighting that employment in the Office for National Statistics’

‘agriculture, forestry and fishing’ category represented 3.2% of workforce jobs in Wales in 2018

(almost three times higher than the UK average), this figure is significantly watered down by

non-agricultural employment in Wales’ large, heavily populated urban areas.

As such, agricultural employment in rural Local Authority areas is far higher than the Welsh average;

for example, in 2017 employment in the category in Ceredigion, Powys, Pembrokeshire and

Carmarthenshire made up circa 12%, 12%, 8% and 7% of workforce jobs respectively (Figure 4),

while in 2011 across vast areas of rural Wales between 15% and 27.4% of workers main work was in

agriculture (Figure 5).

52Tudalen y pecyn 178



Figure 4: Workplace jobs in agriculture, forestry and fishing by Welsh local authority, 2017 (source:

Welsh Government)

53Tudalen y pecyn 179



Figure 5: Share of workers in the agricultural sector, 2011 (source: Welsh Government)

54Tudalen y pecyn 180



Tenant Farmers Association (Wales) 
 

Welsh Parliament Climate Change, Environment and Infrastructure 
Committee  

 
Inquiry on the Welsh Government’s proposals for a Sustainable Farming 

Scheme (SFS)  
 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The Tenant Farmers Association in Wales (TFA Cymru) welcomes the 
opportunity of providing evidence to the Climate Change, Environment and 
Infrastructure Committee as part of its Inquiry on the Welsh Government’s 
proposals for a Sustainable Farming Scheme (SFS). 

1.2 TFA Cymru is the only organisation dedicated to representing the interests of 
those in Wales who do not own the land they use for agriculture, whether 
through tenancies or other means.  Its membership comprises farms of all types 
and sizes but active, family farms predominate.  TFA Cymru welcomes the 
opportunity of responding to this important consultation on the launch of the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme in 2025. 

2. Background 

2.1 TFA Cymru believes that it is important for Welsh Government and the farming 
community to work in partnership to deliver policies that will tackle the dual 
challenges of climate change and nature recovery.  However, this must not be 
at the expense of damaging food security and the resilience of Welsh 
agriculture which would have catastrophic consequences for the people of 
Wales, the farmed landscape and the very environmental outcomes that the 
Welsh Government seeks to secure.  

2.2. TFA Cymru also accepts and appreciates the huge financial challenges under 
which the Welsh Government is having to operate.  However, the entire rural 
affairs budget in Wales last year was some £482 million which represents just 
2% of the overall Welsh budget. Bearing in mind that this is targeted at nearly 
90% of the land area of Wales, producing food, fibre, landscape, biodiversity, 
and carbon services, pound for pound, this is excellent value for money. 

2.3 It is also important to recognise that whilst it has been a blunt instrument, the 
Basic Payment Scheme has delivered support to farmers on an annual basis.  
These payments have been, in many cases, the difference between profit and 
loss for farm businesses within Wales who are already contributing to the 
climate and nature goals being articulated by Welsh Government. As we move 
to a new platform for rewarding farmers, it must not be done in a way which 
destabilises this. That would be entirely counter-productive. 

Tudalen y pecyn 181



2.4 Without a huge shift in returns to primary producers from the marketplace, 
which looks unlikely, public support will continue to be needed to deliver a 
sustainable farming environment in Wales into the future.  Whilst we 
acknowledge the need for reform, any change must be carried out at a 
considered pace to allow as many farm businesses as possible to adjust to the 
new environment. That change must also take into consideration the context 
within which agriculture operates including in respect of trade, supply chains, 
planning, tenancy legislation, wider environmental legislation, plant and animal 
diseases and variable weather and climate.  

2.5 Whilst there is an expressed aspiration to assist farms to be resilient and 
sustainable, TFA Cymru is concerned that the scheme as proposed by Welsh 
Government pays insufficient attention to the financial security of farm 
businesses as against the wider environmental objectives. It is vital that the 
new scheme balances the priorities for economic, environmental, and social 
outcomes.  Keeping profitable farm businesses across Wales is important for 
the Welsh economy, the Welsh environment and Welsh culture and language.  

2.6 TFA Cymru welcomes the recognition by Welsh Government as articulated in 
its consultation document that producing safe, high-quality food is vital for 
Wales.  TFA Cymru also understands the environmental, climate change and 
financial challenges being faced and that agriculture in Wales needs to play its 
part. However, TFA Cymru believes that Welsh agriculture is already playing a 
major role in delivering against these wider policy goals. On carbon emissions 
for example, it is estimated that Welsh agriculture is responsible for 14% of 
overall emissions within Wales. Bearing in mind that it is occupying 88% of the 
land area of the country, acre for acre it is delivering a hugely efficient carbon 
position against the 12% of the area of Wales producing 86% of overall carbon 
emissions. In addition, through the management of land with cattle and sheep, 
Welsh farmers are responsible for the sequestration and storage of vast 
amounts of carbon in their soils, hedgerows, and existing woodlands on farms. 

2.7 Care must be taken not to allow domestic sources of food, particularly red meat 
and dairy, to be diminished only to be sourced for consumers from abroad from 
countries who are less efficient in terms of carbon management, thereby 
offshoring our emissions of CO2.  Equally, farming should not be the scapegoat 
for the rest of society in having to sacrifice vast amounts of land for tree 
planting to soak up carbon emissions from other parts of society including 
transportation and energy production.  Red meat and dairy production are often 
popularly, but wrongly, castigated for their impact on carbon emissions when 
in fact through their grassland and soil management they are doing much to 
benefit our net carbon position.  It will be important to ensure that we avoid 
knee-jerk reactions which could make our net carbon position, on a global basis, 
worse rather than better. There are also severe doubts about the extent to 
which tree planting will enhance net carbon sequestration particularly when 

Tudalen y pecyn 182



there is poor site selection for planting which would be engendered by a blanket 
approach to tree cover as promoted by the new scheme. 

2.8 The Sustainable Farming Scheme must work to secure the continuation of 
productive and resilient agriculture which can continue to provide the beneficial 
ecosystems services to the rest of society through farming’s wider management 
of the environment and its biodiversity.  Taking the proposals for the scheme 
in the round, TFA Cymru is concerned that it will fail to deliver the necessary 
balance and a major rethink is essential before the scheme is launched next 
year.  If that means adding a further year to the transition, then so be it.  For 
such a major policy change, it is vital we get this right.  

3. The Sustainable Farming Scheme Framework 

3.1 The TFA recognises that the Sustainable Farming Scheme will sit above the 
minimum requirements set out in law. In that respect, as we move away from 
the direct payments model which has had cross compliance, it is accepted that 
a new regulatory framework will be required. This framework must be rooted 
in a sensible, proportionate and enforceable new regulatory system.  However, 
in creating this new framework TFA Cymru argues that Welsh Government must 
not take the opportunity to raise the regulatory bar.   

3.2 One area in which we fear that this is already occurring is in relation to the new 
agriculture pollution control regulations operating within Wales.  There are 
specific issues for tenant farmers where fixed equipment on their holdings is 
the responsibility of their landlords in terms of ensuring compliance with 
statutory and regulatory requirements. Tenant farmers who are doing all they 
can on a reasonable basis to comply, notwithstanding their landlords’ positions, 
should not be penalised in respect of their access to the scheme. TFA Cymru is 
also concerned to ensure that land covered by statutory designations (for 
example earmarked as SSSIs) should have full and unimpeded access to the 
new arrangements rather than seeking to force individuals to produce 
environmental outcomes purely through the regulatory regime. 

4. Universal Actions 

4.1 Whilst the three-tier structure of Universal, Optional and Collaborative Actions 
proposed by the recent consultation makes sense, the key will be to ensure 
that the measures allocated to each action are appropriate and proportionate. 
Universal Actions should, by their nature, be those actions which most farms 
within Wales can adhere to where applicable to the nature of their farming 
operations. 

4.2 The TFA acknowledges the benefit of benchmarking and understands the 
benefit of building this practice into the Universal Actions of the scheme. 
However, it will be essential to ensure that the KPIs identified are widely 
acknowledged as being beneficial whilst at the same time being relatively easy 
to collect. It must operate in a way which allows farmers to assess, collect and 

Tudalen y pecyn 183



report the data without having to use agents or consultants and there will need 
to be a clear route for those who do not have digital access. 

4.3 As with benchmarking, the TFA acknowledges the benefit of continuous 
professional development for farmers. Whilst some farmers will undertake little, 
if any, activities which benefit their continuous professional development, there 
will be many who will be at a stage over and above what is been required under 
the Universal Actions. There will need to be provision made for individuals to 
opt out of the modules if they are involved in other, valuable CPD arenas. TFA 
Cymru believes that it will be essential to draw up a list of exemptions where 
individuals can use earned recognition to show compliance with the Universal 
Actions which are intended to show understanding, knowledge and expertise.  
Equally, for those who may need to tap into the modules being provided by 
Welsh Government, consideration will need to be given to how those without 
digital access will be able to participate. 

4.4 The management of soils is a key activity for farm businesses, and TFA Cymru 
shares the aspiration of Welsh Government to improve soil health planning 
including through soil testing. However, before this is introduced as a Universal 
Action, we will need to be clear that sufficient capacity exists for the amount of 
additional soil testing that will be required and that there is a suitable 
framework within which issues such as soil carbon and soil organic matter can 
be appropriately measured. Again, access to recording information for those 
without digital capability will need to be properly thought through.  

4.5 In addition, it will be essential to ensure that the person who is recording the 
data is the person who owns the data. Whilst it might be used on an anonymous 
basis as part of an aggregated reporting framework, the consent of the data 
provider, as owner, must be sought before any of the individual data is passed 
onto other individuals including in respect of an end of tenancy situation which 
can be quite sensitive if there are issues of compensation and dilapidations 
being considered as between landlords and tenants. TFA Cymru can foresee 
situations where there would be pressure for this information to be provided to 
other bits of the food supply chain. This must be resisted, and processors and 
retailers must be put on notice that they cannot insist upon this data being 
released to them either by Welsh Government or by those participating within 
the scheme. 

4.6 TFA Cymru understands the benefits that can be delivered through the use of 
cover crops over winter. However, where there is the retention of stubbles over 
winter, TFA Cymru would argue that such land should not be required to have 
a planted cover crop included in addition. 

4.7 It is difficult to understand what is being asked of farmers under the Integrated 
Pest Management Universal Action proposed by Welsh Government. Whilst 
there is some collection of data in respect of plant protection products, there is 
a lack of clarity over what actions farmers will be expected to undertake as 

Tudalen y pecyn 184



integrated pest management. The consultation document issued by Welsh 
Government referred to appropriate cultivation techniques, diverse crop 
rotations and tailored use of inputs, but it is not clear how this will operate as 
a Universal Action. Again, any recording of data necessary will need to address 
the lack of digital access by some farmers. 

4.8 TFA Cymru recognises the sensitivity of peatland habitats, but in the 
prescriptions proposed in the Welsh Government consultation, TFA Cymru is 
concerned that there is too strong an emphasis on stocking levels as opposed 
to grazing management. Welsh Government needs to recognise the benefits of 
mixed grazing systems which will assist in the delivery of both landscape and 
biodiversity within these important habitats. 

4.9 TFA Cymru notes that the Universal Action for habitat will, for all intents and 
purposes, replace the Habitat Wales Scheme operated in 2024 is a one-year 
bridge between Glastir and the new Sustainable Farming Scheme. It is 
therefore essential that the reward for this Universal Action is at least at the 
level offered under the Habitat Wales Scheme and, in addition, take into 
consideration the BPS payments that have previously been applicable. TFA 
Cymru notes that this Universal Action will not be applicable to land designated 
as SSSis which will have their own bespoke plans. However, that should not be 
a justification for not paying for land under SSSI designations at a lower level 
under the Sustainable Farming Scheme. Given the special status of SSSI and 
other designated land and the higher than usual regulatory requirements that 
will apply, the basic payment for Universal Actions on this land must be at least 
at the level as payments made elsewhere. 

4.10 TFA Cymru is hugely concerned about the proposed requirement that at least 
10% of each farm is managed as habitat. Specifically for the tenanted sector 
of agriculture, such a requirement could fall foul of tenancy agreements and 
the legislation which governs them, including the definition of agriculture and 
the Rules of Good Husbandry. This would be the case particularly where the 
habitat is to be provided on a permanent basis and where there is no specific 
agricultural use related to that habitat land. It is essential that a land sharing 
approach is taken to this element rather than a land sparing approach. 

4.11  It will also be the case that many features identified as potential habitats could 
be reserved out of existing tenancy agreements. This would include things like 
woodlands, ponds and watercourses.  Tenant farmers could find themselves at 
a disadvantage where such features are outside of their management control 
but otherwise exist on the holdings that they farm and wish to bring into the 
scheme. The use of remote sensing and aerial photography to map habitat 
features will be able to determine the physical presence of those features but 
will be unable to understand the legal position with regard to management 
control. This is an issue which will need to be addressed by Welsh Government.  

Tudalen y pecyn 185



4.12 There should be no requirement upon tenant farmers to establish permanent 
habitat features on their holdings which would be a breach of their tenancies 
and would potentially damage the reversionary interest to their landlords. 
Tenant farmers should be able to use a full range of temporary habitat options 
which, if necessary, can be reversed at end of tenancy by the landlord or 
incoming tenant if needed. In addition, in the context of tenants having the 
ability to object to their landlords’ unreasonable refusal to allow access to a 
scheme, it would be helpful if Welsh Government would highlight that, in its 
opinion, a landlord who refused a tenant consent to take part in the Sustainable 
Farming Scheme in the context of utilising temporary habitat options would be 
considered to be acting unreasonably. 

4.13 Welsh Government must address the interactions between the Rules of Good 
Husbandry and the scheme requirements. Tenant farmers with agreements 
under the Agricultural Holdings Act 1986 are required to make maximum 
efficient use of the land that they farm. Many Farm Business Tenancy 
agreements will also refer to the Rules of Good Husbandry as a matter of 
contract. Whilst this needs to be looked at generally (with perhaps an 
amendment to the Rules of Good Husbandry which were drawn up in 1947) 
this is a particular issue in respect of the proposed hedgerow management 
standards within the Sustainable Farming Scheme. Whilst TFA Cymru 
understands the aspiration for having slightly higher and wider hedges than 
would ordinarily be required for farming purposes, we have had circumstances 
within which landlords have successfully challenged tenants to cut their hedges 
more tightly which is clearly unhelpful to the wider aspiration of environmental 
management. In addition, tenant farmers will be restricted in planting trees and 
whatever trees do exist may already be reserved to the landlord. The 
requirement to have one tree per 50 m of hedge should therefore be exempted 
for tenant farmers. In addition, the impact of interspersed trees in hedgerows 
needs to be considered given that hedge plants near to trees tend to dieback 
and recede which could create unwelcome gaps. 

4.14 Another interaction that Welsh Government will need to consider is in respect 
of hedgerows where landlords with sporting interests require tenants to 
maintain gaps within hedgerows to enable them to fully enjoy reserved rights 
to shoot for example. Tenants must not be required to gap up hedges where 
they have been required by their landlords to keep those gaps in place. 

4.15 in most cases trees and woodlands will be reserved out of tenancy agreements 
so are not under the management control of tenant farmers. Even though 
woodland may be mapped as part of the holding of a Sustainable Farming 
Scheme applicant, tenants must be able to exclude any trees or woodland from 
any applicable actions. 

4.16  TFA Cymru would wish to record its thanks to the Welsh Government for 
responding positively to the point made previously by TFA Cymru in respect of 

Tudalen y pecyn 186



the proposed rule that all farmers should have 10% of their land under trees. 
We welcome the exclusion of tenanted land from this rule. However, we would 
also question more widely how applicable it is to use this 10% tree cover as a 
basic rule within the scheme architecture for non-tenanted land.  TFA Cymru 
holds that it would sit better as an optional element rather than one which 
applies universally. 

4.17 In managing participation in the Sustainable Farming Scheme in respect of the 
Universal Action for the historic environment, care will need to be taken to 
ensure that tenant farmers are not being required to carry out any work in 
relation to features which are excluded from their tenancy agreements. This 
might be because buildings have been made redundant or because scheduled 
ancient monuments fall outside the scope of their agreements. We would also 
be cautious about requiring individuals to be involved in positive management 
of these sites as a universal requirement. Of course, individuals should operate 
in a way which does no harm to these sites, but often these sites will require 
very specialist management which should be carried out by individuals with the 
knowledge and skills to do so. 

5. Scheme eligibility 

5.1 Following the commitment given by the Minister for Rural Affairs at Report 
Stage of the Agriculture Bill in June of last year during which Amendment 55 
on active farmers had been accepted and subsequently overturned by a 
Government amendment, TFA Cymru welcomes the clarification given as to the 
eligibility for participation in the scheme. In particular, TFA Cymru welcomes 
the fact that landlords will not have access to the scheme through clauses in 
tenancy agreements which purport to give them “management control”. 
However, we would also ask that individuals applying as an owner occupiers 
should be required to declare that the land being brought into the scheme had 
not been previously let in the 12 months prior to their application being made.  
This will limit the incentive on landlords to remove land from the tenanted 
sector of agriculture so that they can apply for the scheme in their own names 
whether they end up farming in hand or using contractors. 

5.2 it is noted that scheme participation will require all land registered under a 
Customer Reference Number to be included. However, tenant farmers will need 
to have the ability to exclude any land where, for whatever reason, they are 
unable to enter it into the scheme due to restrictions applied by their landlords. 
Tenant farmers should be required to enter on all the land they can, rather 
than all the land they farm. 

5.3  TFA Cymru would oppose any extension of the eligibility criteria to include 
things like compliance with Rights of Way legislation, compliance with 
workplace recycling regulations or compliance with The Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 provisions. These will all have their own enforcement 

Tudalen y pecyn 187



frameworks which should be followed rather than creating a “double jeopardy” 
situation in terms of restricting access to the Sustainable Farming Scheme. 

5.4 TFA Cymru welcomes the fact that the Sustainable Farming Scheme will be 
open to new entrants from day one. However, we look forward to further 
discussions with Welsh Government as to how new entrants can be encouraged 
into the sector by improving access to land and finance. 

6. Payment methodology 

6.1 A limiting factor in being able to provide views was the absence of any payment 
or reward architecture included within the consultation issued by Welsh 
Government. To this end, it was a surprise to hear from Welsh Government 
during announcements made in the summer of last year that Welsh farmers 
will face a choice in January of next year either to continue to be in receipt of 
BPS payments over a transition period or take the path provided by the new 
Sustainable Farming Scheme. It is further understood that this will be an annual 
choice until the end of the transition away from the BPS.  TFA Cymru is aware 
of the aspiration of Welsh Government to achieve a significant uptake of the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme in its first year. To achieve that, payments 
available will have to be sufficiently rewarding vis-à-vis the current level of BPS 
payments and the increased level of risk and cost to Welsh farmers in taking 
part in the new scheme. TFA Cymru would put down a marker at this point that 
it would be unacceptable for Welsh Government to severely limit the value of 
BPS payments to artificially create the circumstances within which the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme delivers a higher return.  

6.2 Whilst welcoming the proposal of a stability payment which will make up any 
potential shortfall between the payments to be made under the new scheme 
and those made under BPS, this will not take into consideration the increased 
costs involved in compliance with the new scheme’s provisions. 

6.3 TFA Cymru notes the intention to introduce a stability payment alongside a 
payment for compliance with the Universal Actions. TFA Cymru would oppose 
the capping of payments which would be unfair to larger, upland farms in 
particular. 

6.4 The phasing out of BPS payments over five years is noted by TFA Cymru but it 
will be essential to ensure that the new Sustainable Farming Scheme is fully up 
and running by the end of the transition period and that payments are 
commensurate with the budget for both BPS and agri-environment payments 
made historically. This will be particularly important due to the increasing costs 
involved in complying with the provisions of the new scheme. 

7. Conclusion 

7.1 Much detail needed to provide a definitive view about the proposed Sustainable 
Farming Scheme was lacking in the recent Welsh Government consultation 

Tudalen y pecyn 188



document, not least in respect of payment rates. There will also need to be a 
very careful assessment made of the impact of this scheme to ensure that it 
does not severely damage food security and the resilience of farming in Wales 
per se which will, in turn, damage the ability of the sector to deliver on desirable 
environmental outcomes. Replacing domestic production with imports is not a 
sustainable outcome.  

7.2 Welsh agriculture has much to offer in terms of food production and wider 
social and environmental outputs. However, returns to the sector are routinely 
low in comparison to the level of risk, uncertainty, investment and working 
capital employed. It is therefore essential that the new Sustainable Farming 
Scheme rewards farmers over and above income foregone, as it seeks to 
replace both the Basic Payment Scheme and legacy agri-environment schemes 
which have bridged the gap between profit and loss for many farm businesses 
across Wales. 

7.3 TFA Cymru concludes that a great deal more work is required before the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme is ready to be launched in January 2025 as the 
replacement to the Basic Payment Scheme and legacy agri-environment 
schemes. 

 
TFA Cymru  
5 Brewery Court  
Theale  
Reading 
RG7 5AJ 
 
0118 930 6130  
www.tfa.org.uk 
 
08 March 2024 
GWD/1609 

Tudalen y pecyn 189



January 2024 

 

 

1 
 

NFFN Cymru: Sustainable Farming Scheme Key Points  
 

On 14th December 2023, the Welsh Government (WG) published its latest Sustainable Farming Scheme 

consultation.  Subtitled, Keep Farmers Farming, this consultation is the final step in delivering the Sustainable 

Farming Scheme (SFS) which is the start of a new long-term programme to support the agricultural industry in 

Wales. The consultation will run until 7 March 2024. 
 

This paper outlines some of NFFN Cymru’s initial thoughts on the proposals.  It includes what we consider to 

be the positives as well as areas of weakness and concerns. For an overview of the consultation read our NFFN 

Cymru Summary Document.  
 

NFFN Cymru’s 5 Key Asks 

1. Provide a proper funding package for nature-friendly farming.  

2. Ensure that no farmer gets left behind.  

3. Follow the principle of the right tree in the right place for the right purpose. 

4. Payments that deliver genuine outcomes. 

5. The right advice, guidance and support for farm-level change. 

 

Positive Intentions 

 

● The scheme’s intentions, particularly the Sustainable Land Management Objectives are positive.  We 

welcome the WG’s recognition that food production, nature, climate and socio-economic outcomes 

can be delivered together, sometimes on the same land, by adopting a holistic land sharing approach. 

The Rural Affairs Minister’s foreword speaks of the vital role that farmers can play in producing food 

and fibre whilst delivering these multiple benefits on farms.  Many nature-friendly farmers across 

Wales are already delivering the scheme’s objectives, and the SFS must continue to reward those 

farmers that are doing excellent work, as well as supporting others in the transition.  
     

Facilitating Nature-friendly Farming  

 

● Nature features prominently within the proposals and many of the Universal Outcomes can help 

maintain and enhance farmland biodiversity. We particularly welcome the Scheme Rule that at least 

10% of each farm is managed as habitat.  Payment for actions such as appropriate hedgerow 

management, cover cropping, creating wetland features and agroforestry can play a big role in 

improving farmland nature and farm business resilience. This is a big improvement on the Basic 

Payment Scheme (BPS) which included very little environmental obligations.  

 

Budget Concerns 

 

• Whilst the SFS’s ambition is commendable, the scheme needs to be adequately funded if we are to 

deliver the scheme’s objectives.  The overall costs of meeting environmental priorities through land 

management in Wales are estimated at over £500m per annum. The Welsh Government’s entire 

Rural Affairs budget for 2023-24 was around £480 million (which represents about 2% of the total 

budget).  However the 2024-2025 Rural Affairs budget has seen a cut of £62m - a reduction of 13% 

from the previous financial year. Furthermore, Economic Modelling estimates that farm business 

income will reduce by £199m under the SFS Universal Action payments. Coupled with stability 

payments (valued at £117.3m) this is reduced to £81.6m. The SFS is clearly under-budgeted. The level 

of funding must match the level of ambition outlined in the consultation 

 

Key ask: Provide a proper funding package for nature-friendly farming to adequately reward 

farmers for delivering genuinely sustainable land management alongside food and fibre production. 

Tudalen y pecyn 190

Eitem 3

https://www.gov.wales/sustainable-farming-scheme-consultation
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/how-farms-in-wales-are-boosting-resilience
https://www.wildlifetrusts.org/sites/default/files/2023-06/Finance%20for%20UK%20Environmental%20Land%20Management%2C%20June%202023.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2023-12/potential-economic-effects-of-the-scheme-phase-4-universal-actions-modelling-results.pdf


January 2024 

 

 

2 
 

Payment Rates Uncertainty  

 

● There remains uncertainty regarding future SFS payment rates.  If the Habitat Wales Scheme (HWS) 

payment rates (£69/ha for habitat and £62/ha for woodland) are indicative of future SFS payment 

rates, then many nature-friendly farmers will stand to lose out financially. 

 

The NFFN, in partnership with the Soil Association and other farming organisations, surveyed 20 farms 

which showed an average loss of 76% in support under the HWS compared to Glastir.  The main 

reasons being capping payments on larger farms and previous Glastir Advanced payment rates being 

significantly higher.  

 

o Hay meadow conversion @ £235/ha 

o Marshy grassland (pasture) @£241/ha 

o Woodland stock exclusion @£80/ha 

o Wood pasture @£78/ha 

o Wildlife cover crop @£604 

o Unsprayed cereals with winter stubbles @£440/ha 

 

England’s Environment Land Management Scheme (ELMS) habitat payment rates are also 

considerably higher (e.g. species-rich grassland at £642/ha). 

 

Under a blunt area-based arrangement similar to the BPS, capping payments at a certain level, or 

introducing a system where payments diminish over a certain threshold makes sense.  However, a 

similar approach severely disadvantages larger farms that are delivering multiple societal benefits 

side by side with food and fibre production.  

 

The SFS payment rates must sufficiently reflect the associated costs, time, effort and value delivered. 

 

Optional and Collaborative Layers  

 

● We broadly welcome the Universal Actions layer of the Scheme. However, farmers who are delivering 

above and beyond the Universal Actions layer, or want to do so, will be looking towards the Optional 

and Collaborative Actions for additional payments and opportunities.  The WG proposes to introduce 

these additional layers over the Transition Period (2025-2029) meaning that many nature-friendly 

farmers stand to lose out in the short term. 

 

For example, the additional benefits that organic farming delivers won’t necessarily be recognised in 

the Universal Actions, and with the absence of any long-term organic support payments this poses a 

threat to the sector.  Furthermore, the WG proposes that land designated as Sites of Special Scientific 

Interest (SSSIs) is prioritised for inclusion in the Scheme’s Optional Actions to reflect the more 

bespoke and targeted management which may be required on these special sites.  As a result, those 

farms that have often done the most using previous agri-environment scheme funding, such as those 

found in our upland, marginal and common land, risk taking a major funding hit, with farm incomes 

and biodiversity both likely to suffer. 

 

Key ask: Ensure that no farmer gets left behind by delivering all scheme elements by 2026 including 

the optional and collaborative layers to support the most ambitious land management actions. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 191

https://www.gov.wales/habitat-wales-scheme-outline-html
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/nffn-cymru-habitat-wales-scheme


January 2024 

 

 

3 
 

Right tree in the right place for the right purpose 

 

● NFFN Cymru welcomes plans to increase woodland cover on farms. Agroforestry, silvo-pasture, 

orchards, hedgerow trees and appropriately planted woodlands can form an important component of 

the farmed landscape. Trees can play a vital role in storing carbon, enhancing biodiversity, reducing 

flood risk, improving landscape quality and amenity, whilst also improving farm productivity and 

providing an alternative income stream. 
 

However, tree planting in the wrong areas can lead to biodiversity net loss, crowding out rare plant 

species or leading to carbon losses from the soil. These unintentional outcomes highlight some of the 

complexities of developing an effective climate mitigation strategy at the farm level. When it comes 

to tree planting, we must plant the right tree in the right place based on sound strategy.   

 

Equal consideration should be given to other carbon-rich agricultural habitats.  Evidence shows that 

nature-based solutions such as agroforestry, restoring and creating species rich grasslands and 

establishing multi species leys, peatland restoration, establishing wildflower field margins, wetland 

and hedgerow creation should be prioritised to deliver twin nature and climate benefits.  

 

Follow the principle of the right tree in the right place for the right purpose to harness the benefits 

of integrating trees on farmland while avoiding trade-offs 

 

Habitat Management   

 

● There is insufficient information regarding habitat maintenance requirements for the broad habitat 

types within the scheme.  The sole example given is for enclosed semi-natural dry grassland, which 

follows the traditional payment system that is management based, prescribing when or what the 

farmer must do or must not do to receive a payment. Whilst the aims for this habitat type are 

welcomed, we don’t believe the management requirements will lead to the desired outcomes. For 

example, compliance with seasonal sward height requirements - which can be as low as 5cm during 

the summer - is not a guaranteed recipe for successful semi-natural grassland management.   

 

● We urge the WG to move away from this traditional approach and transition towards a results-based 

payment approach.  This approach offers farmers the flexibility to use their knowledge and 

experience to manage the land in a way that delivers agreed  environmental results alongside their 

food and fibre production activities.  The farmer is in principle free to do what fits the site, the 

weather of the year, the farm and her or his own situation - it is only the environmental results that 

counts. Results can be measured robustly and effectively via an annual scorecard assessment which 

factors criteria such as key indicator species, their frequency, as well as structural diversity.  

 

Key Ask: Payments that deliver genuine outcomes through schemes that are more flexible, reward 

results and harness existing farmer knowledge  

 

Habitat Maps 

 

● The WG’s intention is to provide and agree with farmers a digital map and associated information 

compiled to show the habitat, hedgerows and trees present on farms as held in the RPW mapping 

system.  Farmers must then check and update the information. However there are questions over the 

accuracy of WG habitat maps.  

Tudalen y pecyn 192

https://www.soilassociation.org/blogs/2021/august/3/pairing-agroforestry-with-livestock-the-major-benefits/
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/nffn-cymru-tree-planting-is-not-a-silver-bullet-for-tackling-climate-change
https://community.rspb.org.uk/cfs-file/__key/telligent-evolution-components-attachments/01-3762-00-00-00-79-03-65/Sustainable-mitigation-in-agriculture-report-Mar-20.pdf
https://www.rbpnetwork.eu/about/
https://www.rbpnetwork.eu/about/


January 2024 

 

 

4 
 

It has been estimated that 70% of Habitat Wales scheme applications include serious errors in terms 

of habitat mapping, with out-dated and incorrect data included, as well as habitat being omitted.  The 

Universal Actions payment methodology includes an area-based payment for habitat land and 

woodland; therefore maps must be up to date and accurate.  We call on the WG to urgently update 

and rectify these inaccuracies prior to the scheme launch. 

 

Carbon Assessment  

 

● There are many benefits of undertaking a farm carbon assessment; it quantifies a farm’s carbon 

footprint and identifies areas on the farm that can be the focus of attention to improve efficiency and 

reduce greenhouse gas emissions.  This can improve both economic and environmental performance. 
 

● However, carbon calculators are known to be inaccurate and inconsistent, particularly when 

measuring carbon sequestration. Many calculators estimate soil carbon stocks based on a postcode 

district look up table - this gives a soil t C/ha potential sequestration value, rather than a bespoke 

individual farm calculation.  

 

● Furthermore, a farm’s performance will depend on how the carbon footprint is measured.  
 

- CO2 equivalent per kg of farm output which measures efficiency of production. More intensive 

and efficient farm units are likely to fare better using this measure. 

- CO2 equivalent per ha of farm which looks at the overall balance of the farm and is likely to 

provide more favourable results for more extensive farms, with trees and carbon sequestering 

soils. 
 

Many calculators use the former criteria, meaning intensive farms generally have more favourable 

results than extensive farms, even if overall emissions are lower in extensive systems.  We are 

concerned that nature-friendly farms are encouraged to intensify in the name of efficiency, which 

could lead to both negative economic and environmental performance.   
 

The Network’s Biodiversity & Carbon Auditing Project provides further information on the complex 

nature of these assessments.   
 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIS) 
 

● One of the Universal Actions involves farmers completing a self-assessment every year based on a list 

of standardised KPIs. Setting effective KPIs can help farms improve their economic and environmental 

performances, thus improving overall sustainability. 
 

However we are concerned that some production focused KPIs could result in perverse economic and 

environmental outcomes. For example, whilst improving overall yield, reducing age of slaughter or 

daily liveweight gain can certainly help farms to be more efficient and profitable, and even improve 

environmental performance - it can also drive intensification and encourage purchasing ever-

increasing costly inputs (fertilisers, feed, chemicals and veterinary medicines).   

 

These KPIs could well encourage more grain fed livestock systems, as opposed to pasture fed systems. 

Consider also that slow grown beef and lamb reared on diverse pastures, as well as slow grown 

poultry, are more nutrient dense than fast-grown meat that relies on external inputs.  As such, when 

comparing KPIs it would be beneficial and more accurate to compare KPIs relative to similar farming 

types and systems. We also urge the WG to undertake a better analysis of where certain KPIs might 

compromise or undermine others e.g. carbon vs biodiversity 

Tudalen y pecyn 193

https://www.nffn.org.uk/news/nffn-ni-biodiversity-and-carbon-auditing-project
https://www.mdpi.com/2304-8158/11/5/646
https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/news-and-events/technical-articles/ready-steady-slow-slow-growing-broilers-are-healthier-and-have-more-positive-welfare
https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/news-and-events/technical-articles/ready-steady-slow-slow-growing-broilers-are-healthier-and-have-more-positive-welfare


January 2024 

 

 

5 
 

Advice and Guidance  

 

● Navigating a new scheme with its various rules, requirements, monitoring, data gathering and 

inputting may cause additional stress to farmers.  We therefore welcome WG’s commitment to 

continue providing advice, guidance and training to farmers.  Advice can help farmers better 

understand and comply with scheme rules, increase participation and help change farmer’s attitudes 

towards nature friendly farming, developing trust between the industry and Government.    
 

When farmers understand why they are doing something, they are more likely to take ownership of 

environmental outcomes.  Advisors should be local and independent, and separate from the function 

of the regulator. Employment of appropriate individuals, sensitive to the needs of farmers is needed 

throughout the duration of SFS contracts. 
 

Key Ask: The right advice, guidance and support for farm-level change through increased 

investment and capacity for face-to-face advisory services and farmer to farmer knowledge 

exchange  

 

Next Steps 
 

While there is much to welcome in the consultation proposals, more is needed to put Welsh farming on a 

genuinely sustainable path. The decisions made now will play a pivotal role in delivering a better future for 

Wales; its economy, environment and society. Welsh farmers stand ready to deliver thriving, resilient 

landscapes that deliver the outcomes that people need. 
 

NFFN Cymru will be responding to the consultation and we are urging our members to send their own 

individual responses.  
 

Perhaps you might find some inspiration in our NFFN Cymru Policy and Views? 
 

Get in touch with rhys.evans@nffn.org.uk to share your thoughts and for support to submit a response.  
 

 

Will you be joining the SFS? If so, here is a list of NFFN resources that may help farmers with the transition. 

 

o Nature Means Business Wales / Mae Natur yn Meddwl Busnes yng Nghymru 
o Rethink Farming: A Practical Guide for Farming, Nature, Climate  
o Farming for Climate Action: What are we waiting for? 
o Nature-friendly hedgerow management   
o Grazing management to preserve pastures and grasslands 
o A Practical Guide to Integrated Pest Management 
o A Practical Guide to Climate Action for UK Farming 
o New booklet: Nature-Friendly Farming in Action 
o Farming at the Sweet Spot 
o Rethink Food – A Plan for Action 
o Nature Means Business - the business case for nature-friendly farming 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 194

https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/policy-and-views?page=1&country=wales
mailto:rhys.evans@nffn.org.uk
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/how-farms-in-wales-are-boosting-resilience
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/rethink-farming-a-practical-guide-for-farming-nature-climate
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/farming-for-climate-action-what-are-we-waiting-for
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/nature-friendly-hedgerow-management
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/grazing-management-to-preserve-pastures-grasslands
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/a-practical-guide-to-integrated-pest-management
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/nature-friendly-farming-in-action
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/nffn-the-sweet-spot
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/rethink-food-a-plan-for-action
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/nature-means-business-the-case-for-resilience-of-nature-friendly-farming


March 2024 

 

1 
 

NFFN Cymru: SFS Consultation Response 
 

Framework 
 

Q1. The Scheme will provide a long-term approach to support for our agricultural sector to respond to 

evolving challenges and changing needs, contributing to the Sustainable Land Management objectives. 

In your view, what may strengthen this support? 

 

The scheme’s intentions, ambition and principles are positive.  We welcome the WG’s recognition that food 

production, nature, climate and socio-economic outcomes can be delivered together, sometimes on the same 

land, by adopting a holistic land sharing approach.  The Rural Affairs Minister’s foreword speaks of the vital role 

that farmers can play in producing food and fibre whilst delivering these multiple benefits on farms - we 

welcome this statement. The NFFN’s Rethink Farming report includes numerous examples of farmers delivering 

positive environmental outcomes alongside food production.1  

 

Rightly so, the scheme has a strong focus on maintaining and enhancing the environment. Biodiversity loss and 

climate change are identified as risk to the world economy in general and to food security specifically.2  

Similarly, the twin nature and climate crises are among the biggest medium to long term risks to UK domestic 

food production, alongside other factors, including soil degradation and water quality.3  Producing sustainable 

food in ways that tackle climate change and enhance biodiversity is therefore of utmost importance.   

 

However we must achieve these multiple benefits in a socially responsible way - acknowledging that 

agriculture is the cornerstone of our rural communities and supports countless rural jobs and services.  It 

underpins Wales’s rich cultural heritage; be it through associated social and cultural clubs, events and 

activities, inspiring literary works or helping the Welsh language thrive in many rural populations across Wales. 

A just transition in food and farming needs to account for all four elements of sustainability; environmental, 

economic, social and cultural.4  

 

Over 1,200 people have signed NFFN Cymru’s open letter to the Rural Affairs Minister outlining our 5 key asks. 

 

1. Provide a proper long-term funding package for nature-friendly farming to adequately reward farmers 

for delivering genuinely sustainable land management alongside food and fibre production.  

2. Ensure that no farmer gets left behind by delivering all elements of the scheme by 2026 including 

optional and collaborative elements to support the most ambitious land management action. 

3. Follow the principle of the right tree in the right place for the right purpose to harness the benefits of 

integrating trees on farmland while avoiding trade-offs. 

4. Payments that go beyond income foregone and costs incurred that deliver genuine outcomes through 

schemes that are more flexible, reward results and harness existing farmer knowledge.  

5. The right advice, guidance and support for farm-level change through increased investment and 

capacity for face-to-face advisory services and farmer to farmer knowledge exchange. 

 

The SFS must be a genuine partnership between farmers and the Welsh Government based on mutual trust 

and respect.  Welsh farmers stand ready to deliver on all the SLM outcomes outlined in the consultation, 

helping to maximize value for public expenditure.  However, to secure all these multiple benefits farmers must 

be rewarded fairly and supported sufficiently.   

 
1 Rethink Farming: A Practical Guide for Farming, Nature, Climate 
2 The Economics of Biodiversity: The Dasgupta Review 
3 United Kingdom Food Security Report 2021 
4 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

Tudalen y pecyn 195

https://startafire.co/nature-friendly-farming-network/sustainable-farming-scheme-sfs/support-welsh-farming
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/rethink-farming-a-practical-guide-for-farming-nature-climate
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/602e92b2e90e07660f807b47/The_Economics_of_Biodiversity_The_Dasgupta_Review_Full_Report.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/


March 2024 

 

2 
 

The SFS Budget  

The SFS’s ambition is commendable, and farmers are uniquely placed to help address many societal issues and 

support the WG in meeting many of its legal obligations and targets.  However, to do this the scheme needs to 

be adequately funded.   

 

The overall costs of meeting environmental priorities through land management in Wales are estimated at over 

£500m per annum.5 However this does not estimate the total budget needed for future farming policy.  For 

example, the model does not cost supporting investments such monitoring and evaluation, transaction costs or 

wider funding associated with rural development. Yet investment in these aspects will need to be significant, 

meaning that the total figure is likely to be much higher.  

 

The Welsh Government’s entire Departmental Rural Affairs budget for 2023-24 was around £480 million (which 

represents about 2% of the total budget).  However the 2024-2025 Rural Affairs budget has seen a cut of £62m 

- a reduction of 13% from the previous financial year. The SFS is clearly underfunded (as evidenced by WG’s 

own SFS economic modelling).6  The level of funding must match the level of ambition outlined in the 

consultation. 

 

Key ask: Provide a proper long-term funding package for nature-friendly farming to adequately reward 

farmers for delivering genuinely sustainable land management alongside food and fibre production. 

   

Universal Actions 
 

Q2. There will be Universal requirements in the SFS to have woodland cover at least 10% of suitable 

land, and to manage a minimum of 10% of your farm for biodiversity.  
 

a) What are your views on these requirements?  

b) What support might you need to achieve them?  
 

10% Biodiversity  

We welcome the Scheme Rule that at least 10% of each farm is managed as habitat. Research has 

demonstrated that regardless of management approach, the critical factor governing on-farm biodiversity is 

the presence and abundance of semi-natural habitat.7   

 

Evidence also shows that integrating a diverse range of habitats and features on farmland can maintain and 

even increase yields8.  For livestock systems, studies have demonstrated increased yield in grassland because of 

increasing plant diversity and species richness.9, 10, 11 Furthermore, soils under low intensity management with 

high species diversity are shown to have significantly higher carbon content, whilst intensive grassland 

management reduces soil carbon stocks.12  From an arable perspective, a large-scale study found that 

incorporating nature friendly habitats on just 8% of farmland boosted the yield of flowering crops by 25% and 

resulted in no losses of yield for wind-pollinated crops due to an increase in pollinators and crop pest predators 

arising from wildflower margins and other habitats.13  

 
5 An assessment of the financial resources needed for environmental land management in the UK 
6 Potential economic effects of the Sustainable Farming Scheme 
7 Gains to species diversity in organically farmed fields are not propagated at the farm level 
8 Long-term evidence for ecological intensification as a pathway to sustainable agriculture 
9 Biodiversity for multifunctional grasslands: equal productivity in high-diversity low-input & low-diversity high-input 
systems 
10 Overyielding in experimental grassland communities – irrespective of species pool or spatial scale 
11 Long-term enhancement of agricultural production by restoration of biodiversity 
12 Legacy effects of grassland management on soil carbon to depth 
13 Wildlife-friendly farming increases crop yield: evidence for ecological intensification 

Tudalen y pecyn 196

https://www.wildlifetrusts.org/sites/default/files/2023-06/Finance%20for%20UK%20Environmental%20Land%20Management%2C%20June%202023.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2023-12/potential-economic-effects-of-the-scheme-phase-4-universal-actions-modelling-results.pdf
https://www.nature.com/articles/ncomms5151
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/361578142_Long-term_evidence_for_ecological_intensification_as_a_pathway_to_sustainable_agriculture
https://bg.copernicus.org/articles/6/1695/2009/
https://bg.copernicus.org/articles/6/1695/2009/
https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1111/j.1461-0248.2005.00736.x
https://besjournals.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/full/10.1111/j.1365-2664.2006.01252.x
https://onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/abs/10.1111/gcb.13246
https://royalsocietypublishing.org/doi/10.1098/rspb.2015.1740


March 2024 

 

3 
 

Basically, if food is not produced sustainably, stability and utilisation are threatened, which risks long-term 

availability and access.14   

 

NFFN Cymru’s latest report presents evidence of an average increase in farm profitability of 42% when farms 

actively work with the natural environment to manage production sustainably, restore nature and cut input 

costs.15  Furthermore, an analysis of 165 farm business accounts across the UK finds that maximising 

production is both financially and environmentally unsustainable if reliant on large quantities of fossil fuels, 

artificial fertilisers, and animal feed, while a shift to nature friendly farming resulted in a 45% increase in 

commercial return. 16  Empirical evidence shows the huge potential and radical opportunities that agroecology 

offers to farmers that could (and should) be the basis for the future transformation of agricultural policies, 

since agroecology not only allows for more sustainable production of healthier food but also considerably 

improves farmers' incomes.17  The evidence disproves the misconception that dedicating 10% of land towards 

habitat means taking land out of production. 

 

We believe that dry stone walls, such an iconic feature of the Welsh landscape, should be eligible for inclusion 

within the 10% habitat scheme rule as they provide numerous biodiversity benefits.18  

 

Crucially this scheme rule must reflect the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 DECCA Approach to ecosystem 

resilience, which means allowing spaces for nature across the whole farm.  Nature mustn’t be confined to a 

single habitat or to one section of a farm. Ove time, this scheme rule should aspire to replicate the Fair to 

Nature farmland biodiversity standard.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

This approach would help ensure a diversity of habitats across farms, increasing habitat extent and 

connectivity for wildlife - all helping towards improving habitat condition, building resilience and adaptability. 
 

Farming isn't a battle against nature, but a partnership with it. We recommend that Farming Connect produce a 

farmer-friendly guidance booklet that clearly outlines the habitats that qualify towards the 10% habitat scheme 

rules.  It should expand on their associated benefits for both the environment and the farm business.  This can 

help debunk the notion that creating or managing land for habitat means sacrificing food production, but 

rather forms an essential component of it.  

 
14 Food Security and Nutrition Building a Global Narrative Towards 2030 
15 Nature Means Business Wales / Mae Natur yn Meddwl Busnes yng Nghymru 
16 Farming at the Sweet Spot 
17 The economic potential of agroecology: Empirical evidence from Europe  
18 Farm Wildlife: Dry Stone Walls  

Tudalen y pecyn 197

https://fairtonature.org/
https://fairtonature.org/
https://www.fao.org/3/ca9731en/ca9731en.pdf
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/how-farms-in-wales-are-boosting-resilience
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/nffn-the-sweet-spot
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0743016718314608#:~:text=The%20economic%20concept%20that%20is,Production%20(VA%2FGVP).&text=In%20agroecology%2C%20farmers%20seek%20to,to%20seeking%20to%20expand%20GVP).
https://farmwildlife.info/how-to-do-it-5/field-boundaries/dry-stone-walls/


March 2024 

 

4 
 

10% Woodland Cover 

NFFN Cymru welcomes support to increase woody habitats on farms. Similar to the 10% habitat requirement, 

there’s a narrative at play that pits agriculture against trees - a belief that farmers must choose between 

producing food or planting trees.  This is a shame, as agroforestry, silvo-pasture, orchards, hedgerow trees, in-

field trees and appropriately planted woodlands can form an important component of the farmed landscape. 

Trees can play a vital role in delivering ecosystem services,19 improving agricultural productivity and 

resilience,20,  21, 22 improving animal health and welfare,23, 24 and providing an alternative income stream.25 Fruit 

and nut trees can also contribute towards food security.  This evidence challenges the notion that planting 

trees means taking land out of production.    
 

However, a gung-ho approach to woodland creation can result in planting trees in the wrong areas.  The WG’s 

tree planting targets are driven solely by the need to sequester carbon, however we also need to consider 

biodiversity, efficiency and productivity gains, as well as economic opportunities.  A narrow focus on carbon 

sequestration could lead to perverse outcomes, such as biodiversity net loss or even carbon losses from the 

soil, as well as an unnecessary reduction in food production.  These unintentional outcomes highlight some of 

the complexities of developing an effective climate mitigation strategy at the farm level. When it comes to tree 

planting, we must plant the right tree in the right place based on sound strategy.26 Spatial targeting in the 

woodland planting to help prioritise areas for tree planting.27, 28, 29   
 

Key Ask: Follow the principle of the right tree in the right place for the right purpose to harness the benefits 

of integrating trees on farmland while avoiding trade-offs. 
 

Whilst we acknowledge that increasing tree cover on farms can yield multiple positive outcomes for both the 

farm business and the environment; we do have reservations about a one size fits all policy approach to tree 

planting. It fails to acknowledge that every farm is different, and therefore priorities and outcomes will differ 

accordingly.   
 

We welcome clarity that the 10% tree cover requirement will not necessarily be calculated on the whole farm 

area, but rather on the remaining area once unplantable areas have been removed.  Whilst this is welcomed, 

flexibility, it could be argued that this added flexibility relates mostly to upland farms due to the more likely 

presence of priority habitats/ designated land/ unsuitable planting areas.  Many upland farms that have less 

than 10% tree cover will meet the scheme rule due to this added flexibility, leaving little incentive to plant 

more trees. The burden of planting therefore falls heavier on lowland, more productive farms. 
 

As a compromise, the 10% tree cover threshold could be lowered to ~7% (average woodland cover on Welsh 

farms) and beyond this point farmers would receive an incremental payment increase (£/ha) for every % 

increase in tree cover on their farms.  This could be capped at around 25% to avoid entire farms being planted.  
 

This flexible approach could achieve three things.   
 

1) Make the scheme more accessible for more productive farms on better agricultural soils  

2) Reward farmers who already exceed 10% tree cover on their farms 

3) Encourage and reward farmers to plant more trees 

 
19 Reconciling productivity with protection of the environment: Is temperate agroforestry the answer? 
20 Tree and livestock productivity in relation to tree planting configuration in a silvopastoral system in North Wales, UK 
21 Agroforestry for livestock systems 
22 Trees on farms to support natural capital: An evidence-based review for grazed dairy systems 
23 Pairing agroforestry with livestock: the major benefits 
24 Agroforestry options 
25 Broadleaf Wales  
26 NFFN Cymru: Tree Planting is Not a Silver Bullet for Tackling Climate Change 
27 Spatial targeting of woodland creation can reduce the colonisation credit of woodland plants 
28 Opportunity mapping – targeting woodland creation for water objectives 
29 Hedges & edges: Spatially targeting woodland creation in fragmented landscapes 

Tudalen y pecyn 198

https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/renewable-agriculture-and-food-systems/article/abs/reconciling-productivity-with-protection-of-the-environment-is-temperate-agroforestry-the-answer/50AE9D3919BC56EB711C66E5E96DC075
https://link.springer.com/article/10.1023/A:1021131026092
https://agricology.co.uk/resource/agroforestry-livestock-systems/
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0048969719353379
https://www.soilassociation.org/blogs/2021/august/3/pairing-agroforestry-with-livestock-the-major-benefits/
https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/news-and-events/technical-articles/agroforestry-options
https://broadleaf.wales/
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/nffn-cymru-tree-planting-is-not-a-silver-bullet-for-tackling-climate-change
https://besjournals.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/full/10.1002/2688-8319.12263
https://www.forestresearch.gov.uk/research/opportunity-mapping-targeting-woodland-creation-for-water-objectives/
https://etheses.whiterose.ac.uk/33914/


March 2024 

 

5 
 

Rather than aspire to have every individual farm achieving 10% tree cover, perhaps we should be looking to 

achieve a 10% average across the sector.   
 

We suggest that hedgerows over 3m tall count towards the 10% tree target as this would; 
 

a) Encourage farmers to establish more hedgerows 

b) Encourage better (less frequent) management 

c) Make the scheme accessible to more farmers without compromising scheme ambition  
 

We note that the ground layer of woody habitats can contribute to the 10% habitat requirement, while the tree 

canopy in the same area could contribute to the 10% tree cover requirement.  This essentially means that if a 

farmer has 10% broadleaf woodland cover, they will automatically meet the 10% habitat requirement.  Whilst 

this will certainly increase scheme participation, it could also disincentivise habitat creation. Furthermore, if a 

farmer has less than 10% tree and habitat on their farm, the easiest way to achieve both targets would be to 

plant trees.  This approach will make tree planting the simplest way of complying with the scheme rules - 

regardless of whether it’s the most suitable or beneficial option for the farm.   
 

We reiterate our concerns that a narrow focus on creating one specific habitat type, driven by a sole objective, 

is at odds with the DECCA approach to ecosystem resilience.30  In the drive towards achieving net-zero, equal 

consideration should be given to other carbon-rich agricultural habitats.  Evidence shows that nature-based 

solutions such as agroforestry, restoring and creating species rich grasslands and establishing multi species leys, 

peatland restoration, establishing wildflower field margins, wetland and hedgerow creation should be 

prioritised to deliver twin nature and climate benefits.31   
 

There may be merit in placing the 10% tree requirement in the optional layer.  However, woodland planting 

schemes already exist in Wales, and uptake is low,32 therefore we question whether this approach would 

incentivise tree planting.  Should this scheme rule be moved to the Optional Actions, it will need to be backed 

up by generous payments to encourage farmers to plant trees.  
 

Whatever shape or form this scheme rule takes, the WG must better communicate the requirements to 

farmers. The current proposals are still misinterpreted by some as having to plant an additional 10% of their 

land in addition to existing tree cover, whilst an assumption exists that meeting this requirement means taking 

land out of production. Farming Connect can play a role in outlining what the scheme rules are, whilst 

demonstrating how to effectively integrate trees on farms in a way that delivers multiple benefits for 

biodiversity, climate, water management, efficiency and productivity gains, as well as creating economic 

opportunities.  This can help counter the narrative that pits agriculture against trees and the belief that we 

must choose between producing food or planting trees. 
 

Habitat and Tree Cover Maps 

The WG’s intention is to provide and agree with farmers a digital map and associated information compiled to 

show the habitat, hedgerows and trees present on farms as held in the RPW mapping system.  Farmers must 

then check and update the information. However there are questions over the accuracy of these maps. It has 

been estimated that 70% of Habitat Wales scheme applications include serious errors in terms of habitat 

mapping, with out-dated and incorrect data included, as well as habitat being omitted.33  The Universal Actions 

payment methodology includes an area-based payment for habitat land and woodland; therefore maps must 

be up to date and accurate.  We call on the WG to urgently update and rectify these inaccuracies prior to the 

scheme launch.  Process must be in place for farmers to challenge and correct any inaccurate data held by WG.  

 
30 Ecosystem Resilience in a Nutshell 1: What is ecosystem resilience? 
31 Sustainable climate change mitigation in UK agriculture 
32 Why is Wales missing its tree planting targets? 
33 FUW: Farmers angered by Habitat Wales scheme errors and payments 

Tudalen y pecyn 199

https://cdn.cyfoethnaturiol.cymru/media/696279/ecosystem-resilience-in-a-nutshell-1-what-is-ecosystem-resilience.pdf
https://community.rspb.org.uk/cfs-file/__key/telligent-evolution-components-attachments/01-3762-00-00-00-79-03-65/Sustainable-mitigation-in-agriculture-report-Mar-20.pdf
https://www.iwa.wales/agenda/2023/07/why-is-wales-missing-its-tree-planting-targets/
https://www.fuw.org.uk/en/news/16065-farmers-angered-by-habitat-wales-scheme-errors-and-payments


March 2024 

 

6 
 

Advice, Guidance and Support 

Navigating a new scheme with its associated rules, requirements, monitoring, data gathering and inputting will 

be challenging for many.  Around 16,000 farmers receive the BPS in Wales, but only some 3,000 farms entered 

Glastir AES agreements. The SFS therefore marks a culture change for many farmers.  
 

As such, we need the right advice, guidance and support to help transition to and deliver the SFS. 
 

o Advice can help farmers better understand schemes, increase participation and help change farmer’s 

attitudes towards nature friendly farming, developing trust between the industry and Government.    
 

o High quality advice (including farmer-to-farmer knowledge exchange) can help farmers to follow best 

practice and to ascertain why management has or has not led to the desired outcome, thus improving 

the standard of schemes.  
 

o When farmers understand why they are doing something, they are more likely to take ownership of 

outcomes. 
 

o Expert advice can help facilitate, coordinate and develop a better understanding of targeted, more 

complex landscape scale schemes.  
 

o It can help incorporate and develop a greater understanding of how nature friendly farming can 

improve the farm business and productivity.  
 

o Advisors should be local and independent, and separate from the function of the regulator. 
 

o Employment of appropriate individuals, sensitive to the needs of farmers is needed throughout the 

duration of SFS contracts. 
 

o Advice should be available in relation to all the Sustainable Land Management (SLM) outcomes. As 

such it’s imperative that farmers don’t receive conflicting/ siloed advice, particularly in relation to 

economic and environmental outcomes.  Advice should identify win-win scenarios where farm 

business economics and the environment benefits overlap. 
 

Key Ask: The right advice, guidance and support for farm-level change through increased investment and 

capacity for face-to-face advisory services and farmer to farmer knowledge exchange  
 

We welcome the WG’s commitment to continue to deliver a range of agricultural and environmental schemes 

supporting a range of outcomes ahead of the introduction of the full Optional and Collaborative layers.  In the 

absence of the most ambitious tiers of the SFS, interim capital support schemes must be available to help 

farmers meet both scheme rules, as well as the other 17 Universal Actions.   
 

Q.3 Aside from the 10% woodland and habitat requirements, will the Universal Actions: 

a) Provide benefit for your farm business? 

B) Provide an achievable set of actions paid for through the Universal Baseline Payment? 
 

UA1: Benchmarking  

Benchmarking and measuring performance make sound business sense.  Indeed, numerous agricultural 

organisations actively encourage farmers to record performance and partake in benchmarking exercises.34, 35,36 

As such, we believe that encouraging farmers to benchmark through government policy is a sensible idea - 

better yet if there’s a payment attached to the action. Ideally, performance monitoring should be relevant to 

what certification/ assurance schemes and the food supply chain are asking for. 

 
34 HCC Red Meat Benchmarking Project - driven by data 
35 Farming Connect Benchmarking Programme 
36 National Sheep Association - Checking Business Health   

Tudalen y pecyn 200

https://meatpromotion.wales/images/general/Meat_Wales_-_Red_Meat_Benchmarking_-_Summary_ENG_WEB.pdf
https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/business/benchmarking/farming-connect-benchmarking-programme
https://www.nationalsheep.org.uk/brexittoolkit/28158/checking-business-health/


March 2024 

 

7 
 

However we do have reservations that some production focused KPIs could result in perverse economic and 

environmental outcomes. For example, whilst improving overall yield, reducing age of slaughter or daily 

liveweight gain can certainly help farms to be more efficient and profitable, and even improve environmental 

performance - it can also drive intensification and encourage purchasing ever-increasing costly inputs 

(fertilisers, feed, chemicals and veterinary medicines).  These KPIs could well encourage more grain fed 

livestock systems, and place pasture fed systems at a disadvantage. Consider also that slow grown beef and 

lamb reared on diverse pastures, as well as slow grown poultry, are more nutrient dense than fast-grown meat 

that relies on external inputs.37, 38 We urge the WG to undertake a better analysis of where certain KPIs might 

compromise or undermine others. 
 

Every farm in Wales is different - so one farmer's success might be another farmer's problem.  As such, when 

comparing KPIs it would be beneficial and more accurate to compare KPIs relative to similar farming types and 

systems. For example, many upland hill farmers on rough ground usually have lower lambing scanning % 

compared to their lowland counterparts, and ewes are more likely to rear single lambs than twin 

lambs.  However, many upland systems prefer this as having too many twins can place too much pressure on 

the in-bye land during the summer (as twins and their mothers don't normally go up to the mountain, or if they 

do, the mothers will go up after weaning). When comparing farms, KPIs such as mortality rates/ livestock losses 

would be preferable as they are applicable to all farming systems and are generally an indication of good 

husbandry and improved economic and environmental performance.  
 

We very much support setting KPIS for metrics like gross margin/ full economic cost of production. Success in 

farming is often characterised by revenue/ sales, with margins/ cost of production of lesser importance.  High 

revenue doesn’t guarantee profitability39; therefore we welcome closer analysis of farms’ overall financial 

performances.  We would suggest encouraging farm businesses to analyse their production costs in more detail 

- looking specifically at fixed costs, productive variable costs and corrective variable costs - with the view of 

calculating their Maximum Sustainable Output.40   
 

Although we welcome this action in principle - guidance and advice must be provided to support farmers.  The 

process of recording and inputting data must avoid being overly bureaucratic and time-consuming.   

 

UA2: Continuous Personal Development  

Continuous personal development and training are common practices in most occupations and can help keep 

skills and knowledge up to date, prepare for greater responsibilities, boost confidence, enable better decision 

making.  Undertaking a minimum of six online CPD modules each year by a registered partner within the 

business, each consisting of approximately one hour of online learning and a short assessment, sounds 

reasonable.  Support should be available for farmers to complete modules - particularly those who lack 

computer literacy skills. However, is there any evidence that farmers find this an effective way of learning? 

Could this be complimented by farm visits and face-to-face discussions instead? We agree that a Health and 

Safety module should be mandatory. The e-learning modules need to be of a high standard and relevant to the 

farming business to make this action worthwhile.  This action should not be a tick box exercise for farmers and 

the Welsh Government. 

 

UA3: Soil Health Planning  

We welcome actions to support farmers to measure and improve soil health. However, for this action to be 

truly worthwhile farmers need to receive high quality advice on how to improve soil health.  To date, soil 

testing analysis is usually accompanied by recommendations to apply inputs in the form of artificial fertilizers 

 
37 Nutritional Benefits from Fatty Acids in Organic and Grass-Fed Beef 
38 Slow-growing broilers are healthier and have more positive welfare 
39 Nature Means Business - the business case for nature-friendly farming 
40 Nethergill Associates: MSO 

Tudalen y pecyn 201

https://www.mdpi.com/2304-8158/11/5/646
https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/news-and-events/technical-articles/ready-steady-slow-slow-growing-broilers-are-healthier-and-have-more-positive-welfare
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/nature-means-business-the-case-for-resilience-of-nature-friendly-farming
https://www.nethergillassociates.co.uk/How-We-Can-Help-You


March 2024 

 

8 
 

or lime to improve soil health.  This very much follows the mantra that the solution is in a bag.  However these 

inputs are becoming increasingly expensive and are now unaffordable to many farmers.  We believe that advice 

in relation to soil health should concentrate more on providing holistic, nature-based solutions to improving 

soil health.41 This might include increasing species diversity in swards 42,43, effective grazing management 
44,45,4647 or agroforestry.48,49   
 

Support should be made available for farmers who want to test more than 20% of their land each year.  We 

also support encouragement for visual soil health inspection such as undertaking a spade test 50 or soil water 

infiltration testing.51 Perhaps these visual assessments could form a component of CPD training?  
 

UA4: Multispecies cover crop  

The benefits of establishing cover crops are well documented.52  Farmers must be supported and rewarded 

appropriately for undertaking this action and must include payments that go beyond income forgone and costs 

incurred.   
 

UA5: Integrated Pest management  

We welcome this action, provided farmers receive sufficient support to comply. For this action to be truly 

worthwhile farmers should also receive quality advice and support to reduce reliance on plant protection 

products, bearing in mind that Wales has signed up to reduce the use of pesticides by 50% by 2030 through the 

UN Convention on Biological Diversity COP15.53  

 

UA6: Managing heavily modified peatland habitat  

We welcome this action. Support must also be available to reward farmers to restore modified peatland, as 

opposed to solely preventing further damage.  
 

UA7: Habitat maintenance  

There is insufficient information regarding habitat maintenance requirements for the broad habitat types 

within the scheme.  The sole example given is for enclosed semi-natural dry grassland, which follows the 

traditional payment system that is management based, prescribing when or what the farmer must do or must 

not do to receive a payment. Whilst the aims for this habitat type are welcomed, we don’t believe the 

management requirements will lead to the desired outcomes. For example, compliance with seasonal sward 

height requirements - which can be as low as 5cm during the summer - is not a guaranteed recipe for 

successful semi-natural grassland management.   
 

We urge the WG to transition away from this traditional approach towards a results-based payment 

approach.54  This approach offers farmers the flexibility to use their knowledge and experience to manage the 

land in a way that delivers agreed environmental results alongside their food and fibre production activities.55  

 
41 NFFN Cymru: Farmers in South Wales learn how to weatherproof farming against drought and floods 
42 Can increasing plant species richness in grassland maintain yield and improve soil carbon storage? 
43 Multi-species grassland: Is it time to consider your roots? 
44 Managing Grazing to Restore Soil Health, Ecosystem Function, and Ecosystem Services 
45 Rotational grazing shown to increase soil organic matter on Welsh farm 
46 Learnings on soil health, regenerative grazing and whole-farm planning 
47 The importance of how we graze our cattle and sheep - a look at Mob grazing 
48 Agroforestry: an opportunity for sustainable intensification of farmland to improve productivity and reduce 
environmental impact 
49 Agroforestry for soil health 
50 How to take the perfect spade sample  
51 AHDB: Water infiltration test  
52 AHDB: Why grow cover crops?  
53 COP15: historic global deal for nature and people 
54 Results Based Payments Network 
55 Biodiversity indicators for result-based agri-environmental schemes - Current state and future prospects 

Tudalen y pecyn 202

https://www.nffn.org.uk/news/nffn-cymru-weatherproof-farming-south-wales
https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/news-and-events/technical-articles/can-increasing-plant-species-richness-grassland-maintain-yield-and-improve-soil-carbon-storage#:~:text=Increasing%20grassland%20plant%20species%20richness,grazing%20animals%20or%20hay%20production.
https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/news-and-events/technical-articles/multi-species-grassland-it-time-consider-your-roots
https://www.frontiersin.org/articles/10.3389/fsufs.2020.534187/full
https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/news-and-events/case-studies/rotational-grazing-shown-increase-soil-organic-matter-welsh-farm
https://www.nffn.org.uk/farmer-stories/phil-carson-learnings-on-soil-health-regenerative-grazing-and-whole-farm-planning
https://www.biodynamic.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/08/Mob-grazing-article-by-Peter-Brown-Summer-17-SF-.pdf
https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/news-and-events/technical-articles/agroforestry-opportunity-sustainable-intensification-farmland-improve-productivity-and-reduce
https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/news-and-events/technical-articles/agroforestry-opportunity-sustainable-intensification-farmland-improve-productivity-and-reduce
https://link.springer.com/article/10.1007/s10457-018-0223-9
https://nielscorfield.com/soil-health/how-to-take-the-perfect-spade-sample/
https://ahdb.org.uk/knowledge-library/water-infiltration-test
https://ahdb.org.uk/knowledge-library/why-grow-cover-crops
https://ec.europa.eu/commission/presscorner/detail/en/ip_22_7834
https://www.rbpnetwork.eu/about/
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0308521X22001743


March 2024 

 

9 
 

The farmer is in principle free to do what fits the site, the weather of the year, the farm and her or his own 

situation - it is only the environmental results that counts. Results can be measured robustly and effectively via 

an annual scorecard assessment which factors criteria such as key indicator species, their frequency, as well as 

structural diversity.56  This approach can help with facilitating behavioural change towards habitat 

management.57 We recommend that the WG continue supporting trial work for this approach in Wales, similar 

to the Llŷn Payment for Outcomes Trial.58 

 

Universal Code for Habitats  

The Universal Code for Habitats includes an extensive list of what farmers cannot do on habitat land.  

Whilst do's and don’ts can form an important component of habitat management, and over-reliance on this 

approach can be counter-intuitive as the whole process becomes too rigid and constrictive.  For example, many 

nature-friendly farmers apply organic manure on their hay fields, whilst other supplementary feed hay during 

the winter e.g. bale grazing in conjunction with deferred grazing.59,60  The Universal Code for Habitats could 

threaten good management practice unless flexibility is incorporated.  

 

UA8: Create temporary habitat on improved land  

We would welcome more information on the requirements associated with all the habitats included in this list. 

The only example given is for the establishment of mixed leys on improved land. The requirements should 

encourage best management practice for herbal leys to maximize their benefits. For example, the Calon Wen 

Organic Milk Cooperatives’ Pasture for Pollinators Project outlines how herbal leys could be incorporated onto 

dairy farms to increase pollinator populations without compromising yield. 61  The farmers used a combination 

of techniques, including using diverse herbal leys with a high proportion of flowering plants compared to 

standard rye grass/ clover leys, leaving margins uncut at silage time, or ungrazed to provide a refuge for 

pollinators.  In nearly all cases, pollinator numbers were significantly higher in the uncut/ ungrazed margins 

compared to cut/ grazed margins, indicating that leaving these refuges was effective in ensuring a continuous 

supply of food for pollinators, with pollinator numbers rising from 12 in the cut part of the field to 189 in the 

uncut margin on one of the farms.62 

 

UA9: Designated Site Management Plans  

We welcome this action; however we are concerned whether NRW has sufficient resources and capacity to 

engage in meaningful and constructive discussion with farmers on how to best manage designated sites.  We 

have similar concerns regarding NRW’s capacity to effectively monitor designated sites.  We are also extremely 

concerned about the delay in providing appropriate payments for designated sites management - a point which 

we expand on later.  

 

UA10: Ponds and scrapes  

Provided farmers are supported and rewarded appropriately, beyond income forgone and costs incurred, we 

welcome this action.  Wales has many aquatic and riparian habitats, including lakes, rivers, streams and 

ditches. However, smaller bodies of standing water habitats are less common in the farmed landscape.  Advice 

and support should be provided for farmers to determine most suitable areas for wetland creation. Again, this 

should not be a tick box exercise for farmers - it will require strategic thinking that should consider existing 

features within the wider local landscape.  

 

 
56 Developing payment-by-results approaches for agri-environment schemes: Experience from an arable trial in England 
57 Result-oriented agri-environmental schemes in Europe and their potential for promoting behavioural change 
58 National Trust Payment for Outcomes Trial, Llyn, Wales 
59 Bale grazing as an effective livestock outwintering strategy 
60 Outwintering Strategies for Livestock 
61 Calon Wen – Pastures for Pollinators  
62 Farm Wildlife Case Study: Pastures for Pollinators  

Tudalen y pecyn 203

https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S026483772100421X
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0264837712000853
https://www.rbpnetwork.eu/country-infos/united-kingdom/national-trust-payment-for-outcomes-trial-llyn-wales-39/
https://agricology.co.uk/resource/bale-grazing-as-an-effective-livestock-outwintering-strategy/
https://www.sruc.ac.uk/media/e24nyng4/outwintering-strategies-booklet-497866-sep-2022.pdf
https://www.calonwen-cymru.com/pasture-for-pollinators/
https://farmwildlife.info/2020/03/06/case-study-pasture-for-pollinators/


March 2024 

 

10 
 

UA11: Hedgerow management  

We very much welcome this action, provided farmers are supported and rewarded appropriately for doing so.  

Most of the UK’s hedgerows are in poor condition, with local hedgerow surveys across the UK suggest that only 

41% of hedges are in favourable condition.63  We consider over-management caused by excessively tight 

trimming early in the cutting season, and on an annual basis, as the main reasons for this.  This is a mindset 

that is unlikely to change unless this action is included in the Universal Layer of the scheme.  Better hedgerow 

management can deliver a host of benefits, including for biodiversity64, pollinators65, climate66, natural flood 

defence67, pest control68, soil health69, animal health and welfare70.  Although the requirement for hedgerows 

to be stockproof in its own right, without fence lines, might be a challenge - particularly for sheep farmers.    
 

UA12: Woodland management  

Flexibility in terms of how woodlands are managed is also welcome, as opposed to having a blanket stock 

exclusion from all woodlands.  Again, there should be flexibility in terms of the proposed restrictions. For 

example, it may be required to feed hay in woodlands during periods of adverse weather. Capital support 

should be made available to help manage woodlands, for example establishing secure boundaries or pest 

control (e.g. grey squirrels). We consider retaining all deadwood, and prohibiting its use as firewood for 

example, to be excessive.  
 

UA13: Create new woodland and agroforestry  

We welcome support for farmers to plant trees on their farms.  However, we reiterate that this action must 

ensure we plant the right tree in the right place, avoiding major trade-offs and perverse outcomes for other 

objectives.  Support must be generous and move beyond income-forgone and costs incurred to reflect the 

associated multiple benefits. Welcome natural regeneration of woodland as an option to increase tree cover.  
 

UA14: Historic environment - maintenance and enhancement  

We don’t have significant comments to make on this action, only that if it’s included in the final scheme design, 

farmers must be supported and rewarded sufficiently for maintaining and enhancing historic features on their 

farms.  
 

UA15: The Animal Health Improvement Cycle  

We welcome support to improve animal welfare and health on farms. The actions appear sensible; however we 

have concerns regarding the capacity of vets to be able to support this action.  There’s also a risk that this 

action will be costly as it needs to account for both the farmer and vet time.   
 

UA16: Good Animal welfare  

Recording animal condition and mobility makes good business practice. We do question the effectiveness of 

completing an online proficiency training on body condition scoring.  Any training for this purpose would surely 

need to involve being in the presence of live animals. We reiterate that this shouldn’t be a tick-box exercise for 

farmers and WG and avoid being overly bureaucratic and time consuming.  Otherwise funding would be of 

better use elsewhere on more worthwhile actions.  
 

UA17: Good Farm Biosecurity 

The measures within this action appear sensible, provided farmers receive sufficient support to comply.  

 
63 Hedgelink - Importance of Hedgerows  
64 Long-term effects of hedgerow management policies on resource provision for wildlife 
65 The benefits of hedgerows for pollinators and natural enemies depends on hedge quality and landscape context 
66 Soil Association: Why are hedgerows important?  
67 The potential of tree and hedgerow planting to reduce the frequency and impact of flood events in the UK 
68 Sustainable pest regulation in agricultural landscapes: a review on landscape composition, biodiversity and natural pest 
control 
69 Hedgerows as Ecosystems: Service Delivery, Management, and Restoration 
70 Effects of heat stress on the welfare of extensively managed domestic ruminants 

Tudalen y pecyn 204

https://hedgelink.org.uk/guidance/importance-of-hedgerows/
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S000632071100351X
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0167880917302918
https://www.soilassociation.org/take-action/protect-the-environment/why-are-hedgerows-so-important/#wildlife
https://businesswales.gov.wales/farmingconnect/news-and-events/technical-articles/potential-tree-and-hedgerow-planting-reduce-frequency-and-impact-flood-events-uk
https://royalsocietypublishing.org/doi/10.1098/rspb.2006.3530
https://royalsocietypublishing.org/doi/10.1098/rspb.2006.3530
https://www.annualreviews.org/doi/abs/10.1146/annurev-ecolsys-012120-100346
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0301622600001627


March 2024 

 

11 
 

Q4. On-farm data reporting allows the Welsh Government to confirm actions are being undertaken and 

help you to make decisions about your farm. In your view, is the reporting requirement for the 

Universal Actions appropriate? 
 

In its current format, the Universal Actions require farmers to collect and report on an extensive list of on-farm 

data.  The Optional and Collaborative Actions will no doubt create additional requirements.  It would be useful 

for WG to collate all these data recording requirements, as well as the required mechanisms for reporting, so 

that farmers know exactly what is expected under the SFS. Furthermore, farmers will want clarity as to how 

their data will be used and shared. Whilst we acknowledge there are numerous benefits in relation to the 

actions that require data gathering (e.g. benchmarking, soil health planning, animal health and welfare etc) the 

process of collecting and reporting data needs to be engaging and simple. WG should seek to minimise the 

administrative burden on farmers to achieve the Universal Actions.   
 

Follow up visits from contract managers/ advisors are still required to measure progress.  Many will want to be 

reassured that they’re undertaking appropriate management or are on the right path towards achieving agreed 

actions - particularly due to WG’s historic heavy-handedness in relation to minor administrative errors. Waiting 

towards the end of the contract period to review and agree to any corrective action is not a sensible approach.  

Farmers should be able to arrange follow up visits with their contract manager/ advisor to rectify management 

and check progress in relation to Universal Actions as early as possible, giving farmers the peace of mind that 

they’re complying with scheme rules. This is vital to foster a better relationship between farmers and WG, to 

improve the quality of the scheme and ensure value for money.   
 

This is applicable to the Habitat Baseline review process as well.  Whilst it’s important that farmers can check 

and amend data that is provided, this may be challenging. There is a lot of habitat information that cannot be 

reliably verified without field observation, at a suitable time of year, and by those with appropriate expertise.  

It is unclear whether there will be any resource for such ground truthing, or for the considerable time 

requirement for data correction and management?  What is as important as reporting is their validation. For 

the SFS to function effectively, it will be essential for the government to dedicate adequate resources towards 

validating the results generated by on farm reporting. This is not only to check accuracy and compliance, but 

also represents an effective means of assessing the appropriateness and workability of scheme requirements.  
 

Q5. The Stability Payment will provide additional support during the Transition Period.  In your view, is 

this appropriate whilst the Optional and Collaborative Actions are being introduced? 
 

Whilst we welcome elements of the Universal Actions layer of the Scheme, farmers who are delivering above 

and beyond this baseline, or want to do so, will be looking towards the Optional and Collaborative Actions for 

additional payments and opportunities.  WG proposes to introduce these additional layers over the Transition 

Period (2025-2029) meaning that many nature-friendly farmers stand to lose out in the short term. 
 

For example, the additional benefits that organic farming delivers won’t necessarily be recognised in the 

Universal Actions, and with the absence of any long-term organic support payments this poses a threat to the 

sector.  Furthermore, the WG proposes that land designated as Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) is 

prioritised for inclusion in the Scheme’s Optional Actions to reflect the more bespoke and targeted 

management which may be required on these special sites. Bear in mind as well that the stability payment 

decreases annually as the BPS is phased out.  As a result, those farms that are managing high quality habitats 

and delivering well above the SFS baseline, such as previous agri-environment scheme contract holders, 

(including common land graziers) risk taking a major funding hit, with farm incomes and biodiversity both likely 

to suffer.  In the absence of the ambitious elements of the scheme, we welcome the introduction of a stability 

payment.  However we’re extremely concerned that those who are already developing multiple scheme 

objectives are being left behind. 
 

Key ask: Ensure that no farmer gets left behind by delivering all scheme elements by 2026 including the 

optional and collaborative layers to support the most ambitious land management actions. 

Tudalen y pecyn 205



March 2024 

 

12 
 

Scheme Operation 

 

Q6. We have proposed that applicants should have sole management responsibility for the land for 10 

months and ensure completion of the Universal Actions for the full scheme year (12 months). In your 

view, is the 10-month period sufficient? 
 

NFFN Cymru are content with this approach.  

 

Q7. We are proposing the use of a single carbon calculator for everyone in the Scheme. Do you agree 

and how might we best support you to complete this?  
 

There are many benefits of undertaking a farm carbon assessment; it quantifies a farm’s carbon footprint and 

identifies areas on the farm that can be the focus of attention to improve efficiency and reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions.  This can improve both economic and environmental performance. 
 

However, carbon calculators are known to be inaccurate and inconsistent, particularly when measuring carbon 

sequestration. Many calculators estimate soil carbon stocks based on a postcode district look up table - this 

gives a soil t C/ha potential sequestration value, rather than a bespoke individual farm calculation.  
 

Furthermore, a farm’s performance will depend on how the carbon footprint is measured.  
 

- CO2 equivalent per kg of farm output which measures efficiency of production. More intensive 

and efficient farm units are likely to fare better using this measure. 

- CO2 equivalent per ha of farm which looks at the overall balance of the farm and is likely to 

provide more favourable results for more extensive farms, with trees and carbon sequestering 

soils. 
 

Many calculators use the former criteria, meaning intensive farms generally have more favourable results than 

extensive farms, even if overall emissions are lower in extensive systems.  Therefore there’s a concern that 

GHG efficiency is conflated with GHG reductions.  We are concerned that nature-friendly farms are encouraged 

to intensify in the name of efficiency, which could lead to both negative economic and environmental 

performance. The NFFN’s Biodiversity & Carbon Auditing Project provides further information on the complex 

nature of these assessments.71   

 

Carbon assessment is a new concept in Wales, and most farmers have very little experience in this field.  This 

can contribute towards inconsistencies in the data that is inputted into these calculators as farmers might 

interpret data, and what should be submitted, differently.  As such we would expect support to be available, 

particularly when undertaking the initial assessment.   

 

Carbon calculators are generally inconsistent, not least because there are numerous calculators available for 

farmers to use, and we’re aware that these calculators generate different results depending on which one is 

used. In order to achieve consistency and allow for accurate benchmarking there would be merit in asking all 

farmers to use a single calculator in the scheme.  However, requiring potentially 16,000 farmers to use a 

specific calculator could distort the market.   

 

We would welcome clarification on how the data is to be used.  Due to the aforementioned issues, we would 

caution against using the data to benchmark or provide an in-depth analysis of the sector’s road to achieving 

net zero.  As such, for the time being we would recommend that farmers choose between a list of the most 

reputable and accurate calculators to help identify ways for reducing emissions and sequestering carbon.     

 

 
71 NFFN NI: Biodiversity & Carbon Auditing Project 

Tudalen y pecyn 206

https://www.nffn.org.uk/news/nffn-ni-biodiversity-and-carbon-auditing-project


March 2024 

 

13 
 

Q8. To ensure continued high standards on our farms, we have outlined a proportionate approach to 

controls and sanctions, including compliance with additional legislation as a condition of Scheme 

payment. Do you have any views on this approach?  
 

NFFN Cymru would welcome the creation of National Minimum Standards that consolidate existing legal 

standards into one place, thus making it easier for farmers to understand and comply.  Payments under the 

SFS should be conditional on undertaking actions that deliver sustainable land management outcomes at a 

level above those set by regulation.  Regulation creates a level playing field, with all farmers and land 

managers bound by the same rules. The regulatory framework should apply to all farmers, irrespective of 

whether they receive financial support from the Welsh Government.  This is necessary to make farms more 

sustainable whilst ensuring that the environmental benefits that farmers deliver through schemes are not 

undermined by damaging practices elsewhere.  
 

Scheme enforcement should be fair and proportionate to the offence.  Farmers should be given time to address 

any breaches or failings to become compliant, with follow up inspections to assess progress before any 

penalties are applied. For too long, minute administrative errors have been met by disproportionate financial 

penalties, eroding the trust between farmers and Government and affecting farmer’s mental health.  

Enforcement must cover all farmers and land managers - not just those receiving support under the SFS.  

Inspections should be targeted at repeat offenders and those blatantly or purposefully breaking the rules. This 

is a huge source of frustration for farmers who are compliant with regulation and producing food in a way 

which doesn’t harm the environment. It reflects badly on the industry as a whole and poses the risk of every 

farmer being painted with the same brush. As such, enforcement must be sufficient to eradicate this practice 

and change behaviour.  
 

Q9. Adopting the Welsh Government appeals process will provide an effective and efficient mechanism. 

Is there any reason we should deviate from this?  
 

NFFN Cymru are supportive of adopting any measures that deliver a more efficient, fair and effective appeals 

process as part of the SFS. However, we have concerns about removing the independent and impartial panel in 

favour of an approach where all levels of the potential dispute involve only WG officials.   
 

Payment Methodology  

 

Q10. We would like to know your views on the proposed approach to: 

a) the SFS universal baseline payment 

b) the SFS stability payment 
 

NFFN Cymru are frustrated that uncertainty remains surrounding SFS payment rates.  Bearing in mind that this 

is the final comprehensive consultation on the SFS, it is very difficult to make informed decisions and plan. The 

SFS payment rates must sufficiently reflect the associated costs, time, effort and value delivered and therefore 

must go beyond income forgone and costs incurred.   
 

We welcome proposals to pay farmers for the areas they have under tree cover. Excluding payments on 

wooded areas under the BPS penalised farmers for having trees, therefore it’s good to see this arrangement 

being flipped on its head.  We reiterate our suggestion that the 10% tree cover threshold could be lowered 

(~7% which is average woodland cover on Welsh farms) and beyond this point farmers would receive an 

incremental payment increase (£/ha) for every % increase in tree cover managed on their farms.  This could be 

capped at a certain point (~25%) to avoid entire farms being planted. Supporting farmers to plant the right tree 

in the right place, must be backed by backed by generous payments. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 207



March 2024 

 

14 
 

If the Habitat Wales Scheme72 (HWS) payment rates (£69/ha for habitat and £62/ha for woodland) are 

indicative of future SFS habitat payment rates, then many nature-friendly farmers will stand to lose out 

financially.73  The NFFN, in partnership with the Soil Association and other farming organisations, surveyed 20 

farms which showed an average loss of 76% in support under the HWS compared to Glastir.  The main reasons 

being capping payments on larger farms and previous Glastir Advanced payment rates being significantly 

higher.  
 

o Hay meadow conversion @ £235/ha 

o Marshy grassland (pasture) @£241/ha 

o Woodland stock exclusion @£80/ha 

o Wood pasture @£78/ha 

o Wildlife cover crop @£604 

o Unsprayed cereals with winter stubbles @£440/ha 
 

England’s Environment Land Management Scheme (ELMS) habitat payment rates are also considerably higher 

(e.g. species-rich grassland at £642/ha).74 
 

Fundamentally the Universal Actions need to be ambitious enough to drive real change to maximise SLM 

outcomes, but at the same time they shouldn’t be unrealistic or unachievable.  Baseline payments for 

delivering Universal Actions also need to be attractive enough to encourage scheme enrolment, but not overly 

generous as to deter farmers from taking up Optional Actions. 
 

Key Ask: Payments that go beyond income foregone and costs incurred that deliver genuine outcomes 

through schemes that are more flexible, reward results and harness existing farmer knowledge.  
 

Transition Period  
 

Q.11. Farmers outside the Scheme may wish to access support for actions similar to those offered in the 

Optional and Collaborative Layers. In your view, should farmers within the Scheme receive priority 

support to undertake these actions?   
 

In general, NFFN Cymru agrees that farmers already in the SFS should be prioritised for support in the Optional 

and Collaborative layers.  However, for Collaborative Actions it may be essential that landowners not in SFS are 

included for interventions to be effective, particularly those involving landscape scale ecosystem enhancement 

projects.  Perhaps there could be a competitive process for non-SFS farmers to access the Optional layer.  

 

Q12. What actions and support within the Optional and Collaborative layers do you believe should be 

prioritised? 
 

We reiterate that both the Optional and Collaborative layers of the scheme need to be introduced within 12 

months of the launch of the SFS.  These layers must be well resourced and payments must reflect the benefits 

they provide.  All proposed actions should be brought forward as a matter of urgency, however if this isn’t 

financially possible, we would consider the following a priority.  
 

Optional Actions  

o Designated sites management 

o Manage and enhance habitats through more tailored and bespoke site-specific actions (over and 

above the Habitat Maintenance Universal Action). 

 
72 Habitat Wales Scheme 
73 NFFN Cymru: Habitat Wales Scheme fails to back nature-friendly farming 
74 Environmental land management in 2024: details of actions and payments 

Tudalen y pecyn 208

https://www.gov.wales/habitat-wales-scheme-outline-html#:~:text=Habitat%20Wales%20scheme.-,Application%20process,no%20contract%20managers%20visiting%20farms.
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/nffn-cymru-habitat-wales-scheme
https://defrafarming.blog.gov.uk/2024/01/04/environmental-land-management-in-2024-details-of-actions-and-payments/


March 2024 

 

15 
 

o Habitat creation 

o Natural flood management  

o Improve soil biology for example through diverse planting, graze and rest practices, minimum or 

no till, use of anthelmintic plants or habitat management. 

o Capital support for the infrastructure for graze and rest and/or to expand into other agricultural 

enterprises which enhance pasture management and livestock production. 

o Payment for no artificial fertilizer use 

o Payment for no pesticide use 

o Traditional boundary restoration and creation (hedges and dry-stone walls) 

o Capital support to help comply with the Compliance with The Water Resources (Control of 

Agricultural Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021 

o Support for no-fence collars to facilitate habitat management with cattle grazing  

o Support and advice for renewable energy generation 

o Support to grow crops to lower the amount of (and reliance on) bought-in feed. 

 

Organic support schemes must be maintained in the absence of additional support via the Optional Actions.  

 

Collaborative Actions  

o Landscape scale action, for the delivery of nature-based solutions 75, 76, 77 

o Innovation and knowledge transfer in agriculture for the development of new processes, techniques 

and technologies, and the development of solutions to solve sector challenges 

o Trialling results-based payment schemes with farmer cluster groups. 

o Support to invest in the sharing of facilities and resources to increase the profitability and resilience of 

farm businesses 

o Actions to support increased resource efficiency and new supply chain opportunities to support 

increased local high quality food supply 

o Common land management  

 

Under a blunt area-based arrangement similar to the BPS, capping payments at a certain level, or introducing a 

system where payments diminish over a certain threshold makes sense.  However, a similar approach for the 

optional and collaborative layers severely disadvantages larger farms that are delivering multiple societal 

benefits side by side with food and fibre production.  

 

We also believe there should be an element of support for young farmers in the SFS. 

 

BPS  
 

Q13. Do you agree with the proposed changes to BPS from 2025? This includes: 
 

a) The rate at which BPS payments are reduced. 
b) Closing the National Reserve to new entrants. 
c) Thresholds for capping. 
d) Restricting the transfer and lease of entitlements. 

 

The proposals to transition from the BPs to the SFS appears sensible. It allows farmers time to decide when to 

access the new SFS arrangement and avoids a cliff edge transition to the SFS.   However, this transition needs to 

happen sooner rather than later; therefore we support measures that encourage farmers to join the SFS in the 

early years.  Any underspend in the BPS budget in any year of transition should be re-distributed to the SFS.  

 
75 NFFN: Ffermwyr yr Wnion Natural Flood Defence Farm Project  
76 Saving the cirl bunting from extinction in the UK 
77 Pitsford Water Friendly Farming 

Tudalen y pecyn 209

https://www.nffn.org.uk/farmer-stories/ffermwyr-yr-wnion-climate-action-group-project
https://farmwildlife.info/2021/09/14/saving-the-cirl-bunting-from-extinction-in-the-uk/
https://freshwaterhabitats.org.uk/projects/pitsford-water-friendly-farming/


March 2024 

 

16 
 

Regulations  
 

Q14.We would like to know your views on our proposed approach to secondary legislation, which will 

support BPS and the introduction of support schemes under the powers in the Agriculture (Wales) Act 

2023.  
 

We ask that the Welsh Government consult with relevant stakeholders on the development of secondary 

legislation relating to agricultural support.    

 

Evidence  
 

Q15. Economic analysis and modelling will conclude in 2024 and will provide evidence to inform the 

final decision on Scheme implementation by Welsh Ministers. We would like to know your views on the 

existing analysis and evidence required. 
 

Understandably, farmers will be extremely concerned by the latest SFS economic analysis and modelling which 

paint a potentially bleak picture of the future.78  As modelled, farmers are being asked to deliver more (e.g. in 

terms of environmental delivery) for approximately the same level of support funding.  We reiterate our 

concerns that the SFS is significantly under-budgeted. The estimated impacts make for difficult reading.  
 

- Welsh livestock units will reduce by 122,200 (10.8% reduction) 
- Agriculture output will reduce by £125.3m  
- Farm business income will reduce by £199 under the SFS Universal Action payments. 

Coupled with stability payments (valued at £117.3m) this is reduced to £81.6m.  
- Standard labour requirement on Welsh farms will reduce by 11% 

 

However, the estimated impacts fail to consider the optional and collaborative actions, which will form an 

important component of the SFS. This is why we’re calling for the WG to introduce these additional SFS 

elements by 2026 at the latest, particularly as adopting agroecological farming practices and higher agri-

environment payments increases income stability and raises farm income.79 Future modelling must consider 

these scheme elements. 
 

We also challenge some of the assumptions made in the modelling.  
 

Firstly, less output doesn’t necessarily mean losses at the farm business level. Research shows that farm 

profitability can increase substantially if farms actively work with the natural environment to manage 

production sustainably, restore nature and cut input costs.80, 81  It is often assumed that as a business grows, 

financial performance will also increase due to economies of scale. The results of Hybu Cig Cymru’s Red Meat 

Benchmarking Project demonstrated that this is not always the case.82 
  

Secondly, the modelling also fails to consider emerging evidence that working with natural processes, such as 

increasing grassland species diversity and adopting effective grazing management via rotational and mob 

grazing systems can increase productivity and profitability while maintaining or increasing levels of output.83  
 

Thirdly, we challenge the notion that habitat management assumes an automatic reduction in livestock 

numbers.84  Welsh agri-environment schemes have focused on paying farmers to reduce livestock numbers, 

particularly on upland land parcels.  Where historic overgrazing occurred, this approach has successfully 

 
78 Potential economic effects of the Sustainable Farming Scheme Phase 4 Universal Actions Modelling Results 
79 Stability of farm income: The role of agricultural diversity and agri-environment scheme payments  
80 Nature Means Business Wales / Mae Natur yn Meddwl Busnes yng Nghymru 
81 Farming at the Sweet Spot 
82 Hybu Cig Cymru: Red Meat Benchmarking Project – Driven by Data 
83 Rotational grazing and multispecies herbal leys increase productivity in temperate pastoral systems – A meta-analysis 
84 The importance of livestock grazing for wildlife conservation 

Tudalen y pecyn 210

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2023-12/potential-economic-effects-of-the-scheme-phase-4-universal-actions-modelling-results.pdf
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0308521X20308702?dgcid=author#f0015
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/how-farms-in-wales-are-boosting-resilience
https://www.nffn.org.uk/resources/nffn-the-sweet-spot
https://meatpromotion.wales/images/general/Meat_Wales_-_Red_Meat_Benchmarking_-_Summary_ENG_WEB.pdf
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0167880922002249
https://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/file/612038


March 2024 

 

17 
 

restored habitat. However, some areas that were never overgrazed are now undergrazed, leading to a 

deterioration in habitat quality and species populations.85 We mustn’t repeat past mistakes - blanket policy 

approaches must be replaced by more well-thought out and strategic interventions.  
  

Finally, the agricultural sector is already suffering from a decline in employment.  The number of people 

working in agriculture in Wales declined by 13.6% between 2015 and 2021, due to the loss of 4,252 regular 

employees, salaried managers and casual workers and 3,666 farmers, business partner, directors and 

spouses.86 8,000 jobs in agriculture were lost between 2011 and 2021.87 This loss exceeds the worst-case 

scenario identified in the latest economic analysis. The status quo is not a viable option. The wider economic 

and employment benefits of nature friendly farming must also be considered.88, 89,90 
 

To avoid these potential devastating impacts and to realise a more positive vision for the future, the Welsh 

Government must properly invest in schemes that support an ambitious farming transition in Wales that 

delivers for food, farmers, nature and climate.  
 

Monitoring and Evaluation   
 

Q16. We would like to know your views on which information and evidence should be used to monitor 

and evaluate the Scheme. 
 

Information on the following areas would be useful to monitor and evaluate the scheme. 
 

o Farm input use (e.g. fertilizers, pesticides and bought in feed) 

o Cost of production 

o Area of habitat on farms 

o Profitability 

o Number of farms in the scheme 

o Area of farmland in the scheme 

o Veterinary medicine usage 

o Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

o Favourable Conservation Status of Designated Sites  
 

Other 
 

Q17. What, in your opinion, would be the likely effects of the SFS on the Welsh language?  We are 

particularly interested in any likely effects on opportunities to use the Welsh language and on not 

treating the Welsh language less favourably than English.   
 

Q18. In your opinion, could the SFS be formulated or changed so as to:  have positive effects or more 

positive effects on using the Welsh language and on not treating the Welsh language less favourably 

than English; or mitigate any negative effects on using the Welsh language and on not treating the 

Welsh language less favourably than English? 
 

The continuation of farming in rural Wales is vital for the future of Welsh language and culture. In certain areas 

most farmers are first language Welsh speakers. Employing bilingual contract managers/ regulatory officers/ 

monitoring officers can perhaps facilitate a smoother transition to new schemes and break down perceived 

barriers. The provision of written advice and guidance should be made available bilingually (or any other 

written correspondence from WG for that matter). 

 
85 Graze with livestock to maintain and improve habitats 
86 The Farming Sector in Wales Research Briefing 
87 Farming facts and figures: 2022 
88 Hedge fund: investing in hedgerows for climate, nature and the economy 
89 The impact of green economy measures on rural employment: Green jobs in farms 
90 Jobs for a green recovery Levelling up through nature 

Tudalen y pecyn 211

https://defrafarming.blog.gov.uk/graze-with-livestock-to-maintain-and-improve-habitats/
https://research.senedd.wales/media/iuch3jz1/22-47-farming-sector-in-wales.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2022-08/farming-facts-and-figures-2022-732.pdf
https://agricology.co.uk/resource/hedge-fund-investing-in-hedgerows-for-climate-nature-and-the-economy/#:~:text=40%25%20more%20hedgerows%20would%20result,services%20and%20natural%20pest%20control.
https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0959652618331779
https://green-alliance.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/Jobs_for_a_green_recovery.pdf


Summary of Soil Association Cymru’s response to the 

Sustainable Farming Scheme: Keeping farmers farming Consultation  

March 2023 

Andrew Tuddenham 

Head of Policy, Cymru 

 

Headlines 

 The SFS proposals provide a framework that has real potential to help more 
farmers adopt agroecological approaches to farming.  However, the SFS must 
also support those who are already farming in this way.   

 The SFS provides a critical opportunity to move away from BPS and impart true 
financial value to trees, hedges and habitats on farms. 

 The SFS Universal layer should not be designed to meet the specific needs and 
constraints of the largest and most intensive farms in Wales (a blend of 
government and market solutions offers better value for public funds) 

 Whole Farm Plans could help to integrate more trees onto more farms if a SFS 
target for woodland creation were implemented through the Optional layer and 
tailored around the specifics of the individual farm.   
 
 

What may strengthen the SFS? 

 A strategic route map for the SFS transition 
 

Targets 

 Specific SFS targets tied to biodiversity and its restoration  
 SFS target for farm woodland area to double by 2050, as a contribution to any 

Wales woodland target. 
 SFS target for zero-loss of ancient woodland on farms 
 A minimum of 75% of ancient and native woodlands on farms, in either good 

condition or improving condition for nature, by 2030. 
 Support to establish supply chains and supply chain services for a smaller scale 

of agroforestry and farm woodland 
 

Integrated food and farming policy 

 A Welsh Organic Action plan  
 Public procurement that incentivises and reaps the benefits of expanding 

horticultural production  
 

Advice and training 

 A significant investment in advisory services.  

Tudalen y pecyn 212



 Clear direction and support from WG to agricultural colleges and training bodies 
to help them prepare the upcoming generation of farmers with the essential 
knowledge required for the SFS.   

 

Trees 

 Welsh Government must ensure farmers know what they are going to need to do 
to meet statutory targets, and it must also provide information and support to 
enable farmers to make informed choices within the SFS.   

 Optional and Collaborative actions will have a range of potential benefits for 
climate and nature targets, but in the context of the 10% tree rule debate we 
note that the Climate Change Committee’s advice is that there is no credible 
route to achieving net zero without an increase in tree cover. 

 We continue to commend Welsh Government for maintaining a focus on tree 
cover on farms within the SFS  
 

 UA12 Woodland maintenance offers a significant opportunity to better integrate 
farm woodlands into the farming system  

 Farmers will need to be supported to achieve a balance between functional 
livestock benefits and woodland condition if livestock can access woodlands. 
UA12 should recognise the opportunity for on-farm use of timber products or 
potential off-farm sales  

 Whole Farm Plans could help to integrate more trees onto more farms if a SFS 
target for woodland creation were implemented through the Optional layer and 
tailored around the specifics of the individual farm.   

 Farmers will need practical agroforestry/forestry training, peer-to-peer learning 
networks and demonstration sites 

 A clear regulatory distinction should be made between trees outside woodland 
on farm (agroforestry systems) and farm woodland that meets the legal 
definition for woodland.  
 

Habitats 

 The 10% habitat scheme rule is appropriate for the Universal layer  
 The proposed temporary habitats required to meet a shortfall in the 10% rule are 

entirely compatible with sustainable food production. 
 Additional support may be required to help organic farmers establish mixed leys 

on improved land if required to meet the 10% habitat rule.  
 The scheme should move towards a results-based approach to scheme 

payments for habitats. 
 

Other Universal actions 

 UA2: Continuous Personal Development - the annual organic certification 
process should be recognised as Continuous Personal Development and 
equivalent to undertaking a training module within UA2. 

 UA3: Soil Health Planning  

Tudalen y pecyn 213



- In isolation this would not go far enough to incentivise the reduction in 
manufactured fertiliser use on the scale that is needed to restore soil 
health  

- the SFS should provide generic guidance to the farmer that addresses all 
SLM options in return for the upload of their soil test results. 

- summary data from soil assessments should be published as part of the 
reporting and evaluation of the SFS. 

- UA5: Integrated Pest management - should be accompanied by further 
Optional Actions which reward them to put these approaches into practice 

- UA9: Designated Site Management Plans - all stakeholders need 
confidence that NRW will have the capacity to deliver the required volume 
of designated site Management Plans during the transition period. 

- UA15: The Animal Health Improvement Cycle & UA16: Good Animal welfare 
- lameness and body condition scoring should be integrated into the AHIC 

- UA16: Good Animal welfare - third party verification is required to validate 
the quality of welfare outcome assessments  

- UA16: Good Animal welfare  - we would like to see expansion of the use of 
welfare assessment across other livestock species.  

 

Data reporting and SFS KPIs 

 The policy intent for benchmarking actions should be made clearer, setting out 
the case for how these actions benefit farmers and government.   

 Farmers should be able to access previous data. 
 Additional benchmarking requirements could be attached to specific Optional 

and Collaborative layer actions.   
 We welcome the inclusion of input costs (pesticides and diesel use in arable) 

and net margins in the illustrative list of KPIs.   
 A singular focus on daily liveweight gain militates against slow growing native 

breeds  
 If taken in isolation, single KPIs could drive unsustainable outcomes.  

 

Carbon calculator 

 It could be a very provocative market intervention if Welsh Government were to 
require a specific carbon calculator product. 

 A SFS standard for carbon calculations should be provided 
 Carbon calculators should provide output by category, GHG and scope 1, 2 or 3 

and take into account organic farming which typically involves fewer livestock 
per ha than non-organic.  
 

Controls, standards and compliance 

 An effective regulatory baseline (National Minimum Standards) must be 
maintained for all farmers in Wales, not just those within the SFS. 

 Organic certification provides a model that Welsh Government can draw on  

Tudalen y pecyn 214



 Welsh Government must prioritise the development of an ‘earned recognition’ 
framework within the scheme, drawing from input from farm assurance body 
stakeholders. 

 

Universal Baseline payment  

 If area payments within the Universal Baseline Payments are based on a costs 
incurred and income foregone model they will be too low to support those farm 
systems that are already delivering or capable of delivering sustainable land 
management improvements for nature, water and soils. We support a move to 
paying for social value underpinned by a natural capital approach.  

 Very small farms such as small-scale horticulture producers are unlikely to 
receive sufficient financial incentive from an area-based Universal Baseline 
payment model.   

 We query Welsh Government’s view that the Universal Baseline payment habitat 
element cannot reward the maintenance of SSSI land  

Stability payment 

 We support the proposal for a Stability Payment during transition.   
 We welcome the proposal to provide a Stability Payment for organic farmers to 

reflect their previous income from BPS and the Organic Support Payment 2024.   
 The Stability Payment must operate as a temporary measure for the 2025-2029 

transition whilst a suite of Optional and Collaborative actions are brought 
forward at the earliest opportunity in transition.   
 

Access to support for actions similar to those o ered in the Optional and 
Collaborative Layers.  

 Only those farmers within the Universal layer should be able to access support 
for actions contained in the Optional and Collaborative layer.   

 

Priorities for Optional and Collaborative layer actions 

 SFS should introduce Optional and Collaborative layer support for 
agroecological and organic practices by 2026 and allocate at least 50% of the 
scheme budget to the Optional and Collaborative layers by the end of the 
transition period. 

 Collaborative actions to manage and create joined up woodlands across 
landscapes and to reduce nitrogen losses at catchment scale should be 
prioritised 

 Scheme advice and actions should directly acknowledge the soil degradation 
linked to chemical inputs.  

 

Secondary legislation 

 Secondary legislation as proposed should undergo public consultation and be 
subject to Affirmative Resolution vote in the Senedd. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 215



Economic analysis of the proposals 

 We do not anticipate significant impact on stocking levels from the revised 10% 
habitats rule, and significant exemptions are now available in the 10% tree rule.  

 

Monitoring and evaluating the scheme 

 A farm practices survey in Wales would help to reveal the impact of SFS support  
 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 216



Consultation Questions 

 

Confiden ality 

Responses to consulta ons may be made public on the internet or in a report.   
If you do not want your name and address to be shown on any documents we produce please 
indicate here   
  
If you do not want your response to be shown in any document we produce please indicate here    

 

Demographic ques ons: 

Name  
Andrew Tuddenham, Head of Policy, Cymru 

  

Are you responding as 
an individual or as an 
organisation? 

Soil Association Cymru 

Are you or your 
organisation based in 
Wales? 

Yes X 

No, but I or my organisation operates in Wales  

No - not based in Wales and does not operate in Wales  

If you are answering as 
an individual, do you 
identify as Welsh 
speaking? 

Yes   

No  X 

First half of postcode 
(4 digits) 

 

  

  
Please indicate which of 
these best represent 
you or your organisation 
(please select only one) 

Farming  X 

Forestry  X 

Environmental  

Veterinary   

Tourism/Hospitality   

Food and timber supply chains  X 

Public Sector   

Private Sector   

Third Sector  X 

Trade Union/Representative   

Tudalen y pecyn 217



Research/Academia   

Other    

  

If you have indicated 
that you are a farmer, 
please identify your 
main farm activity 
(please select only 
one). 
  

Sheep   

Beef   

Dairy   

Arable    

Horticulture   

Poultry   

Mixed   

Other    

  

  

Do you currently have 
rights to graze stock on 
a common? 
  

Yes   

No X 

  

Are you a tenant 
farmer? 
  

Yes   

No  X 

  

Are you a BPS 
recipient? 
  

Yes   

No  X 

  

  
If you are responding as 
an individual, what age 
bracket are you in? 

Under 18   

18-34   

35-49  

50-64   

65+  

 

Are you currently a 
participant in any agri-
environment schemes? 

Yes   

No, but I have participated in agri-environment schemes 
in the past 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 218



  No, I have never participated in any agri-environment 
schemes. 

 

  

 

 

Framework 
 
Q1. The Scheme will provide a long-term approach to support for our agricultural 
sector to respond to evolving challenges and changing needs, contribu ng to the 
Sustainable Land Management objec ves. In your view, what may strengthen this 
support? 
 
1.1 We firmly believe that agroecological approaches to farming secure the best 
outcomes for climate, nature and people. A recent study by the French Institute 
IDDRI and the Food, Farming and Countryside Commission found that, alongside 
dietary change and a reduction in food waste, a UK-wide uptake of agroecology 
would allow for significant reductions in agricultural greenhouse gas emissions, 
and a pattern of land use that would be better for nature1. We believe that 
structuring policy to support a transition to agroecological farming o ers a way to 
produce resilient, nutritious food, with high levels of animal health and welfare 
whilst simultaneously providing good return on investment through the provision of 
public goods such as improved soil health, water quality, carbon storage and 
enhanced biodiversity. 
 
1.2 The SFS proposals provide a framework that has real potential to help more 
farmers adopt agroecological approaches to farming.  However, the SFS must 
also support those who are already farming in this way.  We are concerned that 
the significantly reduced funding for the Habitats Wales Scheme relative to Glastir 
sets a poor precedent for the SFS and has created a pressing need for support that 
will not be helped by the delayed implementation of the Optional and Collaborative 
layers of the SFS.  This lack of support is already causing some agroecological 
farmers to scale back their ambition, putting the long-term viability of their 
business at risk. Welsh Government should commit to introducing Optional and 
Collaborative layer support for agroecological and organic practices by 2026 and 
allocate at least 50% of the scheme budget to the Optional and Collaborative layers 
by the end of the transition period. 
 
Targets and strategy 
 
1.3 The Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023 places a duty on Welsh Ministers to set 
indicators and targets to measure progress towards achieving the Sustainable Land 
Management (SLM) objectives. These indicators and targets will help define a vision 
for sustainable land management in Wales, initially for the transition period.  To 
connect farmers in the SFS to the SLM objectives there should be clear read across 

 
1 Poux, X. et al (2021) Modelling an agroecological UK in 2050 – findings from TYFAREGIO (Paris: Ins tute for 
Sustainable Development and Interna onal Rela ons) 

Tudalen y pecyn 219



between these indicators and scheme actions that farmers are required to 
undertake in the SFS.  Farmers should be able to see how their actions at farm 
level contribute to SLM indicators and targets.  For example, benchmarking 
requirements in the scheme should directly inform all four SLM target/s.  
Establishing a comprehensive dataset and standards for benchmarking, such as a 
standardised approach to carbon accounting, applicable across all land-based 
businesses, would pave the way for emerging markets for public goods. This robust 
data is essential for farmers and land managers to establish new producer 
consortiums, o ering their public goods at landscape or catchment level within the 
emerging markets for nature and carbon. Benchmarking plays a crucial role in the 
ongoing refinement of the SFS, allowing adjustments over time as more farms 
achieve the target sustainability levels.  
 
1.4 Scheme targets should encompass all aspects of ecosystem resilience, 
including habitats, species, the condition of protected sites, scale and connectivity. 
The Sustainable Farming Scheme will be a crucial driver in achieving COP 15 
biodiversity restoration targets. The CCERA committee called this a "once in a 
generation opportunity" and recommends that specific targets tied to 
biodiversity and its restoration should be incorporated into the SFS targets.   
 
1.5 As a principle, we believe targets based on numbers of trees should be avoided 
and, in our view, the following targets should be adopted: 
 
- An agreed management plan (whole farm plan) for all farm woodland by 2030 
- Farm woodland area to double by 2050, as a contribution to any Wales 
woodland target. 
- 50% of farm enterprises with agroforestry systems in place by 2030 
- A zero-loss target for all ancient woodland on farms 
- A minimum of 75% of ancient and native woodlands on farms, in either good 
condition or improving condition for nature, by 2030. 
 
1.6 While recognizing existing Welsh Government targets for woodland creation, we 
propose setting SLM targets for the extent of priority habitats, with indicative sub-
targets for specific habitats like hay meadows, where significant habitat loss has 
occurred since the 1930s.  Connectivity of habitats could be measured through 
targets for hedgerows in good condition and targets for organic land area. The area 
of certified organic farmland would provide an indicator for sustainable, high 
animal welfare food production. Monitoring these outcomes is crucial to 
substantiate the sustainable brand values of Welsh food production. 
 
1.7 We believe that the SFS urgently requires a strategic route map that clearly 
sets out what transitional schemes, SFS layers and SFS actions will become 
operational during transition and what will happen to legacy schemes during this 
time.  Scottish Government’s Agricultural Reform Route Map (June 2023) o ers a 
model to help the farming sector plan ahead. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 220



Integrated food and farming and rural development policies 
 
Strategic market development 
 
1.8 There is a clear need to support market growth for the types of farming that help 
Welsh Government meet its environmental obligations while improving livelihoods 
and reducing pressure on public funds.  SFS support for sustainable food 
production should be delivered within a strategic, joined-up approach to food, 
farming and public procurement to increase the supply and local consumption of 
sustainably produced food.  For organic, a Welsh Organic Action plan is needed 
to shape this approach – the previous plan expired nearly 15 years ago. 
 
Public procurement 

 
1.9 Refocusing public procurement is a strong way Welsh Government can focus 
the market and ultimately incentivise SLM.  Public procurement should be used 
to incentivise and reap the benefits of expanding horticultural production in 
Wales in particular.  Food Sense Wales’ Welsh Veg in Schools pilot is generating 
relevant insights into the operational approaches required to establish new local 
agroecological (organic or in conversion to organic) supply chains for schools.  
Public sector food procurement in Wales is worth approximately £84.7 million per 
annum, with Local Government and NHS Wales together accounting for more than 
80% of that. Food in schools and public institutions sets norms for the public and 
consumers, signals values, and gives integrity to government priorities and policies. 
Making the most of public procurement could be game-changing. Wales could 
improve the health and food habits of the next generation by further upping 
ambitions for school food, including by encouraging schools to work towards 
achieving the Food for Life School Awards. It could also help drive demand for food 
that meets the highest standards, helping to achieve economies of scale in 
processing and lowering consumer prices. 
 
Forestry sector and trees on farms 
 
1.10 In the forestry sector Soil Association wants change to support the 
establishment of supply chains and supply chain services that are adapted to 
smaller scale of agroforestry and farm woodland, to ensure that the full market 
and on-farm substitution benefits from harvested products (food and timber) can 
be realised. 
 
1.11 Farmers will need confidence that the market for the products resulting from 
their investment in the trees on their farms. Supply chains and supply chain 
services will need to be incentivised to adapt to the more sporadic nature of supply 
and small-scale working. Mechanisms such as cooperatives and group schemes 
have the potential to mitigate small scale working on individual farm enterprises, to 
ensure profitability and economic resilience. 
 
1.12 To realise the full benefits of woodland cover restoration, the forestry sector 
also needs to be supported to adapt to provide supply chain services at a smaller 
scale and direct to farmers. In addition, many farmers themselves are well 

Tudalen y pecyn 221



positioned to take the opportunities to diversify their livelihoods and provide a 
range of small-scale forestry services such as planting, fending, tending and 
harvesting. Establishment of a vibrant farm woodland economy is key to long term 
achievement of both public benefits, farm enterprise economic resilience and rural 
diversification. 
 
Regulatory framework 
 
1.13 We believe the current regulatory framework across Wales is too fragmented 
and therefore supported the Agriculture White Paper (2020) proposals to 
consolidate existing legislation under a set of National Minimum Standards (NMS), 
applicable to all farmers in Wales.  It is a concern that the SFS consultation 
proposals refer only to scheme rules and not to the NMS framework. There are 
potential risks to soils, water, and biodiversity arising from further intensification of 
agriculture if farmers choose not to participate in the SFS.  Furthermore, value for 
public money is reduced if SLM gains secured through scheme payments are o set 
by regulatory failure to control damaging practices or pollution on the same farm or 
elsewhere. An e ective regulatory baseline must be maintained for all farmers 
in Wales, not just those within the SFS. We present further feedback on 
regulation in response to Q8.  
 
Budget, multi-annual financial framework and scheme agreement lengths 
 
1.14 We believe that the transition to a framework of farm support oriented around 
environmental outcomes which are not rewarded by the market is an important 
step in achieving Sustainable Land Management objectives in Wales and o ers 
value for money to the taxpayer.  This will require long-term certainty for investment 
in soil health and farming with trees as these require multi-annual scheme 
agreements.  The priority strategic issue in this regard is the move from the certainty 
provided by seven year CAP budget cycles to 1-3 year Welsh Government budget 
cycles where the agricultural budget is not ring-fenced.  Essentially farmers who are 
below the 10% tree and woodland target are being asked to commit to the SFS 
based on a lack of certainty about whether the budget for maintaining anything they 
create will be there in future.   
 
1.15 We believe the Optional and Collaborative tiers are essential to the success of 
the SFS. Welsh Government should commit to introducing Optional and 
Collaborative layer support for agroecological and organic practices by 2026 
and allocate at least 50% of the scheme budget to the Optional and 
Collaborative layers by the end of the transition period. 
 
Advisory support 
 
1.16 References to Farming Connect within this consultation are limited, with two 
specific mentions of the Farming Connect programme (contrasting to 40 references 
to Farming Connect within the previous SFS Outline Proposals consultation). The 
reason for this is not clear. There is, however, a proposal from Welsh Government to 
continue to o er a range of advice, guidance and learning in the years to come and 
numerous references to the provision of advice and guidance to support farmers 

Tudalen y pecyn 222



with the SFS including with some specific Universal Actions; skills development 
and mentoring to new entrants; and the possibility of facilitation support for 
common land management agreements. 
 
As per our feedback in response to the Agriculture (Wales) White Paper 2020: 
 
1.17 Soil Association would like to see a significant investment in advisory 
services. We believe that advisory services o er value for money and will secure 
the delivery of the sustainable farming scheme objectives. This shift towards a SLM 
approach presents an opportunity for Welsh Government-led advisory services to 
be reviewed to address the need for fundamental change in farming practice to 
meet the significant challenges from climate change, and to mitigate the impact 
upon agriculture of climate breakdown. Agroecological practices should be at the 
heart of these advisory services. This should operate alongside a wider move within 
the agricultural curriculum to train the next generation of farmers and farm advisors 
to equip Welsh food and farming sectors for the future.  
 
1.18 The wider implications of sustainable land management and ecosystems 
should be factored into the scale of advice delivery, and advisory services should 
look to farmer-led approaches that include land managers in the development and 
delivery of schemes, building an advisory and knowledge-exchange network that is 
fit for purpose in a changing world. Advisory services should foster collaboration 
between land managers, enabling landscape scale conservation. This approach 
could deliver public goods such as flood prevention or improved biodiversity 
through the creation of ‘biodiversity corridors. 
 
Agricultural education 
 
1.19 Agricultural education at degree level is responding to the growing interest in 
environmentally sustainable farming.  There is less evidence of this shift occurring 
at HND level.  To strengthen the support o ered by the SFS, agricultural colleges 
and training bodies will need clear direction and support from WG to help them 
prepare the upcoming generation of farmers with the essential knowledge 
required for the SFS.  This includes fundamental issues of soil husbandry and 
farming systems and practices that restore soil health, water quality and 
biodiversity, as well as straightforward adjustments in land management to 
enhance livestock health and soil fertility. Agricultural college training in crucial 
approaches like integrated pest management (IPM) and agroforestry is also 
currently lacking, with these topics often receiving minimal attention, if any, in 
college curricula. 
 
Baseline assessments and opportunity mapping  
 
1.20 To help secure a harmony between environmental, economic and social 
outcomes we would like to see the Habitat Baseline Review process enable farmers 
to identify relevant SFS actions within the Optional and Collaborative layers.  This 
guidance could be o ered through use of GIS opportunity mapping within the 
Habitat Baseline Review in the Universal layer of the scheme, and within a whole 

Tudalen y pecyn 223



farm plan approach to the Optional and Collaborative layers of the scheme, which 
we explore later in this response.  
 
 
Universal Ac ons 
 
Q2. There will be Universal requirements in the SFS to have woodland cover at least 
10% of suitable land, and to manage a minimum of 10% of your farm for biodiversity.  
a) What are your views on these requirements?  
 
2.1 Recent agricultural policy has tended to view productive farming as separate 
from measures to promote tree planting or measures to protect or restore nature, 
when sustainable productivity is dependent on maintaining and restoring natural 
resources. This has to change, and we should be aiming to move trees as a forestry 
programme to trees as a tool to achieve farming objectives and move nature from 
the margins to the middle of the field. At the same time, we should be changing the 
balance of what we produce, with less land used for growing crops to feed to 
animals and more domestic fruit, vegetable and pulse production. 
 
10% tree cover rule 
 
2.2 We believe that every farmer should be supported to find a resilient and 
profitable pathway to agroecological farming, bringing trees and abundant 
nature back into our farmed countryside.  Through careful design, the integration of 
agroforestry and farm woodland into farming systems has the potential to enhance 
the performance and resilience of food production in Wales. Furthermore, we 
believe that the net environmental benefit from a shift to more integrated systems 
of agroforestry and farm woodland is likely to be greater than converting to 
woodland at a whole farm scale.  We continue to commend Welsh Government 
for maintaining a focus on tree cover on farms within the SFS and we note that 
the messaging to farmers now leads on the case for potential productivity gains 
within the farm system. The evidence base is building that the careful and 
deliberate integration of trees and woodlands into farming systems as a land 
sharing or agroecological approach will not only boost productivity, rather than 
reduce productivity through loss of productive area, but also help to de-risk farming 
in a changing climate due to the huge range of functional benefits to livestock and 
even grass growth, from the integration of trees. 
 
2.3 Nevertheless it has become clear since the previous SFS consultation that 
significant numbers of farmers do not see these opportunities or are not persuaded 
that their business model could be adapted to enable greater integration of trees on 
farm.  
 
2.4 We recognise that sensible exemptions to the 10% rule are already proposed for 
tenant farmland and for those areas unsuited to woodland cover, and that it is 
possible to envisage further flexibility, such as to prioritise the most capable and 
versatile grades of land. However, further exemptions to the 10% rule risk adding 
further complexity to what is already seen by some farmers to be a prohibitively 
complex Universal layer.  Taken further, delivery of the Universal target could no 

Tudalen y pecyn 224



longer be considered truly universal, whilst the principal issue of contention – that 
fundamental land use and business choices are to be mandated by government as 
a condition of financial support – remained unresolved. Without buy-in from 
farmers the SFS will fall short in its delivery of Sustainable Land Management 
objectives. 
 
10% habitat rule 

2.5 We see no conflict between sustainable food production and a requirement to 
hold at least 10% land managed as habitat as defined in the proposals. We do not 
anticipate significant impact on stocking levels from the 10% habitat rule. 

2.6 We believe that the 10% habitat scheme rule is appropriate for the 
Universal layer as the habitats required to meet a shortfall in the 10% rule have no 
little to no impact on production.  The temporary habitats may be ecologically 
modest relative to priority habitat types but if created at scale could make a 
significant contribution to nature in Wales. From a sustainable food production 
stance we see no compelling reason for Welsh Government to make the 10% 
habitat scheme rule optional. 

b) What support might you need to achieve them?  
 
UA12 – Woodland maintenance 
 
2.7 We believe UA12 (Woodland maintenance) o ers a significant opportunity 
to better integrate farm woodlands into the farming system, including in some 
cases the development of new enterprises. Almost all woodlands will be providing 
functional benefits such as shade, shelter, browse and also soil improvement on 
the woodland edge due to higher levels of organic matter and mycorrhizal 
interactions. These functional edge benefits can be extended into the woodland 
through careful management, so the proposal to avoid a blanket stock exclusion is 
welcomed.  
 
2.8 However, farmers will need to be supported to achieve a balance between 
functional livestock benefits and woodland condition if livestock can access 
woodlands. This would be best achieved through support for whole farm planning, 
where tools like Scottish Forestry’s Woodland Grazing Toolbox can provide a model 
for using livestock as a woodland management tool.  
 
2.9 It should also be recognised that good woodland condition will often require 
tree felling and regeneration will always be required. UA12 should therefore 
recognise the opportunity for on-farm use of timber products or potential o -
farm sales from some farm woodlands as diversification and farm enterprise 
development options. This would be true integration of woodland into the farm 
enterprise. This management of existing woodland could also be linked through a 
whole farm tree plan approach to provide tailored plans for those farmers wishing 
to increase the treescape on their farms as new woodlands, new hedgerows or 
agroforestry. Soil Association is piloting these in England and Farming Connect are 
funding an equivalent approach in Wales.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 225



2.10 The Universal Baseline payment should reflect the social value of UA12 
woodland management actions. We are concerned that if area payments 
continue to be based on a costs incurred and income foregone model, they will be 
too low to support those farm systems that are already delivering or capable of 
delivering sustainable land management improvements for nature, water and soils. 
We support a move to paying for social value underpinned by a natural capital 
approach. The SFS provides a critical opportunity to move away from BPS and 
impart true financial value to trees and woodland on farms. 
 
2.11 In addition, Welsh Government should consider working with UK and other 
devolved governments to ensure that the UK Forestry Standard is fit for purpose in 
regulating woodland on farms into the future. 
 
Woodland creation 
 
2.12 We note that the dairy sector appears to have greatest di iculty in 
accommodating the proposed 10% trees scheme rule, in terms of current levels of 
tree cover and the apparent capacity of this farm type to hold more trees.  We 
suggest that this reflects that many of these systems are constrained by farming 
intensity. 

2.13 The SFS economic impact assessment (Potential economic e ects of the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme: Phase 4 Universal Actions Modelling Results) shows 
that under the 2022 proposals lowland dairy would need to make the largest 
increase in tree cover for a given farm type (77.6%) to meet the 10% rule, whilst 
delivering just 9% of the total woodland creation across all farm types, a figure 
which may be an overestimate given that the current proposed SFS exemptions 
were not modelled.  
 
2.14 Intensive dairying is highly geared around the amount of land available for 
manure spreading and silage production. Whilst tree expansion in the form of low 
density silvopasture and wider hedges o ers clear benefits for health and 
productivity for dairy livestock and soil health in these systems, additional trees 
would reduce the area available for manure spreading, requiring the farm to either 
hold fewer livestock and/or bring in additional grassland for spreading or capital-
intensive solutions for manure and slurry processing.  
 
2.15 We recognise that it is di icult for intensive agriculture to accommodate the 
type of ambitious targets required to meet statutory targets for climate and nature.  
However, we do not believe that the SFS Universal layer should be designed to 
meet the specific needs and constraints of the largest and most intensive 
farms in Wales, which are also the least reliant on current support. Not all farm 
holdings, notably very small ones, have been able to take advantage of farm 
support from the CAP. The SFS has the potential to rectify this and support a 
majority cohort of small, less intensive farms which are better placed to deliver on-
farm benefits for sustainable food production using trees and habitats.  
Government support alone is unlikely to deliver a transition to sustainable farming 
for the most intensive systems in a way that does not use up the majority of the 

Tudalen y pecyn 226



budget. Welsh Government has an opportunity to establish a Sustainable Land 
Management pathway for all farms in Wales but must also bring regulation, private 
finance and other market solutions into play alongside scheme support payments 
in a way that works for these intensive systems and secures best value for public 
money.   

Whole farm plans and woodland creation 
 
2.16 Many organisations, including the Soil Association, advocate for a whole farm 
approach as part of the shift towards more sustainable farming. We suggest that 
this approach could help to integrate more trees onto more farms if a SFS 
target for woodland creation were implemented through the Optional layer and 
tailored around the specifics of the individual farm using a whole farm plan.   
 
2.17 Under this model current tree cover should be rewarded within the Universal 
Baseline payment through UA12, as discussed above. 
 
2.18 Whole farm approach terminology is now part of the Scottish Government’s 
proposed framework for post-CAP agricultural support, which states the 
development of a Whole Farm Plan could be mandatory for those in receipt of the 
basic payment. The SFS proposals in the Sustainable Farming and our Land 
consultation (2019) described an adviser-facilitated Farm Sustainability Review.  
We note that a much simplified and fragmented version of this process is contained 
in the current SFS proposals.  Concerns have been raised by some farming 
stakeholders regarding the level of resource required to deliver the Farm 
Sustainability Reviews as proposed in 2019, on the premise that this would divert 
budget away from farm payments. The suggestion of increased bureaucracy or ‘red 
tape’ is also likely to trigger a negative response from some farmers who already 
consider the burden of paperwork required to comply with government policy or 
private accreditation schemes to be excessive.   
 
2.19 However the current debate around the proposed 10% tree cover rule 
highlights the reality that farms are complex, interconnected ecological systems 
and that the delivery of one scheme target – an expansion of tree cover – may be 
di icult to achieve using a generic and mandatory approach within the Universal 
layer.   
 
2.20 We suggest there are clear benefits in taking a step back to consider the whole 
rather than focusing on individual elements. A whole farm plan can provide a 
decision-making framework that takes the entire holding and its assets into 
consideration, integrating the di erent enterprises on farm and making the most of 
available resources. Whole farm planning embraces the concept of circularity, 
where outputs from one part of the farm can become inputs in another. It can also 
ensure that ecologically sound practices on one part of the farm are not 
compromised by intensive practices on another.  In the context of woodland 
creation, this could mean an increase in fertiliser applications to grassland. In a 
wider context, the biodiversity benefits from pollinator strips in field margins, or 
beetle banks in arable fields, may be undermined by continued use of chemical 
pesticides on other parts of the farm. 

Tudalen y pecyn 227



 
2.21 The key to true integration of trees and woodlands into farming systems (as 
distinct from meeting a rule for 10% tree cover simply to access the SFS), will be to 
use a whole- farm plan approach to indicate the direct benefits to a given farm’s 
productivity and long-term farm sustainability and resilience. This will mean (at 
least) that a whole farm plan approach properly acknowledges and helps inform 
the farmer about the current farm productivity benefits from existing trees and 
woodlands on farms e.g. shade, shelter, on-farm water management, on-farm use 
of wood products etc. The planning process would support farmers with applied 
evidence as to how the better management of existing trees and woodlands, as well 
as planting of new trees and woodlands, can further enhance productivity and farm 
level sustainability e.g. evidence for how well-designed shelter can reduce 
supplementary feed costs, increase live-weight gain, facilitate outdoor poultry or 
lambing, extend the period for livestock outside sheds and help implement 
rotational grazing systems. The whole farm plan approach would take the entire 
holding and its assets into consideration, integrating the di erent enterprises on 
farm (and potential for tree-related income) and making the most of available 
resources. 
 
2.22 Allied to this would be a need for scheme advisory services to  
 
• Support farmers with practical training, so that most farmers existing skills for 
agronomy and husbandry, can be transferred to tree establishment and 
management. The Soil Association has a number of open-source farmer assets 
including the Agroforestry Handbook2 and the online course ‘Opportunities and 
options for agroforestry and farm woodlands’3 available in English and Welsh. 
• Support farmers with knowledge transfer, through peer-to-peer learning 
networks and demonstration sites. e.g. Innovative Farmers field labs for 
agroforestry4 
 
Regulation 
 
2.23 We recommend that a clear regulatory distinction is made between trees 
outside woodland on farm (agroforestry systems) and farm woodland that 
meets the legal definition for woodland. The trees outside woodland that are part 
of the farming system should not be managed in line with the UK Forestry Standard 
(UKFS). The UKFS is not designed for agroforestry systems, including silvoapasture 
(e.g. wood pasture, grazed orchards or scattered trees for livestock including 
poultry ranging) or silvoarable, where trees are integrated into arable or horticultural 
systems. We recommend that agroforestry is regulated as an agricultural activity 
and not as a forestry activity, and that we avoid the risks of dual regulation by linking 
the UKFS to any agroforestry activities.  
 
2.24 However, we do agree that it is appropriate that the woodland on farm that 
does meet the definition of woodland, should be managed to the UKFS, although as 

 
2 Download the Agroforestry Handbook (soilassocia on.org) 
3 Agroforestry and farm woodland e-learning | Soil Associa on. 
4 Twelve year field lab into the benefits of silvopasture launched (innova vefarmers.org) 

Tudalen y pecyn 228



per earlier comments for UA12, this regulatory baseline does need to evolve to 
better reflect the functional benefits of farm woodland. 
 
2.25 In addition to our general support, we o er the following advice on eligibility for 
inclusion as part of any tree cover requirement, on the measures required for 
successful implementation and also on the emphasis for Optional or Collaborative 
actions: 
 
2.26 Eligibility for a tree cover requirement.  It will be important to adopt a 
consistent approach to how trees outside woodlands are assessed as part of a 
target to achieve a desired minimum tree cover or proportional increase in tree 
cover. The assessment proposed will involve a calculation of tree canopy cover on a 
farm, including trees outside woodlands (including hedgerows). We believe this 
should involve some formulae to be applied to calculate future canopy cover for 
less mature trees outside woodlands and newly planted hedgerows.  
 
2.27 Another option is to consider a refinement of the target, to allow field parcels 
intentionally planted with in-field trees as an agroforestry system, to count in full 
towards a tree cover measurement, as well as the linear strip between a double-
fence for hedgerows.  
 
2.28 We recognise that some parts of Wales may not readily support 
trees/woodland due to natural constraint, such as blanket bogs and many coastal 
locations, or due to conflict with conservation objectives on SSSI/SAC sites. For 
such areas we suggest that there should be a requirement to achieve any shortfall 
on tree cover by providing a greater extent of ecologically similar habitat eg scrub 
thickets on sheltered slopes or field corners. 
 
2.29 Finally, it will be important to recognise the management cycle for trees on 
farms and implement a robust and consistent measure that does not penalise for a 
temporary loss of cover e.g. due to hedge management or in-field tree felling and 
replanting. 
 
UA8: Create temporary habitat on improved land 
 
2.30 Temporary diverse leys including red clover options as proposed under UA8: 
Create temporary habitat on improved land are achievable within organic farming 
systems and deliver multiple benefits for SLM, but costs of establishment can be 
greater for organic farms due to the higher costs of organic seed and restrictions on 
soil additives that may be required to achieve suitable soil status for sward 
establishment. Additional support may be required to help organic farmers 
establish mixed leys on improved land if required to meet the 10% habitat rule. 
The Universal action may also create situations where organic farms are required to 
establish temporary leys on permanent pastures that are not classed as habitat but 
hold valuable soil carbon stores that would be degraded by cultivation. Given that 
herbicide use is prohibited in organic farming we request that Welsh Government 
considers how UA8 could be applied to organic grassland systems without net 
reduction in SLM. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 229



Q.3 Aside from the 10% woodland and habitat requirements, will the Universal 
Ac ons: 
a) Provide benefit for your farm business? 
B) Provide an achievable set of ac ons paid for through the Universal Baseline 
Payment? 
 
UA2: Continuous Personal Development 
 
3.1 The Sustainable Farming Scheme will require a significant amount of training 
and advice to be made available to the sector. We welcome the holistic approach 
to learning whereby UA2 requires farmers to select learning modules from five 
categories based on the scheme characteristics and is intended to support farmers 
in the delivery of other actions in the scheme. Whilst online learning may be 
e icient to deliver, there are evident concerns that this approach may present a 
barrier for some farmers. Alternatives to online learning should be considered. 
Finally, we believe that the annual organic certification process should be 
recognised as Continuous Personal Development and equivalent to 
undertaking a training module within UA2. 
 
UA3: Soil Health Planning 
 
3.2 We welcome the inclusion of this Universal action as a vital first step in 
optimising the use of nutrient inputs. In isolation UA3: Soil Health Planning would 
not go far enough to incentivise the reduction in manufactured fertiliser use on 
the scale that is needed to restore soil health - we believe there should be an 
Optional action available for farmers using no manufactured fertiliser (see Q12). 
 
3.3 The test results will require interpretation to ensure that appropriate 
management responses and potential SFS actions are identified. We feel that the 
SFS should provide guidance to help all farmers in the scheme understand soil 
structure and any soil biology results if these are developed. The 2022 proposal 
suggested that Farming Connect would provide support for technical advice.  The 
2023 proposal does not refer to this or provide detail as to what advice will be 
provided to enable farmers to use their soil test information to operate more 
e iciently and reduce their environmental impact. It would be preferable to provide 
generic guidance to the farmer that addresses all SLM options in return for the 
upload of their soil test results.  
 
3.4 We foresee scope to involve remote sensing technology to help target areas for 
in-field assessment, and for in-field assessment to help refine remote sensing data. 
Soil Association is a delivery partner in a Horizon Europe Framework Programme 
project to validate and develop soil health indicators. This work may provide helpful 
learnings and products for use in the SFS. The project will co-design, create,and 
maintain an open access European-wide digital infrastructure, termed 
“AI4SoilHealth”5. The infrastructure will be used for assessing and continuously 
monitoring soil health metrics by land use and/or management. 
 

 
5 Funding & tenders (europa.eu) 

Tudalen y pecyn 230



3.5 The soil testing action will establish a national SFS dataset for soils, which 
creates significant opportunity for research, for example through integration/cross 
reference to remote sensing research as outlined above. Clarity is needed as to 
how the information will be held and who can access it. We would like to see 
summary data from the soil assessments published as part of the reporting 
and evaluation of the SFS. 
 
UA4: Multispecies cover crop 
 
3.6 We support the aim of this action and its inclusion in the Universal layer but we 
note that the requirement to establish a post-harvest cover crop may not be 
practical during winter vegetable harvest periods.  
 
UA5: Integrated Pest Management 
 
3.7 We support the focus on Integrated Pest Management, and the whole farm 
approach that underpins the proposals. However, the requirement for all farmers 
to complete an IPM assessment should be accompanied by further Optional 
Actions which reward them to put these approaches into practice, and these 
should be reviewed and improved every 3-5 years. We recognise that financial 
support is needed to help farmers transition to low/zero use of synthetic pesticides 
and suggest that Welsh Government should consider the circumstances in which 
an Optional action payment could incentivise a reduction in pesticide use - rather 
than exclusively framing the incentive around the money farmers could save by 
reducing their reliance on chemical inputs. We believe that an Optional action 
payment should be available for farmers using no synthetic pesticides/herbicides 
(see Q12). 
 
UA7: Habitat maintenance 
 
3.8 We support this proposal including the proposed Universal action and the 
proposal that scheme requirements for specific habitat types will adopt a more 
flexible approach to some aspects of habitat management compared to previous 
schemes such as Glastir. We encourage Welsh Government to move towards a 
results-based approach to scheme payments for habitats. 
 
3.9 We are concerned that if area payments within the Universal Baseline Payments 
are based on a costs incurred and income foregone model they will be too low to 
support those farm systems that are already delivering or capable of delivering 
sustainable land management improvements for nature, water and soils. We 
support a move to paying for social value underpinned by a natural capital 
approach.  The Habitat Wales Scheme provides a poor template for scheme 
payments in the SFS Universal layer.  The SFS provides a critical opportunity to 
move away from BPS and impart true financial value to habitats on farms. 
 
UA8: Create temporary habitat on improved land 
 
3.10 We recognise that this action is required to enable the 10% habitat scheme 
rule to operate on a 12-month cycle, like BPS, and to remove a barrier to scheme 

Tudalen y pecyn 231



uptake for those farmers concerned about improved land being captured by EIA 
regulation.  
 
3.11 The proposed temporary habitats required to meet a shortfall in the 10% 
rule are entirely compatible with sustainable food production. The temporary 
habitats may be ecologically modest relative to priority habitat types but if created 
at scale could make a significant contribution to nature in Wales. However, better 
value for public money would be secured if the action for mixed leys on improved 
land were delivered by an Optional action using a longer-term scheme agreement 
and coupled with advice for graze and rest management to ensure longevity of 
legumes and herbs in the sward.  The proposal as drafted may allow for annual re-
establishment of these swards on the same field, potentially to the detriment of soil 
health.  
 
UA9: Designated Site Management Plans 
 
3.12 All stakeholders need confidence that NRW will have the capacity to 
deliver the required volume of designated site Management Plans during the 
transition period. 
 
3.13 We query Welsh Government’s view that the Universal Baseline payment 
habitat element cannot reward the maintenance of SSSI land given that UA9 
requires the maintenance of a Management Plan, and UA7 requires specific 
management outcomes for all habitat land, which may go beyond the SSSI duty to 
ensure that designated features are not damaged. 
 
UA11: Hedgerow management 
 
3.14 We welcome this action and its inclusion in the Universal layer. If coupled with 
adequate reward this action has potential to make a significant contribution to 
landscape scale benefits for nature and sustainable food production. 
 
UA15: The Animal Health Improvement Cycle 
 
3.15 We support this action but believe that the interaction between animal health 
and agroecological farming practices should be examined within the Animal Health 
Improvement Cycle. We see improvements in animal health and productivity 
through changes to stocking, breed and grazing regime to support a shift to a low-
input system, with corresponding gains in animal nutrition. In addition the 
introduction of trees on farm has multiple health benefits to livestock from 
reducing worm burdens, fluke risk, lamb mortality and heat and cold stress. These 
links to the benefits of using trees within the whole farming system need to be 
captured within the health planning approach. 
 
3.16 The lameness and body condition scoring being completed under UA16 
should be integrated into the AHIC. This will embed the importance of welfare 
outcome assessment as on ongoing priority for the farmer. The measures of 
mobility and BCS are so linked to health risks and productivity constraints, 

Tudalen y pecyn 232



especially fertility that it is essential that they are linked to both health planning and 
welfare monitoring.  
 
UA16: Good animal welfare 
 
3.17 It’s very positive to see this integration of welfare outcome assessment as part 
of the UA. It is understood that this “entry level” light touch approach is to capture 
farms that aren’t currently routinely carrying out mobility or BCS on their stock, but 
there needs to be scope to ensure third party verification can validate the 
quality of welfare outcome assessments being completed to drive continuous 
improvement. 
 
3.18 There is good scope to validate this activity through farm assurance schemes 
and integration with the AHIC to ensure vets are reviewing the assessment data that 
is being captured and can assist in training gaps and advise on improvement.  
 
3.19 We would like to see expansion of the use of welfare assessment across 
other livestock species.  
 
Q4. On-farm data repor ng allows the Welsh Government to confirm ac ons are 
being undertaken and help you to make decisions about your farm. In your view, is 
the repor ng requirement for the Universal Ac ons appropriate? 
 
Benchmarking actions 
 
4.1 Universal Actions UA1, UA3, UA5 and UA15 appear to be intended to enable 
improvements to farm management and performance, but the policy intent for 
benchmarking actions should be made clearer, setting out the case for how 
these actions benefit farmers and government.  Likewise, the rationale for the 
carbon calculator proposal could be clearer. A clearer case should also be made to 
farmers regarding the benefit of knowing their true worth in performance and 
natural capital terms as required to survive into the future. Data verification issues 
mean that a government dataset collated from SFS returns could not be fully relied 
upon to inform scheme targets.  
 
4.2 We strongly support the ambitions outlined for farmers to have access to their 
data. Data collection should provide value for farmers enabling benchmarking 
which can inform their management practices and enable them to demonstrate the 
sustainability credentials of their business. To achieve this, it is essential that 
farmers can observe change on farm overtime, we therefore think it is important 
that retaining the ability to access historic data is outlined in the proposals. 
 
4.3 The sheep and beef sector has typically less requirement to measure and report 
to meet supply chain standards compared to the dairy sector.  A reduced set of 
mandatory KPIs for the Universal layer may be necessary for these producers.  We 
suggest that additional benchmarking requirements could be attached to 
specific Optional and Collaborative layer actions.   
 

Tudalen y pecyn 233



4.4 From an agroecological stance it is encouraging to see the inclusion of input 
costs (pesticides and diesel use in arable) and net margins included in the 
illustrative list of KPIs.  KPIs could help to embed a Maximum Sustainable Output 
approach, with a focus on the ‘corrective variable costs’ (artificial fertilisers, 
purchased feed, vet/medicine costs to a degree), and fixed costs, particularly 
machinery within the farm enterprise.  Honing the cost of production KPIs down to 
these costs for sheep and beef would provide a focus on the critical profit-eroding 
practices in the farm system.  It would also simplify the accounting workload for the 
farmer, a significant consideration given that only around 40% of Welsh farmers 
know their costs of production (Farming Connect, 2018).  Recording of medicine 
use is a statutory requirement, records of purchased feed are required in farm 
assurance schemes such as Red Tractor and records of all feed inputs are required 
for organic certification. 
 
4.5 We note that daily liveweight gain is not listed in the example KPIs on p16. 
Whilst many farmers use this metric to measure feed conversion e iciency and 
associated emissions intensity not all farms have the means to accurately record 
this using weighing scales. Critically a singular focus on daily liveweight gain 
militates against slow growing native breeds that have an important role in low 
input systems and the management of habitats and biodiversity. 
 
4.6 If taken in isolation, single KPIs could drive unsustainable outcomes. Care 
is needed to ensure that slow-maturing, nature-friendly livestock systems that 
deliver local environmental benefit through habitat management are not 
disincentivised.  There’s a need to avoid improvements in e iciency solely being 
used to increase production output, which could have a negative e ect on mortality 
rates and fertility (resulting in waste and ine iciency), increase or maintain negative 
environmental impacts or constrain the uptake of nature friendly farming practices.  
According to the Centre for Innovation Excellence in Livestock‘s Net Zero Carbon & 
UK Livestock Report (2020)6, “typically outputs do increase when e iciency 
increases i.e. more is produced and so net emissions remain comparable. This 
needs to be avoided to achieve net zero.”  
 
4.7 This points to a need to combine KPIs in insightful ways, as illustrated below in 
this figure from the CIEL Net Zero Carbon & UK Livestock Report (2020), comparing 
emissions intensity (kg CO2 eq/kg liveweight gain) against daily liveweight gain: 
 

 
6 Net Zero Carbon & UK Livestock Report October 2020 | CIEL (cielivestock.co.uk) 

Tudalen y pecyn 234



 
 
4.8 We suggest that there is a role for academia to accelerate the development of 
UA1. 
 
Q5. The Stability Payment will provide addi onal support during the Transi on 
Period.  In your view, is this appropriate whilst the Op onal and Collabora ve Ac ons 
are being introduced? 
 
5.1 We would like to see every opportunity taken within the SFS process to 
incentivise farmers to aim high in the scheme, opting to undertake further actions 
within the Optional and Collaborative layers.  
 
5.2 We therefore support the proposal for a Stability Payment during transition.  
We recognise that support will be needed to encourage farmers to transfer from 
BPS to the Universal Layer of the SFS prior to the availability of Optional and 
Collaborative Actions.  The phased withdrawal of the Stability Payment, mirroring 
the reductions in BPS, establishes a financial incentive for the uptake of Optional 
and Collaborative actions.   
 
5.3 To provide clarity and demonstrate a commitment to SLM we encourage Welsh 
Government to operate the Stability Payment as a temporary measure for the 
2025-2029 transition whilst ensuring that a suite of Optional and Collaborative 
actions are brought forward at the earliest opportunity in transition.  Given the 
urgent need to focus the Welsh food system onto climate and nature objectives 
that deliver against current and forthcoming legal targets, the Stability Payment 
should not be used as a policy safety-net to enable Welsh Government to extend 
transition in response to political or financial pressures.  An extension of transition 
beyond 2030 in these circumstances would signal to stakeholders that business-

Tudalen y pecyn 235



as-usual policy is acceptable, undermining government’s ability to lead meaningful 
change in farming and land management. 
 
 
Scheme Opera on 
Q6. We have proposed that applicants should have sole management responsibility 
for the land for 10 months and ensure comple on of the Universal Ac ons for the full 
scheme year (12 months). In your view, is the 10-month period sufficient? 
 
6.1 No response. 
 
Q7. We are proposing the use of a single carbon calculator for everyone in the 
Scheme. Do you agree and how might we best support you to complete this?  
 
7.1 If the policy intent is to help farmers make improvements to farm management 
and performance we suggest that where a carbon calculation is required in the SFS 
the requirement should be that the calculator must meet a scheme minimum 
standard, rather than a scheme requirement to use a particular calculator provided 
by third parties or government.   Carbon calculators should provide output by 
category, GHG and scope 1, 2 or 3 and take into account organic farming which 
typically involves fewer livestock per ha than non-organic. It could be a very 
provocative market intervention if Welsh Government were to require a 
specific carbon calculator product. A clearer case should also be made to 
farmers regarding the benefit of knowing their true worth in performance and 
natural capital terms as required to survive into the future. 
 
Q8. To ensure con nued high standards on our farms, we have outlined a 
propor onate approach to controls and sanc ons, including compliance with 
addi onal legisla on as a condi on of Scheme payment. Do you have any views on 
this approach?  
 
8.1 We believe the current regulatory framework across Wales is too fragmented 
and we supported the Agriculture White Paper (2020) proposals to consolidate 
existing legislation under a set of National Minimum Standards (NMS), applicable 
to all farmers in Wales.  It is a concern that the SFS consultation proposals refer 
only to scheme rules and not to the NMS framework. There are potential risks to 
soils, water, and biodiversity arising from further intensification of agriculture if 
farmers choose not to participate in the scheme. An e ective regulatory baseline 
must be maintained for all farmers in Wales, not just those within the SFS. 
 
8.2 We supports the intention to retain GAEC 4 into SFS scheme rules to introduce 
statutory regulations to protect soils in Wales. It is not clear why there is no 
proposal to retain GAEC 5 into SFS scheme rules.  Taken together these measures 
would provide more comprehensive measures to protect soil structure, prevent 
nutrient loss and erosion. GAEC 4 and 5 however do not equally protect the 
biological activity of soils. Soil biology is very important for farming and the 
environment because the activities of soil organisms a ect the functioning of 
whole ecosystems. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 236



8.3 We know that agricultural intensification reduces the abundance of soil 
organisms and changes the way that ecosystems in soils function. The reasons for 
this include: 
 
• A reliance on inorganic fertilisers, which has reduced organic matter levels, 
reducing the habitat quality for soil organisms. 
• The rise of monocultures, which fail to provide the variety of conditions necessary 
for the diverse range of soil organisms to thrive. 
• Pesticides that can kill not only the intended target, but also other beneficial 
organisms. 
 
8.4 We propose that SFS rules should support farming practices which reduce the 
prevalence and impact of the actions above, to protect Welsh soils. 
 
8.5 It is essential for the SFS rules and future National Minimum Standards to be 
backed by a robust inspection regime. Organic certification provides a model 
that Welsh Government can draw on as the annual inspections, regular reporting 
and whole farm planning involved in organic certification make it the most 
transparent and well-regulated food and farming sector. More regular inspection 
does not need to be burdensome for the farmer, in fact an organic inspection can 
deliver joint inspections with other schemes such as Red Tractor, Pasture for Life 
and FAWL.  
 
8.6 Through working closely with organic certification through a system of earned 
recognition Welsh Government could monitor and verify compliance to national 
standards. This would be both a robust and cost-e ective method of monitoring 
compliance for Welsh Government and least onerous for farmers. We call on Welsh 
Government to prioritise the development of an ‘earned recognition’ framework 
within the scheme, drawing from input from farm assurance body 
stakeholders. 
 
Q9. Adop ng the Welsh Government appeals process will provide an effec ve and 
efficient mechanism. Is there any reason we should deviate from this?  
 
9.1 No response 
 
Payment Methodology 
 
Q10. We would like to know your views on the proposed approach to: 

a) the SFS universal baseline payment 
b) the SFS stability payment 

 
10.1 We have provided comments elsewhere in relation to the area payments for 
habitats and tree cover and payments for SSSI land. 
 
10.2 We welcome the proposal to provide a Stability Payment for organic 
farmers to reflect their previous income from BPS and the Organic Support 
Payment 2024.  Under current proposals the Organic Support Payment 2024 will 

Tudalen y pecyn 237



not be available in 2025, but payment levels would be maintained if the farmer 
enters the SFS.  We feel that this creates unfair pressure on organic farmers to enter 
the SFS in 2025. Welsh Government should therefore confirm in 2024 what specific 
Optional actions for organic will be available in the SFS – we are calling for these 
actions to be available in 2026 - to provide a clear choice to organic farmers.  If 
Optional actions for organic are not available until later in the transition phase a 
gap in support could otherwise be created. 
 
10.3 We believe that very small farms such as small-scale horticulture 
producers are unlikely to receive su icient financial incentive from an area-
based Universal Baseline payment model.  Additional support would likely be 
required to help these producers enter the SFS Universal layer to gain access to the 
Optional and Collaborative layers.    
 
Transi on Period 
Q.11. Farmers outside the Scheme may wish to access support for ac ons similar to 
those offered in the Op onal and Collabora ve Layers. In your view, should farmers 
within the Scheme receive priority support to undertake these ac ons?   

11.1 The proposal suggests that there could be a parallel approach to farm support 
/ investment, with non-SFS schemes replicating some of the actions supported by 
the Optional and Collaborative layers of the SFS. A land-based business could, for 
example, access capital grants directly or independent of the SFS without a 
requirement to deliver the SLM actions of the Universal layer. This could divert 
scheme resources and weaken delivery of Sustainable Land Management 
objectives, unless the Universal layer actions were to be incorporated into 
mandatory National Minimum Standards applicable to all land managers.  We 
believe that only farmers within the Universal layer should be able to access 
support for actions contained in the Optional and Collaborative layer.   
 
11.2 See previous comment (10.3) regarding very small farms such as small-scale 
horticulture producers.    
 
Q12. What ac ons and support within the Op onal and Collabora ve layers do you 
believe should be priori sed? 

12.1 We would like to see a direct acknowledgement of the soil degradation 
linked to chemical inputs. Manufactured fertilisers, for instance, displace organic 
matter inputs that provide the food necessary to soil life. They also reduce 
beneficial microbes necessary to e icient nutrient recycling, which make nutrients 
more available to crops. Similarly, most pesticides pose a serious threat to soil 
invertebrates, which are themselves key to healthy soil functions. Optional Actions 
to benefit nutrient use and soil condition should therefore be available for the 
reduction of pesticides/herbicides and manufactured fertilisers, as outlined above. 
We provide a set of suggested Optional actions for zero use of manufactured 
fertilisers and herbicides (as per organic farms) below. 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 238



Optional actions for organic farming 
 
12.2 Soil Association advocates for scheme actions that specifically support 
organic farming practices or systems. Organic farming is proven to be a highly 
e ective system for the delivery of Welsh Government’s Sustainable Land 
Management goals as it is the only standard that bans the use of artificial nitrogen 
and severely restricts the use of pesticides on a whole farm basis. We are therefore 
encouraged that the consultation document acknowledges that the cumulative 
impacts of organic farming can make a significant contribution to a more 
sustainable industry, and we welcome Welsh Government undertaking to engage 
with the organic sector to develop Optional actions which fully recognise and 
reward the public goods provided by whole farm and organic systems.   
 
12.3 The Universal and Optional actions proposed o er reward for some practices 
that are common to organic farming, but the proposals do not acknowledge the 
sum total of the SLM benefits that are secured through organic status, or the 
financial costs of organic conversion.  
 
12.4 The Organic Support Payment 2024 o ers financial support for certified 
organic farming at the whole farm/system level, in contrast to the ‘actions-based’ 
approach of the SFS.  Assuming that the SFS uses the actions-based approach to 
o er support to organic farmers, the organic certification process is such that an 
organic farmer undertaking one specific SFS Optional action would also be 
delivering a raft of associated organic farming actions and benefits irrespective of 
whether these were available as SFS Optional actions.    
 
12.5 The Welsh Organic Forum’s gap analysis (2023) identifies a set of Optional 
actions required for organic:   
 
 Farming without use of manufactured nitrogen and with a reliance on 

organic matter from crops and livestock, crop rotation standards, legumes, 
nutrient cycling, crop rotations and avoidance of bare soil 

 Farming without use of herbicides or growth regulators, and with a reliance 
on cultural controls and natural predators 

 Restrictions on non-organic inputs 
 Limited use of a number of permitted pesticides derived from natural 

sources 
 Requirement to use breeds suited to local conditions 
 At least 60% of livestock diet derived from the farm holding 
 Stocking density limit 
 Farming to promote biodiversity across whole farm area, guided by a 

conservation plan for all habitats, including non-designated sites 
 System-level approach to disease risk, achieved through: 

 
- Animal health plan with annual review 
- No chemical allopathic vet meds for preventative use   
- Restrictions on number of treatments 
- No hormones, embryos and cloning 
- No growth promotors and synthetic amino acids 

Tudalen y pecyn 239



 
 Conversion to organic farming system 
 History of continuous organic farming 

 
12.6 We urge Welsh Government to introduce Optional actions for organic 
farming in 2026 to enable a seamless transfer from the SFS Universal layer in 2025 
(with Stability Payment applied for recipients of Organic Support Payment 2024).  
 
12.7 Soil Association believes that the use of legumes to supplement/replace 
manufactured nitrogen should be a Universal action. Reducing the use of 
manufactured nitrogen is critical to reducing farm greenhouse gas emissions and in 
helping to improve soil health, and we believe the evidence base is strong. 
 
Collaborative actions for trees and woodlands 
 
12.8 It will also be important to support on-farm woodland management, so that 
the large farm woodland resource in Wales (circa. 124,000 hectares, Forestry 
Statistics 2022) becomes a viable and valuable component of the farm enterprise 
and contributes more fully to SFS objectives.  
 
12.9 This viability will be achieved through a number of measures including: 
 

 Support for on-farm use of timber e.g. fencing, farm buildings etc. 
 Support for managed livestock interventions in woodland to benefit 

woodland biodiversity and stock management 
 Support to deal with challenges of small-scale woodland management 

though cooperative and similar mechanisms. 
 Support for on-farm and small scale timber harvesting and processing e.g. 

farm machine adaptation and machinery rings etc. 
 Support for farmers to access voluntary payments for nature-based 

solutions delivered by farm woodland creation and management 
 
Collaborative actions for projects to manage and create joined up woodlands 
at a scale larger than the individual farm  
 
12.10 Viable farm scale forestry has long been neglected by successive 
policymakers, and it is no accident that the dominant forestry model in Wales and 
the wider UK is based on a large-scale industrial model for timber production. 
However, to achieve the real opportunity for the integration of trees and woodlands 
into farming, there needs to be significant support for on-farm innovation and 
supply chain capacity and capability, to help develop viable farm scale forestry 
models that include timber production. 
 
12.11 These innovations and developments are inherently collaborative, 
recognising the di erent actors along supply chains and also the collaboration 
required to deal with challenges of scale implicit in farm-scale forestry. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 240



12.12 As proposals are developed for Collaborative actions that will receive 
support, these structural fundamentals of farm-scale forestry should inform and 
influence the support that is developed, including eligibility and requirements. 
 
12.13 The Soil Association would be pleased to participate in further co-design 
work on these themes. 
 
Collaborative actions for nitrogen reduction 
 
12.14 The 2022 consultation proposed a Collaborative action to support farmers 
and other landowners to develop Shared Nitrogen Action Plans.  This is not 
included in the latest consultation – the development of a Collaborative action is 
urgently required.  Joined-up activity at a catchment level will be critical to 
improving water quality and helping to halt the ecological collapse of many Welsh 
rivers impacted by di use nutrient pollution from agriculture. Reducing the use of 
manufactured nitrogen is also critical to reducing farm greenhouse gas emissions 
and in helping to improve soil health, and we believe the evidence base is strong. 
 
 
BPS 
 
Q13. Do you agree with the proposed changes to BPS from 2025? This includes: 

a) The rate at which BPS payments are reduced. 
b) Closing the National Reserve to new entrants. 
c) Thresholds for capping. 
d) Restricting the transfer and lease of entitlements. 

 
 
13.1 No response 
 
 
Regula ons 
 
Q14.We would like to know your views on our proposed approach to secondary 
legisla on, which will support BPS and the introduc on of support schemes under the 
powers in the Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023.  
 
14.1 The proposal is to introduce a single regulation to enable the introduction of 
the SFS and any future updates to this scheme and to allow the introduction of new 
schemes.  Whilst we understand that this o ers Welsh Government flexibility to 
revise the SFS and other schemes and introduce new support to deliver SLM 
objectives we would be concerned if this reduces the opportunity for Senedd input 
to future changes to farm support. This would not be helpful to the production of 
sound regulation or to building trust with stakeholders. We believe that secondary 
legislation as proposed should undergo public consultation and be subject to 
A irmative Resolution vote in the Senedd. 
 
Evidence 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 241



Q15. Economic analysis and modelling will conclude in 2024 and will provide evidence 
to inform the final decision on Scheme implementa on by Welsh Ministers. We would 
like to know your views on the exis ng analysis and evidence required. 
 
14.2 We commend Welsh Government for taking a transparent approach and 
releasing this economic analysis and modelling, although it is regrettable that the 
economic impact assessment was not updated to reflect the latest SFS proposals 
for the 10% tree/woodland and 10% habitats Universal requirements.  
 
14.3 We do not anticipate significant impact on stocking levels from the revised 
10% habitats rule, and significant exemptions are now available in the 10% tree 
rule. We note that the economic impact assessment figures for the number of 
hours worked are not necessarily themselves indicative of likely changes in the 
number of farm based workers and should be viewed alongside income / livelihood 
indicators.  
 
14.4 Furthermore, ‘dynamic responses’ are not modelled eg changes to grazing 
practices to maintain stocking, farm business diversification responses, and long 
term productivity responses from soil health improvement and agroforestry are not 
modelled. All of these factors are driven by and impacted upon by intensifying 
climate impacts, which are also not modelled.  
 
14.5 Nevertheless the economic impact assessment appears consistent with 
expectations that a change in basic farm support, coupled with adverse trading 
environment risks diminution in farm revenue, perhaps land values (partly 
depending on other factors) and net farm business income. This also underscores 
the need to reserve budget for the Optional and Collaborative layers of the scheme 
and to use a Whole Farm Plan process to deliver scheme actions that are 
appropriate to the farm to improve outcomes for eg soil management, farmed 
habitats and agroforestry. 
 
14.6 As previously stated, we are concerned that if area payments within the 
Universal Baseline Payments are based on a costs incurred and income foregone 
model they will be too low to support those farm systems that are already delivering 
or capable of delivering sustainable land management improvements for nature, 
water and soils. We support a move to paying for social value underpinned by a 
natural capital approach.   
 
Monitoring & Evalua on  
 
 
Q16. We would like to know your views on which informa on and evidence should be 
used to monitor and evaluate the Scheme. 
 
16.1 Taking each SLM objective in turn we provide suggestions for some of the 
information and evidence that would help to reveal the impact SFS support, 
comparing farms in the scheme against those outside the scheme:  

Tudalen y pecyn 242



- sustainable food production (farm practices surveys; FERA pesticide usage survey 
data to enable tracking of SFS outputs against a Wales dataset; annual fertiliser 
survey data; organic production volumes; farm assurance scheme)  
- climate mitigation and adaptation (use of manufactured nitrogen; area of organic 
land and area of land in conversion to organic)  
- ecosystem resilience (SoNaRR reporting cycle; designated sites condition 
monitoring; future statutory biodiversity targets) 
- cultural and social (use of Welsh language; community engagement on farm) 
 
16.2 It will be hugely helpful to farmers if the data collected on farms can be used 
by the farmers themselves to demonstrate their sustainability credentials and track 
progress. Data should be directly related to on farm sustainability eg: 
 
• Promote the health, welfare or traceability of animals. 
• Promote the health of plants. 
• Minimise adverse environmental e ects of activities connected with agri-food 
supply chains or agricultural activities. 
 
16.3 To be able to demonstrate sustainability credentials additional data points 
would be needed such as on soil health, soil organic matter, farm nutrient balance, 
farmland plant diversity, farming practices supportive of enhanced biodiversity. 
Utilising data collection and self-assessment is high risk and caution should be 
exercised as it is essential that monitoring remains robust and achievable on farm.  
We are aware that farmers do not readily find or prioritise the time to collect their 
own soil data, for example. 
 
16.4 Making this data available and useful to inform farm management is 
essential. Farmers should be able to benchmark themselves and utilise this data to 
progress through the sustainable farming scheme, increasing their commitments 
and performance. 
 
16.5 Making this data available also to certification bodies and private standard 
owners could improve e iciency in inspection and monitoring processes. Data 
could inform decision making in these organisations and help to reduce the burden 
of data collection and monitoring for farmers. This will ultimately reduce costs and 
increase the time which farmers can dedicate to farming sustainably. 
 
 
Other  
 
Q17. What, in your opinion, would be the likely effects of the SFS on the Welsh 
language?  We are par cularly interested in any likely effects on opportuni es to use 
the Welsh language and on not trea ng the Welsh language less favourably than 
English.   
Do you think that there are opportuni es to promote any posi ve effects?  
Do you think that there are opportuni es to mi gate any adverse effects?   
 
17.1 Welsh language is widely spoken in rural communities and many Soil 
Association Certification licensees are Welsh speaking. Soil Association 

Tudalen y pecyn 243



Certification think that by supporting the resilience of rural businesses the 
proposals could make a significant contribution to maintaining the Welsh language, 
and could further encourage the adoption of Welsh through locally focussed food 
and supply chain industries such as farm shops and holiday accommodation.  
 
Q18. In your opinion, could the SFS be formulated or changed so as to:  

• have posi ve effects or more posi ve effects on using the Welsh language and on not 
trea ng the Welsh language less favourably than English; or  

• mi gate any nega ve effects on using the Welsh language and on not trea ng the 
Welsh language less favourably than English? 

18.1 There is a broad assumption that where the language is used on a daily basis 
equates to those areas where changes in agricultural support will be most 
impactful. The transition to the SFS will be critical to ensure that the skills and 
capacity required by the new scheme are available within the community such that 
the Welsh language will continue to be a defining aspect of rural Wales. 

Q19. Do you have any addi onal comments on any aspect of the consulta on 
document? 
 
19.1 Welsh Government must communicate the regulatory pathway and timeline 
for agriculture’s share of the transition to net-zero to provide clarity to farmers and 
the wider sector. Five-year carbon budget cycles are not providing the long-term 
view of agriculture’s pathway to 2050. Farmers are also increasingly expected to 
align with large retailers’ net-zero goals and decarbonise their operational 
contribution to emissions in the food supply system. Within the SFS, many scheme 
actions under consideration will deliver emissions reductions or increased on-farm 
carbon storage. Welsh Government must ensure farmers know what they are 
going to need to do to meet statutory targets, and it must also provide 
information and support to enable farmers to make informed choices within 
the SFS.  Optional and Collaborative actions will have a range of potential benefits 
for climate and nature targets, but in the context of the 10% tree rule debate we 
note that the Climate Change Committee’s advice is that there is no credible route 
to achieving net zero without an increase in tree cover. 
 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 244



 
 

Sustainable Farming Scheme 
March 2024 

 
Introduction 
WEL members have strongly advocated for a Sustainable Farming Scheme for Wales 
since 2017. Our vision for this was that it would represent a step change in how our 
land is managed, supporting farmers to produce food in ways that worked alongside 
nature, helping to restore biodiversity, reduce carbon emissions from agriculture and 
to tackle the increasing problem of agricultural pollution of our rivers, soil and air. 
Wales has recognised the need for urgent action to restore nature by (a) the Senedd 
declaring a Nature Emergency in 2021, and (b) in 2022 Welsh Government endorsing 
the Kunming-Montreal Global Biodiversity Framework (GBF).  
 
The GBF has 23 targets for achievement by 2030 as a prerequisite to address the 
global loss of biodiversity and restore natural ecosystems (by 2050). Targets of 
particular relevance to agriculture, which occupies approx. 90% of Welsh land, 
include: 

• Targets 2 & 3: protect and effectively manage 30% of terrestrial, inland water, 
and coastal and marine areas by 2030 (aka 30 x 30) …especially areas of 
particular importance for biodiversity and ecosystem functions and service… 

• Target 4: take “urgent management actions” to halt extinction of threatened 
species, and to significantly reduce extinction risk. 

• Target 7: reduce pollution risks and the negative impact of pollution from all 
sources, by 2030, to levels that are not harmful to biodiversity and ecosystem 
functions and services, considering cumulative effects. This target specifically 
includes: 

o reducing excess nutrients lost to the environment by at least half; 
o reducing the overall risk from pesticides and highly hazardous chemicals 

by at least half; and 
o working towards eliminating plastic pollution. 

 

 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 245

https://research.senedd.wales/research-articles/cop15-time-to-tackle-the-nature-emergency/
https://research.senedd.wales/research-articles/cop15-time-to-tackle-the-nature-emergency/
https://research.senedd.wales/research-articles/cop15-what-s-been-agreed-and-what-it-means-for-wales/


Welsh Government has stated the SFS provides a significant opportunity to help 
Wales meet these commitments.1   
 
We welcome the work that the Welsh Government has put into developing the 
current Scheme and recognise both the direction of travel and the flexibility that has 
gone into the current proposals. If further changes are to be made to the Scheme, we 
strongly encourage the Welsh Government to ensure that changes in design make 
the Scheme more effective, both for the environment and for farmers, rather than 
simply weakening environmental requirements. 
 
We recognise that the pressures of competing within a global food system mean that 
farmers need financial support and access to independent, and often bespoke, advice 
to do this effectively and without detriment to their farm business. Unfortunately, 
the Scheme as it currently stands cannot provide reassurance on the key issue of 
financial support because payment rates are still unknown. 
 
We acknowledge that the extreme budgetary pressures the Welsh Government is 
under have made it difficult to launch the Scheme in full. However, to be less than a 
year from launching the Scheme and for payment rates to be unavailable is highly 
concerning. We want to see this Scheme succeed, but farmers cannot plan to 
participate if they don’t know what their income under the Scheme will be. Recent 
rates under the Habitats Wales Scheme have not given farmers confidence that the 
Sustainable Farming Scheme will be economically viable for them, and this is a key 
driver of resistance to the Scheme’s requirements. 
 
The heavy resistance to some of the Scheme’s requirements has, we believe, led the 
Welsh Government to reign in some of its ambition for the Universal Actions. Many 
of the Universal Actions are welcome, but there are some that are questionable as to 
whether they provide the taxpaying public with value for money in terms of 
protecting and enhancing the rural environment.  
 
The Rural Wales Public Survey 2022, a survey of 1000 respondents from North, Mid 
and West Wales, carried out by Opinion Research Services, was the first of its kind to 

 
1 htps://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consulta�ons/2023-12/sustainable-farming-scheme-Integrated-impact-
assessment.pdf (p127) 

Tudalen y pecyn 246

https://www.wwf.org.uk/press-release/rural-wales-want-farmers-be-supported#:%7E:text=The%20survey%20of%201%2C000%20respondents,that%20farmers%20have%20an%20important
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2023-12/sustainable-farming-scheme-Integrated-impact-assessment.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2023-12/sustainable-farming-scheme-Integrated-impact-assessment.pdf


comprehensively survey residents of rural Wales. It revealed that 96% of residents in 
rural Wales agree that Welsh farmers have an important role to play in protecting 
nature and 88% agree that farmers have an important role in tackling climate change. 
At the same time, only around a third of residents (34%) agree that farmers are 
already doing enough for nature and the majority (60%) agree that government 
financial support should only be given if farmers make changes to protect nature and 
the climate. This is in in stark contrast to the current area-based payments and is a 
timely insight into what people in rural Wales think farming policy should be 
delivering.  
 
Question 1: The Scheme will provide a long-term approach to support for our 
agricultural sector to respond to evolving challenges and changing needs, 
contributing to the Sustainable Land Management objectives. In your view, what 
may strengthen this support? 
 
It is difficult to judge how well the Scheme will provide long-term support for the 
agricultural sector to contribute to the Sustainable Land Management objectives 
because much depends on the payment rates available, and the consultation 
provides no information on this. WEL members also consider that the optional and 
collaborative layers of the Scheme have the greatest potential to restore nature and 
reduce carbon emissions and pollution, as well as providing landscape scale benefits 
such as flood mitigation or providing improved access to the countryside for rural 
communities and visitors. We know that these layers will be delayed but the 
consultation also provides no information on what proportion of the budget will be 
ringfenced for the optional and collaborative layers in future. We are concerned that 
the ongoing commitment to paying BPS during the transition period will leave little 
budget for these important parts of the Scheme during the transition period. 
 
Welsh Ministers have a duty under the 1995 Environment Act to have regard to 
National Park purposes, which includes conserving and enhancing the natural beauty, 
wildlife and cultural heritage of National Parks and Landscapes. However, beyond a 
small mention of protected landscapes in the outlined Optional Actions list, the 
current Scheme fails to demonstrate how Designated Landscape bodies will be fully 
utilised in delivering the aims of the Scheme, or indeed how the SFS is specifically 
designed to help enhance the purposes of National Parks and Landscapes.    

Tudalen y pecyn 247



 
The Welsh Government could address this weakness and strengthen the scheme’s 
support for the Sustainable Land Management Outcomes by including a ‘Sustainable 
Farming in Designated Landscapes’ programme (which includes funding for multi-
year projects and the support of project coordinators and farming advisors within 
each landscape).  
 
This could be supported through the optional or collaborative layer, but much 
greater clarity is required at this early stage to explain how farmers in Designated 
Landscapes will be supported under the optional and collaborative layers and what 
the timetable for this will be so that land managers and Designated Landscape bodies 
can sufficiently prepare for the Universal layer and beyond. If instigated earlier than 
expected in 2027, optional or collaborative actions could unlock significant 
improvements within Designated Landscapes to help meet the deadline in the COP15 
Convention on Biological Diversity of protecting 30% of land and sea for nature by 
2030. 
 
Question 2: There will be Universal requirements in the SFS to have woodland 
cover at least 10% of suitable land, and to manage a minimum of 10% of your farm 
as habitat. 
a) What are your views on these requirements? 
b) What support might you need to achieve them? 
 
WEL members strongly support the requirement for 10% managed as habitat on 
farms and they also support increasing tree cover on farms. We are facing a global 
biodiversity crisis and we know that 1 in 6 species are at risk of extinction from 
Wales. Farmland covers over 80% of Wales, so if nature cannot be restored on 
farmland, we will be unable to meet our targets to protect and restore biodiversity in 
30% of our land and sea. The Welsh agricultural sector is also set to become the 
largest emitter of greenhouse gases by 2035, highlighting the need for a range of 
actions (including tree planting) to help farming achieve net zero targets.2 Food 

 
2 htps://www.wcpp.org.uk/commentary/how-can-wales-feed-itself-in-the-biodiverse-carbon-
neutral-world-of-the-
future/#:~:text=Here%20in%20Wales%2C%20current%20unsustainable,emissions%20are%20falling
%5B3%5D.  

Tudalen y pecyn 248

https://www.wcpp.org.uk/commentary/how-can-wales-feed-itself-in-the-biodiverse-carbon-neutral-world-of-the-future/#:%7E:text=Here%20in%20Wales%2C%20current%20unsustainable,emissions%20are%20falling%5B3%5D
https://www.wcpp.org.uk/commentary/how-can-wales-feed-itself-in-the-biodiverse-carbon-neutral-world-of-the-future/#:%7E:text=Here%20in%20Wales%2C%20current%20unsustainable,emissions%20are%20falling%5B3%5D
https://www.wcpp.org.uk/commentary/how-can-wales-feed-itself-in-the-biodiverse-carbon-neutral-world-of-the-future/#:%7E:text=Here%20in%20Wales%2C%20current%20unsustainable,emissions%20are%20falling%5B3%5D
https://www.wcpp.org.uk/commentary/how-can-wales-feed-itself-in-the-biodiverse-carbon-neutral-world-of-the-future/#:%7E:text=Here%20in%20Wales%2C%20current%20unsustainable,emissions%20are%20falling%5B3%5D


production relies on healthy ecosystems, as highlighted in the most recent UK Food 
Security Report3, and farmers must play their part in restoring nature so that they 
can continue to farm into the future. These two requirements, to manage habitat 
and increase tree cover, are important to the success of the Scheme, which would be 
undermined without them. We believe the most important support for farmers to 
achieve these requirements is fair funding and easy access to independent advice 
that will allow them to build a bespoke plan for their farm. 
 
We note the strong resistance to the 10% tree cover requirement and the 
misinformation that is currently circulating about this requirement. WEL supports the 
SFS’s proposals to increase tree cover on suitable land on farms to at least 10%, 
noting that average tree cover on farmland is already at 6-7%. We welcome steps 
that have been taken by Welsh Government through the co-design process to 
increase flexibility to enable farms to meet this requirement. We encourage Welsh 
Government to maintain a flexible approach by embracing agroforestry as the main 
method through which all farms can increase their tree cover without making the 
land unproductive from a livestock perspective. Coed Cadw/The Woodland Trust has 
produced a series of recommendations on how 10% can be achieved at a farm level, 
and we encourage Welsh Government to take them forward.  
 
WEL believes that the net environmental and agricultural benefit from a shift to more 
integrated systems of agroforestry and farm woodland is likely to be greater than 
converting to woodland at a whole farm scale. This conversion, such as through 
private investment projects, is often to the exclusion of agriculture. If we fail to 
effectively integrate increased tree cover into the SFS then a significant risk remains 
that the current trend of land conversion continues.  
 
From a farm business perspective, we strongly believe that, far from devaluing 
agricultural land, if an agroecological approach to tree cover is taken, trees can be 
integrated in a way that complements and benefits farm operations as well as 

 
3 htps://www.gov.uk/government/sta�s�cs/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021/united-
kingdom-food-security-report-2021-theme-2-uk-food-supply-
sources#:~:text=The%20biggest%20medium%20to%20long%20term%20risk%20to%20the%20UK%
E2%80%99s%20domes�c%20produc�on%20comes%20from%20climate%20change%20and%20oth
er%20environmental%20pressures%20like%20soil%20degrada�on%2C%20water%20quality%20and
%20biodiversity.  

Tudalen y pecyn 249

https://www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/protecting-trees-and-woods/campaign-with-us/urge-senedd-nature-restoration/sustainable-farming-scheme-10-asks/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021-theme-2-uk-food-supply-sources#:%7E:text=The%20biggest%20medium%20to%20long%20term%20risk%20to%20the%20UK%E2%80%99s%20domestic%20production%20comes%20from%20climate%20change%20and%20other%20environmental%20pressures%20like%20soil%20degradation%2C%20water%20quality%20and%20biodiversity
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021-theme-2-uk-food-supply-sources#:%7E:text=The%20biggest%20medium%20to%20long%20term%20risk%20to%20the%20UK%E2%80%99s%20domestic%20production%20comes%20from%20climate%20change%20and%20other%20environmental%20pressures%20like%20soil%20degradation%2C%20water%20quality%20and%20biodiversity
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021-theme-2-uk-food-supply-sources#:%7E:text=The%20biggest%20medium%20to%20long%20term%20risk%20to%20the%20UK%E2%80%99s%20domestic%20production%20comes%20from%20climate%20change%20and%20other%20environmental%20pressures%20like%20soil%20degradation%2C%20water%20quality%20and%20biodiversity
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021-theme-2-uk-food-supply-sources#:%7E:text=The%20biggest%20medium%20to%20long%20term%20risk%20to%20the%20UK%E2%80%99s%20domestic%20production%20comes%20from%20climate%20change%20and%20other%20environmental%20pressures%20like%20soil%20degradation%2C%20water%20quality%20and%20biodiversity
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021-theme-2-uk-food-supply-sources#:%7E:text=The%20biggest%20medium%20to%20long%20term%20risk%20to%20the%20UK%E2%80%99s%20domestic%20production%20comes%20from%20climate%20change%20and%20other%20environmental%20pressures%20like%20soil%20degradation%2C%20water%20quality%20and%20biodiversity
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021/united-kingdom-food-security-report-2021-theme-2-uk-food-supply-sources#:%7E:text=The%20biggest%20medium%20to%20long%20term%20risk%20to%20the%20UK%E2%80%99s%20domestic%20production%20comes%20from%20climate%20change%20and%20other%20environmental%20pressures%20like%20soil%20degradation%2C%20water%20quality%20and%20biodiversity


providing benefits for the environment. However, despite these productive benefits, 
WEL recognises that some intensive livestock farms are highly dependent on the area 
of grassland available for manure spreading and silage production, and that this 
constrains their ability to meet the 10% tree requirement. SFS payments would need 
to be sufficient to help these farms restructure their business around fewer livestock, 
likely at considerable public cost, which we believe would be inappropriate.  
 
This raises a question as to whether the SFS Universal Layer should be designed 
around or funded to meet the specific needs and constraints of the largest and most 
intensive farms in Wales, or bespoke support for a transition for this sector should be 
developed beyond the SFS. In making this point we note that these intensive 
livestock farms are often the least reliant on current support, rather than the 
majority cohort of smaller, less intensive farms. Consequently, it is important that 
any bespoke support for a sustainable transition for this sector delivers real value for 
public money. For example, support for farmers to implement the Maximum 
Sustainable Output (MSO) model to help intensive farms move towards a more 
sustainable model that can accommodate more nature, would be a useful approach. 
 
We do have concerns that the 10% habitat and tree cover requirements are not 
drafted in such a way as to guarantee a range of suitable habitats across a farm. 
Professional, independent, farm level advice is particularly important for these 
requirements to ensure that each farm is managing a diverse range of farmland 
habitats. Advice is also important to ensure any tree planting is well-situated so that 
it does not damage existing habitat or impede any existing public access. Species-rich 
grassland habitats are particularly vulnerable to being devalued by an inexperienced 
eye. These habitats have seen significant losses in recent years, which may not be 
restored in the Optional Layer if potential land is lost in the Universal Layer. This is 
why the SFS needs to include strong mechanisms to identify and protect other areas 
of important habitat potential, so that these opportunities are not lost before the 
Optional and Collaborative Layers are introduced. Following the Woodland Trust’s 
recommendations on achieving 10%, with its focus on hedges and edges, and 
agroforestry, should also help to avoid scenarios that damage the potential to 
protect and restore other valuable habitats. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 250

https://www.wildlifetrusts.org/sites/default/files/2023-06/Farming%20at%20the%20Sweet%20Spot_1.pdf
https://www.wildlifetrusts.org/sites/default/files/2023-06/Farming%20at%20the%20Sweet%20Spot_1.pdf


We recognise that farmers have been working within the CAP system, which has 
driven unsustainable practices and driven inequality with its area-based payments. 
For example, this system has driven the removal of tree cover on farms in many 
cases, so it is important to note that the new system will value trees outside 
woodlands for the first time. However, it is important that payment rates for creating 
and managing habitat, including woodland habitat, are sufficiently robust to support 
farmers to make these changes. These requirements are eminently achievable, with 
the right advice and financial support. 
 
Our members are very concerned that, if the scheme rules for habitats and trees are 
simply weakened, rather than applied with care through the Habitat Baseline review 
process and appropriately rewarded, then the Universal Base Payment could become 
no different from the current EU-derived Basic Payment Scheme. With little 
information available on the optional and collaborative layers of the Scheme, and no 
guarantee that there will be sufficient budget for these, it becomes difficult for 
environmental NGOs to endorse flexible options that might utilise these layers 
instead. Budget should be allocated to each layer of the scheme to reflect the level of 
benefit the actions in those layers provides. If the Universal Layer is simplified and 
involves little change to the status quo for habitats and trees, the budget allocation 
should accordingly transfer to the Optional and Collaborative layers of the scheme to 
ensure effective and fair delivery of SLM goals through these layers. 
 
While many of the temporary habitats listed to help farmers meet the 10% habitats 
will benefit nature, there is one notable exception, which is of concern. The 
management of Herbal Leys (as presented in the consultation) risks ‘expensive 
greenwash’ as it may be popular, but it will not guarantee flowering plants for 
pollinators. A diverse sward can provide benefits for wildlife such as pollinators, 
however these benefits will only be realised if the sward is diverse and allowed to 
flower.  
 
Herbal leys are often managed through cutting and regular grazing which will limit 
benefits to nature. They can also become an ecological trap if cut during the breeding 
bird season. Herbal leys can be attractive to ground nesting birds, but these nests are 
vulnerable to cutting and other field operations. Herbal leys are therefore not a good 
substitute for flower rich habitats that are sewn or maintained specifically for wildlife 

Tudalen y pecyn 251



benefit. Consequently, care must be taken when determining how herbal leys are 
funded through agri-environment schemes. Temporary scrapes also need to be 
managed carefully, to ensure these are not being placed in areas of existing habitat, 
or areas that would be more suitable for permanent habitat. 
 
WEL members also consider that some of these temporary habitats would have 
much more benefit if they were permanent, for example field margin habitat. 
Temporary habitat, whilst better than nothing, means that damage is caused to the 
soil structure and organisms using it (nesting bees, beetles, overwintering larvae etc) 
when it is ploughed to create and remove the habitat. Habitat in nature, though 
successional, is not regularly and deliberately destroyed, often with the use of 
harmful chemicals. Also, with planted habitat, the flowering period is generally 
shorter than an area of semi-natural habitat which will support different flowering 
plants from Spring to Autumn. If certain habitats are beneficial as temporary 
features, they are of course more beneficial if left in place and we feel more could be 
done to encourage this. 
 
Dry stone walls and hedgerows are hugely valuable for wildlife, as well as being key 
features of the traditional landscapes of our National Parks and National Landscapes. 
Farmers should be rewarded for retaining and maintaining them. Consideration 
should be given to including dry stone walls in the 10% habitat threshold. We note 
that hedgerows have their own management action within the Universal layer, with 
further actions hinted at in the list of optional actions. We discuss the hedgerow 
action in more detail in our response below. 
 
WEL members strongly recommend that the Welsh Government invests in provision 
of on the ground advice to farmers on the habitat and trees requirements so that 
they benefit both the environment and the farm business. This includes the need for 
Farming Connect to fill the worrying skills gaps they currently have in relation to 
ecological advice. 
 
Question 3: Aside from the 10% woodland and habitat requirements, will the 
Universal Actions: 
a) Provide benefit for your farm business? 

Tudalen y pecyn 252



b) Provide an achievable set of actions paid for through the Universal Baseline 
Payment? 
 
Without information about payment rates it is difficult assess whether the actions 
required are achievable financially for those farmers that are not already working in 
this way. However, the Universal Actions required are the minimum that is needed 
for protection and restoration of nature and to deliver a Scheme that provides the 
wider public benefits that taxpayers in Wales will be funding. It is important to note 
that there are many farmers that are already working beyond this level, and 
delivering more for nature than the Universal Actions will support. We are concerned 
that these farmers will be disadvantaged by the delayed access to the Optional and 
Collaborative Layers, where their activities would be better supported.  
 
Given that Welsh Government knows that it will be able to continue to pay farmers 
an amount, via a combination of Universal Basic Payment and Stability Payment, that 
will at least equal what they would have received under a notional BPS payment, we 
consider that more could have been done to set out the current thinking on likely 
payment rates for the Universal Actions. We recognise that the budget forthcoming 
from UK Government is not yet confirmed, but farmers need to understand the 
ambition for the Scheme, even with the caveat that future budget announcements 
may result in some changes. The total lack of information on likely payment rates is 
driving uncertainty and unrest.  
 
The Actions 
In addition to the actions on habitats and trees, we are pleased to see actions to 
improve soil health (with appropriate links to the Control of Agricultural Pollution 
Regulations) and in relation to good hedgerow management, management of ponds 
and scrapes, management plans for protected sites, management of woodland, 
agroforestry and integrated pest management. However, some of these could still be 
improved to provide more environmental benefit and value for public money. 
 
UA11 on hedgerow management has a simple definition of good condition and 
specifications for trimming/cutting and for gapping up. There are practical issues with 
some of the suggested requirements. This could create an incentive to stop trimming 
hedgerows (because the definition of good condition only applies to those regularly 

Tudalen y pecyn 253



trimmed). Could the way that this is worded allow farmers that stop trimming 
hedgerows to no longer be subject to this action? Further thought may need to be 
given to what could be done under the Universal Action to get hedgerows into really 
good condition, and this is an area that may need more of an incentive to improve. 
 
UA12 on the maintenance of all existing woodland (native and non-native) provides 
simple management actions rather than proactive management that we would 
expect to see in the higher levels of the Scheme. The list of measurable outcomes 
and list of restrictions seem reasonable. However, our members are concerned about 
the fact that there is no requirement for stock exclusion. Whilst there are guidelines 
to define what would be unacceptable grazing damage, we are not convinced that 
these are sufficient to protect the forest ecosystem as they stand. The Woodland 
Trust will have further, detailed recommendations on how to improve this. 
 
We particularly welcome the requirement to create management plans for SSSI’s but 
we have some concerns about how this action will be delivered. Plans need to be 
based on an accurate understanding of the SSSI’s current condition and pressures 
affecting it. The majority of SSSIs in Wales have not had a formal condition 
assessment in the last 5 years or more, due to insufficient NRW resource, and there is 
currently no statutory target or national plan to address this. While remote sensing 
and pre-existing datasets may be of some use, gaining an accurate picture of SSSI 
condition and drivers behind requires an in-person site visit and specialist advice to 
support the farmer to include the right management choices in their plan, to ensure 
the plan will be effective. We would like to understand what consideration as been 
given to this and how the associated resource implications for both condition 
assessment and management advice provision will be addressed.  
 
While the development of a plan is welcome, there is currently no requirement in 
place to deliver on that plan (this is also an issue with farm planning based on the 
annual benchmarking action). Having a management plan for a SSSI does not mean 
that the SSSI is being well managed – this would only be the case if the plan were 
being delivered and its outcomes being monitored. This is now recognised practice in 
England where Natural England no longer accepts existence of a management plan 
alone to indicate a SSSI is in recovering condition.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 254



Under current SFS proposals, there is also no required deadline by which to produce 
a plan, other than within the 5 years of the agreement. This means that a SSSI 
included in the scheme today may not have a management plan in place before 
2029, leaving only one year to make any sort of progress towards the global 30x30 
commitment. We recommend there should be a requirement to produce a plan 
within the first year of the agreement under Universal Actions and we would expect 
delivery of the plan to be prioritised and appropriately incentivised through the 
Optional Actions and Collaborative Actions. 
 
We welcome the action on Continuous Personal Development and feel this provides 
opportunities for farmers to learn skills that will help them transition to more 
sustainable practices. However, we question whether online-only training provision is 
the most appropriate and useful delivery mechanism? We appreciate that there are 
budgetary advantages in delivering training online, and it does mean that farmers 
aren’t required to travel to complete their training and that they can work training 
around their schedules. However, offering some face-to-face options for groups of 
farmers may be helpful, particularly for those that are less used to working online. 
We also would not like to see this action replace the provision of expert advice, 
particularly in relation to woodland and habitat management. 
 
UA17 on good farm biosecurity only focuses on livestock and seems a missed 
opportunity to consider other biosecurity issues such as tackling tree diseases or 
invasive species. Plant biosecurity is also not currently considered for the optional 
actions as suggested in the Annex. 
 
The balance between regulation and incentives under the Scheme 
 
We have concerns around the balance between formal regulation and SFS 
compliance. Universal Action 4, Multi-species Cover Crop, illustrates this well.  
 
This is an important requirement within universal actions. We would question 
whether this should be part of the SFS at all and should really be included in 
regulation. This could be achieved by bringing chapter 4 of the Code of Good 
Agricultural Practice (CoGAP) (Soil Husbandry) into legislation in the way that the 
Control of Agricultural Pollution Regulations brought chapter 5 into legislation. 
Climate change is leading to more severe rainfall events, causing flooding. Six of the 

Tudalen y pecyn 255



benefits are on-farm leading also to biodiversity gain, while benefit E, managing flood 
and drought risk, has a wider societal benefit. Benefit E should take this Universal 
Action from out of the SFS and into a universal requirement in regulation. Even 
where the rainfall is so exceptional, as to make flooding almost inevitable, the benefit 
of holding as much water as possible in and on the land is hard to underestimate.  
 
Outside wider societal benefits of E, the other benefits of multi-species cover crops 
are too important to be dependent on whether a farm joins the SFS. If this action 
remains as part of the SFS for now, the situation must be reconsidered if the majority 
of a whole sector, such as intensive dairy, chooses to remain outside the scheme.  
 
Another concern around this Universal Action is the status of forage crops such as 
fodder beet and stubble turnips. 5m buffer strips are suggested but is this sufficient? 
Such crops provide little cover and fields are poached by foraging animals. The risk of 
run-off is great. 
 
We note the preference for grazing off and mechanical means of removing cover 
crops prior to replanting, but chemical use for termination would still be allowed. 
This causes concern as the planting of maize on land liable to flooding, contrary to 
CoGAP, is an issue. This is perhaps another argument for codification of chapter 4. 
 
Question 4: On-farm data reporting allows the Welsh Government to confirm 
actions are being undertaken and help you to make decisions about your farm. In 
your view, is the reporting requirement for the Universal Actions appropriate? 
 
We also recognise the need for regular monitoring and reporting, so that farmers 
have the data to be able to make informed decisions about sustainable land 
management on their farm, and to ensure that public money is being spent wisely. 
Farm reporting should be easy for farmers to do. Most importantly it must also be 
independently verified to ensure that public funds are being spent wisely. We ask 
that the Welsh Government ensures there is appropriate resourcing given to 
appropriate verification of the data collected and also to support farmers with their 
monitoring and reporting.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 256



We are interested in the process of setting KPIs and how this information and farm 
plans will be used to make progress in areas that are identified as needing 
improvement. Will this information be made publicly available? 
 
Question 5: The Stability Payment will provide additional support for common 
graziers during the Transition Period. In your view, is this appropriate whilst the 
Optional and Collaborative Actions are being introduced? 
 
WEL members understand the need to support farmers during the transition to the 
new Scheme, particularly as the Optional and Collaborative actions are not going to 
be introduced at the same time as the Universal Actions. However, WEL members 
question whether the provision of a Stability Payment would be necessary if the 
Optional and Collaborative Actions were available to farmers.  
 
WEL members would like to see the Optional and Collaborative Layers of the Scheme 
introduced within 12 months of the Scheme launching, with information on payment 
rates for these published as soon as possible. Assuming the rates for these actions 
are sufficiently attractive and fair, this should encourage more farmers to join the 
Scheme. We hope that this would then negate the need for a Stability Payment, 
which currently functions to maintain the status quo, rather than being an incentive 
for farmers to undertake actions that will deliver real benefits for the environment 
and for the farm business. 
 
Question 6: We have proposed that applicants should have sole management 
responsibility for the land for 10 months and ensure completion of the Universal 
Actions for the full scheme year (12 months). In your view, is the 10-month period 
sufficient? 
 
WEL is content with this. 
 
Question 7: We are proposing the use of a single carbon calculator for everyone in 
the Scheme. Do you agree and how might we best support you to complete this? 
 
WEL supports the use of a single carbon calculator to ensure comparability. We don’t 
recommend a particular calculator but would suggest that it should conform to 

Tudalen y pecyn 257



international best practice such as ISO standards and the forthcoming GHG Protocol 
Land Sector & Removals (LSRG) guidance. We consider that a modular element could 
also be adopted that can integrate data from specialist carbon calculators that might 
apply to specific parts of the farm business, such as the Woodland Carbon Code and 
Peatland Code, and possibly from the Agroforestry Carbon Code currently under 
development. We are aware that RSPB has recently completed an on-farm review of 
three carbon calculators and will share this information with WG as soon as it’s 
available. 

 
WEL members would also like to see gains from sequestration on farms treated 
separately to reductions in emissions from farm activities. It is important that 
farmers are supported to sequester carbon and to make an income from this where 
it is providing a benefit to the environment. However, this should not exempt 
farmers from reducing their own emissions. Agriculture is one of the few sectors 
where emissions are rising. If other sectors must consequently make deeper cuts to 
their own emissions to compensate for this, it could result in more productive 
farmland being bought and repurposed for carbon sequestration, with the 
unintended consequences that may result for farm businesses, rural communities, 
and potentially biodiversity.  

 
Question 8: To ensure continued high standards on our farms, we have outlined a 
proportionate approach to controls and sanctions, including compliance with 
additional legislation as a condition of Scheme payment. Do you have any views on 
this approach? 
 
WEL members have always argued that it is essential that the Scheme pays for 
actions that go beyond the requirements of regulation. We strongly support the need 
for Scheme entrants to be compliant with existing farming regulations to ensure 
public value for money. We remain disappointed that a full National Minimum 
Standards framework has not been introduced, and that there is no certainty around 
future plans for this. In particular, this would provide a wider range of proportionate 
sanctions for non-compliance with farming regulation.  
 
As highlighted under question 3 we have concerns around the balance between 
formal regulation and SFS compliance. Universal Action 4, Multi-species Cover Crop, 
illustrates this well, as we believe that this shows a missed opportunity that could 

Tudalen y pecyn 258



have been dealt with under National Minimum Standards if we had a framework that 
could close important gaps in regulation. 
 
We would expect to see a sanctions matrix clearly setting out consequences for non-
compliance with Scheme rules as set out and agree with the need for financial 
penalties for non-compliance. We would like to see an approach that will pick up 
repeat offenders in areas such as water pollution, to ensure that minor infringements 
do not escalate into more serious pollution events. We also note feedback from 
access officers that cross-compliance has historically been a useful tool for ensuring 
maintenance of open public rights of way. Whilst we would hope that all farmers 
entering the Universal layer of the Scheme would be compliant with existing 
legislation on rights of way (and welcome the proposal on page 61 of the 
consultation to include this as a Scheme rule), we also see merit in this being picked 
up through cross-compliance checks in the new Scheme. 
 
The SFS is primarily a means of paying farmers and in return they must farm 
sustainably, safely and in a way that enhances nature, helps minimise climate change 
and minimises the effects of climate change. It will apply only to those who join the 
Scheme. Compliance will need to be monitored effectively. Rural Payments Wales 
have the task of ensuring compliance. Existing environmental legislation, including 
the Control of Agricultural Pollution Regulations, must be enforced and NRW must be 
resourced to achieve this. It must also demonstrate the will to require compliance. 
The range of enforcement options should be extended to assist in this. 
 
Question 9: Adopting the Welsh Government appeals process will provide an 
effective and efficient mechanism. Is there any reason we should deviate from this? 
 
Our members agree that the sanctions and appeals process is currently complex and 
time consuming. WEL supports adopting a more efficient and effective appeals 
process as part of the SFS. This should be kept under review given the change from 
current RPW processes and potential for it to have negative impacts on farmer 
welfare. We recommend continued engagement with farmers and representative 
bodies to monitor the impact of the change with a view to assess its implications at 
the end of the transition period. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 259



Question 10: We would like to know your views on the proposed approach to: 
a) the SFS universal baseline payment 
b) the SFS stability payment 
 
WEL supports the proposal to split the payment into four categories. The key factor 
will be setting the value of these four categories appropriately. We note that farmers 
will, for the first time, receive a payment proportional to the area of tree cover they 
have. This is not just for woodland but also includes a welcome and significant 
recognition of the importance of other trees - in hedgerows, fields, scrub and other 
examples of agroforestry. This a welcome reversal of the current subsidy 
arrangements, which specifically remove land under tree cover from eligibility for 
payments.  
 
We also note that the payment relating to woodland maintenance is a smaller 
payment than those who need to create more. This is based on the presumption that 
the payment to create new woodland (based on income forgone) is likely to be larger 
than that for managing existing woodland. It is correct that the payment system 
recognises the true cost of change. However, we would like to see the Welsh 
Government consider how to encourage those with existing woodland cover beyond 
the 10% requirement to keep this as well managed and not seek to level down. This 
could be achieved by an increased management payment for each hectare a farm has 
beyond 10%. The advantage of this idea is that it strengthens the Universal Layer of 
the Scheme. Better maintenance of existing woodland could also be achieved by 
swiftly introducing a woodland management grant, or indeed a wider trees and 
habitats grant, to support farmers to manage their existing woodland and habitats 
and reward those progressive farmers that are already farming with nature.   
 
WEL members are also concerned about the proposal to exclude SSSI land from the 
habitat maintenance component. Having and maintaining a management plan, and 
the liaison entailed, is a maintenance requirement. Maintaining the condition of a 
SSSI is a regulatory requirement for public bodies rather than directly for farmers. 
Welsh Government and NRW have overall responsibility for getting SSSIs into good 
condition, so we feel that payments to farmers for appropriate management would 
be a means of them doing this. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 260



A wider point to recognise is that the Universal actions beyond woodland and semi-
natural habitat payments are ultimately best described as best practice. As such they 
represent a low bar for many farms already pursuing more sustainable business 
models. We recommend that the payment reflects this, and the demands of those 
actions are increased over time as farmers establish themselves in the Scheme. Over 
time we expect to see actions which are scheduled to be included in the Optional 
Layer (such as responses which actually improve soil health) are progressively moved 
into the Universal list to enable and support the sector to improve over time.  
 
WEL recognises the pressures concerning the decision to introduce a stability 
payment for the transition period. We remain concerned that money which could 
have been invested in the rapid development and delivery of the Optional and 
Collaborative layers will instead now be locked away in a stability payment, rather 
than supporting on farm action. Nonetheless, we recognise the value the stability 
payment could play in making entry to the SFS more attractive to farmers. As SFS is 
the future of funding, it should be the more attractive option to farmers financially in 
each year of that transition. Given this, we would welcome use of the stability 
payment to ensure the amount of money a farmer receives for entering the SFS is 
always meaningfully more than they would have by remaining in BPS. 
 
Question 11: Farmers outside the Scheme may wish to access support for actions 
similar to those offered in the Optional and Collaborative Layers. In your view, 
should farmers within the Scheme receive priority support to undertake these 
actions? 
 
WEL agrees that farmers that are already participating in the Scheme should receive 
priority support to undertake actions within the Optional and Collaborative Layers. 
However, we do not think that farmers and other land managers that are not 
participating in the Universal Actions should be excluded from accessing support for 
actions in these higher layers, where there is a strategic and public benefit reason for 
them to access this support. It is possible that land that has not been included the 
Universal layer of the scheme may be critical to the successful delivery of 
collaborative actions and outcomes e.g., peat restoration at scale or improving river 
corridors. It’s also possible that excluded land wasn’t by choice, e.g., excluded 

Tudalen y pecyn 261



holdings may fall outside of the minimum size for entry into the Scheme or 
landowners may not have permitted tenanted land to enter. 
 
Whilst there may be occasions where it is appropriate for farmers outside the 
Scheme to be included, this would need to be subject to strict compliance with 
regulations and best practice for their farm. Such access would be unfair to farmers 
already participating in the Scheme unless there were a particular reason why 
inclusion in a higher tier action only would provide significant public benefit.  
 
Question 12: What actions and support within the Optional and Collaborative 
layers do you believe should be prioritised? 
 
WEL members believe that these layers provide the greatest opportunity for tackling 
the nature and climate crisis. They will also provide opportunities to tackle issues 
such as flooding and pollution, provide improved access to the countryside and make 
the most of the contribution that our designated landscapes can make within the 
Scheme. We would like to see these layers introduced as soon as possible after the 
launch of the Scheme, to provide farmers with the necessary financial support to 
make a real difference to some of the biggest environmental issues that are already 
affecting their farm businesses. We would also like to see these layers well-
resourced: it is a significant concern that the budget required for the Universal Layer, 
Stability Payments and BPS payments could mean a long delay in introducing the 
more advanced layers of the Scheme, and that the Universal Layer may take up a 
disproportionate amount of the Scheme’s budget. 
 
In particular we believe that the optional layer should include: 

• specific actions to support at-risk species; 
• actions to increase the area of habitat that is well-managed for the long term; 
• actions to restore and enhance habitats; 
• actions to improve accessibility to rights of way on farms, or to create new 

routes (as mentioned in the optional list), including access to blue spaces; 
• actions to reduce the carbon intensity of farm operations; 
• actions to provide resilience against flooding and drought; 
• actions to further reduce pollution (beyond regulatory and universal 

requirements);  

Tudalen y pecyn 262



• actions to improve soil health and sequestration;  
• actions to improve plant biosecurity and tackle invasive species; and 
• support to help farmers to implement Maximum Sustainable Output (MSO) on 

their farms. 
 
We think that actions within the collaborative layer are particularly well suited to: 

• connect habitats across a wide area, providing wildlife corridors and greater 
resilience for species in a changing climate; 

• connect up access routes, particularly where it will help rural communities 
reduce reliance on car travel for short-medium journeys, or to improve 
opportunities for tourism and recreation; 

• tackle issues on a catchment scale, such as flooding, drought and pollution;  
• actions which add value into the supply chain and develop new approaches to 

the food system like local food hubs and procurement; 
• training opportunities for farmers to diversify into agriculturally adjacent roles 

such as forestry and nature-based tourism; and 
• support for traditional farming jobs outside of direct agriculture such as 

hedgerow management and drystone wall maintenance given their cultural 
value in addition to environmental benefit. 

 
As mentioned in the answer to question 1, either the optional or collaborative layer 
could include a ‘Sustainable Farming in Designated Landscapes’ programme (which 
includes funding for multi-year projects and the support of project coordinators and 
farming advisors within each landscape). 
 
Question 13: Do you agree with the proposed changes to BPS from 2025? This 
includes: 
a) The rate at which BPS payments are reduced. 
b) Closing the National Reserve to new entrants. 
c) Thresholds for capping. 
d) Restricting the transfer and lease of entitlements. 
 
Given that the decision has been taken to retain the BPS during the transition period, 
the proposal for phasing this out seems sensible. We remain concerned that the 
requirement to pay BPS whilst also introducing the new Scheme will result in long 

Tudalen y pecyn 263



delays to the introduction of the optional and collaborative layers, and that these 
layers will be poorly resourced due to the resulting budget squeeze. We think the 
additional budgetary pressure from continuing to pay BPS until 2029 could also result 
in lower payment rates for the Sustainable Farming Scheme at all levels, making it 
unattractive to farmers. The Stability Payment is in place to ensure farmers are not 
receiving less than they would have under BPS during the transition period.  
 
WEL suggests that Welsh Government look to accelerate the reduction of BPS 
payments where possible so that more money can be invested in farms via the higher 
layers of the SFS. This could be achieved by revisiting this 20% per year approach in 
2027 when there will be a fuller understanding of the rate at which farmers are 
entering the SFS. Should we be in the situation where the majority of farms are 
already in the SFS, then a case could be made to further accelerate the reduction in 
BPS payments so that more farms within the Scheme can benefit from the money. 
 
It is also critical that any underspend in the BPS budget in any year of transition is not 
lost to the agricultural sector. There should be a commitment within the Scheme that 
it is always recycled into the SFS that year. This should be achievable given the 
requirement for farmers to pick between BPS and SFS at the beginning of each year. 
 
We agree with the proposals to close the National Reserve to new entrants; they 
should be directed to the new Scheme. We also agree with thresholds for capping, 
and for restricting the transfer and lease of entitlements. 
 
Question 14: We would like to know your views on our proposed approach to 
secondary legislation, which will support BPS and the introduction of support 
schemes under the powers in the Agriculture (Wales) Act 2023. 
 
The outlined approach to secondary legislation seems sensible but we would urge 
the Welsh Government to consult on the draft regulation before it is finalised. We 
would also urge the government to make secondary regulations subject to an 
affirmative vote in the Senedd to add greater democratic legitimacy. We note that 
the regulation is intended to cover all future Schemes, so it will not contain 
particulars about monitoring compliance and enforcement of the Sustainable 

Tudalen y pecyn 264



Development Scheme, which will be contained in Scheme rules. Again, stakeholders 
should be consulted on Scheme rules before they are finalised.  
 
We think it is important for the Scheme to be effectively monitored and enforced. 
There is currently no indication of how non-compliance will be managed within the 
Scheme, which is critical information for both farmers and environmental 
stakeholders to understand.  
 
Question 15: Economic analysis and modelling will conclude in 2024 and will 
provide evidence to inform the final decision on Scheme implementation by 
Welsh Ministers. We would like to know your views on the existing analysis and 
evidence required. 
 
WEL welcomes the Welsh Government’s approach to analysis and modelling and 
appreciates the difficulty it has had through a natural capital approach to quantify 
the value of actions spatially. WWF Cymru has done work in this area which could 
provide further data to inform this. Welsh Government may also wish to consider 
RSPB’s Land Use Scenarios Project (LUSP) in its analysis of land use and management 
and the achievement of Scheme’s objectives. This project is intended to help 
us understand more about how different ways of using land in the future 
will impact on net greenhouse gas emissions, potential habitat for breeding birds, 
and production of food, timber, and biomass fuel. Through modelling different 
scenarios, the project discovered that a move to agro-ecological farming coupled 
with increased habitat creation and restoration (particularly as Nature-based 
Solutions) could drastically cut UK emissions whilst also benefiting some species.   
 
WEL members are particularly keen for the wider benefits of on-farm actions to be 
reflected at the national level. Actions on farms also affect areas away from the farm, 
particularly when considering issues such as flooding, drought, air and water 
pollution and biodiversity loss. For example, water quality and flood management 
actions (or lack of action) impact areas many miles downstream and often well into 
urban areas. From a biodiversity perspective, wildlife corridor enhancement is also of 
a great benefit. While the individual action on farm might be small, the value of 

Tudalen y pecyn 265

https://community.rspb.org.uk/ourwork/b/nature-s-advocates/posts/making-our-land-work-for-nature-climate-and-people


providing that connectivity at a national scale might be significant – as shown with 
the recent B-lines project for pollinators4.  
 
It is clear from the increasingly hostile public debate about the future of the SFS that 
the projected decline in direct agricultural jobs is an issue that the Welsh 
Government need to address and overcome. In large part this can be achieved 
through the acceleration in delivery of the Optional and Collaborative tiers due to 
their higher labour requirements. Equally the Government could better support its 
case by laying out that these ‘worst case scenario’ predictions are consistent with the 
downwards trend in historical direct employment numbers we have been seeing in 
recent years.5 We also think that it needs to be made clearer that many family farms 
have been lost under the current subsidy system, which has not been good for farm 
viability or for the environment. This suggests that the status-quo is not a viable 
option for Welsh agriculture.  
 
Further analysis is required of the impact of the SFS on the wider rural economy, 
including the sustainable long-term jobs that could be created through the expansion 
of practices such as woodland management and nature-based tourism alongside 
direct agricultural employment. For example, a recent study by the RSPB found that 
approximately 7,000 nature-based green jobs that could be created over the next 
decade under a Nature Service for Wales. 
 
Question 16: We would like to know your views on which information and evidence 
should be used to monitor and evaluate the Scheme. 
 
Data is an essential component of this scheme to provide an understanding of the 
scheme’s effectiveness. We recognise that business sensitive data such as farm 
assessments also presents risks to that farmer. As such we would urge the 
government take all necessary efforts to anonymise the data as far as possible when 
sharing it with the listed groups. 
 
We recommend that data is collected on each action to ensure compliance and to 
understand the effectiveness of actions. Data should also be collected in a manner 

 
4 htps://www.buglife.org.uk/our-work/b-lines/b-lines-wales/  
5 htps://research.senedd.wales/media/iuch3jz1/22-47-farming-sector-in-wales.pdf 

Tudalen y pecyn 266

https://www.natureservice.wales/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/RSPBCymruEstimatingtheScaleReportNovember2020ENG1.pdf
https://www.buglife.org.uk/our-work/b-lines/b-lines-wales/
https://research.senedd.wales/media/iuch3jz1/22-47-farming-sector-in-wales.pdf


which is consistent with the emerging biodiversity targets legislation, given that the 
SFS will likely be the primary policy vehicle that will guide whether such targets are 
met. At the present time we do not know the full shape of those targets, however we 
will by the time the scheme is operational in 2025. In the meantime, focus should be 
around key areas which are highly probable to feature in those targets. Such as, 
species condition/extent, habitat condition/extent, fertiliser/pesticides use as part of 
wider nutrient management, air and water quality, and the condition of protected 
sites. 
 
WEL members are keen to contribute to the development of indicators and targets 
within the Scheme and would hope that these will be the subject of further 
consultation. 
 
Question 17: What, in your opinion, would be the likely effects of the SFS on the 
Welsh language? We are particularly interested in any likely effects on 
opportunities to use the Welsh language and on not treating the Welsh language 
less favourably than English. 
• Do you think that there are opportunities to promote any positive effects? 
• Do you think that there are opportunities to mitigate any adverse effects? 
 
WEL notes that the CAP system has presided over the loss of over 800 farms since 
2013.6 We believe this loss will have had a negative impact on the Welsh language, 
and rural communities as these losses have predominantly affected traditional family 
farms. This is why WEL members believe that the SFS marks a necessary change to an 
approach that supports traditional family farming to become more sustainable and 
viable. 
 
The new Scheme will require advisors to support farmers transition to and then 
continue to deliver SLM actions, so we also see clear opportunities here for investing 
in jobs that require good Welsh language communication skills. Job creation through 
the Nature Service Wales could also support this sector and create Welsh language 
opportunities as well. 
 

 
6 htps://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publica�ons/2021-03/agriculture-in-wales-evidence.pdf  

Tudalen y pecyn 267

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-03/agriculture-in-wales-evidence.pdf


Question 18: In your opinion, could the SFS be formulated or changed so as to: 
• have positive effects or more positive effects on using the Welsh language and on 
not treating the Welsh language less favourably than English; or 
• mitigate any negative effects on using the Welsh language and on not treating the 
Welsh language less favourably than English? 
 
We do not have any specific suggestions for change in relation to the Welsh 
language. 
 
Question 19: Do you have any additional comments on any aspect of the 
consultation document? 
 
The Welsh Government has a duty under the 1995 Environment Act to have regard 
for National Park Purposes, which include conserving and enhancing the natural 
beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage of the National Parks. The Welsh Government 
should therefore design the new scheme to ensure that it helps deliver these 
purposes, making the National Park Authorities and National Landscapes partners in 
delivery. If this is not done, the SFS is at risk of following previous agri-environment 
funding regimes in delivering no better results inside Designated Landscapes than 
outside. 
 
The WG’s 2018 Valued and Resilient review of Designated Landscapes endorses this 
approach. It highlighted the need to “take a spatial approach to get the most from 
land […] proposing an approach where future land management support can be 
targeted to particular areas.” 
 
Central to this vision was the need to support public bodies in more actively 
administering schemes: “the potential for National Park Authorities, amongst others, 
to take an active role in the administration of schemes will be explored.”  
 
Wales’ Designated Landscapes are cherished areas and biodiversity hotspots that 
should play a crucial role in conserving and nurturing our threatened wildlife. If the 
SFS is not able to make a difference for wildlife in these areas, it will have failed to 
fulfil its potential. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 268



There is a significant role for Natural Resources Wales (NRW) to support the delivery 
of the SFS, including producing SSSI management plans, guiding woodland creation 
decisions and ensuring compliance with environmental regulations. It is essential that 
NRW is adequately resourced to undertake the various functions required of it to 
ensure the effective delivery of the scheme and underpinning regulations. 
 
We are pleased to see that the threshold for eligibility into the Scheme has been 
reduced to either 3 hectares or an ability to demonstrate at least 550 hours of work. 
This should help to provide support for small farms that are already providing fresh 
fruit and vegetables and other sustainable products, but that were previously 
excluded from accessing public subsidies. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 269



 

Tudalen y pecyn 270



1 
 

The Proposal for a Sustainable Farming Scheme (SFS) Inquiry – 
Climate Change, Environment, and Infrastructure Committee of 

the Senedd 
This evidence is written by Dr Ludivine Petetin from Cardiff University’s School of Law and 
Politics and the Wales Governance Centre. She is Reader in Law with expertise in agri-
environmental issues and co-wrote the book, Brexit and Agriculture. Dr Petetin engages with 
stakeholders across the UK on agricultural law and policy. 

General comments 
The amount of required land allocated for environmental purposes appears to problematic as 
the proposed Sustainable Farming Scheme imposes to all farms that want to receive financial 
support to allocate at least 10% of their land to tree planting and an additional 10% of land to 
semi-natural habitats. Farmers are concerned about the impact of this requirement on food 
production (including food security of the UK) and their livelihoods/incomes. 

The idea with Brexit was to do things and take decisions more locally that would be in 
line with the local and rural context. And yet, such blanket decisions, such as the Scheme’s 
rule on 10% tree cover and a further 10% managed as habitat are not adaptable to all local 
conditions across Wales. These matters recall the ‘land sparing’ versus ‘land sharing’ 
argument.1 

Issues with the Proposal brings us back to the quality, loopholes and issues included in 
the Agriculture (Wales) Act. In particular the fact the entire Act is underpinned by an 
international concept without any link back to Wales and its cultural, geographical specificities. 
This is an argument that Mary Dobbs and I raised in front of this Committee during the Inquiry 
on the Bill in November 2022 and also something mentioned in our blogposts on the matter.2 

The two scheme rules are generally positive to help improve the environment and 
enhance biodiversity. But, and in relation to both, no consideration is given to the type of 
farming undertaken or the geographical or topographical situation of the farm. For example, 
can hill farmers plant the amount of trees required by the Scheme especially where it is very 
steep, windy and the ground does not enable them to do so? 

The Proposal states that it supports farmers to go beyond regulatory requirements. Here 
the aim is to apply the polluter pays principle. However, this is not always the case as 
demonstrated for example with UA3 on Soil Health Planning – an action that clearly enables 
farmers to meet regulatory requirements. 

Various issues face by the Sustainable Farming Scheme and more generally agricultural 
policy could be lessened by relying on different approaches – two of which are of particular 
importance: resilience in agriculture and agri-food democracy.  

Utilising resilience as a clear overarching and ambitious objective provides an 
encompassing lens that reflects the multifunctional nature of farming and its 
interconnectedness with ecosystems and society to transform towards improved social-

 
1 https://royalsociety.org/blog/2014/12/land-sharing-vs-land-sparing-can-we-feed-the-world-without-
destroying-it/.  
2 https://www.brexitenvironment.co.uk/2023/02/22/the-agriculture-wales-bill-part1/ and 
https://www.brexitenvironment.co.uk/2023/02/23/the-agriculture-wales-bill-getting-support-right-part-2/. 

Tudalen y pecyn 271

Eitem 4

https://www.routledge.com/Brexit-and-Agriculture/Petetin-Dobbs/p/book/9781032190730
https://royalsociety.org/blog/2014/12/land-sharing-vs-land-sparing-can-we-feed-the-world-without-destroying-it/
https://royalsociety.org/blog/2014/12/land-sharing-vs-land-sparing-can-we-feed-the-world-without-destroying-it/
https://www.brexitenvironment.co.uk/2023/02/22/the-agriculture-wales-bill-part1/
https://www.brexitenvironment.co.uk/2023/02/23/the-agriculture-wales-bill-getting-support-right-part-2/


2 
 

ecological services functioning.3 More importantly, it aims to tackle the vulnerabilities posed 
to and by agriculture, enabling it to withstand future shocks.4  

Four essential components of an agri-food democracy model (that builds upon 
traditional concepts of democracy) would strengthen agricultural policy and resilience in 
agriculture: (i) true information, genuine choice and alternative products being offered to 
consumers; (ii) upstream engagement and bottom up approach in the decision-making 
process; (iii) improvement of the rights of farmers and agricultural workers and their 
opportunities; and, (iv) restoration of faith and trust in the food system, its institutions and in 
farmers.5 

 

Issues with a ‘one size fits all’ approach  
In the eligibility criteria, Wales is unfortunately keeping farmers below 3 hectares out unless 
they can demonstrate 550 standard labour hours – potentially including small farmers. This 
does not fully deliver on opening financial support all that produce food. Further, the Scheme 
does not include any measures on facilitating the help and support of small farmers/producers 
and their specific needs. 

The main issue is with the Proposal is that it adopts a ‘one size fits all’ approach rather 
than looking at the different types of farming, sizes and location. For example, hill, organic, 
young/new entrant farmers. The most vocal in the protests have tended to be dairy producers 
and/or big farmers as they appear the most affected by the Sustainable Farming Scheme. Yet, 
it does not have to mean that those who are not vocal are necessarily unhappy with the Proposal.  

It is also important to note that organic or environmentally-friendly farmers would 
struggle to meet some of the requirements of the scheme. 

 

Major gaps and issues with the current Proposals 
There is no requirement link to (i) the type of tree that should be (or not) planted or (ii) the 
location of these trees, i.e. where they should be planted. Further, hedgerows are not included 
in the rule. This seems rather odd as they constitute woodland edge area and contain in majority 
woodland species. Perhaps this was decided to avoid double funding between the two rules. 
But if this is the case, this should have been explained. 
Further:  

- 17 actions (if all applicable to a farm) to undertake appears like a lot of requirements 
for what may be very little money available. 

- Focus on actions, so ‘does and don’ts’ towards outcomes rather than the outcomes 
themselves are not being targeted directly. Therefore, the Scheme does not fully deliver 

 
3 L. Petetin and M. Dobbs, Brexit and Agriculture (Legal Perspectives on Brexit, Routledge 2022) Chapters 4 
and 6. 
4 L. Petetin and M. Dobbs, Brexit and Agriculture (Legal Perspectives on Brexit, Routledge 2022) Chapters 4 
and 6. 
5 L. Petetin, ‘The COVID-19 Crisis: An Opportunity to Integrate Food Democracy into Post-Pandemic Food 
Systems’ (2020) 11(S2) European Journal of Risk Regulation 326-336 
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/european-journal-of-risk-regulation/article/covid19-crisis-an-
opportunity-to-integrate-food-democracy-into-postpandemic-food-
systems/486D3CB338D1043228183A942E8CF8C9 (open access). 

Tudalen y pecyn 272

https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/european-journal-of-risk-regulation/article/covid19-crisis-an-opportunity-to-integrate-food-democracy-into-postpandemic-food-systems/486D3CB338D1043228183A942E8CF8C9
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/european-journal-of-risk-regulation/article/covid19-crisis-an-opportunity-to-integrate-food-democracy-into-postpandemic-food-systems/486D3CB338D1043228183A942E8CF8C9
https://www.cambridge.org/core/journals/european-journal-of-risk-regulation/article/covid19-crisis-an-opportunity-to-integrate-food-democracy-into-postpandemic-food-systems/486D3CB338D1043228183A942E8CF8C9


3 
 

on public money for public goods. It appears that in order to deliver on the public 
promise of public money for public goods the middle ground found by the Welsh 
Government is to ensure trees and habitats on the farm hoping that the rest will follow. 
But due to the limitation of the rules mentioned above, this may be difficult to achieve. 

- Payments based on acreage (rather than based on the delivery of outcomes as originally 
intended). 

- A very siloed approach is used throughout especially without considering how 
synergies could be built with an agri-food strategy and an agri-food policy to build agri-
food resilience (more on this below). 

- Nothing on the type of food we want to encourage growing. For example, growing fruit 
and vegetables is not promoted. 

- There is very little incentive (apart from agro-forestry) to move agricultural practices 
towards regenerative farming, i.e. organic, agroecology, low-input, permaculture or 
biodynamic. 

 

Matters around the Universal Actions (UA)  
UA1: Benchmarking: (i) this looks like self-regulation. However, care should be adopted when 
regulatees can self-assess and decide about their situation and business; (ii) Enabling 
comparisons within and across sectors. This is very positive so that farmers can have a better 
idea of where they are at/situated. It also gives farmers solutions to issues and offers support.  
UA2: Continuous Personal Development: this is key to keep on top of developments, especially 
with new technologies always emerging and developing. 
UA3: Soil Health Planning: this is very welcome as soil is often forgotten about in agricultural 
policies and schemes. The action is directly linked to the Carbon Calculator as well as the 
Nutrient Management Plan for nitrogen under The Water Resources (Control of Agricultural 
Pollution) (Wales) Regulations 2021. Having clearer links with how to meet existing legal 
requirements is crucial for farmers, it makes it easier for them to comply with the law as well 
as making it more understandable. Soil testing is also undertaken incrementally, 20% each year 
over five years so that at the end of year 5 all the land has been tested enabling farmers to get 
access to information that is key for them to farm. 
UA4: Multispecies cover crop: it provides another important way forward as bare soil leads to 
poor quality soil, soil erosion and degradation. It is critical to use catch crops or nitrogen fixing 
crops (at least two species) on areas that will have no cover for more than 6 weeks post-harvest 
over the winter months. It could be fodder crops, lentils or peas. However, use of chemicals is 
permitted to remove the crops, which could lead to pollution. 
UA5: Integrated Pest management: with this action, this is very unclear how such actions could 
lead to more appropriate use of plant protection products. Having a record of use of such 
products does not necessarily lead to better/more targeted use. A clearer, incremental obligation 
to reduce the utilisation of plant protection products should be included. 
UA6: Managing heavily modified peatland Habitat; UA7: Habitat maintenance; UA8: Create 
temporary habitat on improved land; UA9: Designated Site Management Plans; UA11: 
Hedgerow management; UA12: Woodland management; UA13: Create new woodland and 
agro-forestry; UA14: Historic environment - maintenance and enhancement Universal Code 
for Habitats: these actions are examples of the Welsh Government being keen to work with and 
give information to farmers as well as trying to accommodate the constraints placed on farmers 
and finding solutions together with farmers over a certain period of time, i.e. not all 

Tudalen y pecyn 273



4 
 

requirements must be fulfilled straight away and as such this eases the burden placed on 
farmers. 
UA16: Good Animal welfare: again, this looks like self-regulation and all the negative 
consequences that this could have. 

 

The lack of just transition 
Many requirements/components are incremental so not all actions have to be fully undertaken 
straight away, which gives farmers time to adjust to the new rules but they all need to be 
complied with by 2029, which is very quick. Further, the doubt around the budget for 
agricultural support is creating further uncertainty for farmers and how much they will be 
financial supported. If the Scheme is not financially viable for farmers, this could result in a 
low take-up, which would negatively impact the environment and reaching net zero. 

Another point to make is that farmers have historically been compliant with changes 
(box ticking) in the various CAP and schemes’ regimes so if there is unrest then it means there 
is an issue. For example, when the CAP support system was overhauled in 1992, with the 
MacSharry reforms, from coupled production/support to area payments and headage payments, 
farmers felt that the new system was providing sufficient financial security for them to accept 
it. EU farmers did not protest despite the radical change to financial support the industry faced 
as the financial incentives made sense. 

Further, to keep costs low and ‘feeding the world’ (as a rhetoric and burden placed on 
farmers albeit wrongly), increased intensification and livestock heads have often led to 
environmental degradation and possible pollution (air, water, soil)) whilst concomitantly 
forcing farmers to spend huge amounts of money on technology and infrastructure – often also 
to comply with rules. 

To be fair to farmers, it is difficult to understand how and why farmers are being subject 
to such dramatic change so rapidly as per the proposed Sustainable Farming Scheme. Whilst 
other industries are neither subject to the same pressures to change or timescale. Various 
examples exist including the extractive industries, little development of electric trucks despite 
their negative consequences on climate change. The lack of a jus transition towards net zero 
appears to apply more rigorously to farmers, which could affect agri-food supply chains and 
rural communities. 

 

Issues around co-design/co-creation 
The Sustainable Farming Scheme document repeatedly mentions co-design, stakeholder events 
and the good relationships with farmers to build the Sustainable Farming Scheme and yet the 
recent protests across Wales show otherwise. So, from a process perspective, the Welsh 
Government should re-work its approach to co-design as farmers do not feel that they are being 
listened to. 

Further, the First minister and the Minister for Rural Affairs, at least at the start, refused 
to listen to farmers whilst governments in other European countries are and were.  Dialogues 
and discussions are central to moving this issue forward. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 274



5 
 

Relationship between farming, environment and food production: The 
need for an agri-food policy 

The interconnectedness of farming, the environment and food production is much 
stronger than in other proposals or regimes across the UK. This is essential to farm for the 21st 
century as these three components needs to be seen as complementary due to the crucial role 
played by farming delivering on food production and both environmental and social outcomes 
over the long-term. Further, producing cheap food is an issue as it often results from intensive 
methods of production that can damage the environment. Also, closer links should be made 
with the production of healthy food and linked to tackling obesity and alcohol consumption 
issues more directly through the development of an agri-food policy. 

Potential economic impact of the Sustainable Farming Scheme 
The economic impact/modelling of the Scheme mentions the possibility of losing around 5,500 
jobs. This information received very little attention from the media until the farmers started to 
protest. This tremendous change will have dramatic consequences for the countryside and rural 
communities. In contrast, the loss of so many jobs in other sectors of the economy (comparing 
for example with Tata Steel announcing the loss of around 2,800 jobs) is seen as outrageous 
and unacceptable. 

It is important to note, however, that this modelling does not consider how many jobs 
could be created from modifying farming practices, developing shorter supply chains and 
diversification as such practices would likely relocalise jobs locally. 

 

Uncertainty around the budget/funding 
There is a lack of certainty regarding the level of future funding available for agricultural 
support as the budget is only guaranteed until 2024-2025 creating much uncertainty for farmers 
and their future. 

Future support is set out in the Multi-annual Support Plan (MASP), which provides five 
years of planning for agricultural support schemes (page 76). However, with uncertainty 
around the budget/funding available how can this be undertaken by the Welsh Government. 
Further the Sustainable Farming Scheme document states that ‘The Welsh Government will 
pursue, at least, the same total level of funding for farmers and land managers from the UK 
Government as we will receive in 2024/25’ (page 64) but, and again, how can this be 
guaranteed when the level of funding from Treasury has not been confirmed after 2025. 

 

Obligation of reporting but lack of evaluation 
Various reports (annual report; impact report; Sustainable Land Management report), targets 
and indicators are going to be set up and written to assess the effectiveness of the financial 
support towards the purposes of the scheme and more widely to assess the progress towards 
the Sustainable Land Management objectives. However, there is nothing in the text mentioned 
about what would happen if the objectives are not met. So, what are the consequences if there 
is no or little progress? What if the schemes are not effective? 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 275



6 
 

A perfect storm? 
When assessing whether the Sustainable Farming Scheme will work for farmers and the 
environment, the national, UK and international context, parameters and challenges cannot be 
ignored. 
 
National context 
There are combined pressures from the Welsh Government through its intervention or lack 
thereof in terms of: 

- Water regulations: ie the designation of Nitrate Vulnerable Zones and the limit imposed 
to farmers for storing and spreading manure and slurry (which is effectively imposed 
to all farmers across Wales as the whole of Wales is under the NVZ designation). 

- Bovine TB management issues: some argue that increasing habitat for wildlife without 
controlling TB carriers such as badgers exacerbates the problem of increasing habitats 
for wildlife. The on-site slaughter of animals, who carry the disease, is also problematic. 

- There is also too much red tape and bureaucracy (which has highly increased since 
Brexit whilst a key goal of Brexit was to reduce red tape in agriculture). 

 
UK context 
Northern Ireland and Scotland keep direct payments (whilst farming conditions tend to be 
similar to those in Wales). This means that Northern Irish and Scottish farmers will receive 
support to meet the minimum regulatory baseline. This situation does not soften the burden 
placed on Welsh farmers. Such differences could lead to unfair competition in the medium 
term, i.e. when the new programmes/schemes are in place and putting Welsh farmers at a 
disadvantage. 

Further, matters around fairness in the agri-food supply chain are not being addressed 
whilst farmers are paid very little money for their produce by distributors and retailers. They 
are stuck between powerful distributors and retailers and agrochemical companies. When the 
cost of fully grown fruit and vegetables is cheaper to buy in the supermarket than buying a pack 
of seeds (despite the time, energy, resources used to grow the fruit or vegetables) then it is 
dispiriting and unfair for farmers. 

Rural communities also feel left behind, are not catching or listened to. This is also 
demonstrated in the lack of funds available under the Levelling Up programme as well as how 
little of those funds have come to Wales. The lack of such funds is also impacting on the lack 
of just transition. 

 
Combination with a changing context on the international scene  

 
UK farmers have been faced with increased food prices and price pressures (energy and input 
prices), cost of production and inflation. 

Trade is also at the centre of farmers discontent/dissatisfaction. The recent FTAs signed 
by the UK especially those with Australia and the CPTPP do not support the high 
environmental and animal welfare standards of the UK. Over the next 10 years, agri-food 
products, especially meat and eggs, will be fully liberalised, which means that products from 
these countries will enter the UK tariff-free. For example, Mexico, a country party to the 

Tudalen y pecyn 276



7 
 

CPTPP, is the fourth largest producer of eggs in the world almost entirely coming from caged 
systems whilst this is a production method that has been banned in the UK since 2012. Wales 
is particularly at risk when it comes to imported eggs as around 89% of Welsh hens are free 
range.6  

Further, the lack of coherent behaviour between signing trade deals not beneficial to 
our farmers whilst the Prime Minister supports farmers protests create further uncertainty and 
misunderstanding amongst the industry. 

Policy coherence is needed across policies and sectors as well as governments across 
the four UK nations. 

Further and problematically, that EU has first dropped its environmental commitments 
included in the ongoing CAP reform, the European Green Deal rather than looking at issues 
affecting farmers and farming holistically. Issues of international trade (talks on a possible 
EU/MERCOSUR trade agreement) and fairness in the agri-food supply chain have largely been 
neglected by the EU. This has sent the wrong signal to farmers in the EU and the UK that 
environmental requirements could be scrapped if persistent. 
 
Leading to the end of agri-food exceptionalism  
UK trade policy constitutes a big departure from the EU approach to agri-food exceptionalism 
(market access protection), which aims at exporting as much as possible whilst maintaining 
high tariffs for imports to protect the agri-food industry. The end of this agri-food 
exceptionalism in UK trade policy can also be seen in the changes to financial support given 
to farmers with the end of direct payments. These tremendous changes will impact farmers and 
agriculture for decades to come. 
 

The temporality of decisions and policies 
A key aspect to bear in mind is that farming and rural policy should be thought over the long-
term rather than short-termism. It is key to think what the consequences of choices made now 
will look like over the next 10, 20 and 30 years. Some of the content of Sustainable Farming 
Scheme does not always reflect such an approach especially in relation to tree planting and 
how there is no obligation to plant native trees or where to plant them. 

A similar approach should also be utilised for trade and signing new FTAs, especially 
when full liberalisation of certain products, like agri-food products, is on the cards. 

Assessing how the landscape (including economic and financial) and the environment 
will look like not just over the next few months but over the next few decades is key. 

 
Overall, one key discontent is the lack of future prospects which is directly facing farmers 
whether they will still be there in the next 10 to 20 years and whether they can pass on their 
legacy to the next generation. Such concerns cannot be left to rot, they need to be addressed. 
We need farmers on the land to both produce food and protect the environment. Both go hand 
in hand. 
March 2024. 

 
6 https://businesswales.gov.wales/foodanddrink/food-sectors/poultry-and-eggs.  

Tudalen y pecyn 277

https://businesswales.gov.wales/foodanddrink/food-sectors/poultry-and-eggs


Evidence to Climate Change, Environment & Infrastructure Committee 21st March 2024 
 
From: Professor Iain Donnison  
Head of IBERS*, Aberystwyth University, Gogerddan, Aberystwyth, SY23 3EE (*IBERS also a 
BBSRC strategically sponsored Institute and a national capability for grassland and plant breeding 
research). 
 
Future of Agriculture and net zero. There are different ways of looking at the future of 
agriculture: 
 

1) What we do now but more efficiently, so with more productivity and less waste/ 
environmental impact, by developing and adopting the latest technologies, eg crop and 
livestock breeding, equipment, crop agronomies and targeted interventions. 

2) Using the same crops and maintaining the same landscape (eg grassland) but with new 
uses, for example as feedstocks for grassland based biorefineries, with outputs including 
proteins for monogastrics (reducing the need for imported soya) as well as industrial 
feedstocks, platform chemicals and pharmaceuticals. 

3) Development and adoption of new crops and agriculture, with new value chains 
complementing existing agriculture but addressing new needs and markets. 

 
Sustainable agriculture and land management, objectives of the Sustainable Farming Scheme 
(SFS), are important for ensuring that future generations can continue to sustainably produce food, 
feed and biobased resources in Wales whilst enjoying its countryside and landscapes. At the same 
time humanity is having to adapt to a changing climate and mitigate the causes of it, through 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Farming is in the unique position of being both an emitter of 
greenhouse gases and having the opportunity to reverse past emissions through land-based 
greenhouse gas (GHG) removal approaches. This is also part of the reasoning behind the NFU’s 
commitment for farming to reach net zero by 2040 (NFU, 2019), as society the negative emission 
contributions that agriculture can provide to compensate for the hard to decarbonise industrial 
sectors. 
 
There are a number of mega trends, that particularly relate to agriculture and land use, which are: 

• Climate change, and the challenge of adaptation, the need to reduce GHG emissions, and 
the opportunity for mitigation including through negative emission technologies (i.e. 
afforestation, peatland restoration, bioenergy with carbon capture and storage (BECCS), 
incorporation of biochar and use of basalt for accelerated weathering) to achieve net zero. 

• Increasing diversity of crops, to increase resilience and address opportunities for improved 
human diet and health. In other words, moving away from the dominance of six crops on 
the supply of the majority of global calories. This will be facilitated by the ability to adopt 
technologies developed in model plants and major crops and apply them to those crops 
that have so far received less attention. 

• Adoption of new technologies including genomics (including genomic prediction and gene 
editing), phenomics, AI, automation and robotics. Global population size is still increasing 
whilst climate change is making agriculture more challenging. The development and 
adoption of new technologies will be critical for the sector in continuing to provide humanity 
with the food and biobased natural resources it needs to sustain and improve life chances. 

 
Most of these trends have been quite obvious over recent decades with the result that academia 
and industry have been helping to prepare agriculture for the future. In grassland-based 
agriculture, this includes forage crop (eg perennial ryegrass, red and white clover) varieties that 
are deeper rooting (increases crop resilience as well as reducing flood risk and run off). Deeper 
rooted grasses and clovers are typically more resilient to the impacts of climate change and can 
compaction following flooding events, as well as flooding risk, through increasing soil porosity 
(Macleod et al., 2013), as well as potentially storing more carbon at depth in the soil profile where 
microbial activity (and therefore soil respiration) is lower.  In addition to such production and public 
good benefits, varieties with enhanced feed properties, eg the high sugar grasses can increase 
production (milk yield and live weight gain) and reduce the risk of nitrogen pollution. Such 

Tudalen y pecyn 278



production gains should also deliver benefits in terms of fewer greenhouse gas emissions per unit 
of production. There is also an interesting and increasing opportunity to reconnect urban and rural 
economies that became increasingly separated following the industrial revolution.  
 
Biomass crops as an Optional Action: the Welsh Government has accepted the CCC 
recommendation on tree planting, but seemingly not accepted the recommendations on biomass 
crops. Perennial biomass crops could reasonably be planted on some farms in lieu of trees, 
providing flexibility to farmers who are either restricted by tenancy agreements or looking for a 
more regular income stream. Perennial biomass crops (e.g. Miscanthus, short rotation coppice 
willow, short rotation forestry poplar) also have the potential to help decarbonise industrial sectors, 
for example providing carbon in the manufacture of green steel, and would therefore have the 
potential to feed into local supply chains within Wales. Care would be needed not to incentivise 
biomass crop planting on high carbon soils (as for trees). The measurement of soil organic carbon 
should ideally be part of any initial on-farm assessment of land suitability for biomass crops, with 
potentially greater benefits on those soils with lower initial carbon contents.  
 
Other approaches to reconnecting urban and rural economies include the adoption of controlled 
environment agriculture, including the potential to produce food in cities using vertical farming 
approaches and/ or the ability to use low grade waste heat and CO2 from industry in protected 
cropping (McDonald et al., 2023), as well as providing feedstocks for green construction materials. 
 
Approaches to implementation of net zero targets. In the SFS a provisional target of 10% of 
land has been devoted to woodland. Afforestation is one approach discussed by IPCC, UK Climate 
Change Committee (CCC), and National Infrastructure Commission, other approaches for GHG 
removal that are typically also highlighted include bioenergy with carbon capture and storage 
(BECCS) and peatland restoration. Recently it has been indicated that the 10% woodland target 
within the scheme may be subject to change to include ‘equivalent measures’. Such flexibility 
would be welcomed. A more flexible approach is also consistent with the concept of Stabilisation 
(or Princeton) Wedges, where the task of tackling the scale of climate change can only be 
achieved by identifying a range of measures that collectively achieve the target which is 
unachievable by a single approach alone (Pacala & Socolow, 2004).  It will though be important to 
start with a definition of what terms of equivalence are required. Potential elements of a definition, 
and other factors to consider, might include: 

• Likelihood of permanence of land use change, e.g. woodland maybe more permanent than 
other land uses, but standing trees are also at risk of fire, storm, disease and drought. 
Bioenergy may be less permanent as a land use, but geological storage through CCS could 
be substantially more permanent. 

• Not all land is equal, with factors being land classification, climate, topography, farm 
business specifics including size. The land most suited to horticulture (typically best and 
most versatile, BMV) for example should be prioritised for that use, especially in Wales 
where the area is relatively small (approx. 297,000ha, 20% of total land, Keay & Hannam, 
2020). 

• What are the counterfactuals, for example the impacts will typically be very different for 
grassland vs arable land use transitions.  

• Risk of double counting with other targets and whether additionality is required (e.g. peat 
restoration might give equivalent reductions in carbon emissions, but can be assumed to 
occur elsewhere within carbon budgets.  

• Extent to which equivalence maps onto hectares (e.g. elements of existing targets in 
carbon budgets are based on areas as opposed to any carbon equivalence).  

• There is the possibility to stack some GHG removal approaches such as perennial biomass 
crops and biochar to increase the benefit per land area, but there can be trade-offs, eg from 
planting trees on upland shallow peat. Land use transitions, including afforestation, will 
typically also result in carbon deficits for a number of years, depending on the starting 
carbon content of the soil and the agricultural system (eg Paul et al., 2002; Upson et al., 
2016; Renna et al., 2024), so some locations will be more likely to achieve the desired 
benefits whilst others, eg in high organic matter soils (such as grassland) and shallow peat 
are more likely to be deleterious.   

Tudalen y pecyn 279



• To what extend may farmers who already have greater than 10% woodland cover 
encouraged to maintain this woodland, and/or that excess tradeable to offset farmers that 
don’t plant trees or adopt other approaches to tackling climate change.  

• Equivalent benefits also apply to biodiversity (e.g. production forestry is very different to 
mixed native broadleaf forestry). For some habitats, degree of permanence also 
significantly impacts biodiversity benefits, with permanence typically being associated with 
greater biodiversity. However, a mixture of land uses and stages of transitions between 
them is also important.   
 

The Challenge of developing funding support structures. There is a challenge for running 
agricultural support structures, such as the proposed SFS, which include some of the examples 
above and: 

• The need to have annual payments to support farmers and rural businesses when 
environmental targets have benefits that will take many years and even decades to accrue 
but can be lost within a small number of years. This is particularly true for UA7 of the SFS. 
Many measures that might be supported under OAs and CAs would also require support 
for periods of 3-5 years minimum.  

• The challenge when measures could potentially contribute to sustainable land 
management, but there is a lack of evidence that they will, either because the data hasn’t 
been gathered yet under relevant conditions (climate, soils, wider environment) or they are 
fundamentally very difficult to validate with the tools we currently have other than 
expensively and over long periods of time (eg soil carbon). There is also a need to develop 
proxy methods for delivery of sustainable land management that allows the monitoring of 
direction of travel and ideally that farmers themselves can use and so see relatively rapidly 
feedback on the interventions made. There is the potential to incentivise the development 
of innovative monitoring devices, tools and services as a means for achieving this. 

• How will existing natural capital including stored carbon in forestry or on grassland, and 
biodiversity be treated compared to new schemes to accumulate it. 

• What will be the consequences of changing land use on the wider rural community now and 
for future generations. 

 
Another way that agricultural priorities can be considered is in terms of land functions, so that in 
typically lowland areas the land use will be dominated by production-based agriculture, whilst in 
the uplands it will be more dominated by environmental management and conservation. The area 
in between represents the greatest challenge in identifying the most appropriate patchwork of 
agricultural production and environmental services to adopt and/ or support. This has been 
referred to as the squeezed middle in Scotland (Slee et al., 2014) and this intermediate zone is 
one where diversification approaches can also be appropriate to support production (Donnison & 
Fraser, 2016).  
 
Use of Carbon Calculators. It is desirable that a standard carbon calculator is used in schemes 
such as SFS, in order to minimise confusion amongst farmers and wider society. Key features from 
a technical perspective would be that: a) it must allow cross referencing with IPCC emissions 
categories in order to provide data useful to Welsh Government when calculating carbon budgets; 
b) it takes account of where carbon accounting is done according to tier 1, 2 and 3; c) identifies the 
ways in which a carbon footprint calculation differs from GHG accounting principles; d) is 
transparent in its underlying calculation methods; e) allows some comparison with carbon footprint 
calculators that may arise from other sectors (e.g. supermarkets wishing to report on their scope 3 
emissions, future targets within the Red Tractor scheme). The farming sector has the rare 
opportunity, compared to many other industries, to both decrease its own emissions and to help 
mitigate climate change further, for example through land based renewable electricity generation or 
land-based carbon sequestration. This is to be welcomed but care will be needed though in 
distinguishing offsets with other IPCC categories from the need to decrease agricultural emissions 
per se according to the IPCC definition of the sector.  
 
The benefits of sustainable land management go far beyond agriculture, and this provides routes 
for additional funding into farming. For example, where measures such as peat restoration, deep 

Tudalen y pecyn 280



rooted grasses or perennial biomass crops, result in improved flood resilience, this could 
potentially come out of budgets allocated to flood prevention, and measures improving access to 
the countryside could come from health budgets. This also provides the opportunity for measures 
to be compared for cost effectiveness at delivering impact, eg where work on a catchment reduces 
flood risk downstream could be compared with the cost of installing flood defences in a town.  
 
Scale at which benefits are delivered and measured. Collaborative actions; eg flood risk needs 
to be tackled at the level of a catchment (regardless of what proportion of farmers in the area are 
already in a scheme such as SFS), creating wildlife corridors to address habitat fragmentation in 
particular landscapes will require collaboration between specific landowners, water quality 
improvements are also best addressed at catchment level. Priorities will need to be made such as 
for example, where the benefits of flood mitigation benefit a greater number of households, this 
would be expected to be preferred over an equivalent scheme that benefit relatively few 
households.  
 
Concluding comments. We live in a time of change, where global population is still increasing 
(but approaching a plateau), where the impacts of climate change are having significant impacts 
on where and how successfully we can grow food, and where the energy sources that have driven 
our economy for the last century and longer (i.e. fossil fuels) need to be transitioned because their 
use results in geologically stored carbon being released to the atmosphere. Agriculture and land 
use is unique in that although it is an emitter of GHG, it also has the ability to be the only realistic 
solution for tackling climate change through GHG removal approaches in the period to 2050 which 
is the timeframe that really matters to humanity having a chance of achieving climate change 
targets such as those set at recent COPs. Alongside this there is a once in a generation 
opportunity to develop an agricultural support scheme (ie post CAP) for current and future 
generations. Such a scheme needs to be sufficiently attractive and flexible enough to the farming 
sector to ensure that the aims of the SFS are also realised for current and future generations. If 
this can be achieved there is a real opportunity of incentivising sustainable land management 
practice at scale for the benefits of farmers and society, that goes far beyond the agriculture sector 
in terms of its benefits. 
 
References 
Donnison IS & Fraser MD. (2020). Diversification and use of bioenergy to maintain future 
grasslands. Food and Energy Security 5: 2048-3694. 
Keay, C. and Hannam, J. The effect of climate change on agricultural land classification in Wales. 
Retrieved from: https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-04/agricultural-
land-classification-projected-effect-climate-change.pdf  
Macleod C, Humphreys M, Whalley W et al. (2013). A novel grass hybrid to reduce flood 
generation in temperate regions. Sci Rep 3, 1683. 
McDonald LJ, Pinto ASS, Arshad MN, Rowe RL, Donnison I, McManus M. (2023) Synergy 
between industry and agriculture: Techno-economic and life cycle assessments of waste recovery 
for crop growth in glasshouses. Journal of Cleaner Production 432: 139650. 
NFU. (2019) Achieving NET ZERO Farming’s 2040 goal. 
www.nfuonline.com/archive?treeid=137544  
Pacala S & Socolow R. (2004). Stabilization Wedges: Solving the Climate Problem for the Next 50 
Years with Current Technologies. Science. 305 (5686): 968–972. 
Paul KI, Polglase PJ, Nyakuengama JG, Khanna PK. (2002). Change in soil carbon following 
afforestation. Forest ecology and management, 168(1-3), 241-257. 
Renna V, Martín-Gallego P, Julián F, Six J, Cardinael R, Laub, M. (2024). Initial soil carbon losses 
may offset decades of biomass carbon accumulation in Mediterranean afforestation. Geoderma 
Regional, e00768. 
Upson MA, Burgess PJ, Morison JIL. (2016). Soil carbon changes after establishing woodland and 
agroforestry trees in a grazed pasture. Geoderma, 283, 10-20.   
Slee B, Brown I, Donnelly D, Gordon IJ, Matthews K, Towers W. (2014) The ‘squeezed middle’: 
Identifying and addressing conflicting demands on intermediate quality farmland in Scotland. Land 
Use Policy 41: 206-216. 

Tudalen y pecyn 281

https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-04/agricultural-land-classification-projected-effect-climate-change.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-04/agricultural-land-classification-projected-effect-climate-change.pdf
http://www.nfuonline.com/archive?treeid=137544


 

 

  

 

 

 

19 Chwefror 2024  

Cofrestr Asedau Tanddaearol Cenedlaethol 

Annwyl Michelle, 

Rwy'n ysgrifennu atoch yn dilyn ystyriaeth y Pwyllgor o Femorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol 

Atodol yn ymwneud â'r Bil Diogelu Data a Gwybodaeth Ddigidol (Rhif 2) ("y Bil"). Yn ystod cyfnod 

adrodd trafodion deddfwriaethol yn Nhŷ'r Cyffredin, fe wnaethoch gyflwyno diwygiadau i'r Bil yn 

ymwneud â sefydlu Cofrestr Asedau Tanddaearol Cenedlaethol.  

Fel y gwyddoch, mae cannoedd o berchnogion asedau tanddaearol ledled y wlad, yn amrywio o 

lywodraeth leol i gwmnïau cyfleustodau. Bydd gan yr holl berchnogion hyn eu prosesau ar gyfer 

cynnal data o'r fath. Er nad oes gennym safbwynt penodol ar sefydlu cofrestr o'r fath, mae gennym 

bryderon bod y Bil diwygiedig yn trosglwyddo pwerau i'r Ysgrifennydd Gwladol, drwy bwerau 

rheoleiddio, i wneud penderfyniadau ar Gofrestr Asedau Tanddaearol Cenedlaethol fel y mae'n 

ymwneud â Chymru.  

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi mynegi "pryderon polisi cyfansoddiadol" ynghylch pwerau rheoleiddio 

o dan Ddeddf Ffyrdd Newydd a Gwaith Stryd 1991 yn cael eu trosglwyddo o Weinidogion Cymru yn 

ôl i'r Ysgrifennydd Gwladol (fel y nodir ym mharagraff 22 o'r Memorandwm Cydsyniad 

Deddfwriaethol Atodol Rhif 3). Nid ydym yn sicr, fodd bynnag, am ei farn na'i ran yn y mater polisi 

hwn yn fwy cyffredinol. 

Hoffem wybod pa drafodaethau rydych chi neu'ch swyddogion wedi'u cael gyda Llywodraeth Cymru 

ynghylch sefydlu Cofrestr Asedau Tanddaearol Cenedlaethol. Hoffem gael gwybod yn arbennig, pa 

ystyriaethau sy'n cael eu rhoi i gymwyseddau datganoledig a sut y cânt eu rheoli. Byddem hefyd yn 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddDiwylliant@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddDiwylliant 

0300 200 6565  

— 
Senedd Cymru 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddCulture@senedd.wales  

senedd.wales/SeneddCulture 
0300 200 6565  

Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, 
Chwaraeon a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol 
— 
Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, 
Chwaraeon a Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol 

Y Gwir Anrh Michelle Donelan AS 

Ysgrifennydd Gwladol dros Wyddoniaeth, Arloesi a Thechnoleg 

Llywodraeth y DU 

Tudalen y pecyn 282

Eitem 5.1

https://senedd.cymru/media/fhhedf5l/lcm-ld16205-w.pdf
https://senedd.cymru/media/fhhedf5l/lcm-ld16205-w.pdf
https://senedd.cymru/media/fhhedf5l/lcm-ld16205-w.pdf
https://senedd.cymru/media/fhhedf5l/lcm-ld16205-w.pdf


 

 

croesawu amlinelliad gennych am beth yw rhan Llywodraeth Cymru yn y gwaith o ddatblygu'r polisi 

ar gyfer cofrestr o'r fath. 

Fel y mae, mae'r diffyg manylion a thryloywder ym Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol Atodol 

Llywodraeth Cymru ynghylch y diwygiadau i'r Bil (a nodwyd fel rhai sy'n gofyn am gydsyniad 

deddfwriaethol y Senedd) wedi rhwystro ein gallu i asesu goblygiadau polisi'r newidiadau hyn. 

Byddem, felly, yn croesawu eglurder am eich trafodaethau â Llywodraeth Cymru i gynorthwyo ein 

hystyriaethau. 

Wrth i'r Bil fynd rhagddo drwy Dŷ'r Arglwyddi, byddem yn ddiolchgar o gael ymateb brys i'r mater 

hwn. Rwy'n anfon copi o'r llythyr hwn at Gadeiryddion Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd ac Amgylchedd y 

Senedd a Phwyllgor Deddfwriaethol, Cyfiawnder a'r Cyfansoddiad y Senedd er gwybodaeth. 

Yn gywir,  

 

Delyth Jewell AS 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 283



 

 

 

20 Chwefror 2024 

Annwyl Llyr, 

P-06-1388 Dileu'r gofyniad i ffermwyr gael o leiaf 10 y cant o orchudd coed i allu manteisio ar y Cynllun 

Ffermio Cynaliadwy newydd 

Trafododd y Pwyllgor Deisebau y ddeiseb ar 29 Ionawr 2024.  Cytunwyd i ysgrifennu atoch i dynnu sylw at y 

ddeiseb hon ac i ofyn a ellir ystyried y materion a amlygir fel rhan o unrhyw waith yn y dyfodol ar y Cynllun 

Ffermio Cynaliadwy 

Rydym hefyd yn ysgrifennu at Gadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig. 

Yng ngoleuni’r gwaith sy’n debygol o gael ei wneud gan Bwyllgorau eraill ar y mater, cytunodd yr Aelodau i 

gau’r ddeiseb a diolch i’r deisebydd. 

Efallai y byddwch hefyd am nodi bod deiseb yn galw am Gael gwared ar y Gweithredoedd Sylfaenol o 

dan y Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy wedi casglu mwy na 10,000 o lofnodion ers ei gychwyn yn 

gynharach y mis hwn. Er gwybodaeth mae deiseb arall newydd yn galw am Diddymu holl bolisïau 

Llywodraeth Cymru o Agenda 21/Agenda 2030/Datblygu Cynaliadwy, gan gynnwys Sero Net. 

Mae rhagor o wybodaeth am ddeiseb P-06-1388, gan gynnwys gohebiaeth gysylltiedig, ar gael ar ein gwefan: 

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=42610 

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch â thîm clercio'r Pwyllgor.  

 Yn gywir  

 

Jack Sargeant AS 

Cadeirydd  

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Y Pwyllgor Deisebau 
— 
Petitions Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

Deisebau@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddDeisebau  

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
Petitions@senedd.wales  

senedd.wales/SeneddPetitions 
0300 200 6565 

Llyr Gruffydd AS, Cadeirydd 

Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 

Tŷ Hywel 

Bae Caerdydd 

CF99 1SN 

Tudalen y pecyn 284

Eitem 5.2

https://deisebau.senedd.cymru/deisebau/246052
https://deisebau.senedd.cymru/deisebau/246052


 

 

 

 

 

21 Chwefror 2024 

Annwyl Paul, 

Trafod cynigion ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy 

Mae'r Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith (y Pwyllgor) wedi cytuno i gyflawni darn 

byr o waith ar gynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy.  

Bydd y Pwyllgor yn cynnal digwyddiad i randdeiliaid ddydd Mercher 13 Mawrth i gasglu safbwyntiau 

ar y cynigion gan amrywiaeth o sefydliadau ac unigolion. Gan fod eich Pwyllgor chi yn rhannu ein 

diddordeb yn y Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy, hoffwn wahodd eich Pwyllgor i gymryd rhan yn y 

digwyddiad.  

Er mwyn llywio ein gwaith ymhellach, byddwn yn cynnal sesiynau tystiolaeth lafar gyda chynrychiolwyr 

o'r sector ffermio a sector yr amgylchedd, ymhlith eraill, yn ein cyfarfod ar 21 Mawrth. Bydd y 

sesiynau'n canolbwyntio ar agweddau amgylcheddol y cynigion fel y maent yn ymwneud â chylch 

gwaith y Pwyllgor. Os hoffai unrhyw aelodau o’ch Pwyllgor chi gymryd rhan yn y sesiynau, mae 

croeso, wrth gwrs, iddynt wneud hynny.  

Os bydd angen unrhyw fanylion pellach arnoch chi neu unrhyw aelodau o’ch Pwyllgor, byddwn yn 

hapus i gwrdd er mwyn trafod. Fel arall, bydd y tîm Clercio ar gael i ateb unrhyw gwestiynau sydd 

gennych chi neu'ch tîm Clercio. 

 

 

 

 

 

Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd,  
yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
— 
Climate Change, Environment,  
and Infrastructure Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddHinsawdd 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddClimate@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddClimate 
0300 200 6565 

Paul Davies AS 

Cadeirydd, Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a 

Materion Gwledig 

Tudalen y pecyn 285

https://www.llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/consultations/2023-12/dogfen-ymgynghori-cynllun-ffermio-cynaliadwy_0.pdf
mailto:SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru
mailto:SeneddClimate@senedd.wales


 

 

 

 

Yn gywir, 

 

Llyr Gruffydd AS,  

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 

 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 286



 

 

 

 

 

21 Chwefror 2024 

Annwyl Lesley, 

Trafod cynigion ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy 

Roeddwn yn meddwl y byddai’n ddefnyddiol eich hysbysu bod y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr 

Amgylchedd a Seilwaith wedi cytuno i wneud gwaith ar y Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy arfaethedig i’r 

graddau y mae’n ymwneud â chylch gwaith y Pwyllgor.  

 

Mae’r Pwyllgor yn bwriadu cwblhau’r gwaith o gasglu tystiolaeth erbyn diwedd mis Mawrth, gyda’r 

bwriad o gyflwyno adroddiad ym mis Mai. Hyderaf y bydd hyn yn rhoi digon o amser i chi ystyried 

argymhellion y Pwyllgor cyn cwblhau'r Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy. 

 

Nid ydym yn rhagweld y byddwn yn eich gwahodd i roi tystiolaeth ar hyn o bryd, ond os bydd hyn yn 

newid, byddaf yn gofyn i'r tîm clercio gysylltu â'ch swyddfa.  

 

Rwy’n anfon copi o’r llythyr hwn at Julie James AS, y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd, a Paul Davies AS, 

Cadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig. 

 

Yn gywir, 

 

Llyr Gruffydd AS,  

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 

Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd,  
yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
— 
Climate Change, Environment,  
and Infrastructure Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddHinsawdd 

0300 200 6565  

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddClimate@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddClimate 
0300 200 6565  

Lesley Griffiths AS 

Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd 

Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 

Tudalen y pecyn 287

mailto:SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru
mailto:SeneddClimate@senedd.wales


 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 288



 
Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru                  
Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg.  Bydd gohebiaeth sy'n dod i law yn Gymraeg yn cael ei hateb yn 

Gymraeg, ac ni fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  

 

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and 
corresponding in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 

 
 

 

 

Llŷr Gruffydd MS  

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, Amgylchedd a Seilwaith  

Senedd Cymru 

SeneddClimate@senedd.wales  

 

20 Chwefror 2024 

 

 
 
 

Annwyl Huw, 
 
Rheoliadau Iechyd Planhigion (Ffioedd) (Lloegr) a Rheolaethau Swyddogol 
(Amlder Gwiriadau) (Diwygio) 2024. 
 
Hoffwn hysbysu'r Pwyllgor o'r bwriad i gydsynio i Lywodraeth y DU wneud a gosod 
Rheoliadau Iechyd Planhigion (Ffioedd) (Cymru) a Rheolaethau Swyddogol (Amlder 
Gwiriadau) (Diwygio) 2024 ("Y Rheoliadau") erbyn 4 Mawrth 2024.  
 
Derbyniais lythyr gan Rebecca Pow AS, ar ran yr Arglwydd Benyon, y Gweinidog 
Bioddiogelwch, Materion Morol a Gwledig, yn gofyn am gydsyniad i ddarpariaethau 
yn y Rheoliadau. Gwneir y darpariaethau hyn yn Rhan 3 o'r Rheoliadau gan yr 
Ysgrifennydd Gwladol dros yr Amgylchedd, Bwyd a Materion Gwledig, drwy arfer y 
pwerau a roddir gan Erthyglau 54(3) a 144(6) o Reoliad (UE) 2017/625, a pharagraff 
3(2) o Atodiad 6 iddo. Mae Erthygl 3(2B) o Reoliad (UE) 2017/625 yn datgan y gall yr 
Ysgrifennydd Gwladol wneud Rheoliadau o'r fath gyda chydsyniad Gweinidogion 
Cymru . 
 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 289

Eitem 5.3

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.wales
mailto:SeneddClimate@senedd.wales


Ar 30 Ebrill 2024, o dan Fodel Gweithredu Targed y Ffin, bydd gwiriadau mewnforio 
ar sail risg yn cael eu cynnal mewn Safleoedd Rheolaethau'r Ffin ar blanhigion ac ar 
gynhyrchion planhigion risg ganolig a fydd yn cael eu mewnforio o'r UE, 
Liechtenstein a'r Swistir Yn ogystal, bydd gwiriadau ar y dogfennau sy'n gysylltiedig 
â'r nwyddau hynny yn cael eu cynnal yn llai aml fel eu bod yn cyd-fynd â pha mor 
aml y bydd gwiriadau adnabod a gwiriadau ffisegol yn cael eu cynnal. Yn unol â 
Model Gweithredu Targed y Ffin, ni fydd y newidiadau hyn yn cael eu cyflwyno 
mewn "porthladdoedd perthnasol" ar Arfordir y Gorllewin, gan gynnwys Abergwaun, 
Caergybi a Phenfro, tan 31 Hydref fan cynharaf. 
 
Mae'r Rheoliadau'n ehangu OS 2022/739 er mwyn cynnwys y nwyddau risg ganolig 
o'r UE, Liechtenstein a'r Swistir yn y fframwaith a geir yn yr Offeryn hwnnw ar gyfer 
pennu pa mor aml y cynhelir gwiriadau ffisegol a gwiriadau adnabod. Byddant yn 
diwygio Atodiad 6 o'r Rheoliad Rheolaethau Swyddogol i sicrhau bod y 'gyfradd 
amlder briodol' ar gyfer nwyddau risg canolig o'r UE, Liechtenstein a'r Swistir yn cael 
ei sefydlu gan Erthygl 53. 
 
Mae'r Offeryn Statudol (OS) yn ddarostyngedig i'r weithdrefn gadarnhaol, a disgwylir 

iddo gael ei osod gerbron Senedd y DU ar 4 Mawrth 2024. Daw'r Rheoliadau i rym ar 

30 Ebrill 2024. 

Er mai egwyddor gyffredinol Llywodraeth Cymru yw y dylai'r gyfraith sy'n ymwneud â 
materion datganoledig gael ei gwneud a'i diwygio yng Nghymru, y tro hwn, ystyrir ei 
bod yn briodol i Lywodraeth y DU ddeddfu ar lefel Prydain Fawr. Mae'r Rheoliadau'n 
ymwneud â maes datganoledig, fodd bynnag, maent yn effeithio ar fewnforio 
cynhyrchion planhigion a phlanhigion ar draws Prydain. Mae llawer o'r newidiadau yn 
y Rheoliadau yn ymwneud â mewnforio planhigion a chynhyrchion planhigion. Mae'r 
rhan fwyaf o'r nwyddau hyn sy'n dod i mewn i Gymru yn dod trwy borthladdoedd 
Lloegr a byddent yn ddarostyngedig i'w deddfwriaeth mewnforio. Gallai cyflwyno 
rheoliadau ar wahân yng Nghymru a Lloegr greu baich ychwanegol ar yr Asiantaeth 
Iechyd Anifeiliaid a Phlanhigion (APHA), busnesau, masnachwyr a thyfwyr. Mae 
rheoleiddio ar lefel Prydain Fawr yn sicrhau llyfr statud cydlynol a chyson, gyda'r 
rheoliadau ar gael mewn un offeryn heb unrhyw risg o wahaniaeth deddfwriaethol 
ym Mhrydain Fawr. Yn ogystal, mae'n debygol y byddai gwneud Rheoliadau Cymru 
yn unig ar gyfer rhai darpariaethau o fewn yr OS hwn yn golygu goblygiadau ar 
gyflawni'r Model Gweithredu Targed y Ffin ehangach. 
 
Hoffwn sicrhau'r Pwyllgor hwn mai polisi Llywodraeth Cymru fel arfer yw deddfu dros 
Gymru ar faterion o fewn cymhwysedd datganoledig. Felly, rwy'n rhoi fy nghydsyniad 
i'r darpariaethau yn y Rheoliadau hyn. Felly nid oes gwahaniaeth o ran polisi rhwng 
Llywodraeth Cymru a Llywodraeth y DU yn y mater hwn. 
 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 290



Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn gwneud y darpariaethau eraill yn y Rheoliadau ar gyfer 
Cymru yn unig drwy Reoliadau Iechyd Planhigion etc (Ffioedd Amrywiol) (Diwygio) 
(Cymru). 
 
Rwyf wedi ysgrifennu yn yr un modd at Huw Irranca-Davies MS, Cadeirydd y 
Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad. 
 
Yn gywir  
 

 
Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd  
 
 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 291



Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg.  Bydd gohebiaeth sy'n dod i law yn Gymraeg yn cael ei hateb yn Gymraeg, ac ni 
fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Llŷr Gruffydd MS  
Cadeirydd  
Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, Amgylchedd a Seilwaith  
Senedd Cymru 
 
SeneddClimate@senedd.wales  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5 Mawrth 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Annwyl Huw, 
 
Rheoliadau Iechyd Planhigion (Ffioedd) (Lloegr) a Rheolaethau Swyddogol (Amlder 
Gwiriadau) (Diwygio) 2024. 
 
Rwy'n cyfeirio at fy llythyr atoch dyddiedig 20 Chwefror 2024. Hoffwn hysbysu'r Pwyllgor fy 
mod wedi rhoi fy nghaniatâd i'r Gweinidog Gwladol osod Rheoliadau Iechyd Planhigion 
(Ffioedd) (Lloegr) a Rheolaethau Swyddogol (Amlder Gwiriadau) (Diwygio) 2024 mewn 
perthynas â Chymru. Rwyf wedi gosod Datganiad Ysgrifenedig sydd i'w weld yma. 
 
Mae'r Rheoliadau yn gorgyffwrdd â pholisïau datganoledig a byddant yn gymwys i Gymru. 
Mae'r darpariaethau yn cwmpasu Cymru, Lloegr a'r Alban. Mae'r Offeryn Statudol (OS) yn 
ddarostyngedig i'r weithdrefn gadarnhaol a chafodd ei osod gerbron Senedd y DU ar 04 
Mawrth 2024, gyda dyddiad cychwyn o 30 Ebrill 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 292

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales
mailto:SeneddClimate@senedd.wales
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fsenedd.wales%2Fmedia%2Fi45hrivp%2Fsub-ld16378-w.pdf&data=05%7C02%7CLloyd.Harris005%40gov.wales%7C9d695f06fd984d516db708dc3d2dddfa%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C1%7C638452514416961024%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ahT2WXeZnLi8oBLOK%2FCtnWb1BZCZSjl3v%2Fmj4XnT2fA%3D&reserved=0


 
 
 
Er mai egwyddor gyffredinol Llywodraeth Cymru yw y dylai'r gyfraith sy'n ymwneud â 
materion datganoledig gael ei gwneud a'i diwygio yng Nghymru, y tro hwn, ystyrir ei bod yn 
briodol i Lywodraeth y DU ddeddfu ar lefel Prydain Fawr. Mae'r Rheoliadau'n ymwneud â 
maes datganoledig, fodd bynnag, maent yn effeithio ar fewnforio cynhyrchion planhigion a 
phlanhigion ar draws Prydain. Mae llawer o'r newidiadau yn y Rheoliadau yn ymwneud â 
mewnforio planhigion a chynhyrchion planhigion. Mae'r rhan fwyaf o'r nwyddau hyn sy'n dod 
i mewn i Gymru yn dod trwy borthladdoedd Lloegr a byddent yn ddarostyngedig i'w 
deddfwriaeth mewnforio. Gallai cyflwyno rheoliadau ar wahân yng Nghymru a Lloegr greu 
baich ychwanegol ar yr Asiantaeth Iechyd Anifeiliaid a Phlanhigion (APHA), busnesau, 
masnachwyr a thyfwyr. Mae rheoleiddio ar lefel Prydain Fawr yn sicrhau llyfr statud cydlynol 
a chyson, gyda'r rheoliadau ar gael mewn un offeryn heb unrhyw risg o wahaniaeth 
deddfwriaethol ym Mhrydain Fawr. Yn ogystal, mae'n debygol y byddai gwneud Rheoliadau 
Cymru yn unig ar gyfer rhai darpariaethau o fewn yr OS hwn yn golygu goblygiadau ar 
gyflawni'r Model Gweithredu Targed y Ffin ehangach. 
 
Rwyf wedi ysgrifennu yn yr un modd at Huw Irranca-Davies MS, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a’r Cyfansoddiad. 
 
Yn gywir,  
 

 
Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 293



 

 

 

 

 

 

27 Chwefror 2024 

Ardaloedd Draenio Mewnol 

Annwyl Mabon, 

Diolch i chi am godi eich pryderon am Ardaloedd Draenio Mewnol gyda mi. Yn fras, byddwn yn 
awgrymu bod Ardaloedd Draenio Mewnol yn ffitio'n fwy cadarn yng nghylch gwaith y Pwyllgor Newid 
Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith. Rwy’n rhannu eich pryderon, fodd bynnag, ynghylch colli tir 
ffrwythlon/cynhyrchiol ac mae’r materion hynny’n cyd-fynd i raddau helaeth â chylch gwaith Pwyllgor 
yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig. Felly, rwy’n hapus i wneud rhywfaint o waith archwilio ar y 
mater. 

Oherwydd cyfyngiadau ar amser y Pwyllgor byddwn yn gwneud y gwaith hwn drwy ohebiaeth i 
ddechrau. Byddaf yn ysgrifennu at Lywodraeth Cymru, Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru a’r Undebau Ffermio i 
gasglu barn. Unwaith y caf ymatebion byddaf yn eu trafod gyda'r Pwyllgor a byddwn yn penderfynu 
sut i symud ymlaen. Byddaf yn cadw cysylltiad i roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i chi. 

Rwy'n anfon copi o'r llythyr hwn at Llyr Gruffydd AS yn rhinwedd ei swydd fel Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith. 

Cofion cynnes, 

 

Paul Davies AS 
Cadeirydd: Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig 

Pwyllgor yr Economi,  
Masnach a Materion Gwledig 
— 
Economy, Trade, and  
Rural Affairs Committee  

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddEconomi@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddEconomi 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddEconomy@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddEconomy  
0300 200 6565 

Mabon ap Gwynfor 
Aelod o’r Senedd dros  
Ddwyfor Meirionnydd 

Tudalen y pecyn 294

Eitem 5.4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12/03/2024 

 

Annwyl Llyr, 

IDDs 

Ysgrifennaf atat fel Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr amgylchedd a seilwaith gyda chais i’r 

Pwyllgor gynnal ymchwiliad i fewn i’r IDDs yng Nghymru. 

Yng ngwyneb yr argyfwng ariannol a’r argyfwng hinsawdd yr ydym yn byw drwyddi ar hyn o bryd 

mae’n dod yn gynyddol amlwg nad ydy’r drefn IDD presennol yn medru parhau. Mae’n amhosib 

gwneud y gwaith angenrheidiol i fewn i gynnal a chadw y tiroedd isel yma rhag cael eu hawlio gan y 

mor yng ngwyneb y anghenion eraill sydd yn wynebu CNC. Mae yna beryg go iawn i ni golli peth o 

diroedd mwyaf ffrwythlon a chynhyrchiol Cymru dros y degawdau nesaf os nad oes yna newid yn sut 

mae CNC yn gweithredu o fewn y drefn IDD. 

Gan mai penderfyniad gwleidyddol ydy cyfeiriad gwaith CNC, yna dim ond penderfyniad gwleidyddol 

all ganfod datrysiad i’r heriau sydd yn wynebu ardaloedd IDD. 

Ysgrifenais yn wreiddiol at y Pwyllgor ETRA gan feddwl mai nhw oedd y pwyllgor mwyaf addas, ond 

bu iddyn nhw awgrymu mai’r Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd oedd orau. Serch hynny, mae’r Cadeirydd 

Paul Davies wedi ymrwymo i ysgrifennu at y cyrff perthnasol i ofyn am farn ar y mater. 

Gwn fod eich blaen raglen waith yn llawn ac felly ei fod am fod yn anodd iawn cynnal ymchwiliad dyfn 

i’r peth. Felly, efallai yr hoffai’r Pwyllgor gynnal ymchwiliad byr er mwyn cael gwell dealltwriaeth o’r 

materion cyn penderfynu mynd ymlaen ymhellach. 

Diolch am eich amser a gobeithio y gwnaiff y Pwyllgor ystyried fy nghais yn ffafriol. 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

Mabon ap Gwynfor 
Aelod o’r Senedd dros  
Ddwyfor Meirionnydd 
— 
Member of the Senedd for 
Dwyfor Meirionnydd 
 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

mabon.ap.gwynfor@senedd.cymru 
https://senedd.cymru/pobl/mabon-ap-gwynfor-as/ 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
mabon.ap.gwynfor@senedd.wales 

https://senedd.wales/people/mabon-ap-gwynfor-ms/ 
 

0300 200 6565 

@mabon.ap 

@mabonapgwynfor 

/mabonplaidcymru 

3a Bank Place 

Porthmadog 

LL49 9AA 

0300 200 7175 

Tudalen y pecyn 295



 

 

 

Mabon ap Gwynfor AS 

Tudalen y pecyn 296



Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru 
                Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth Gymraeg a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni 
fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
Llyr Gruffydd AS 
Cadeirydd  
Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd 
Caerdydd 
CF99 1SN 
 
SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru  

 
29 Chwefror 2024 

 
 
 
Annwyl Llyr, 
 
 
Rheoliadau'r Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig (Dirymu a Darpariaeth Ganlyniadol) 
2024 
 
 
Hoffwn hysbysu'r Pwyllgor o'r bwriad i gydsynio i Lywodraeth y DU wneud a gosod 
Rheoliadau'r Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig (Dirymu a Darpariaeth Ganlyniadol) 2024 ("y 
Rheoliadau"). Gwneir y Rheoliadau gan ddefnyddio pwerau yn Adran 14 o Ddeddf Cyfraith yr 
UE a Ddargedwir (Dirymu a Diwygio) ("Deddf REUL"). 
 
Bydd y Rheoliadau'n dirymu deddfwriaeth a nodwyd yn ddiangen ar ôl i'r DU ymadael â'r UE, 
na chafodd ei chynnwys yn Atodlen 1 i Ddeddf REUL.  Ni fydd dirymu'r offerynnau hyn yn 
cael unrhyw effaith ar bolisi yng Nghymru a bydd yn lleihau cymhlethdod diangen yn y llyfr 
statud. 
 
Er mai egwyddor gyffredinol Llywodraeth Cymru yw y dylai'r gyfraith sy'n ymwneud â materion 
datganoledig gael ei gwneud a'i diwygio yng Nghymru, y tro hwn, ystyrir ei bod yn briodol i 
Lywodraeth y DU ddeddfu ar lefel Prydain Fawr.  Byddai'r dull hwn yn sicrhau bod 
deddfwriaeth ddiangen yn cael ei dirymu'n gyfartal ar draws y cenhedloedd yr oeddent yn 
gymwys iddynt.  
 
Bydd y Rheoliadau yn cael eu gosod gerbron Senedd y DU ar 11 Mawrth.   
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 297

Eitem 5.5

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Lesley.Griffiths@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Lesley.Griffiths@gov.wales
mailto:SeneddClimate@senedd.wales


Rwyf wedi ysgrifennu'n debyg at Huw Irranca-Davies AS, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a'r Cyfansoddiad a Paul Davies AS, Cadeirydd Pwyllgor yr 
Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig. 
 
Yn gywir,  
 

 
Lesley Griffiths AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd 
Minister for Rural Affairs and North Wales, and Trefnydd 

Tudalen y pecyn 298



1 
 

Ymateb i adroddiad y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith ar 
ei waith Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft y Llywodraeth 2024 – 25 
 

Tabl Cynnwys 
Cludiant ................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Bioamrywiaeth ...................................................................................................................................... 10 

Morol..................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Datgarboneiddio Tai.............................................................................................................................. 15 

Ynni Adnewyddadwy............................................................................................................................. 19 

Gwastraff............................................................................................................................................... 22 

Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru ........................................................................................................................ 25 

Dŵr a Llifogydd ..................................................................................................................................... 27 

Llywodraethu Amgylcheddol ................................................................................................................ 29 

 

 
 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 299

Eitem 5.6



2 
 

Cludiant 
 
Argymhelliad 1   
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro'r anghysondeb rhwng y dystiolaeth ysgrifenedig o £150 
miliwn a ail-ddyrannwyd a Llinell Wariant Cyllideb (BEL) refeniw Trafnidiaeth Cymru 
(TrC) o £110.8 miliwn, sy'n nodi lle mae'r tua £40 yn cael ei gadw, a sut / pryd y caiff 
ei ddefnyddio. 
 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Roedd amcangyfrif cost cychwynnol TrC a dderbyniwyd yr haf diwethaf yn dangos 
bwlch gyda chyllideb ddangosol gyhoeddedig y llynedd o tua £150m. Yn sgil her y 
gyllideb ar draws Llywodraeth Cymru, rydym wedi gweithio'n agos gyda TrC i reoli'r 
bwlch hwn, gan gynnwys adolygiad o gostau a refeniw sydd wedi arwain at ostyngiad 
yn eu gofynion cyllidebol o £11m. Hefyd, rydym yn disgwyl i refeniw ychwanegol o 
incwm arall y flwyddyn nesaf gynyddu tua £19m gan gynnwys newid yn y broses o 
ddyrannu ac amcangyfri'r cyllid gan Lywodraeth y DU i weithredu, cynnal ac 
adnewyddu seilwaith Llinellau Craidd y Cymoedd y cytunwyd arno adeg trosglwyddo 
perchnogaeth y seilwaith hwn. Ni fydd gwerth terfynol y ffrydiau incwm hyn yn hysbys 
tan y flwyddyn ariannol nesaf. Fodd bynnag, o ystyried yr ansicrwydd a'r pwysau 
cyllidebol parhaus, rydym yn parhau i weithio gyda TrC i nodi opsiynau i leihau 
costau ymhellach a chynyddu refeniw dros y misoedd nesaf. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 2 
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog amlinellu cynllun clir a manwl, gan gynnwys amserlenni, ar gyfer 
lleihau'r bwlch rhwng costau rheilffyrdd a refeniw tocynnau trên yng nghyd-destun 
newid ym mhatrymau defnydd teithwyr a chwyddiant uchel. Dylai’r cynllun hwn nodi 
pryd fydd dim angen cyllid ychwanegol i TrC mwyach.  
 
Ymateb: Gwrthod 
 
Mae'n debygol y bydd gwasanaethau rheilffyrdd yng Nghymru yn ddibynnol ar lefel o 
arian cyhoeddus bob amser, ond mae'n flaenoriaeth i Lywodraeth Cymru a 
Trafnidiaeth Cymru leihau'r lefel hon o gymhorthdal i lefel gynaliadwy. Mae refeniw 
defnydd a theithwyr yn gwella gyda gwasanaethau hirbell yn brysurach na'r 
cyfartaleddau cyn y pandemig, gyda dydd Sul yn benodol yn gweld twf. Mae hyn yn 
dechrau lleihau'r bwlch rhwng costau ac incwm, ac rydym yn gweithio'n agos gyda 
Trafnidiaeth Cymru hefyd ar gyfres o fesurau fforddiadwyedd rheilffyrdd i leihau'r 
bwlch ymhellach. 
 

Ar hyn o bryd nid yw'n bosibl pennu dyddiad pan na fydd angen cyllid ychwanegol 
uwchlaw'r lefel cymhorthdal a bennwyd yn 2018. Mae hyn oherwydd y newid parhaus 
yn y galw gan deithwyr a'r defnydd o wasanaethau rheilffyrdd o'i gymharu â'r rhai y 
cynlluniwyd ar eu cyfer yn 2018. Bydd y mesurau fforddiadwyedd rheilffyrdd y mae 
Trafnidiaeth Cymru yn eu cyflawni yn rhan o'u cynllun busnes y byddwn yn eu 
monitro trwy brosesau llywodraethu presennol a mecanweithiau gwell. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 300



3 
 

Argymhelliad 3.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog roi sicrwydd bod mesurau rheoli priodol ar waith i reoli’r gwaith o 
gyflawni’r prosiect Metro a darparu cerbydau newydd.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 

Gellir sicrhau'r pwyllgor bod sawl haen o lywodraethu yn goruchwylio Rhaglen 
Trawsnewid Llinellau Craidd y Cymoedd, rhaglen ehangach Metro De Cymru, a'n 
buddsoddiad mewn cerbydau. Mae swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru yn trafod 
manylion cynlluniau drwy ymgysylltu'n uniongyrchol â thimau cyflawni, yn ogystal â 
goruchwyliaeth strategol arferol ar lefel uwch. 
 

Mae Trafnidiaeth Cymru’n defnyddio system adrodd wedi'i datblygu'n benodol sy'n 
darparu gwybodaeth am ddiogelwch, cost, rhaglen, perfformiad a risg yn 
uniongyrchol o'r prosiectau cyflawni i gynorthwyo cyfarwyddwyr i gyflawni 
adolygiadau misol. Caiff gwaith integreiddio cymhleth y rhaglen peirianneg a 
chyflenwi rhwng seilwaith newydd a phrofion cerbydau newydd ei fonitro'n ddyddiol 
gyda nifer o sefydliadau a disgyblaethau'n cyfrannu, er mwyn sicrhau bod unrhyw 
heriau yn y rhaglen cyflwyno fflyd yn cael eu datrys yn gyflym. 
 
Rydym wedi gweithio'n galed gyda Trafnidiaeth Cymru i gynyddu atebolrwydd, craffu, 
ac yn bwysig tryloywder. Mae fforymau ac adroddiadau newydd wedi'u cyflwyno i 
rannu a chyhoeddi gwybodaeth. Mae hyn yn hollbwysig yng nghyd-destun 
cyfrifoldebau a chyllidebau cynyddol. 
 

Rydym yn dechrau ar gamau olaf gwaith trawsnewid Llinellau Craidd y Cymoedd 
erbyn hyn, ac mae'r rhan fwyaf o'r cerbydau newydd wedi'u cyflenwi bellach. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 4.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog ddiweddaru'r Pwyllgor ar gyflwyno cerbydau, gan gynnwys 
cyfanswm y trenau o bob math sydd wedi’u harchebu, lle bydd pob un yn 
gweithredu, faint sydd wedi'u darparu a'r cynllun ar gyfer cyflwyno’r gweddill gam 
wrth gam.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  

Mae'r tabl isod yn crynhoi'r sefyllfa bresennol o ran y cerbydau a archebwyd ar gyfer 
y fasnachfraint bresennol: 

Tudalen y pecyn 301



4 
 

 

Mae cerbydau Mark 4 a Dosbarth 197 yn drenau rhyngranbarthol sy'n rhedeg ar y 
gwasanaethau prif linell pellach. Mae modd defnyddio trenau Dosbarth 197 ar 
unrhyw un o wasanaethau Cymru a'r Gororau a byddant i gyd ar gael i wasanaethu 
erbyn canol 2025. Ar hyn o bryd, maen nhw'n rhedeg ar wasanaethau 
rhyngranbarthol ac ar Linell Wrecsam-Bidston. Dim ond ar linell Wrecsam-Bidston 
mae trenau Dosbarth 230 yn rhedeg. 
 

Mae trenau Dosbarth 231 yn gweithredu ar linell Rhymni i Benarth. Bydd y rhain yn 
cael eu symud i wasanaethau ardal ehangach Metro De Cymru yn y dyfodol. Bydd 
trenau Dosbarth 756 a threnau tram Dosbarth 398 yn gweithredu ar Linellau Craidd y 
Cymoedd ac maent yn ddibynnol ar drydaneiddio uwchben. Cyflwynir hyn yn raddol o 
ganol 2024, gan ddod i ben ganol 2025. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 5.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog sicrhau bod TrC ac awdurdodau lleol yn ymgysylltu'n effeithiol â 
theithwyr a dinasyddion eraill i egluro'n well y weledigaeth o system trafnidiaeth 
gyhoeddus aml-ddull a'r broses sy'n cael ei dilyn i gyflawni hynny.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Mae Trafnidiaeth Cymru’n cefnogi Awdurdodau Lleol a Chydbwyllgorau Corfforaethol 
i ddatblygu eu Cynlluniau Datblygu Trafnidiaeth Rhanbarthol a fydd yn cyflwyno 
gweledigaeth pob rhanbarth ar gyfer cynllun trafnidiaeth integredig aml-ddull. Bydd 
hyn yn cynnwys ymgysylltu â'r holl ddinasyddion (teithwyr a rhai nad ydynt yn 
deithwyr) i ddeall eu blaenoriaethau a sut y gallwn wneud ein trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus 
mor ddiogel, hygyrch a chroesawgar â phosibl.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 6.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro pa waith sydd wedi'i wneud i asesu effaith y dyraniadau yng 
nghyllideb 2024-25 ar lefelau gwasanaeth bysiau gan ystyried y gyllideb refeniw sy’n 
wastad yn fras ac effeithiau chwyddiant.  
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 302



5 
 

Ymateb: Gwrthod  
 
Mae'n ddyletswydd gyfreithiol ar awdurdodau lleol i sicrhau cludiant priodol i 
deithwyr. Mae'r mwyafrif helaeth o awdurdodau lleol yn ategu'r cymorth refeniw gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru gyda'u cronfeydd eu hunain. Felly nid yw'n bosibl asesu effaith 
ein cyllideb ar lefelau gwasanaeth bysiau. 
 
Bydd y dyraniad cyllideb ar gyfer eleni’n golygu y bydd dros £115m yn cefnogi'r 
ddarpariaeth o wasanaethau bysiau’n uniongyrchol. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 7.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog ddarparu rhagor o wybodaeth am y newid yn y dull o ariannu 
bysiau, gan gynnwys manylion y ffrwd ariannu Ategol i Fysiau newydd a’i diben, yn 
ogystal â sut mae hyn yn wahanol i bob un o’r ffrydiau ariannu a ddaeth i ben gan 
roi’r fantais ym mhob achos.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  

Roedd hwn yn newid gweinyddol gan gyfuno llinellau cyllideb amrywiol llai. Bydd y 
newid hwn yn ein galluogi i reoli'r gyllideb mewn modd mwy dynamig. Byddaf yn fwy 
na pharod i nodi'r manylion yn dilyn cyhoeddi'r gyllideb derfynol. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 8.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog gyhoeddi canllawiau i awdurdodau lleol ar weithredu’r Grant 
Cymorth Rhwydwaith Bysiau.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Ar hyn o bryd mae swyddogion yn cwblhau canllawiau ac amodau'r Grant 
Rhwydwaith Bysiau i Awdurdodau Arweiniol eu defnyddio i sicrhau gwasanaethau 
bysiau trwy eu dyletswyddau statudol ac wrth weinyddu'r cynllun gydag awdurdodau 
lleol yn eu rhanbarth. 
Bydd yn cael ei ddarparu fel atodlenni atodol yn y llythyrau dyfarnu grant a gyhoeddir 
i Awdurdodau Arweiniol cyn i'r cynllun newydd ddechrau. 
 
Argymhelliad 9.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro'r meini prawf ar gyfer dyrannu Grant Cymorth Rhwydwaith 
Bysiau a sut y bydd yn rhyngweithio â'r Grant Cynnal Gwasanaethau Bysiau 
presennol. Dylai’r Gweinidog roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor am weithredu’r 
grant o fewn y chwe mis nesaf.  
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 303



6 
 

Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Mae swyddogion wedi cael nifer o drafodaethau gyda Chymdeithas Cydgysylltwyr 
Trafnidiaeth Cymru (ATCO) a CLlLC i benderfynu a chytuno ar ddyraniad Grant 
Rhwydwaith Bysiau ar draws pob rhanbarth a dderbyniwyd yng nghyfarfod bwrdd 
gweithredol CLlLC a gynhaliwyd ar 19 Ionawr 2024. 
 
Mae swyddogion wedi cael llawer o drafodaethau eisoes gyda rhanddeiliaid y 
diwydiant bysiau gan gynnwys cymdeithasau masnach, cynrychiolwyr trafnidiaeth 
awdurdodau lleol (ATCO) a Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru i esbonio'r 
rhyngweithio rhwng y Grant Rhwydwaith Bysiau a'r grant Cymorth Gwasanaethau 
Bysiau (BSSG) presennol. 
 
Bydd y Grant Rhwydwaith Bysiau’n cael ei gyflwyno fel mecanwaith i ariannu 
awdurdodau lleol i sicrhau gwasanaethau bysiau sy'n angenrheidiol yn gymdeithasol 
na fyddant yn cael eu darparu'n fasnachol pan ddaw'r cynllun BTF i ben ar 31 
Mawrth 2024 ac yn ychwanegol at yr hyn a ddarperir eisoes trwy’r BSSG. Bydd y 
Grant Rhwydwaith Bysiau ar waith ar gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 2024 – 2025 tra bod 
adolygiad o’r BSSG yn digwydd oherwydd cymhlethdod y cynllun, gyda'r nod o 
gyfuno'r ddau gynllun yn un o 1 Ebrill 2025, gan weithredu fel pont i fasnachfreinio. 
Bydd yn rhoi mwy o reolaeth i awdurdodau lleol gynllunio gwasanaethau bysiau yn 
eu rhanbarthau hefyd yn ogystal â dod â sefydlogrwydd i rwydweithiau bysiau ledled 
Cymru. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 10.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog ddarparu manylion am gynnydd ymdrechion trawslywodraethol i 
fynd i'r afael â'r rhwystrau trafnidiaeth y mae pobl ifanc yn eu hwynebu wrth gael 
mynediad i addysg a chyflogaeth.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae galluogi mwy o blant i gerdded, defnyddio sgwter a beicio i'r ysgol yn 
flaenoriaeth allweddol i Lywodraeth Cymru. Rhaid i bob awdurdod lleol gynllunio 
rhwydweithiau o lwybrau cerdded a beicio, ac rydym wedi gosod amod bod rhaid i 
bob ysgol gael ei gwasanaethu gan lwybrau teithio llesol. Hefyd, rydym yn annog 
awdurdodau lleol ledled Cymru i gyflwyno Strydoedd Ysgol, sy'n golygu cau ffyrdd o 
amgylch ysgolion ar ddechrau a diwedd y diwrnod ysgol. 
 
Rydym yn gwneud ffyrdd yn llefydd mwy diogel a chroesawgar i blant gerdded, 
beicio, a chwarae y tu allan, trwy osod terfynau cyflymder o 20mya yn ddiofyn ar 
strydoedd mewn ardaloedd adeiledig – ond gan roi'r gallu i Gynghorau eithrio ffyrdd. 
 
Un o brif amcanion Llwybr Newydd, Strategaeth Drafnidiaeth Llywodraeth Cymru, yw 
lleihau costau teithio cynaliadwy i bawb yng Nghymru, gan gynnwys pobl ifanc. Ar 
hyn o bryd rydym yn edrych ar amrywiaeth o opsiynau i sicrhau bod teithio ar 
drafnidiaeth gyhoeddus a dewisiadau teithio llesol yn haws ac yn fwy fforddiadwy i 
bawb yn y gymuned. Fodd bynnag, mae'r sefyllfa gyllidebol heriol yn golygu ein bod 

Tudalen y pecyn 304



7 
 

wedi gorfod blaenoriaethu cyllid i sicrhau bod gwasanaethau hanfodol yn cael eu 
cynnal gan gadw prisiau mor isel â phosibl yr un pryd. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 11. 
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor am ymdrechion i fynd i’r 
afael â materion capasiti a gallu llywodraeth leol mewn perthynas â theithio llesol. 
Dylai’r Gweinidog nodi pa gamau sy’n cael eu cymryd i annog awdurdodau lleol i 
wella cydweithredu er mwyn cynyddu capasiti.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Bydd Cydbwyllgorau Corfforaethol yn cydweithio â TrC i gynnwys eu blaenoriaethau 
Teithio Llesol yn eu Cynllun Trafnidiaeth Rhanbarthol a'u Cynllun Datblygu Strategol 
i sicrhau bod teithio llesol yn cael ei integreiddio â dulliau trafnidiaeth eraill wrth 
gynllunio a darparu gwasanaethau trafnidiaeth yn y dyfodol.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 12.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro a fydd y cyllid a ddyrannwyd ar gyfer teithio llesol yn 
ddigonol i ariannu cynlluniau arfaethedig ac, os na, pa feini prawf a ddefnyddir i 
flaenoriaethu'r cynlluniau hyn.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae'r rhan fwyaf o gyllid y Gronfa Teithio Llesol yn cael ei ddyrannu ar sail proses 
ymgeisio gystadleuol, gydag arian yn cael ei ddyfarnu i’r ceisiadau cryfaf. Cafodd y 
canllawiau ymgeisio a'r meini prawf sgorio eu rhoi i awdurdodau lleol ym mis Rhagfyr 
2023, ar ôl i awdurdodau lleol dderbyn yr allbynnau o'r offeryn blaenoriaethu llwybrau 
ym mis Hydref. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 13 
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf o fewn y chwe mis nesaf ar y 
cynnydd a wnaed wrth fwrw ymlaen â’r argymhellion gan y Grŵp Trawsbleidiol ar 
Deithio Llesol.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Byddwn yn rhannu diweddariad cyn toriad yr haf. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 14.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro a yw cyllid wedi'i ddyrannu i awdurdodau lleol ar gyfer 
hyrwyddo teithio llesol yn unol â'u dyletswyddau newydd o dan y Ddeddf Ansawdd 
Aer a Seinweddau.  

Tudalen y pecyn 305



8 
 

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Ni chafwyd dyraniad cyllid i awdurdodau lleol yn benodol ar gyfer eu dyletswyddau 
newydd o dan y Ddeddf hon, a ddaw i rym erbyn diwedd 2024 pan fydd y 
darpariaethau perthnasol yn cychwyn. Cyn hynny, byddwn yn datblygu canllawiau 
statudol, mewn ymgynghoriad ag awdurdodau lleol. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 15. 
 
Dylai'r Dirprwy Weinidog roi rhagor o fanylion am gynlluniau ar gyfer annog 
defnyddio beiciau trydan, gan gynnwys a yw cyfleoedd ariannu arloesol wedi'u 
harchwilio.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae gennym gyllid estynedig ar gyfer y prosiect E-symud a'r prosiectau 'Seeing 
cycling differently' tan ddiwedd blwyddyn ariannol 2023-24 ac mae'r ddau gynllun yn 
parhau i gasglu data monitro sy'n rhoi dealltwriaeth werthfawr am y defnydd o e-
feiciau ac e-feiciau cargo. Mae Sustrans, sy'n cyflwyno prosiect E-symud, yn cynnal 
trafodaethau gyda sefydliadau amrywiol i drafod yr opsiynau gorau i alluogi defnydd 
buddiol parhaus o feiciau fflyd. Bu'n rhaid gohirio gwaith a gynlluniwyd ar sefydlu 
cynllun benthyciad prynu e-feiciau di-log, gan ddefnyddio Cyfalaf Trafodiadau 
Ariannol oherwydd pwysau cyllidebol a olygai na ellid ariannu costau gweinyddu'r 
cynllun. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 16.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog ddarparu dadansoddiad o'r Llinell Wariant Cyllideb Cyfalaf Bysiau 
a chyllid teithio llesol, gan gynnwys gwariant y pen. Gofynnwn i gyfres pum mlynedd 
gael ei darparu ar gyfer pob un fel yn y blynyddoedd diwethaf.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Byddwn yn darparu dadansoddiad o'r cyllid cyfalaf Teithio Llesol ym mis Mai 2024. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 17.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog egluro sut y caiff yr hierarchaeth trafnidiaeth gynaliadwy ei 
adlewyrchu yn nyraniadau’r gyllideb, o ran proses y gyllideb a’r lefelau cyllido 
penodol a ddyrennir i bob lefel.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Mae Strategaeth Trafnidiaeth Cymru’n blaenoriaethu gwneud y defnydd gorau o'r 
seilwaith trafnidiaeth presennol drwy ei gynnal a'i reoli'n dda a'i addasu i newid yn yr 
hinsawdd a dewisiadau trafnidiaeth mwy cynaliadwy. Pan fydd angen seilwaith 

Tudalen y pecyn 306



9 
 

newydd, byddwn yn rhoi blaenoriaeth i ymyriadau sy'n cefnogi cerdded a beicio, 
trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus a cherbydau allyriadau isel iawn dros gerbydau modur preifat 
eraill. 
 
Defnyddir yr hierarchaeth i lywio penderfyniadau ar y prosiectau y mae Llywodraeth 
Cymru’n eu datblygu neu’n eu cefnogi. Nid yw hyn yn golygu o reidrwydd y bydd 
cyllid yn cael ei ddyrannu i gyd-fynd â'r hierarchaeth oherwydd bod gan ymyriadau 
gwahanol gostau gwahanol. Er enghraifft, gall un prosiect buddsoddiad rheilffyrdd 
newydd gostio sawl gwaith mwy na’r hyn mae'n ei gostio i gynnal a chadw’r seilwaith 
presennol. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 307



10 
 

Bioamrywiaeth 
 

Argymhelliad 18.  
 
Pe bai amgylchiadau ariannol Llywodraeth Cymru yn gwella, dylai'r Gweinidog 
ystyried cynyddu'r dyraniad yn y gyllideb ar gyfer 2024-25 i ehangu a chynyddu’r 
Rhaglen Rhwydweithiau Natur.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Pe bai cyllid ychwanegol ar gael, byddaf yn ystyried cynyddu'r dyraniad cyllideb ar 
gyfer y Rhaglen Rhwydweithiau Natur yn unol ag argymhelliad yr archwiliad dwfn 
bioamrywiaeth i gynyddu maint a chyflymder y ddarpariaeth i helpu i gyrraedd ein 
targed 30x30. 
 
O ystyried y pwysau ar y pwrs cyhoeddus, byddwn yn parhau i archwilio'r cyfleoedd 
am arian ychwanegol o ffynonellau eraill i gefnogi ein huchelgeisiau adfer natur. 
 
Byddwn yn ceisio alinio buddsoddiad cyfalaf hefyd lle mae canlyniadau ar y cyd 
megis cynnig dalgylch Teifi sydd â'r potensial i gyflawni canlyniadau lluosog. 
  
 

Argymhelliad 19.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog ymrwymo i sicrhau bod y Cynllun Gweithredu Adfer Natur 
diwygiedig yn cael ei gostio i gefnogi buddsoddiad cyhoeddus strategol ym myd 
natur, gwella tryloywder a chefnogi gwaith craffu.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor  
 
Mae datblygu camau gweithredu hirdymor wedi’u costio yn heriol o ystyried pwysau 
prisiau oherwydd chwyddiant. Fodd bynnag, rwy'n barod i ystyried costio'r camau 
gweithredu tymor byr strategol.  
  
Fodd bynnag, bydd y cynllun yn dangos sut y bydd 'Tîm Cymru' yn cymryd camau ar 
y cyd i fynd i'r afael â'r blaenoriaethau a gweithredoedd y cynllun, a bydd yn cael ei 
adolygu'n rheolaidd fel rhan o'r trefniadau llywodraethu. 
 
Ochr yn ochr â'r gwaith datblygu targedau bioamrywiaeth byddwn yn adnewyddu'r 
Cynllun Gweithredu Adfer Natur i adlewyrchu'r targedau sy'n dod i’r amlwg a byddwn 
yn ffurfio ein strategaeth a'n cynllun gweithredu mewn ymateb i'r targedau y 
cytunwyd arnynt fel rhan o'r Fframwaith Bioamrywiaeth Byd-eang. Hefyd, bydd 
cyfres o ddangosyddion yn cael eu datblygu i fonitro cynnydd. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 308



11 
 

Argymhelliad 20.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog egluro sut y mae’n gweithio ar y cyd â’r Gweinidog dros Faterion 
Gwledig i sicrhau’r effaith orau bosibl o arian cyfyngedig ar gyfer bioamrywiaeth, gan 
gynnwys drwy’r Cynllun Datblygu Cynaliadwy arfaethedig.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Rwy'n gweithio'n agos gyda chydweithwyr yn y cabinet gan gynnwys y Gweinidog 
Materion Gwledig i sicrhau bod bioamrywiaeth yn cael ei integreiddio i 
benderfyniadau ar draws y cabinet i sicrhau ein bod yn cyflawni ein hymrwymiad yn 
y Rhaglen Lywodraethu i fynd i'r afael â'r argyfyngau hinsawdd a natur. 
 
Bydd y Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy yn allweddol wrth gyflawni ein huchelgeisiau 
mewn perthynas ag argyfwng 30x30 a natur, yn enwedig trwy elfennau dewisol a 
chydweithredol. Rydym wedi cynnwys cynigion yn Haen Gyffredinol y Cynllun 
Ffermio Cynaliadwy y bydd 10% o bob fferm yn cael ei rheoli fel cynefin a fydd o 
fudd i amrywiaeth eang o rywogaethau hefyd.  
 
Ar ôl i'r ymgynghoriad presennol ddod i ben, byddaf i a swyddogion yn parhau i 
weithio'n agos gyda'r Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a chydweithwyr gan gynnwys 
CNC i sicrhau bod y Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy’n darparu ar gyfer bioamrywiaeth 
pan gaiff ei lansio yn 2025 a thrwy'r cyfnod pontio wrth i'r cynllun ddatblygu 
ymhellach. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 21. 
 
O fewn chwe mis i gyhoeddi'r adroddiad hwn, dylai'r Gweinidog adrodd i'r Pwyllgor ar 
y cynnydd a wnaed tuag at ddatblygu model cyllid arloesol a chynaliadwy i sicrhau 
adferiad natur. Dylai hyn gynnwys y drafft egwyddorion arweiniol ar gyfer buddsoddi 
preifat cyfrifol i gefnogi adferiad byd natur.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Byddaf yn adrodd i'r Pwyllgor ar y cynnydd a wnaed tuag at ddatblygu model cyflawni 
cynaliadwy ar gyfer adfer byd natur mewn chwe mis, gan gynnwys yr egwyddorion 
drafft. Bydd cynyddu maint a chyflymder y camau gweithredu i fynd i'r afael â cholli 
bioamrywiaeth a chyrraedd nodau byd-eang erbyn 2030 yn gofyn am arallgyfeirio 
cyllid sydd ar gael. Byddaf yn parhau i weithio gyda rhanddeiliaid i nodi cyfleoedd am 
gyllid ychwanegol sy'n osgoi gwyrddgalchu, ac sy'n adlewyrchu marchnad drachywir 
wedi'i harwain gan werthoedd, ar gyfer buddsoddiad cyfrifol sy'n helpu i sicrhau 
llesiant cadarnhaol i Gymru yn gymdeithasol, economaidd, amgylcheddol a 
diwylliannol. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 22.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 309



12 
 

Dylai'r Gweinidog ymrwymo i sicrhau bod y model cyllid /arloesol a chynaliadwy yn 
cael ei gwblhau cyn y broses o gynllunio’r gyllideb ar gyfer 2025-26 a’i defnyddio i 
lywio penderfyniadau gwariant.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor   
 
Mae'r model darparu cynaliadwy yn rhan bwysig o gynyddu cyflymder y ddarpariaeth 
ar gyfer adfer natur, fodd bynnag, ei ffocws yn bennaf yw edrych ar gyllid 
ychwanegol i'r hyn a ddarperir gan y sector cyhoeddus. Fodd bynnag, mae fy 
swyddogion, ochr yn ochr â'r sector amgylcheddol, wedi bod yn gweithio gyda 
Thrysorlys Cymru a'r Grŵp Cynghori ar Wella Busnes i sicrhau bod bioamrywiaeth 
wedi'i chynnwys yng Nghynllun Gwella Busnes diweddaraf Trysorlys Cymru dan 
elfen Atal ochr yn ochr â newid hinsawdd. Bydd hyn yn sicrhau bod bioamrywiaeth 
wedi'i hintegreiddio'n well i waith Cynllunio Cyllideb a'i defnyddio i lywio 
penderfyniadau gwariant.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 23.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro faint o gyllid sydd wedi'i ddyrannu yng nghyllideb ddrafft 
2024-25 i gefnogi'r gwaith o gyflawni'r argymhellion a'r camau gweithredu Plymio 
Dwfn Bioamrywiaeth, ac ymrwymo i gyhoeddi'r ail ddiweddariad bob dwy flynedd ar 
gynnydd tuag at gyflawni'r argymhellion a'r camau gweithredu cyn diwedd mis 
Chwefror 2024.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn   
 
Mae'n anodd darparu dyraniad penodol ond dyrannwyd tua £19m i barhau i gyflawni 
mentrau sy'n cefnogi'r gwaith o gyflawni'r argymhellion megis y Rhwydweithiau 
Natur, Ardal Warchodedig Forol a Rhaglenni Gweithredu Mawndiroedd 
Cenedlaethol, prosiectau LIFE a Natur am Byth. Rydym wedi darparu cyllid ar gyfer 
Partneriaethau Natur Lleol a thrwy'r cynllun Adeiladu Capasiti mewn Cymunedau 
Arfordirol hefyd i gefnogi gweithredu lleol. 
 
Mae'r cyllid sy'n cael ei ddyrannu i adrannau eraill yn cefnogi'r gwaith o gyflawni'r 
argymhellion hefyd, er enghraifft drwy Lleoedd Lleol ar gyfer Natur a chymorth i 
ffermwyr drwy gynllun Cynefin Cymru.  
   
Dyrannwyd £500k arall i barhau â gwaith y tasglu bioamrywiaeth sydd â’r nod o 
gydlynu ymrwymiad y Rhaglen Lywodraethu o brif-ffrydio penderfyniadau ar draws y 
llywodraeth a chyda phartneriaid er budd bioamrywiaeth. 
 
Nid yw rhai o'r argymhellion wedi gofyn am ddyrannu cyllid penodol iddynt ond 
maent yn cael eu datblygu. Er enghraifft, datblygu targedau cyfreithiol rwymol ar 
gyfer bioamrywiaeth ac adnewyddu'r Cynllun Gweithredu Adfer Natur a gweithredu'r 
amddiffyniad polisi a roddir i SoDdGA drwy Bolisi Cynllunio Cymru.  
 
Rwyf wedi ymrwymo i gyhoeddi'r ail ddiweddariad bob dwy flynedd, fodd bynnag, 
oherwydd pwysau adnoddau ar ddatblygu a chyhoeddi'r papur gwyn ar dargedau, 
bydd yn cael ei gyhoeddi ym mis Mawrth 2024 yn awr. 

Tudalen y pecyn 310



13 
 

Morol 
 
Argymhelliad 24.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog dawelu meddyliau'r Pwyllgor na fydd y gostyngiad mewn cyllid 
refeniw o £1.9 miliwn i £1.7 miliwn yn cael effaith andwyol ar feysydd polisi morol 
hanfodol, yn enwedig prosiectau parhaus fel y prosiect "Asesu gweithgareddau 
pysgota Cymru mewn Ardaloedd Morol Gwarchodedig."  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae cyllid ar draws rhaglenni morol wedi cael ei flaenoriaethu i sicrhau nad yw'r 
dyraniad cyllideb is eleni yn effeithio ar y ddarpariaeth hanfodol ar gyfer y rhaglenni 
presennol. Gallaf gadarnhau bod cyllid, sy'n cyfateb i gyllid y llynedd, wedi'i 
ddyrannu unwaith eto i brosiect Asesu Gweithgareddau Pysgota Cymru, ar gyfer y 
rownd nesaf o asesiadau. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 25  
  
Dylai’r Gweinidog ddarparu manylion am ffrydiau ariannu amgen a chyfleoedd 
partneriaeth sy’n cael eu harchwilio i liniaru effaith y gostyngiad o £250,000 yn y 
gyllideb. Dylai hyn gynnwys strategaethau penodol ar gyfer ariannu prosiectau mewn 
meysydd hanfodol fel cadwraeth morwellt.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn   
 
Mae mecanweithiau cyllido amgen ar gael gan gynnwys y Gronfa Rhwydweithiau 
Natur sy'n ceisio cynigion i wella cyflwr y rhwydwaith o Ardaloedd Morol 
Gwarchodedig. Yn yr un modd mae Cynllun Grant Rheoli Ardaloedd Morol 
Gwarchodedig yn fecanwaith sy'n gwahodd cynigion sy'n gwella cadernid a 
rheolaeth y rhwydwaith. Mae rhanddeiliaid allweddol sy'n ymwneud â chadwraeth 
morwellt wedi cael gwybod am y cynlluniau hyn. 
Ar ben hynny, mae Partneriaeth Moroedd ac Arfordiroedd Cymru’n datblygu 
mecanwaith ariannu gwirfoddol, Cronfa Cadernid a Gwella Ecosystemau Naturiol 
Cymru (MARINE) i gefnogi gweithredoedd ecolegol ac economaidd-gymdeithasol i 
wella cadernid yr amgylchedd morol. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 26.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog ailadrodd yr ymrwymiad i’r rhaglen dynodi Parth Cadwraeth Morol 
(MCZ) a chadarnhau na fydd y dyraniadau diweddaraf yn y gyllideb yn rhwystro 
cynnydd yr ymgynghoriad ffurfiol ar safleoedd Parth Cadwraeth Morol arfaethedig 
sydd wedi’i drefnu ar gyfer Gwanwyn 2024.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Rwy'n parhau i ymrwymo i gyflawni'r rhaglen dynodi Parth Cadwraeth Morol. Mae 
swyddogion yn parhau i ddatblygu ac asesu argymhellion ar gyfer safleoedd posibl 

Tudalen y pecyn 311



14 
 

yn y dyfodol a fydd yn mynd i'r afael â'r diffygion mewn cynefinoedd yn ein 
rhwydwaith. Ni fydd dyraniadau'r gyllideb yn effeithio ar y prosiect hwn, fodd bynnag, 
mae amserlenni ar gyfer ymgynghori wedi'u gohirio tan y gaeaf eleni. 
 
Argymhelliad 27.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog ddarparu amserlen glir a manwl ar gyfer cyflawni asesiadau effaith 
rheoleiddiol a phenderfyniadau lleoliad safle ar gyfer cwblhau'r rhwydwaith 
Ardaloedd Morol Gwarchodedig (MPA).  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Bydd gwahoddiad i dendro’n cael ei ryddhau'r mis hwn i gyflwyno asesiad effaith 
rheoleiddiol ar gyfer safleoedd arfaethedig. Bydd yr asesiad hwn yn rhan hollbwysig 
o'r argymhellion terfynol ar gyfer y safleoedd arfaethedig i'w cyflwyno ar gyfer 
ymgynghoriad yn ystod y gaeaf eleni. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 28.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro sut y mae'n gweithio ar y cyd â'r Gweinidog dros Faterion 
Gwledig i sicrhau'r effaith gorau posibl o arian cyfyngedig ar gyfer polisïau morol, yn 
enwedig drwy ddyraniadau ar gyfer pysgodfeydd a materion cysylltiedig.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Rwyf wedi cydweithio'n agos â'r Gweinidog Materion Gwledig i wneud y mwyaf o 
effaith cyllid pysgodfeydd ar yr amgylchedd morol. Mae hyn yn cynnwys Cynllun 
Morol a Physgodfeydd Cymru sy'n darparu cyllid ar gyfer pysgodfeydd a'r 
amgylchedd morol. Er enghraifft, mae'r Gronfa Adeiladu Capasiti mewn Cymunedau 
Arfordirol fel rhan o'r cynllun hwn yn darparu tua £1m er mwyn helpu i gynnwys 
cymunedau lleol wrth reoli'r amgylchedd morol. 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 312



15 
 

Datgarboneiddio Tai 
 
 
Argymhelliad 29.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro'r canlyniadau disgwyliedig o'r buddsoddiad cyfalaf o £35m 
yn y Rhaglen Cartrefi Cynnes ar gyfer 2024-25, gan gynnwys amcanestyniad o nifer 
y cartrefi a fydd yn elwa ar fesurau effeithlonrwydd ynni.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Y dyraniad cyllideb ar gyfer y Rhaglen Cartrefi Cynnes yn 2024-25 yw £30m ar gyfer 
y cynllun newydd sy'n seiliedig ar alw a £5m o grantiau i awdurdodau lleol ar gyfer 
gwaith adfer sy'n gysylltiedig â chynlluniau hanesyddol. Bydd y £30m yn ein helpu i 
gyflawni dau amcan y cynllun o fynd i'r afael â thlodi tanwydd a'r argyfwng hinsawdd 
trwy gynorthwyo'r rhai sydd leiaf abl i dalu i ymateb i'r argyfwng costau byw a sicrhau 
trosglwyddiad cyfiawn a fforddiadwy i gartrefi carbon isel. Bydd nifer y cartrefi sy'n 
cael eu trin yn dibynnu ar y cymysgedd o eiddo y mae ymgeiswyr yn eu cyflwyno i 
gael cymorth ac felly gymhlethdod y mesurau a argymhellir. Fodd bynnag, rydym yn 
amcangyfrif y bydd 1,500 o aelwydydd incwm isel yn elwa bob blwyddyn.  
 
Bydd canlyniadau cadarnhaol sylweddol i unigolion oherwydd y rhaglen hon. Rydym 
yn ceisio cyfanswm o £45 miliwn o ostyngiad mewn biliau ynni dros oes y rhaglen. 
Rhagwelir hefyd y bydd y gwelliannau effeithlonrwydd ynni’n galluogi aelwydydd 
mewn tlodi tanwydd i wresogi eu cartrefi i lefel fwy cyfforddus, ac yn ogystal â chysur 
thermol, bydd cartrefi cynhesach a sychach yn dod â manteision iechyd i 
breswylwyr.  
 
Hefyd, rydym yn disgwyl gweld manteision sylweddol i gymdeithas oherwydd y 
gostyngiad mewn allyriadau carbon, wedi'i fodelu ar dros 2 filiwn tunnell dros oes y 
rhaglen. Bydd gosodwyr a gweithgynhyrchwyr technolegau carbon isel ar eu hennill 
hefyd, gan fod y contract gyda'r asiant cyflenwi yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i ddefnyddio 
gosodwyr sydd wedi'u lleoli yng Nghymru. Bydd hyn yn dod â mwy o incwm i'r 
crefftwyr lleol hyn a bydd yn cynhyrchu'r angen am fwy o weithwyr medrus yn y 
busnesau hyn. Mae'r refeniw ychwanegol hwn ar gyfer y crefftwyr lleol yn debygol o 
gael ei wario'n lleol, gan ledaenu effeithiau cadarnhaol y cynllun ymhellach. Bydd 
cefnogi gosod technolegau carbon isel yn adeiladu'r gadwyn gyflenwi a fydd yn 
hollbwysig wrth drosi'n ehangach i economi carbon isel.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 30.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog ddarparu amserlen ddangosol ar gyfer datblygu cynllun wedi'i 
gostio'n llawn ar gyfer datgarboneiddio stoc tai cymdeithasol presennol.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor 
 
Gwnaed cynnydd o dan y Rhaglen Ôl-osod er mwyn Optimeiddio (ORP), i ddeall sut 
i ôl-osod stoc tai cymdeithasol Cymru yn y ffordd fwyaf effeithlon a chost-effeithiol. 
Fodd bynnag, mae darparu cost gywir yn heriol gan fod tai cymdeithasol yng 

Tudalen y pecyn 313



16 
 

Nghymru yn amrywiol ac felly byddai'n naïf defnyddio dull un maint i bawb. Gan 
adeiladu ar y cynnydd o'r ORP, lansiwyd Safon Ansawdd Tai Cymru 2023 fis Hydref 
diwethaf gyda gofynion ychwanegol i bob landlord cymdeithasol yng Nghymru 
gynnal Asesiadau Stoc Cyfan a chreu Llwybrau Targedau Ynni ar gyfer pob cartref 
erbyn 31 Mawrth 2027. Cyflwynwyd hyn i ddarparu dealltwriaeth fwy cywir o'r gwaith 
i'w gwblhau i ddatgarboneiddio'r stoc bresennol o dai cymdeithasol a meithrin dull 
wedi'i gostio a'i gynllunio er mwyn i’r holl dai cymdeithasol presennol fodloni categori 
‘A’ y Dystysgrif Perfformiad Ynni. 
 
Mae'r anhawster o ran darparu darlun cywir o gostau wedi'i waethygu gan yr 
anawsterau mae landlordiaid cymdeithasol yn eu cael wrth gaffael cyflenwyr 
cynhyrchion a gwasanaethau addas yn enwedig y rhai sydd wedi'u hachredu i'r 
safonau priodol. Trwy ORP, rydym yn gweithio gyda landlordiaid cymdeithasol ar hyn 
o bryd i ddeall gwir gostau, rhwyddineb mynediad cadwyni cyflenwi ac argaeledd 
gweithwyr proffesiynol medrus i ymgymryd â'r gwaith.  
 
Er mwyn deall maint yr her, mae angen deall ac ystyried pob ongl, gan gynnwys 
gallu landlordiaid i gael gafael ar gyllid i helpu i gyflawni'r gwaith. Dim ond rhan o'r 
ateb datgarboneiddio tai cymdeithasol fydd ymyrraeth Llywodraeth Cymru. Gan 
weithio mewn partneriaeth â nifer o awdurdodau lleol a landlordiaid cymdeithasol 
cofrestredig, mae grŵp gorchwyl a gorffen yn archwilio'r opsiynau cyllido sydd ar 
gael i landlordiaid cymdeithasol, gan gynnwys modelau ariannol, opsiynau treialu a 
rhannu gwybodaeth. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 31.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor ar y canlynol: Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft 
Llywodraeth Cymru 2023-24 

• canfyddiadau'r adolygiad o ddosbarthiad cyllid y Rhaglen Ôl-osod er mwyn 
Optimeiddio; a'r  

• cynnydd tuag at gytuno ar ddull ariannu hirdymor i gefnogi’r sector tai 
cymdeithasol i ddatgarboneiddio.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae adborth cynnar gan landlordiaid cymdeithasol a swyddogion Llywodraeth 
Cymru am weithrediad yr iteriad presennol o'r Rhaglen Ôl-osod er mwyn Optimeiddio 
(ORP) yn gadarnhaol. Yn benodol, y ffaith ei bod yn hyrwyddo cydraddoldeb a 
chynwysoldeb yn enwedig ers y symud i system seiliedig ar stoc yn hytrach na 
phroses gynnig gystadleuol. 
Mae tystiolaeth ragarweiniol yn awgrymu bod llawer o'r landlordiaid cymdeithasol 
hynny a oedd ar ddechrau eu taith datgarboneiddio ar ddechrau ORP wedi cyflymu i 
lefelau tebyg ac ar adegau yn debyg i'r rhai sydd wedi bod ar y siwrnai am gyfnod 
hwy.  
Mae swyddogion yn parhau i asesu'r cylch presennol o ORP, drwy'r mecanwaith 
dosbarthu diwygiedig ac yn ystyried dulliau i wella dosbarthiad cronfeydd ym 
mlwyddyn ariannol 24-25 yn benodol er mwyn gallu dosbarthu arian mor gynnar â 
phosibl yn y flwyddyn.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 314



17 
 

Bydd swyddogion yn dechrau adolygu'r canlyniadau’n fanwl ym mlwyddyn ariannol 
24-25. Mae'r tîm wedi casglu cryn dipyn o ddata meintiol ac ansoddol hyd yma, ac yn 
parhau i wneud hynny. Dylai'r wybodaeth hon osod sylfaen gadarn i ddeall yr hyn 
sydd ei angen nesaf a phan gaiff ei chyfuno â'r Trywydd ar gyfer Datgarboneiddio 
Preswyl sy'n cael ei ddrafftio gan y Grŵp Gweithredu Datgarboneiddio dylai helpu i 
osod strategaeth glir a ffordd ymlaen.  
 
Lansiwyd Hwb Carbon Sero Net (https://zerocarbonhwb.cymru/) yn ddiweddar sy'n 
cynnwys ffrwd waith cyllid bwrpasol i helpu i ddeall a llywio dulliau cyllido posibl ar 
gyfer datgarboneiddio'r sector tai cymdeithasol. Dylai hyn, ynghyd â'r grŵp gorchwyl 
a gorffen a grybwyllwyd uchod yn argymhelliad 30, helpu i ddadansoddi a deall yr 
opsiynau cyllido sydd ar gael. Fodd bynnag, nid mater i Lywodraeth Cymru’n unig 
yw'r dull cyllido hirdymor, ond mater i landlordiaid cymdeithasol yw deall eu stoc yn 
iawn a chreu cynlluniau ariannol yn seiliedig ar y wybodaeth a'r offer a ddarparwyd, 
gan gynnwys rhai gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  
Mae gan yr Hwb sawl ffrwd waith gan gynnwys Sgiliau Sero Net, cadwyn gyflenwi a 
fforwm polisi. Mae disgwyl i gymuned ar-lein Hwb sy'n cynnwys aelodau staff o 
Awdurdodau Lleol, Landlordiaid Cymdeithasol Cofrestredig a Llywodraeth Cymru 
lansio ym mis Ebrill. Y nod yw rhannu'r gwersi a ddysgwyd. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 32. 
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog egluro sut y mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn ymgysylltu â’r sector sy’n 
‘gallu talu’ i annog deiliaid tai i ôl-osod eu cartrefi.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Hyd yma, nid yw Llywodraeth Cymru wedi targedu datgarboneiddio cartrefi 
cymdeithasol yn y lle cyntaf, gan gytuno i flaenoriaethu buddsoddiad mewn tai 
cymdeithasol drwy'r cyllid sydd ar gael i landlordiaid cymdeithasol drwy'r Rhaglen Ôl-
osod er mwyn Optimeiddio (ORP).   
 
Mae ein Rhaglen Cartrefi Cynnes yn canolbwyntio ar aelwydydd sydd â'r lleiaf o allu i 
dalu am welliannau eu hunain yn y sectorau perchen-feddiannwr, rhent preifat a 
chwmnïau tai cydweithredol. Rydym ar y trywydd iawn i lansio ein Rhaglen Cartrefi 
Cynnes newydd ar 1 Ebrill. Y cynllun newydd fydd ein prif ddull o fynd i'r afael â 
thlodi tanwydd a mynd i'r afael â'r nod o leihau effeithiau hinsawdd ein stoc dai. Bydd 
pob cartref yng Nghymru, nid yn unig y rhai sydd mewn tlodi tanwydd neu mewn 
perygl o dlodi tanwydd, yn parhau i fod yn gymwys i fanteisio ar y rhaglen newydd 
am gyngor a chymorth ar y ffordd orau o ariannu'r mesurau hyn. Mae Llywodraeth 
Cymru’n cydnabod bod angen cyngor o ansawdd da a dibynadwy ar ddeiliaid tai i 
fynd ar daith ddatgarboneiddio a chredwn ei bod hi'n bwysig bod y cyngor a roddir 
dan y Rhaglen Cartrefi Cynnes yn annibynnol ar unrhyw osodiadau a wneir gan y 
cynllun, er mwyn cynnal hyder yn y cyngor sy'n cael ei ddarparu.  
 
Fel y nodir isod yn argymhelliad 33, rydym wrthi'n datblygu cynllun peilot 'profi a 
dysgu' hefyd gyda Banc Datblygu Cymru a fydd yn targedu'r sector 'sy'n gallu talu' 
i'w roi ar waith yn ystod blwyddyn ariannol 24-25 gobeithio.  

Tudalen y pecyn 315

https://zerocarbonhwb.cymru/


18 
 

Mae ardal parth cyhoeddus Hwb Carbon Sero Net a lansiwyd yn ddiweddar yn 
cynnig cipolwg ar astudiaethau achos y gall perchen-feddianwyr eu gweld i helpu i 
ddeall gweithgareddau ôl-osod. 
 
Mae'r Grŵp Gweithredu ar Ddatgarboneiddio wedi'i herio i greu map trywydd ar gyfer 
datgarboneiddio pob cartref presennol yng Nghymru gan gynnwys y sector 'sy'n 
gallu talu'. Dylai hyn nodi targedau uchelgeisiol, atebion arloesol, a chynllun 
gweithredu i Lywodraeth Cymru ei ystyried.  
 
Dylai'r map trywydd, ynghyd â'r gwersi a ddysgwyd drwy’r ORP, helpu i ddatblygu 
rhaglen bolisi a chostau yn y dyfodol er mwyn ymgysylltu â'r sector 'sy'n gallu talu' a 
normaleiddio'r gofyniad i sicrhau bod cartrefi Cymru’n iach ac o ansawdd da. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 33.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog: ▪ egluro lefel y cyllid sydd ar gael ar gyfer 2024-25 i gefnogi'r 
cynllun peilot 'profi a dysgu' ar gyfer perchen-feddianwyr sy'n gallu talu; a ▪ darparu 
rhagor o fanylion am y cynllun peilot, gan gynnwys ei hyd a sut y bydd canlyniadau'r 
cynllun yn cael eu monitro a'u gwerthuso. 
 
Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor 
 
Mae'r Cynllun gan gynnwys ei feini prawf gwerthuso a monitro wrthi'n cael eu 
datblygu ar hyn o bryd ond nid ydym wedi cytuno ar y fersiwn derfynol eto tan fod y 
sefyllfa ariannu’n glir. Mae hyn er mwyn cydnabod bod adnoddau staffio’n 
gyfyngedig a bod angen eu blaenoriaethu ar y pethau cywir ar yr adeg gywir. Os 
bydd y cais am gyllid yn llwyddiannus, byddwn yn cyhoeddi manylion pellach am y 
cynllun.  
 
Ar hyn o bryd rydym yn cynnal trafodaethau cyllid mewnol i ddeall gofynion cyflawn a 
chyfansoddiad posibl y cynllun peilot hwn. Bydd yn amodol hefyd ar ddyraniadau 
cyllideb terfynol a chais Cyfalaf Trafodiadau Ariannol llwyddiannus. Bydd y cynllun 
peilot hwn yn cael ei ddarparu gan Fanc Datblygu Cymru mewn partneriaeth â 
Llywodraeth Cymru. Mae cyllid Cyfalaf Trafodiadau Ariannol yn ddilys am un 
flwyddyn ariannol ond gellir gwneud ceisiadau dilynol ar gyfer blynyddoedd i ddod. 
 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 316



19 
 

Ynni Adnewyddadwy 
 
 
Argymhelliad 34.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog: 

• ddarparu manylion am waith a wnaed gan Lywodraeth Cymru i asesu 
anghenion buddsoddi tymor byr a chanolig ar gyfer cyflawni ei thargedau ynni 
adnewyddadwy newydd; ac  

• esbonio sut mae'r targedau hyn wedi dylanwadu ar ddyraniadau cyllideb 
ddrafft 2024-25.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Bydd ein gwaith yn gweithredu argymhellion yr Archwiliad Dwfn ar Ynni 
Adnewyddadwy ac ymgorffori'r camau gweithredu yn ein gwaith ar draws y 
llywodraeth yn cefnogi'r camau sydd eu hangen i gyrraedd ein targedau. Mae'r 
gwaith cynllunio ardal ar y gweill a bydd tystiolaeth o'r gwaith hwn yn rhoi eglurhad 
pellach ar sut i ddatgarboneiddio'r maes cynhyrchu ynni yng Nghymru. Gydag Awel y 
Môr bellach wedi cael caniatâd, bydd hyn yn cyfrannu tuag at ein targedau. Rydym 
yn gweithio gyda datblygwyr ar draws yr holl dechnolegau i ddarparu ynni 
cynaliadwy i gymunedau Cymru. Rydym yn gweithio gyda rhanddeiliaid i wella ein 
cyfundrefnau cydsynio yn barhaus.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 35.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog egluro sut mae hi’n gweithio ar y cyd â Gweinidog yr Economi i 
ddatblygu sgiliau ac arbenigedd o fewn y gweithlu i gefnogi cyflawni’r targedau ynni 
adnewyddadwy newydd.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae Cynllun Gweithredu Sgiliau Sero Net i Gymru wedi darparu fframwaith trosfwaol 
i ddarparu'r sgiliau sydd eu hangen i gefnogi'r cyfleoedd sydd gennym yng Nghymru. 
Rydym yn gweithio'n agos gyda'r ysgolion, prifysgolion, colegau a diwydiant i sicrhau 
bod gennym y sgiliau sydd eu hangen arnom ar gyfer y sector ynni adnewyddadwy. 
Mae'r Partneriaethau Sgiliau Rhanbarthol sy'n gweithredu ar draws 4 rhanbarth 
Cymru, yn rhoi cipolwg amhrisiadwy ar y sgiliau sydd eu hangen ledled y wlad.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 36.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog roi rhagor o fanylion am nodau Trydan Gwyrdd Cymru; ei 
amcanion tymor byr, canolig a hir;  a threfniadau gweithredol rhwng y cwmni a 
Llywodraeth Cymru.  
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 317



20 
 

Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Bydd Trydan Gwyrdd Cymru yn cael ei lansio ym mis Ebrill 2024. Ei ddiben yw cadw 
cymaint â phosibl o fanteision economaidd a chymdeithasol datblygiadau 
adnewyddadwy ar dir cyhoeddus Cymru, y gellir eu defnyddio i gyflawni ar gyfer pobl 
Cymru. Bydd blaenoriaethau cychwynnol yn ymwneud â sefydlu llif o brosiectau 
posibl. Byddwn yn cyhoeddi mwy o wybodaeth unwaith y bydd y corff wedi'i lansio.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 37.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro; ▪ y dyraniad refeniw yng nghyllideb ddrafft 2045-25 i 
gefnogi gwaith Trydan Gwyrdd Cymru; a ▪ pa Linell Wariant Cyllideb mae’r dyraniad 
cyfalaf o £4.5m ar gyfer Trydan Gwyrdd Cymru yn perthyn iddi, a pha allbynnau y 
disgwylir i'r dyraniad hwn eu cyflawni.   
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Bydd y dyraniad yn 2024-25 yn cael ei gwblhau yn agosach at lansiad y cwmni. 
Mae'r dyraniad cyfalaf yn perthyn i Linell Wariant Cyllideb 2809. Bydd y cyllid yn 
cefnogi datblygu prosiectau ynni adnewyddadwy. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 38.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog sicrhau, ar gyfer cyllidebau drafft yn y dyfodol, fod gan Trydan 
Gwyrdd Cymru Linell Wariant Cyllideb ar wahân (yn unol â'r dull a ddefnyddir ar 
gyfer Ynni Cymru a Gwasanaeth Ynni Llywodraeth Cymru) i wella tryloywder a 
chefnogi craffu.  
 
Ymateb:  Derbyn mewn egwyddor  
 
Mae Trydan Gwyrdd Cymru yn un o sawl mecanwaith y mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn 
ei ddefnyddio i helpu i gynhyrchu adnewyddadwy. Mae datblygiad y prosiect yn 
dibynnu ar sawl newidyn y tu hwnt i reolaeth Llywodraeth Cymru. Mae'r strwythur 
presennol yn caniatáu hyblygrwydd i ddyrannu cyllid lle y gellir cyflawni'r 
ddarpariaeth orau mewn unrhyw flwyddyn. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 39.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog roi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am waith i ddatblygu dulliau ariannu i 
sicrhau y gellir cadw perchnogaeth Gymreig ar brosiectau ynni adnewyddadwy ar 
raddfa fawr ar y stad gyhoeddus yn y dyfodol.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Bydd y gwaith hwn yn cael ei ddatblygu drwy gydweithio rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru, 
Trydan Gwyrdd Cymru a sefydliadau eraill. Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru’n fwy na 

Tudalen y pecyn 318



21 
 

pharod i roi diweddariad, a fydd yn dilyn sefydlu Trydan Gwyrdd Cymru a chytundeb 
gyda'r cwmni ar adnoddau ac amseru'r gwaith hwn.  
 
 
 Argymhelliad 40.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro pa brosiectau/allbynnau y disgwylir i'r dyraniad cyfalaf 
gwerth £10m ar gyfer Ynni Cymru eu cyflawni.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Bydd Ynni Cymru’n ehangu ynni adnewyddadwy sy’n eiddo i’r gymuned a systemau 
ynni lleol clyfar, lle caiff y buddion eu cadw yng Nghymru. Ar hyn o bryd, rydym yn 
datblygu achos busnes Ynni Cymru, er mwyn amlinellu cwmpas y cwmni, ei gylch 
gwaith a’i ffiniau gwaith. Ar y cyd â hyn, maent yn datblygu ac yn cyrchu llif o 
brosiectau posibl i Ynni Cymru eu cefnogi.  
 
Bydd diweddariad pellach ar gynnydd ar gael yn ddiweddarach yn y flwyddyn 
ariannol.  
  

Tudalen y pecyn 319



22 
 

Gwastraff 
 
Argymhelliad 41.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro a fydd cyllid grant ar gyfer awdurdodau lleol ar gyfer 2024-
25 yn cael ei gynnal i gefnogi cyflawni'r targed statudol o ailgylchu 70% erbyn 2025.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae dyrannu cyllid cyfalaf (£46.853m) i gefnogi Awdurdodau Lleol yn cael ei lywio 
drwy ymgysylltu â nhw ar y prosiectau maen nhw'n eu datblygu, a maint ac amseriad 
eu hanghenion cyllido. Byddwn hefyd yn cadw cymaint â phosibl o'r cyllid refeniw 
drwy'r Grant Rheoli Gwastraff Cynaliadwy (SWMG) sy'n cefnogi costau gweithredol 
Awdurdodau Lleol i wella eu perfformiad. Bydd yr union lefel yn cael ei hegluro 
unwaith y bydd y dadansoddiad terfynol o'r gyllideb yn y maes hwn wedi'i 
benderfynu. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 42.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro sut y bydd effaith y gostyngiad mewn dyraniad refeniw a 
chyfalaf ar gyfer 2024-25 ar gynnydd tuag at dargedau gwastraff ar gyfer 2025 (a 
nodir yn Mwy nag Ailgylchu) yn cael ei monitro.  
 
 
Ymateb: Gwrthod  
 
Mae'r cyllid cyfalaf a ddyrannwyd (£46.853m) yn cyd-fynd â'n dealltwriaeth o ofynion 
ariannu'r prosiectau Awdurdod Lleol sy'n cael eu datblygu a'u darparu ar gyfer 24-25 
a byddwn yn cadw cymaint â phosibl o'r cyllid refeniw drwy'r Grant Rheoli Gwastraff 
Cynaliadwy felly ni fydd gostyngiad sylweddol yn effeithio ar gyflawni targedau 
ailgylchu i'w tracio. Yn seiliedig ar gynlluniau'r Awdurdod Lleol sydd ar y gweill ar hyn 
o bryd, dyrannwyd digon o adnoddau ar gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 2024-25. Fodd 
bynnag, byddwn yn parhau i fonitro darpariaeth Awdurdodau Lleol yn erbyn y 
targedau gofynnol statudol a datblygu a chyflawni eu cynlluniau gwella. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 43.  
 
O fewn chwe mis i gyhoeddi'r adroddiad hwn, dylai'r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i'r 
Pwyllgor ar gynnydd tuag at ddatblygu targedau ailgylchu statudol newydd. Craffu ar 
Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2023-24. 
 
Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor   
 
Byddwn yn parhau i ddiweddaru'r Pwyllgor ar gynnydd, gan gynnwys ar y gwaith i 
ddiweddaru'r Glasbrint lle rydym eisoes wedi dechrau ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid 
allweddol ar y dull o ddatblygu targedau ailgylchu yn y dyfodol 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 320



23 
 

Argymhelliad 44.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog ddarparu manylion dyraniad cyllideb ar gyfer 2024-25 i baratoi ar 
gyfer cyflwyno'r Cynllun Dychwelyd Ernes a Chyfrifoldeb Estynedig Cynhyrchwyr am 
ddeunydd pacio.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn mewn egwyddor  
 
Mae'r Cynllun Dychwelyd Ernes a'r cynllun Cyfrifoldeb Estynedig Cynhyrchwyr ar 
gyfer pecynnu ill dau yn cael eu darparu fel prosiectau ar y cyd ledled y DU. O'r 
herwydd, mae'r cyllid ar gyfer cyflwyno'r cynlluniau yng Nghymru yn rhan o'r dyraniad 
ehangach gan Drysorlys EF o gronfeydd y DU i DEFRA.  
 
Mae trafodaethau gyda DEFRA ar oblygiadau ariannol y cynlluniau yn parhau, er 
enghraifft y cyllid sydd ei angen er mwyn i Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru baratoi ar gyfer ei 
rôl yn rheoleiddio'r cynlluniau. Mae costau Llywodraeth Cymru yn cael eu cymryd o 
gyllidebau rhaglenni presennol 
 
 
Argymhelliad 45.  
 
O fewn chwe mis i gyhoeddi'r adroddiad hwn, dylai'r Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i'r 
Pwyllgor ar gynnydd tuag at gyflwyno'r Cynllun Dychwelyd Ernes. Dylai hyn gynnwys 
a yw'r Cynllun yn parhau i fod ar y trywydd iawn i fynd yn fyw ym mis Hydref 2025.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae swyddogion yn parhau i weithio'n agos gyda swyddogion y tair gwlad arall ar 
ddatblygu'r Cynllun Dychwelyd Ernes. Fodd bynnag, mae'r amserlen wrthi'n cael ei 
hadolygu yn dilyn effaith penderfyniad Deddf Marchnad Fewnol y DU sydd wedi atal 
y Cynllun Dychwelyd Ernes rhag mynd yn fyw yn yr Alban. Mae wedi arwain at sgil-
effeithiau gyda'r angen i edrych ar y goblygiadau i ryngweithredu'r cynlluniau ar 
draws y pedair gwlad. Byddaf yn adrodd i'r Pwyllgor ar ganlyniad yr adolygiad a'r 
effaith ar y dyddiad gweithredu yn ôl y gofyn. 
 
 
Argymhelliad 46.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog:  

• esbonio sut y bydd effaith y gostyngiad mewn cyllid ar gyfer Cynllun 
Cymunedau y Dreth Gwarediadau Tirlenwi yn cael ei monitro; ac  

• egluro ei safbwynt ar ddyfodol y cynllun. 
 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Bydd Cyngor Gweithredu Gwirfoddol Cymru, sy'n gweinyddu'r cynllun ar ran 
Llywodraeth Cymru, yn parhau i fonitro canlyniadau Cynllun Cymunedau y Dreth 
Gwarediadau Tirlenwi. Bydd hyn yn cynnwys adroddiadau chwarterol a chyhoeddi 
adroddiad blynyddol. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 321



24 
 

Er na fyddwn yn gallu agor y Cynllun Cymunedau Treth Gwarediadau Tirlenwi i 
gynigion prosiect newydd ar ddechrau'r flwyddyn ariannol, rydym yn cynnal cyllid i 
gefnogi prosiectau presennol. Bydd y gyllideb ar gael i gefnogi rhai prosiectau 
pellach. Rwy'n bwriadu egluro ein cynlluniau ar gyfer dyfodol y Cynllun a gaiff ei 
lywio gan asesiad o'i effaith ac ymgysylltiad â rhanddeiliaid. 
 
 
 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 322



25 
 

Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru 
 
Argymhelliad 47.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog ddarparu amlinelliad manwl o gam nesaf datblygu Cytundebau 
Lefel Gwasanaeth. Dylai hyn gynnwys y meysydd i'w cwmpasu a'r amserlenni ar 
gyfer eu gweithredu.  
 
Ymateb: Gwrthod  
 
Fel y soniodd CNC yn ei dystiolaeth i'r Pwyllgor hwn, cytunwyd ar y cyd bod gwaith 
pellach ar y Cytundebau Lefel Gwasanaeth wedi dod i ben oherwydd y pwyslais ar 
flaenoriaethau statudol a Llywodraeth eraill. Fodd bynnag, mae eu canlyniadau, eu 
hallbynnau a'u llinellau amser disgwyliedig yn cael eu casglu o fewn prosesau 
Fframwaith Llywodraethu LlC/CNC y cytunwyd arnynt sef y Cynllun Corfforaethol 
pum mlynedd a'r Cynlluniau Busnes blynyddol ategol. Mae'r Fframwaith hwn yn nodi 
mai rôl y Gweinidog yw cymeradwyo'r Cynllun Corfforaethol a gynhyrchwyd gan 
CNC, nodi gweithgareddau gweithredu o fewn y Cynlluniau Busnes blynyddol a 
chyhoeddi llythyr cylch gwaith Tymor y Llywodraeth. Yn unol â hynny, gellir gweld 
manylion ardaloedd cyflawni CNC a llinellau amser ar gyfer eu gweithredu drwy 
gyfeirio at y Cynllun Corfforaethol a'r Cynlluniau Busnes sydd ar gael i'r cyhoedd. 
 
Argymhelliad 48.  
 
Dylai’r Gweinidog gynnal trafodaethau pellach gyda CNC am effaith y gostyngiad 
mewn termau real mewn cyllid ar allu CNC i ddarparu ei wasanaethau. Dylai’r 
Gweinidog adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor ar ganlyniadau’r trafodaethau hyn a dylai 
gynnwys gwybodaeth am y meysydd gwasanaeth yr effeithir arnynt.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae pwysau cyllidebol Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2024-25 yn amlwg i bawb, ac nid 
yw'r un sefydliad yn saff rhag sgyrsiau cyllidebol anodd iawn a phenderfyniadau 
dilynol.  
 
Mae Llywodraeth Cymru’n parhau i ymgysylltu'n llwyddiannus ac yn gadarnhaol â 
CNC wrth iddi ystyried ei gylch gwaith ac adolygu'n feirniadol yr holl weithgareddau, 
gan gydnabod hefyd bod cyflawni swyddogaethau craidd a dyletswyddau statudol yn 
cael blaenoriaeth.  
 
Bydd manylion am ganlyniad ymarfer blaenoriaethu CNC ar gael maes o law drwy ei 
Gynllun Busnes 2024-25. 

 
 

 
 

Argymhelliad 49.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog ddiweddaru'r Pwyllgor o fewn y chwe mis nesaf ar y cynnydd tuag 
at ailstrwythuro model cyllido CNC ynghylch incwm pren.  

Tudalen y pecyn 323



26 
 

 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Fel y gŵyr y Pwyllgor, mae anwadalrwydd prisiau pren a bywiogrwydd y farchnad 
gwerthu coed yn dylanwadu'n fawr ar allu CNC i reoli ei gyllid ac o ganlyniad yn 
cyfyngu ar y gweithgareddau y gall eu gwneud i reoli ei stad goedwigaeth. 
  
Mae Llywodraeth Cymru’n parhau i weithio gyda CNC i archwilio a datblygu 
trefniadau amgen a ddylai ddarparu sefydlogrwydd i CNC o safbwynt ariannu ei waith 
coedwigaeth. Y bwriad yw cyflwyno trefniadau newydd ar gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 
2024-25. 
  
Unwaith y bydd y trefniadau hyn wedi'u cwblhau a'u cytuno, byddaf yn rhannu rhagor 
o fanylion gyda'r Pwyllgor. 
 
 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 324



27 
 

Dŵr a Llifogydd 
 
Argymhelliad 50.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog esbonio sut y bydd canfyddiadau adroddiad CNC, Gofyniad 
Buddsoddi Hirdymor ar gyfer Amddiffynfeydd rhag Llifogydd (Ionawr 2024), yn cael 
eu defnyddio i helpu i lunio penderfyniadau buddsoddi yn y dyfodol ynghylch 
llifogydd a rheoli risg.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Byddwn yn ystyried casgliadau adroddiad Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru ar y Gofyniad 
Buddsoddi Hirdymor, ochr yn ochr ag adolygiadau eraill (e.e. Adolygiad Comisiwn 
Seilwaith Cenedlaethol Cymru) sydd i fod i adrodd yn fuan. Bydd timau polisi 
Llywodraeth Cymru’n ystyried canlyniadau'r adroddiadau hyn, gyda chymorth y 
Pwyllgor Llifogydd ac Erydu Arfordirol a'r Bwrdd Rhaglen Perygl Llifogydd, i sicrhau 
bod buddsoddiad yn cael ei flaenoriaethu i leihau effaith llifogydd ledled Cymru.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 51. 
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog esbonio sut y bydd effaith y gostyngiad yn y dyraniad refeniw ar 
barodrwydd perygl llifogydd a'r ymateb i ddigwyddiadau llifogydd yn y dyfodol yn cael 
ei fonitro.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Ni wnaed gostyngiadau yn y dyraniad refeniw i Awdurdodau Rheoli Risg yng 
Nghymru. Bydd y dyraniad refeniw ar gyfer pob Awdurdod Lleol yn parhau i fod yn 
£225,000, a bydd y dyraniad refeniw ar gyfer Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru’n parhau i fod 
yn £24.5M. Mae'r sefyllfa ariannol heriol a'r pwysau sy'n wynebu'r holl wasanaethau 
cyhoeddus ledled Cymru wedi golygu nad ydym wedi gallu cefnogi'r codiad refeniw 
arfaethedig o £8M a gynlluniwyd i roli risg llifogydd ac erydu arfordirol (FCERM) ar 
gyfer y flwyddyn ariannol nesaf.  
 
 
Argymhelliad 52.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog egluro'r gostyngiad o £22m yn y dyraniad cyfalaf ar gyfer 2024-25 
ar gyfer rheoli perygl llifogydd a darparu polisi dŵr.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
O 2024-25 cydnabuwyd, gan fod cyfran sylweddol o FCERM yn cael ei ddarparu 
drwy Gyfoeth Naturiol Cymru, y byddai'n gliriach dangos y gyllideb ar Linell Wariant 
Cyllideb CNC. Mae hwn yn newid cyflwyniadol. Arweiniodd cynnydd sylweddol ar 
gyflawni cynlluniau CNC at wario ychwanegol yn cael ei gyflwyno i flwyddyn ariannol 
2023-2024. Felly, mae cyllideb CNC ar gyfer 2024-2025 wedi'i diwygio o ganlyniad i 
adlewyrchu'r arian sydd eisoes wedi'i dalu. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 325



28 
 

 
Argymhelliad 53.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog ddarparu dadansoddiad o'r £40m o ddyraniad rhwng 2022-2023 a 
2024-25 i wella ansawdd dŵr. Dylai hyn gynnwys y dyraniad hyd yma, camau 
gweithredu a gyflwynwyd, a manylion dyrannu ar gyfer 2024-25.  
 
Ymateb: Derbyn  
 
Mae dadansoddiad y dyraniad o £40m fel a ganlyn:  
 
2022-2023- £10m  
2023-2024- £15m  
2024-2025- £15m  
 
Mae'r arian wedi'i wario ar raglen waith i fynd i'r afael â rhwystrau fel y gallwn 
gyflawni ein dyletswyddau o dan y Gyfarwyddeb Fframwaith Dŵr i atal dirywiad a 
gwella pob corff dŵr i statws da erbyn 2027. Mae gwaith wedi'i gyflawni ar draws 
dalgylchoedd cyfle, prosiectau ar raddfa genedlaethol, adfer afonydd ac ardaloedd 
gwarchodedig e.e. Afonydd mewn Ardaloedd Cadwraeth Arbennig (ACA). Disgwylir 
i'r rhaglen ar gyfer 2024-2025 gael ei chytuno'n fuan.  
 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 326



29 
 

Llywodraethu Amgylcheddol 
 
Argymhelliad 54.  
 
Dylai'r Gweinidog:  
 

• egluro'r dyraniad cyllideb ar gyfer 2024-25 ar gyfer swyddogaethau Asesydd 
Interim Diogelu'r Amgylchedd ar gyfer Cymru (IEPAW). Os nad yw'r gyllideb 
yn cynnwys codiad o £75,000, dylai egluro'r rheswm; ac  

 

• ymrwymo i sicrhau bod cyllid digonol ar gael ar gyfer gwasanaeth IEPAW tan 
fod y corff llywodraethu amgylcheddol newydd wedi ei sefydlu.  

 
Ymateb: Derbyn 
 
Gallaf gadarnhau bod cyllid o £120,000 wedi'i ddyrannu unwaith eto i 
swyddogaethau Asesydd Interim Diogelu'r Amgylchedd ar gyfer Cymru (IEPAW) ar 
gyfer 2024-25. Mae'r gyllideb yn parhau i gynnwys y codiad o £75,000. 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 327



3 Llys Cadwyn    3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd,    Pontypridd 
CF37 4TH,   CF37 4TH 
029 2167 3434   029 2167 3434 
James.price@trc.cymru  james.price@tfw.wales 
trc.cymru   tfw.wales 

 

Cwmni Cyfyngedig drwy Warant. Cofrestrwyd yng Nghymru. Rhif Cwmni 09476013. Cyfeiriad 

Swyddfa Gofrestredig: 3 Llys Cadwyn, Pontypridd, CF37 4TH 

A Company Limited by Guarantee. Registered in Wales. Company No. 09476013. Registered Office Address: 3 
Llys Cadwyn, Pontypridd, CF37 4TH 

 

Llyr Gruffydd AS 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
 
 
          

5 Mawrth 2024 

 

Annwyl Llyr, 
 
Adroddiad dilynol ar ôl i TrC ymddangos gerbron y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr 
Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
 
Diolch am eich gwahoddiad i annerch y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
ar 22 Tachwedd 2023. Yn ystod y sesiwn, addewais gymryd nifer o gamau dilynol a nodi’r 
wybodaeth yn ysgrifenedig. Rwyf bellach wedi casglu’r pwyntiau hynny at ei gilydd isod:  
 
 

1. Yr wybodaeth strategol ddiweddaraf am gynlluniau TrC ar gyfer gemau pêl-droed, gan 
gynnwys cyfarfod diweddaraf TrC gyda Chymdeithas Bêl-droed Cymru.  
 
Rydym wedi cynnal nifer o sesiynau gyda Chymdeithas Bêl-droed Cymru i drafod a rhannu 
manylion am ddigwyddiadau sydd ar y gweill. Cefais i ac aelodau o’m uwch dîm gyfarfod â 
Chymdeithas Bêl-droed Cymru ar 9 Ionawr i drafod strategaeth cynllunio a digwyddiadau TrC 
ar gyfer gemau pêl-droed yng Nghymru; byddwn yn parhau i weithio i feithrin y berthynas 
allweddol hon dros y flwyddyn nesaf drwy gadw mewn cysylltiad yn rheolaidd.  
 
Rhoddodd ein tîm Digwyddiadau Arbennig gyflwyniad i’r Gymdeithas Cefnogwyr Pêl-droed 
ar 15 Chwefror yn Stadiwm Dinas Caerdydd, ynghylch y cynlluniau gweithredol a’r cynlluniau 
i gwsmeriaid sydd ar y gweill. Roedd hyn hefyd yn cynnwys archwiliad manwl o’r gwersi a 
ddysgwyd o’r gemau blaenorol. Cafodd hyn ei groesawu ac mae’r tîm wedi ymrwymo i fynd 
yno eto ar ôl digwyddiadau rhagbrofol pencampwriaeth Ewro ar 21 a 26 Mawrth. Bydd y 
cydweithio rhwng y Tîm Digwyddiadau Arbennig a Chymdeithas Bêl-droed Cymru yn parhau, 
gyda chyfarfodydd rheolaidd bellach wedi’u cynllunio ar gyfer y flwyddyn. Mae cynlluniau 
cyflawni gweithredol ac ar gyfer cwsmeriaid ar gyfer digwyddiadau Rhagbrofol 
Pencampwriaeth Ewro ar 21 a 26 Mawrth yn mynd rhagddynt yn dda, gyda’r holl 
wasanaethau ychwanegol a chryfach bellach yn cael eu dangos mewn systemau cynllunio. 
Bydd negeseuon y cytunwyd arnynt yn cael eu rhannu ddechrau mis Mawrth, tra bod cynllun 
cymorth/digwyddiadau cadarn ar waith i gwsmeriaid ar gyfer y ddwy gêm, gyda chynlluniau 
wrth gefn ar gyfer gwasanaethau allweddol. Bydd gennym bresenoldeb rheoli amlwg ar waith 
ar lawr gwlad i ganolbwyntio ar ymgysylltu â chwsmeriaid a sicrhau’r ddarpariaeth orau bosibl 
ar y diwrnod.  
 
 

2. Cadarnhau’r ffigurau diweddaraf ar gyfer y bwlch cyflog rhwng y rhywiau ar gyfer 
gwasanaethau Rheilffyrdd TrC a’r rhai nad ydynt yn wasanaethau Rheilffyrdd, ac 
amlinellu’r gwaith sy’n mynd rhagddo i sicrhau cydraddoldeb. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 328

Eitem 5.7

mailto:@trc.cymru


3 Llys Cadwyn    3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd,    Pontypridd 
CF37 4TH,   CF37 4TH 
029 2167 3434   029 2167 3434 
James.price@trc.cymru  james.price@tfw.wales 
trc.cymru   tfw.wales 

 
 

Y bwlch cyflog canolrifol rhwng y rhywiau nad yw’n gysylltiedig â Rheilffyrdd ar gyfer 
blwyddyn ariannol 2022/23 yw 14.1%. Mae hyn wedi gostwng o un flwyddyn i’r llall ers 2020, 
gyda’r bwlch cyflog rhwng y rhywiau wedi gostwng o 32.8% yn ystod blwyddyn ariannol 
2021/22 - i lawr o 33.2% yn ystod blwyddyn ariannol 2020/21.  
 
Mae’r bwlch cyflog canolrifol rhwng y rhywiau ar gyfer y Rheilffyrdd ar gyfer blwyddyn ariannol 
2022/23 yn 16.2%. Mae hyn hefyd yn gostwng o un flwyddyn i’r llall, ar ôl gostwng o 19.2% 
yn ystod blwyddyn ariannol 2021/22, ac o 21.2% yn ystod blwyddyn ariannol 2020/21. 
 
Ar hyn o bryd rydym wrthi’n drafftio ein Hadroddiad ar y Bwlch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau ar 
gyfer 2023, a fydd yn adrodd ar y ddau endid fel un. Nid yw ein ffigur cyfun ar gyfer y bwlch 
cyflog rhwng y rhywiau wedi cael ei gyfrifo eto. 
 
O ran ein gwaith tuag at gyflawni cydraddoldeb: 
 

• Fe wnaethom lansio ein Grwpiau Adnoddau Gweithwyr yn ystod Wythnos 
Genedlaethol Cynhwysiant 2022. Mae grŵp sy’n canolbwyntio ar rywedd yn unig 
ymhlith y grwpiau sydd wedi cael eu creu. Mae ein Grwpiau Adnoddau Gweithwyr yn 
ein helpu i adeiladu amgylchedd mwy cynhwysol yn y gweithle a mynd i’r afael ag 
amrywiaeth a chynhwysiant mewn ffordd fwy cyfannol sy’n canolbwyntio ar y 
gymuned. Mae ein Grwpiau Adnoddau Gweithwyr yn lle diogel i staff sy’n rhannu 
diddordebau, problemau neu bryderon cyffredin er mwyn mynd i’r afael â'r problemau 
hynny. Bydd y Grwpiau Adnoddau Gweithwyr yn cefnogi ymgyrchoedd cenedlaethol 
a digwyddiadau mewnol sy’n berthnasol i’w meysydd pwnc, a hefyd yn cefnogi’r 
gwaith o ddatblygu ein hamcanion Cydraddoldeb, Amrywiaeth a Chynhwysiant ‘o dan 
arweiniad gweithwyr’. 

 

• Ar y cyd â Llywodraeth Cymru a PTI Cymru, cytunwyd ar gyllid ar gyfer Hwb Menywod 
mewn Trafnidiaeth yng Nghymru, a lansiwyd ym mis Tachwedd 2022. Mae’r Hwb yn 
darparu cefnogaeth a datblygiad proffesiynol i fenywod sydd eisoes yn gweithio ym 
maes trafnidiaeth ac i’r rheini sy’n ystyried gyrfa yn y sector.  

 

• Er bod y pandemig wedi bod yn gyfnod heriol, rhoddodd y cyfle i ni fod yn fwy hyblyg 
ac i integreiddio ffyrdd hybrid o weithio ar gyfer ein swyddogaethau cymorth a 
chydweithwyr sy’n gweithio mewn rhai meysydd eraill. Mae’r dull hwn yn helpu i ddenu 
a chadw pobl dalentog sydd wedi ymrwymo i’n pwrpas ac rydym yn parhau i ddatblygu 
ffyrdd hyblyg o weithio. 

 
 

3. Amlinellu’r ddarpariaeth o hyfforddiant a chefnogaeth rheoli gwrthdaro i staff rheng 
flaen sy’n delio â chwsmeriaid ymosodol. 
 
Yn 2024, bydd y tîm Diogelwch a Chadernid yn cynnal adolygiad llawn o bolisi osgoi 
gwrthdaro TrC a’r mesurau lliniaru ategol sydd ar waith ar draws y sefydliad. Bydd hyn yn 
cynnwys adolygu’r polisi presennol a’r gweithdrefnau cysylltiedig, a bydd gweithdai’n cael eu 
cynnal i gydweithwyr rheng flaen i sicrhau ein bod yn deall eu safbwyntiau a’u pryderon yn 
llawn. Cynhelir y gweithdy cyntaf ar 19 Mawrth. Byddwn hefyd yn adolygu ein dangosfwrdd 
a’n proses adrodd ar ddigwyddiadau diogelwch, er mwyn i ni allu dadansoddi’n well lle mae 

Tudalen y pecyn 329

mailto:@trc.cymru


3 Llys Cadwyn    3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd,    Pontypridd 
CF37 4TH,   CF37 4TH 
029 2167 3434   029 2167 3434 
James.price@trc.cymru  james.price@tfw.wales 
trc.cymru   tfw.wales 

 
 

problemau’n codi ar draws y rhwydwaith a chymryd camau pan fydd angen ymyrryd gyda 
thueddiadau cynyddol.  
 
Byddwn hefyd yn dechrau defnyddio teledu cylch cyfyng dros dro/symudol i atal a chofnodi 
digwyddiadau nad ydynt yn cael eu canfod ar hyn o bryd. Yn olaf, bydd hyfforddiant osgoi 
gwrthdaro ar gael i bob tîm rheng flaen. 
 
 

4. Yr wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am wasanaethau i Faesteg, Cheltenham a Glynebwy. 
 
Maesteg 
 
Cafodd ein trenau Class 197 newydd sbon eu cyflwyno i’r rheilffordd rhwng Maesteg a 
Cheltenham ar 19 Chwefror. Mae gan y trenau newydd hyn, sydd wedi’u hadeiladu yma yng 
Nghymru, nifer o nodweddion modern a hygyrch i wella profiad cwsmeriaid yn sylweddol. 
Mae’r trenau Class 197 yn cynnwys mwy o le, seddi cyfforddus, toiledau a mannau hygyrch, 
sgriniau gwybodaeth gweledol dwyieithog, seddi â blaenoriaeth, Wi-Fi, socedi gwefru a 
mannau i feiciau. Byddant hefyd yn llawer mwy dibynadwy na’r trenau Class 150 hŷn sydd 
wedi bod yn rhedeg ar hyd y rheilffordd, gan olygu y bydd tarfu’n llai tebygol; er y bydd y 
trenau Class 150 yn dal i weithredu rhai gwasanaethau wrth i ni barhau i gyflwyno ein trenau 
Class 197 yn ystod y cyfnod pontio parhaus o’r hen drenau i’r rhai newydd. Byddwn hefyd yn 
parhau i weithio’n agos gyda Network Rail a phartneriaid rheilffyrdd eraill i sicrhau mwy o 
gadernid o ran gwasanaethau sy’n gweithredu rhwng blwch signalau Ton-du a Maesteg. 
 
Cheltenham 
 
Mae TrC, ar y cyd â Llywodraeth Cymru, yn adolygu ei amserlenni presennol a’r 
newidiadau sydd ar y gweill ar gyfer amserlenni yn y dyfodol er mwyn cydnabod y 
newidiadau sylweddol i batrymau teithio ar ôl y pandemig a sicrhau bod ein hamserlenni’n 
diwallu gofynion cwsmeriaid yn y ffordd orau. Mae pob newid i’r amserlen o fewn cwmpas 
yr adolygiad hwn.  
 
Fel y nodwyd uchod, rydym bellach wedi cyflwyno trenau Class 197 ar reilffordd Maesteg, 
sy’n gweithredu cyn belled â Cheltenham. Ar hyn o bryd rydym yn gweithio’n agos gyda CAF, 
sy’n adeiladu’r trenau Class 197, i ddeall pryd y bydd y trenau sy’n weddill yn cael eu danfon 
a phryd y bydd y fflyd yn ddigon mawr i gefnogi’r gwasanaethau ychwanegol hyn. 
 
Glynebwy 
 
Rwyf hefyd yn falch o gadarnhau bod gwasanaethau trên rheolaidd rhwng Glynebwy a 
Chasnewydd wedi cael eu cyflwyno am y tro cyntaf mewn dros 60 o flynyddoedd ar 1 
Chwefror, diolch i fuddsoddiad o £70m gan Lywodraeth Cymru a chydweithio agos rhwng 
TrC, Network Rail a chyngor Blaenau Gwent. Roedd y gwaith yn cynnwys ymestyn dolen 
basio rhwng Crosskeys ac Aberbîg, uwchraddio signalau, a gosod platfformau a lifftiau 
newydd yng ngorsafoedd Trecelyn a Llanhilleth. O ganlyniad i’r buddsoddiad sylweddol hwn, 
mae pa mor aml mae trenau’n teithio ar hyd rheilffordd Glynebwy wedi dyblu, sydd wedi 
gwneud gwahaniaeth mawr i’r holl gymunedau ar hyd y llwybr. Byddwn hefyd yn cyflwyno 
trenau newydd i’r rheilffordd yn ystod gwanwyn 2024.  

Tudalen y pecyn 330

mailto:@trc.cymru


3 Llys Cadwyn    3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd,    Pontypridd 
CF37 4TH,   CF37 4TH 
029 2167 3434   029 2167 3434 
James.price@trc.cymru  james.price@tfw.wales 
trc.cymru   tfw.wales 

 
 

 
5. Amlinellu’r heriau gwahanol sy’n codi o ganlyniad i amodau yn ystod yr haf ac yn ystod 

y gaeaf o ran canslo gwasanaethau rheilffyrdd a darparu gwasanaethau bws yn lle 
trenau. 
 
Gall tywydd eithafol dros yr haf ac yn ystod y gaeaf effeithio ar wasanaethau rheilffyrdd am 
nifer o resymau. Mae’n bosibl y bydd y cledrau dur yn amsugno gormod o wres mewn 
tymheredd uchel, a allai olygu bod y cledrau’n ehangu neu hyd yn oed yn plygu.  
 
Mae cledrau rheilffordd yn cael eu gosod ar dymheredd niwtral o 27c, ac mae cyfres o fesurau 
lliniaru ar waith i sicrhau cyn lleied â phosibl o darfu ac i sicrhau bod y rheilffordd yn 
gweithredu’n ddiogel pan gyrhaeddir y tymheredd hwn neu uwch. Pan fydd y tymheredd yn 
fwy na 27c, bydd gwyliwr penodol yn cael ei roi ar y safle i fonitro symudiad ochrol y rheilffordd 
a gosod cyfyngiadau cyflymder os oes angen (neu i roi’r llinell ar stop mewn achosion 
eithafol).  
 
Er mwyn atal hyn rhag digwydd yn y lle cyntaf, mae traciau’n cael eu peintio’n wyn mewn 
ardaloedd lle mae’r rheilffyrdd yn dueddol o brofi tymheredd uchel. Hefyd, rydym wedi gosod 
gorsafoedd tywydd ar draws Llinellau Craidd y Cymoedd i fonitro tymheredd yr aer ac mae 
gennym bellach werth 12 mis o ddata i ddangos tueddiadau.  
 
Er ein bod yn gweithio i ddod o hyd i drafnidiaeth ffyrdd amgen pan fydd gwres eithafol yn 
tarfu ar wasanaethau neu’n golygu bod gwasanaethau’n cael eu canslo, mae’n bwysig nodi 
y gall heriau penodol yn ystod yr haf effeithio ar hyn hefyd. Gall cwmnïau bysiau yn trefnu 
teithiau haf effeithio ar nifer y bysiau sydd ar gael i ddarparu trafnidiaeth ffyrdd amgen i 
deithwyr rheilffyrdd, yn ogystal â mwy o alw am deithio yn ôl ac ymlaen o gyrchfannau gwyliau 
poblogaidd. 
 
Ar ben hynny, rhaid ystyried nifer y gyrwyr bysiau sydd ar gael i ddarparu’r gwasanaeth hwn 
hefyd yn ystod gwyliau’r haf gan fod llawer yn cymryd gwyliau blynyddol yn ystod y cyfnod 
hwn.  
 
Yn olaf, gall cynnydd mewn traffig ffyrdd yn ôl ac ymlaen o gyrchfannau gwyliau poblogaidd 
yn ystod yr haf olygu bod gwasanaeth bws yn lle trenau yn araf, gan achosi oedi, a gall gwres 
eithafol effeithio ar ddibynadwyedd cerbydau hefyd. 
 
Gall tywydd eithafol yn ystod y gaeaf, fel glaw trwm a llifogydd, eira a rhew, hefyd effeithio ar 
sut mae’r rheilffordd yn rhedeg. Gall llifogydd achosi difrod i’r cyfarpar signalau trydanol, ac 
mae cyfyngiadau cyflymder yn aml yn cael eu gosod ar drenau sy’n teithio ar hyd llwybrau 
sydd wedi cael llifogydd, gan achosi oedi ar gyfer gwasanaethau. Gall eira a rhew gael effaith 
niweidiol ar y cledrau, ac ni all trenau redeg mewn eira dwfn. Mae tywydd eithafol y gaeaf 
hefyd yn cael effaith niweidiol ar ddibynadwyedd trenau, sy’n golygu bod angen mwy o waith 
cynnal a chadw ac atgyweirio arnynt. 
 
Er mwyn lliniaru yn erbyn hyn, mae cynlluniau rheoli ar gyfer y gaeaf yn cael eu rhoi ar waith 
bob blwyddyn ar gyfer ein fflyd ac mae ein trenau’n cael eu paratoi ar gyfer tywydd oer yn 
unol â chyfarwyddiadau cynnal a chadw cerbydau. Mae deunyddiau ychwanegol a darnau 
sbâr o drenau yn cael eu cadw mewn storfeydd mewn lleoliadau allweddol, ac rydym yn 

Tudalen y pecyn 331

mailto:@trc.cymru


3 Llys Cadwyn    3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd,    Pontypridd 
CF37 4TH,   CF37 4TH 
029 2167 3434   029 2167 3434 
James.price@trc.cymru  james.price@tfw.wales 
trc.cymru   tfw.wales 

 
 

sicrhau bod yr holl staff gweithredol yn gyfarwydd â gofynion y llyfr rheolau yn ystod tywydd 
oer.  
 
Er ein bod yn gweithio i ddod o hyd i drafnidiaeth ffyrdd amgen i deithwyr pan fydd tywydd 
eithafol y gaeaf yn tarfu ar wasanaethau neu’n golygu bod gwasanaethau’n cael eu canslo, 
mae’n bwysig nodi y gall heriau penodol yn ystod y gaeaf effeithio ar hyn hefyd. Gall tywydd 
eithafol y gaeaf effeithio ar gyflwr ffyrdd, hygyrchedd gorsafoedd, cyflymder gwasanaeth bws 
yn lle trenau a gallu gweithredwyr i ddefnyddio bysiau ar gyfer pob cornel o rwydwaith TrC. 
Gall oerni eithafol y gaeaf hefyd effeithio ar ddibynadwyedd cerbydau.  
 
 

6. Amlinellu’r cyfyngiadau pŵer y deuir ar eu traws ar gyfer trydaneiddio rheilffordd 
Rhymni. 
 
Roedd y dyluniadau cychwynnol ar gyfer trawsnewid Llinellau Craidd y Cymoedd yn Rhymni 
yn cynnwys cysylltiad â’r National Grid yn ardal Rhymni i ddarparu’r pŵer sydd ei angen i 
wefru batris y trenau tri-modd (yn ystod y cyfnod yng Ngorsaf Rhymni fel rhan o’r gwasanaeth 
sydd wedi’i amserlennu, yn ogystal â dros nos wrth aros yn Seidins Rhymni). 
 
Drwy ddatblygu dyluniad y System Rheilffyrdd, buom yn gweithio gyda’n cadwyn gyflenwi a 
Western Power i fireinio manylion y llwyth trydanol y byddai gwaith pweru’r trenau tri-modd 
yn eu cael ar y rhwydwaith trydan lleol. Daeth y gwaith o ddatblygu’r dyluniad i’r casgliad y 
byddai’r llwyth “mewnlif” cychwynnol o’r cysylltiad rhwng y trenau a’r cyflenwad pŵer, yn 
ogystal â’r llwyth nam potensial pe bai problemau’n codi, yn llethu’r rhwydwaith grid lleol. 
 
Er mwyn darparu digon o bŵer, sy’n hanfodol ar gyfer gweithredu’r trenau tri-modd yn yr 
ardal, roedd Rhaglen Trawsnewid Llinellau Craidd y Cymoedd wedi ystyried nifer o opsiynau, 
gan gynnwys uwchraddio’r rhwydwaith grid presennol, gosod cyflenwad adnewyddadwy 
pwrpasol (solar), darparu cysylltiad cebl i’r rhwydwaith pŵer rheilffyrdd arfaethedig, ac 
ymestyn llinell uwchben y rheilffordd i ddarparu llwybr ar gyfer y pŵer o’r rhwydwaith pŵer 
rheilffyrdd arfaethedig. 
 
O safbwynt cadernid masnachol, gweithredol a’r rhaglen, cafodd ymestyn y llinell uwchben y 
rheilffordd ei ddewis i ddarparu’r pŵer angenrheidiol i ardal Rhymni. Yn ogystal â bod yr ateb 
rhataf, mae ymestyn y llinell uwchben yn gwella cadernid gweithredol drwy ganiatáu i’r trên 
redeg ar gyflenwad trydan (yn hytrach na batri) rhwng Bargoed a Rhymni. 
 
 

7. Yr wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am drydaneiddio rheilffordd Gogledd Cymru, gan gynnwys 
y cyfathrebu diweddaraf gan Lywodraeth y DU/Network Rail ac amlinelliad o unrhyw 
amserlenni. 
 
Ar hyn o bryd, mae cost bosibl trydaneiddio llinell Gogledd Cymru, yn ogystal â’r pecyn cyllid 
ac unrhyw ofynion TrC, yn dal yn anhysbys. Mae angen rhagor o gydweithio â Network Rail, 
Llywodraeth Cymru, Llywodraeth y DU a rhanddeiliaid perthnasol eraill er mwyn llwyr ddeall 
dichonoldeb a chost lawn y gwaith hwn.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 332

mailto:@trc.cymru


3 Llys Cadwyn    3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd,    Pontypridd 
CF37 4TH,   CF37 4TH 
029 2167 3434   029 2167 3434 
James.price@trc.cymru  james.price@tfw.wales 
trc.cymru   tfw.wales 

 
 

Cysylltodd Network Rail â TrC fel rhanddeiliad allweddol ac yna datblygodd bapur yn 
amlinellu’r syniadau a’r argymhellion cychwynnol. Mae’r papur a ddeilliodd o hyn yn adeiladu 
ar y gwaith datblygu helaeth ar Fetro Gogledd Cymru y bu TrC yn arwain arno dros y 
blynyddoedd diwethaf, ond gyda chwmpas ychwanegol trydaneiddio a gwella amser teithio 
o ganlyniad i hynny. Mae’n bwysig nodi mai dim ond fel ymgynghorai y mae TrC wedi 
gwasanaethu yn y broses hon hyd yma.  

 
Mewn papur briffio i randdeiliaid a gyhoeddwyd ym mis Ionawr, dywedodd Network Rail y 
bydd Adran Drafnidiaeth y DU yn ystyried yr argymhellion hyn wrth drafod trefniadau cyllido 
ac unrhyw amodau/targedau a fydd yn cyd-fynd â hi. Mae’n debygol y bydd yr Adran 
Drafnidiaeth yn cysylltu â Network Rail yn y flwyddyn ariannol newydd (2024/25) i ystyried y 
camau nesaf ar gyfer gwaith datblygu a chyflawni (os bydd trafodaethau’n mynd rhagddynt 
yn gadarnhaol). 
 
Hyderaf y bydd cynnwys yr adroddiad dilynol hwn yn fanwl ac yn llawn gwybodaeth i’r 
pwyllgor, a chroesawaf unrhyw gwestiynau ychwanegol sydd gennych. Os gallaf fod o 
unrhyw gymorth pellach, mae croeso i chi gysylltu â mi. 
 
Yn gywir, 

 
James Price 
Prif Weithredwr, Trafnidiaeth Cymru. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 333

mailto:@trc.cymru


3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd,  
CF37 4TH, 
029 2167 3434 
trc.cymru 

3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd 
 CF37 4TH 
029 2167 3434 
tfw.wales 

 

 

Cwmni Cyfyngedig drwy Warant. Cofrestrwyd yng Nghymru. Rhif 

Cwmni 09476013. Cyfeiriad Swyddfa Gofrestredig: 3 Llys Cadwyn, 
Pontypridd, CF37 4TH 

A Company Limited by Guarantee. Registered in Wales. Company No. 
09476013. Registered Office Address: 3  Llys Cadwyn, Pontypridd, CF37 
4TH 

 
 
 

Llyr Gruffydd AS, 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
     

 

        05 Mawrth 2024 

 
Annwyl Llyr,  
 
Hoffwn roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i chi a’r pwyllgor am y cynlluniau y mae Trafnidiaeth 
Cymru wedi’u datblygu ar gyfer gêm bêl-droed ragbrofol Ewro 2024 rhwng Cymru a’r Ffindir 
yn Stadiwm Dinas Caerdydd ar 21 Mawrth, cyn wynebu naill ai Gwlad Pwyl neu Estonia ddydd 
Mawrth 26 Mawrth, a allai fod yn gêm derfynol ail-gyfle neu’n gêm ryngwladol gyfeillgar yn 
dibynnu ar y canlyniad yn erbyn y Ffindir. Rydym ni yn Trafnidiaeth Cymru yn cydnabod y rôl 
bwysig rydym yn ei chwarae o ran cefnogi llwyddiant y digwyddiadau hyn ac rydym yn 
croesawu eich her o sicrhau ein bod yn darparu’r gwasanaeth gorau posibl i gefnogwyr o bob 
cwr o Gymru.  
 
Rwy’n cydnabod bod TrC wedi wynebu heriau gweithredol yn y gorffennol wrth ddarparu 
gwasanaethau ar ddiwrnodau gemau pêl-droed rhyngwladol – yn enwedig i gefnogwyr sy’n 
teithio rhwng Gogledd a De Cymru. Rydym wedi clywed y pryderon a fynegwyd gan gefnogwyr 
ac rydym am wella’r gwasanaeth rydym yn ei gynnig a meithrin ymddiriedaeth a hyder y 
cefnogwyr hynny sy’n teithio i'r gemau. Hoffwn eich sicrhau chi a’r pwyllgor fy mod i, yn 
bersonol, wedi cwrdd â Chymdeithas Bêl-droed Cymru ddechrau mis Ionawr 2024, i sicrhau 
bod y gwersi a ddysgwyd o gemau blaenorol yn cael eu rhoi ar waith cyn y gemau sydd ar y 
gweill. Roeddwn yn ddiolchgar am yr adborth gan Gymdeithas Bêl-droed Cymru a’r ffordd 
gefnogol maent wedi mynd ati i hwyluso sgyrsiau rhyngom ni a chynrychiolwyr cefnogwyr pêl-
droed Cymru. Rhoddodd tîm digwyddiadau arbennig TrC gyflwyniad a gwybodaeth i 
Gymdeithas Bêl-droed Cymru a’r Gymdeithas Cefnogwyr Pêl-droed yn Stadiwm Dinas 
Caerdydd ar 15 Chwefror, gan amlinellu’r trefniadau sydd ar y gweill ar gyfer y ddwy gêm. 
Cytunwyd y byddem yn mynychu sesiynau dilynol gyda’r Gymdeithas Cefnogwyr Pêl-droed, 
a chytunwyd hefyd ar gyfarfodydd sydd wedi’u trefnu ar gyfer gweddill y flwyddyn.   
 
Ar y dudalen ganlynol, rwyf wedi crynhoi’r cynlluniau sydd gennym ar waith nawr ar gyfer y 
gemau sydd i ddod. Mae’r manylion eisoes mewn systemau cynllunio teithiau ac rydym yn 
disgwyl cyhoeddi’r manylion llawn i’r cyhoedd cyn bo hir.  
 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 334



3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd,  
CF37 4TH, 
029 2167 3434 
trc.cymru 

3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd 
 CF37 4TH 
029 2167 3434 
tfw.wales 

 

 

Cwmni Cyfyngedig drwy Warant. Cofrestrwyd yng Nghymru. Rhif 

Cwmni 09476013. Cyfeiriad Swyddfa Gofrestredig: 3 Llys Cadwyn, 
Pontypridd, CF37 4TH 

A Company Limited by Guarantee. Registered in Wales. Company No. 
09476013. Registered Office Address: 3  Llys Cadwyn, Pontypridd, CF37 
4TH 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Trosolwg o’r gwasanaeth 
Mae’r gwaith o gryfhau gwasanaethau rheilffyrdd allweddol rhwng y Gogledd a’r De wedi’i 
drefnu ar gyfer y canlynol:  
 

I mewn   

• 10:40 yn gadael Caergybi – yn cyrraedd Caerdydd Canolog am 15:10 

• 12:30 yn gadael Manceinion Piccadilly – yn cyrraedd Caerdydd Canolog am 15:42 
 

Allan  

• 22:47 yn gadael Caerdydd Canolog – yn cyrraedd Wrecsam am 01:32, Caer am 
01:48 a Crewe am 02:14* 

• 23:39 yn gadael Caergybi – yn cyrraedd Henffordd am 00:42 
 
*Bydd y gwasanaeth sy’n gadael yn hwyr yn rhoi amser i gwsmeriaid deithio o’r 
stadiwm os bydd unrhyw amser ychwanegol/ciciau o’r smotyn yn y gêm.   

 
Er mwyn cefnogi’r uchod, rydym wedi cryfhau’r gwasanaeth cyntaf sy’n mynd i’r gogledd y 
diwrnod canlynol (22ain Mawrth) a fydd yn cyd-daro ag amseroedd gadael gwestai. Dyma’r 
gwasanaeth 11:25 o orsaf Caerdydd Canolog, sy’n cyrraedd Caergybi am 16:15.  
 
Rydym wedi ystyried y dyhead i redeg gwasanaeth hyd at Gaergybi ar ôl y gêm, ond byddai 
hyn yn arbennig o heriol oherwydd gwaith peirianyddol sydd wedi’i drefnu, yr angen am staff 
blychau signalau estynedig a chriwiau trenau ychwanegol. Bu’r tîm yn ymchwilio i’r opsiwn, 
ond roedd yn amlwg pe byddem yn gweithredu hyn, na fyddai ein cwsmeriaid yn cyrraedd tan 
tua 05:00 y diwrnod canlynol. Rydym hefyd wedi trefnu i gryfhau gwasanaethau ar y llwybrau 
allweddol canlynol: 
 

• Caerdydd Canolog i Barc Ninian, Parc Ninian i Gaerdydd Canolog – cyn ac ar ôl y gêm  

• Caerdydd Canolog i Gasnewydd – ar ôl y gêm  

• Caerdydd Canolog i Henffordd – ar ôl y gêm  

• Treherbert i Gaerdydd Canolog (ac yn ôl) – ar ôl y gêm  

• Rhymni i Gaerdydd Canolog (ac yn ôl) – cyn ac ar ôl y gêm  

• Merthyr i Gaerdydd Canolog (ac yn ôl) – ar ôl y gêm 

• Aberdâr i Gaerdydd Canolog (ac yn ôl) – ar ôl y gêm 
 
Y gwasanaethau olaf i’r gorllewin yw’r gwasanaeth 23:15 sy’n gadael Caerdydd Canolog, gan 
gyrraedd Caerfyrddin am 01:42, a’r gwasanaeth 23:59 sy’n gadael Caerdydd Canolog, gan 
gyrraedd Abertawe am 00:52.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 335



3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd,  
CF37 4TH, 
029 2167 3434 
trc.cymru 

3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd 
 CF37 4TH 
029 2167 3434 
tfw.wales 

 

 

Cwmni Cyfyngedig drwy Warant. Cofrestrwyd yng Nghymru. Rhif 

Cwmni 09476013. Cyfeiriad Swyddfa Gofrestredig: 3 Llys Cadwyn, 
Pontypridd, CF37 4TH 

A Company Limited by Guarantee. Registered in Wales. Company No. 
09476013. Registered Office Address: 3  Llys Cadwyn, Pontypridd, CF37 
4TH 

 
 
 

Gwaith peirianyddol 
 
Er mwyn cyflawni’r cynlluniau uchod, rydym wedi gofyn am ddiwygio gwaith peirianneg min 
nos ganol yr wythnos – mae hyn yn caniatáu i wasanaethau arferol a gwasanaethau 
ychwanegol weithredu yn unol â chynllun y digwyddiad. Rydym wedi gweithio’n agos gyda’n 
partneriaid yn Amey Infrastructure Wales a Network Rail i hwyluso’r ceisiadau hyn er mwyn 
caniatáu i’r llwybrau canlynol weithredu fel arfer:  
 
21 Mawrth 2024 

• Rheilffordd Treherbert 

• Rheilffordd Rhymni 

• Rheilffordd/Rheilffyrdd Merthyr Tudful/Aberdâr – Radur 

• Dau lwybr yng ngorsaf Casnewydd 

• Llwybr gwarchodedig rhwng Parc Ninian a Chaer i atal unrhyw waith peirianyddol 
ychwanegol. 

 
26 Mawrth 2024 

• Rheilffordd Treherbert 

• Rheilffordd Glynebwy 

• Rheilffordd Rhymni 

• Llwybrau gwarchodedig rhwng Caerdydd Canolog – Ynys y Barri/Abertawe/Caer i atal 
unrhyw waith peirianyddol ychwanegol.  

 
Roedd awydd i redeg gwasanaethau ymhellach i’r gorllewin ar gyfer y gemau hyn, ond 
oherwydd blocâd peirianneg o 10 diwrnod rhwng Hendy-gwyn ar Daf a Doc Penfro, ac er ein 
bod wedi gofyn am gwtogi gyda Network Rail, nid oeddem wedi gallu bwrw ymlaen â hyn 
ymhellach. Byddai wedi ychwanegu 2 ddiwrnod ychwanegol o waith peirianyddol at yr 
amserlen bresennol.  
 
Darpariaeth bysiau wrth gefn  
Bydd darpariaeth bysiau a bysiau moethus wrth gefn ar gael mewn lleoliadau allweddol ar hyd 
rheilffordd y Gororau ac yng ngorsaf Caerdydd Canolog, os yw nifer y cwsmeriaid yn uwch 
na’r disgwyl.  
 
Cyflawni ar gyfer cwsmeriaid  
Byddwn yn gweithio’n agos gyda staff yr orsaf, yr Heddlu Trafnidiaeth Prydeinig a’n 
cydweithwyr diogelwch i fonitro pob gwasanaeth. Bydd gennym reolwr digwyddiadau ar ddau 
o’r gwasanaethau allweddol yn ôl ac ymlaen i Ogledd Cymru (y gwasanaeth 10.40 o Gaergybi 
a’r gwasanaeth 11.25 i Gaergybi) a fydd yn mynd gyda chefnogwyr ac yn rhoi cyngor i deithwyr 
drwy gydol eu taith.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 336



3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd,  
CF37 4TH, 
029 2167 3434 
trc.cymru 

3 Llys Cadwyn 
Pontypridd 
 CF37 4TH 
029 2167 3434 
tfw.wales 

 

 

Cwmni Cyfyngedig drwy Warant. Cofrestrwyd yng Nghymru. Rhif 

Cwmni 09476013. Cyfeiriad Swyddfa Gofrestredig: 3 Llys Cadwyn, 
Pontypridd, CF37 4TH 

A Company Limited by Guarantee. Registered in Wales. Company No. 
09476013. Registered Office Address: 3  Llys Cadwyn, Pontypridd, CF37 
4TH 

 
 
 

Ar ben hynny, bydd gennym gynllun rheoli torfeydd ar waith yng ngorsaf Caerdydd Canolog 
ac ym Mharc Ninian, lle bydd cydweithwyr wrth law i helpu cwsmeriaid, yn ogystal â monitro 
nifer y teithwyr cyn ac ar ôl y gêm.  
 
Hoffwn sicrhau’r pwyllgor bod cynlluniau cadarn a chynlluniau wrth gefn wedi’u rhoi ar waith i 
ddiogelu’r gwasanaethau allweddol rydym yn disgwyl i gefnogwyr fod yn eu defnyddio. Mae 
gan gydweithwyr yn nhîm digwyddiadau arbennig TrC reolwyr cynllunio a chyflawni pwrpasol, 
ac mae ein gwaith ar y cyd â Chymdeithas Bêl-droed Cymru, ac ar ddigwyddiadau chwaraeon 
mawr eraill ar draws y rhwydwaith yn ddiweddar, wedi arwain at hyder yn ein sefyllfa i ddarparu 
ar gyfer y gemau hyn sydd ar y gweill.   
 
Byddwn yn annog cefnogwyr sy’n teithio i barhau i chwilio am yr wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am 
deithio cyn cychwyn, a thrwy gydol y dydd, ar ein gwefan, ein gwiriwr teithiau a’n sianeli 
cymdeithasol i gael yr wybodaeth ddiweddaraf. 
 
Gobeithio bod yr uchod yn ddefnyddiol. Os oes gennych chi unrhyw gwestiynau pellach, mae 
croeso i chi gysylltu â mi. Byddai fy swyddfa’n fodlon trefnu sesiwn friffio dechnegol cyn y gêm 
os ydych chi’n dymuno.   
 
Cofion cynnes, 

 
James Price 
Prif Weithredwr, Trafnidiaeth Cymru. 

Tudalen y pecyn 337



Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru                  
Correspondence.Julie.James@gov. Cymru 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Bydd unrhyw ohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn cael ei hateb yn Gymraeg ac 
ni fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi wrth ymateb.   

Ein cyf/Our ref: JJ/PO/0070/24  
 
 
Huw Irranca-Davies AS 
Cadeirydd 
Y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a'r Cyfansoddiad 
 
Llŷr Gruffydd MS 
Cadeirydd 
Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
Senedd Cymru  
Bae Caerdydd  
Caerdydd  
CF99 1SN  
 

6 Mawrth 2024 
 
Annwyl Huw, Llŷr, 
 
Rwy'n ysgrifennu yn unol â'r cytundeb cysylltiadau rhyngsefydliadol, i adrodd ar gyfarfod 
diweddaraf y Grŵp Rhyng-Weinidogol Sero-Net, Ynni a Newid Hinsawdd, a gynhaliwyd ar 
21 Chwefror 2024. Canolbwyntiodd y cyfarfod ar y gyfres nesaf o ymgynghoriadau ar gyfer 
newidiadau i Gynllun Masnachu Allyriadau'r DU.  
 
Mynychwyd y cyfarfod hefyd gan Mairi McAllan MSP, Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Sero Net 
a Just Transition, Andrew Muir MLA, Gweinidog Amaethyddiaeth, Amgylchedd a Materion 
Gwledig, Conor Murphy MLA, Gweinidog yr Economi, yr Arglwydd Martin Callanan, Is-
Ysgrifennydd Gwladol y Senedd dros Effeithlonrwydd Ynni a Chyllid Gwyrdd, yr Arglwydd 
Byron Davies, Is-ysgrifennydd Gwladol Seneddol dros Drafnidiaeth,  Gareth Davies AS, 
Ysgrifennydd Trysorlys y Trysorlys. 
 
Yn gywir, 
 

 
 
Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Gweinidog Newid Hinsaw 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 338

Eitem 5.8

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales


 

 

 

 

 

8 Mawrth 2024 

Annwyl Weinidog, 

 

Safle mwynglawdd brig Ffos-y-Fran 

 

Ysgrifennaf ymhellach i’m llythyr dyddiedig 11 Ionawr 2024 parthed mwynglawdd brig Ffos-y-Fran. 

Byddwch yn ymwybodol imi ofyn am ymateb i’r llythyr hwnnw erbyn 22 Chwefror 2024. Mae’n 

siomedig bod yr ymateb bellach bythefnos yn hwyr.  

 

Fel y gwyddoch, mae gan y Pwyllgor bryder mawr ynghylch adfer Ffos-y-Fran ac mae’n awyddus i 

ddeall, ochr yn ochr â materion ehangach, rôl Llywodraeth Cymru gan fod y camau cyfreithiol yn 

erbyn gweithredwyr y safle wedi hen ddod i ben. 

 

Byddwn yn ddiolchgar pe gallech ymateb i’m llythyr dyddiedig 11 Ionawr 2024 ar frys. 

 

Yn gywir, 

 

 

 

 

Llyr Gruffydd AS, 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu’n Saesneg. We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd,  
yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
— 
Climate Change, Environment,  
and Infrastructure Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddHinsawdd 

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru 

senedd.wales/SeneddClimate 
0300 200 6565 

Julie James AS 

Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 

Tudalen y pecyn 339

Eitem 5.9

mailto:SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru
mailto:SeneddClimate@senedd.wales


Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Minister for Climate Change 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru                  
Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
 
 
 
Ein cyf/Our ref JJ/PO/104/24 
 
Llyr Gruffydd AS 
Cadeirydd, Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith  
 
SeneddHinsawdd@Senedd.Cymru 
 
 

15 Mawrth 2024 
 
Annwyl Llyr 
 
 
Diolch am eich llythyrau dyddiedig 11 Ionawr ac 8 Mawrth yn gofyn am ragor o wybodaeth 
am safle Ffos y Frân. Hoffwn ymddiheuro am yr oedi cyn ymateb.  
 
1. Dywedwyd mai dim ond £15 miliwn yr oedd y cwmni mwyngloddio wedi'i neilltuo ar gyfer 
gwaith adfer. Yn eich llythyr, rydych yn cyfeirio at hyn fel “blaendal o £15 miliwn” sydd i fod i 
“ariannu rhywfaint o waith adfer os na fydd gweithredwr y safle yn cydymffurfio â'r amodau 
adfer”. A yw'n wir nad yw'r cwmni mwyngloddio wedi neilltuo unrhyw arian y tu hwnt i’r 
blaendal blaenorol? 
 
Dim ond Merthyr (South Wales) Ltd sydd yn gwybod faint o gyllid y maent wedi ei neilltuo er 
mwyn adfer y safle.  Yn ôl y cyfrifon diwethaf a gyflwynwyd i Dŷ’r Cwmnïau, ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn a ddaeth i ben ar 31 Rhagfyr 2021, roedd y cwmni yn darparu ar gyfer ychydig 
dros £71 miliwn ar gyfer rhwymedigaethau.  Nid yw’n eglur faint o’r ffigur hwn sy’n dal ar 
gael ar gyfer gwneud gwaith adfer, ac nid yw’n eglur ‘chwaith a yw’n cynnwys y £15 miliwn 
sydd ar gadw mewn cyfrif ysgrow gan Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Merthyr Tudful, y cyfeiriais 
ato yn fy ngohebiaeth flaenorol fel “blaendal o £15 miliwn”.  Mae’r cwmni’n amharod i 
ryddhau manylion y cytundeb sydd ganddo gyda’r Cyngor a fyddai’n egluro sut mae’r cyllid 
sydd mewn ar gadw mewn ysgrow yn cael ei ryddhau.  Mae’n dal i beri pryder i mi nad yw’r 
cwmni’n fodlon rhannu gwybodaeth ynghylch gweithrediad a chyflwr y safle. 
 
2. Amcangyfrifir bod y costau adfer ar gyfer y safle yn amrywio o £120 miliwn i £175 miliwn. 
Pa asesiad, os o gwbl, y mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi’i wneud o gyfanswm y gost adfer ar 
gyfer safle Ffos-y-Frân? 
 
Fel rhan o’u rôl yn monitro gwaith o dan y caniatâd cynllunio, mater i’r Cyngor fu adolygu 
cynlluniau’r gwaith adfer.  Nid yw Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwneud asesiad o gyfanswm 
costau adfer safle Ffos y Frân y tu hwnt i’r hyn oedd wedi’i gynnwys yn yr adroddiad 

Tudalen y pecyn 340

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales
mailto:SeneddHinsawdd@Senedd.Cymru


‘Ymchwil i’r methiant i adfer safleoedd glo brig yn Ne Cymru’ (“yr adroddiad ymchwil”), sy’n 
rhoi amcangyfrif o gostau yn seiliedig ar yr wybodaeth oedd ar gael ar y pryd. 
 
3. Pa fesurau sydd ar gael i Lywodraeth Cymru i sicrhau bod y cwmni mwyngloddio yn 
cyflawni ei rwymedigaethau ariannol o ran adfer? Pa gynllunio wrth gefn a wnaed rhag ofn y 
bydd y cwmni’n methu â chyflawni’r rhwymedigaethau hyn? 
 
Mae’r polisi a’r canllawiau ym Mholisi Cynllunio Cymru a Nodyn Cyngor Technegol Mwynau 
2: Glo (MTAN 2) yn nodi’n glir fod yn rhaid i weithredwyr fodloni eu rhwymedigaethau adfer. 
Hon yw’r sail allweddol sy’n gwneud dyfarnu caniatâd cynllunio’n bosibl.  
 
Amodau cynllunio yw’r brif ffordd o sicrhau bod tir sydd wedi ei effeithio gan echdynnu 
mwynau yn cael ei adfer i ansawdd uchel sy’n addas ar gyfer yr ôl ddefnydd a gytunwyd ar 
gyfer y safle, ac ar y cyfle cynharaf posibl. Dylai gweithredwyr a pherchnogion tir sicrhau 
bod digon o gyllid wedi ei neilltuo i’w galluogi i ddiwallu rhwymedigaethau adfer a dylai’r 
awdurdod cynllunio lleol ofyn am sicrwydd ariannol, er mwyn sicrhau bod y gwaith adfer yn 
cael ei gyflawni’n llwyr.  Gallant wneud hyn drwy rwymedigaeth adran 106 fel rhan o 
gymeradwyo caniatâd cynllunio. Mae Deddfau Lleol yn gymwys mewn ardaloedd penodol 
(Deddf Dyfed (1987), Deddf Gorllewin Morgannwg (1987), Deddf Cyngor Sir Morgannwg 
Ganol (1987)), sy’n galluogi gosod systemau sicrwydd ariannol a bondiau fel amod ar 
ganiatâd cynllunio ar gyfer pyllau glo, felly os nad oes bond yn ei le, ni fyddai caniatâd 
cynllunio yn cael ei roi, a gellid erlyn cwmnïau nad ydynt yn cyflawni eu rhwymedigaethau 
ariannol. 
 
4. Yn eich llythyr, gwnaethoch ddweud, yn absenoldeb cyllid digonol, mai cyfrifoldeb y 
Cyngor fyddai gwneud y safle’n ddiogel ac, yn y tymor hwy, cwblhau’r gwaith adfer. Fe 
wnaethoch egluro bod trafodaethau amlasiantaeth ar y gweill i baratoi trefniadau wrth gefn 
pe bai'r safle'n cael ei adael. A allwch roi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y cynnydd a wnaed? 
 
Er mai cyfrifoldeb y Cyngor yw sicrhau bod y safle’n ddiogel a chwblhau gwaith adfer os 
bydd gweithredwr y safle a’r tirfeddiannwr yn mynd i ddwylo’r gweinyddwyr, rydym wedi 
cynnig cymorth a chredwn fod ganddynt yr holl wybodaeth sydd ei hangen arnynt gennym 
ni i baratoi trefniadau wrth gefn. Mae’r cymorth amlasiantaeth i’r Cyngor wedi parhau drwy 
gyfarfodydd misol gyda’r swyddogion.  
 
5. Pa fathau o gytundebau sy’n bodoli ledled Cymru i ariannu’r gwaith o adfer safleoedd ar 
ôl i weithrediadau ddod i ben? A ydych yn fodlon bod digon o fesurau diogelu ar waith i 
sicrhau bod yr arian yn ddigonol ar gyfer adfer neu wella’r safle yn llawn? 
 
Yn fy ateb i gwestiwn 3, rwy’n nodi’r systemau ar gyfer sicrhau’r gwaith o adfer. Yn yr 
adroddiad ymchwil, ystyriwyd effeithiolrwydd y dulliau amrywiol, a nodwyd yr anawsterau 
oedd ynghlwm wrth osod bond neu drefniadau yswiriant priodol.  Er y credaf y byddai’r 
fframwaith deddfwriaethol yn sicrhau camau diogelwch priodol petai safleoedd newydd yn 
dod i’r amlwg, rwy’n siomedig bod yn rhaid i ni ymdrin â’r gwaddol sy’n deillio o arferion 
gwael. Mae’r trefniadau preifateiddio a wnaed gan Lywodraeth y DU i roi imiwnedd i 
gwmnïau rhag gofynion o ran bond am gyfnod o 10 mlynedd a’r diwylliant sydd ynghlwm 
wrth hyn wedi cael effaith ddybryd ar allu cyrff cyhoeddus i sicrhau cronfeydd a mesurau 
diogelu i sicrhau adfer llawn. Ar draws y meysydd glo mae cwmnïau wedi blaenoriaethu elw 
ar draul eu cyfrifoldeb i’w cymunedau. Mae difyg cyllid yn effeithio ar safleoedd sy’n golygu 
bod angen gwneud penderfyniadau anodd ac anfoddhaol ynghylch cynlluniau adfer 
diwygiedig. 
 
6. A oes safleoedd gwaith glo brig gweithredol neu anweithredol penodol sy’n peri pryder 
penodol nad yw’r arian a gronnwyd (trwy fondio a mecanweithiau eraill) yn ddigon i dalu ar 

Tudalen y pecyn 341



gyfer y rhwymedigaethau ariannol sy’n gysylltiedig ag adfer ac ôl-ofal yn unol â’r amodau 
cynllunio y cytunwyd arnynt? 
 
Edrychodd yr adroddiad ymchwil ar y mwyafrif o safleoedd glo brig ledled Cymru, a nodwyd 
y risgiau oedd yn gysylltiedig ag adfer y safleoedd hynny. 
 
7. A yw Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwn eud unrhyw waith ar faterion yn ymwneud ag adfer 
safleoedd glo brig ers ei hadroddiad yn 2014 “Ymchwil i'r methiant i adfer safleoedd glo brig 
yn Ne Cymru”? Pa gamau, os o gwbl, a gymerodd Llywodraeth Cymru yng ngoleuni 
canfyddiadau’r adroddiad? 
 
Yn 2016, fe wnaeth Llywodraeth Cymru a’r Awdurdod Glo weithio gyda rhanddeiliaid er 
mwyn paratoi canllawiau arferion da ar gyfrifo, cronni a rheoli bondiau er mwyn ceisio 
sefydlu sail gyson ar gyfer trafodaethau ledled Cymru. https://www.llyw.cymru/adfer-pyllau-
glo-brig-canllawiau  
 
8. Yn eich llythyr, rydych chi'n cyfeirio at sawl rhaglen a menter sydd â'r bwriad o gefnogi 
cynweithwyr ar y safle. A allwch roi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am gynnydd y gwaith hwn a'i 
lwyddiant hyd yn hyn wrth ddod o hyd i gyflogaeth arall ar gyfer y gweithlu? 
 
Deallaf fod galw mawr am y bobl sydd wedi colli eu swyddi yn sgil eu sgiliau a’u profiad, felly 
mae’r rhan fwyaf ohonynt eisoes wedi sicrhau swyddi newydd. 
 
Mae sefydliadau cymorth wedi bod yn trafod yn uniongyrchol â’r cwmni ac â gweithwyr unigol 
er mwyn tynnu eu sylw at y cymorth sydd ar gael iddynt ac rydym yn parhau’n ymrwymedig i 
sicrhau y gall unrhyw un a allai elwa ar y cymorth hwnnw fanteisio arno.   
 
Yn gywir  
 

 
 
Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Minister for Climate Change  

Tudalen y pecyn 342

https://www.llyw.cymru/adfer-pyllau-glo-brig-canllawiau
https://www.llyw.cymru/adfer-pyllau-glo-brig-canllawiau


 
 
Centre City Tower, 7 Hill Street, Birmingham B5 4UA 
11 Westferry Circus, Canary Wharf, London E14 4HD  

 

Lynn Parker, Senior Casework, Enforcement and Customers       m. 07464 640382 
lynn.parker@ofwat.gov.uk  

 

By email  
 
14th March 2024  

Re: Ofwat investigation into Dŵr Cymru  

I am writing to inform you that following an investigation by Ofwat, which found Dŵr Cymru 
misled customers and regulators about its record of tackling leakage and water use, the 
company will have to pay nearly £40 million to benefit customers as part of a proposed 
enforcement package.  
  
We formally opened an investigation in May 2023, which came after Dŵr Cymru notified Ofwat 
that it had identified inaccuracies with the figures it had previously reported for its 
performance in 2020-21 and 2021-22. This had been identified as a result of the requirements 
Ofwat puts on companies to assure the data they submit to us. Our subsequent investigation 
found evidence that a significant failure of governance and management oversight led to the 
water company misreporting its leakage and per capita consumption ('PCC') performance 
figures over a period of several years, significantly underplaying its poor performance.  
  
You may recall that following our opening the investigation in May, Dŵr Cymru apologised to 
its customers, and announced it would be providing £15m in compensation. In addition, as part 
of the enforcement package, Dŵr Cymru will have to provide £9.4m to lower bills for customers, 
and a further £15m of costs will be absorbed by Dŵr Cymru, rather than passed on to 
customers.    
  
As part of today's announcement, Ofwat has launched a public consultation on its provisional 
decision here.  
 
Ofwat is determined to transform performance in the water industry so that it delivers better 
outcomes for customers and the environment, and no company should be in any doubt about 
the importance of reporting accurate and transparent information.   
  
Companies need to invest a significant amount over the next 30 years to reduce pollution and 
ensure that our water infrastructure can grow with our population and adapt for climate 
change.  In the context of increasing challenges for the sector, the public's trust depends on 
companies acting with integrity and transparency, with a visible commitment to serving the 
interests of customers and the environment.  
  
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 343

Eitem 5.10

https://corporate.dwrcymru.com/en/news-media/2023/welsh-water-customers-to-receive-rebate
https://www.ofwat.gov.uk/consultation/notice-of-ofwats-proposal-to-impose-a-financial-penalty-on-dwr-cymru-cyfyngedig/


 

2 

Ymchwiliad Ofwat i Dŵr Cymru 

Ysgrifennaf atoch i’ch hysbysu, yn dilyn ymchwiliad gan Ofwat, a ganfu fod Dŵr Cymru wedi 
camarwain cwsmeriaid a rheoleiddwyr ynghylch ei hanes o fynd i’r afael â gollyngiadau a 
defnydd dŵr, y bydd yn rhaid i’r cwmni dalu bron i £40 miliwn er budd cwsmeriaid fel rhan o 
pecyn gorfodi arfaethedig. 

Gwnaethom agor ymchwiliad yn ffurfiol ym mis Mai 2023, a ddaeth ar ôl i Dŵr Cymru hysbysu 
Ofwat ei fod wedi nodi anghywirdebau yn y ffigurau yr adroddwyd arnynt yn flaenorol ar gyfer 
ei berfformiad yn 2020-21 a 2021-22. Roedd hyn wedi'i nodi o ganlyniad i'r gofynion y mae 
Ofwat yn rhoi ar gwmnïau i sicrhau'r data y maent yn ei gyflwyno i ni. Canfu ein hymchwiliad 
dilynol dystiolaeth bod methiant sylweddol o ran goruchwyliaeth llywodraethu a rheoli wedi 
arwain at y cwmni dŵr yn cam-adrodd ei ffigurau perfformiad gollyngiadau a defnydd y pen 
(‘per capita consumption', PCC) dros gyfnod o sawl blwyddyn, gan danbrisio ei berfformiad 
gwael yn sylweddol. 

Efallai y byddwch yn cofio, ar ôl i ni agor yr ymchwiliad ym mis Mai, ymddiheurodd Dŵr Cymru 
i’w cwsmeriaid, a chyhoeddi y byddai’n darparu £15m mewn iawndal. Yn ogystal, fel rhan o'r 
pecyn gorfodi, bydd yn rhaid i Dŵr Cymru ddarparu £9.4m i ostwng biliau cwsmeriaid, a bydd 
£15m pellach o gostau yn cael eu hamsugno gan Dŵr Cymru, yn hytrach na'u trosglwyddo i 
gwsmeriaid. 

Fel rhan o'r cyhoeddiad heddiw, mae Ofwat wedi lansio ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus ar ei 
benderfyniad dros dro. 

Mae Ofwat yn benderfynol o drawsnewid perfformiad yn y diwydiant dŵr fel ei fod yn sicrhau 
canlyniadau gwell i gwsmeriaid a’r amgylchedd, ac ni ddylai unrhyw gwmni fod ag unrhyw 
amheuaeth ynghylch pwysigrwydd adrodd ar wybodaeth gywir a thryloyw. 

Mae angen i gwmnïau fuddsoddi swm sylweddol dros y 30 mlynedd nesaf i leihau llygredd a 
sicrhau y gall ein seilwaith dŵr dyfu gyda’n poblogaeth ac addasu ar gyfer newid yn yr 
hinsawdd. Yng nghyd-destun heriau cynyddol i'r sector, mae ymddiriedaeth y cyhoedd yn 
dibynnu ar gwmnïau'n gweithredu'n onest ac yn dryloyw, gydag ymrwymiad gweladwy i 
wasanaethu buddiannau cwsmeriaid a'r amgylchedd. 
 
 
I hope you find this update useful - Gobeithio y bydd y diweddariad hwn yn ddefnyddiol i chi. 
 
Yours sincerely - Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 
 

 
 
Lynn Parker 
Senior Director, Casework, Enforcement and Customers /  

Uwch Gyfarwyddwr Gwaith Achos, Gorfodi a Chwsmeriaid 

Tudalen y pecyn 344

https://corporate.dwrcymru.com/cy-gb/news-media/2023/welsh-water-customers-to-receive-rebate
https://www.ofwat.gov.uk/consultation/notice-of-ofwats-proposal-to-impose-a-financial-penalty-on-dcww_we/


Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Minister for Climate Change 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru                  
Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth Gymraeg sy’n dod i law yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd gohebu yn 
Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Eich cyf/Your ref  
Ein cyf/Our ref JJ/PO/101/24 
 
Llyr Gruffydd AS, 
Cadeirydd, Y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 
Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, 
Caerdydd 
CF99 1SN 
SeneddHinsawdd@senedd.cymru   
 

14 Mawrth 2024 
 
Annwyl Llyr Gruffydd AS, 
 
Diolch am eich llythyr ar 5 Chwefror ar ran y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a 

Seilwaith, gan amgáu Adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar berfformiad Dŵr Cymru. Mae ein sector dŵr 

yn wynebu her uniongyrchol a digynsail; rhaid iddo ddatgarboneiddio, gwrthsefyll y newid yn 

yr hinsawdd a gwrthdroi'r golled mewn bioamrywiaeth, i gyd yn erbyn cefndir yr argyfwng 

costau byw presennol. Fodd bynnag, rwyf wedi dweud droeon o'r blaen, yn y Senedd a'r tu 

allan iddi, fod Llywodraeth Cymru yn disgwyl i'r ddau gwmni dŵr yng Nghymru weithio'n 

llawer caletach i ddarparu gwasanaethau rhagorol i gwsmeriaid ar draws pob maes 

gweithredu.  

 

O'r 12 argymhelliad a amlinellwyd yn yr adroddiad, nodaf fod wyth wedi eu cyfeirio at Dŵr 

Cymru ac Ofwat. Byddant yn ymateb ar wahân a byddaf yn darllen eu hymateb gyda 

diddordeb gan ddisgwyl gweld uchelgais, dull o weithio mewn partneriaeth ac ymdrech i 

wella. Fe welwch ymateb i bob un o'r pedwar argymhelliad sy'n weddill a gyfeiriwyd at 

Lywodraeth Cymru, fel a ganlyn: 

 
Argymhelliad 4. Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru geisio cyflwyno gwaharddiad ar weips gwlyb sy'n 

cynnwys plastig cyn gynted â phosibl.  Dylai adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor ar ganlyniad yr 

ymgynghoriad ar y cyd ar waharddiad arfaethedig ac ar yr amserlen y mae’n gweithio tuag 

ati ar gyfer cyflwyno gwaharddiad yng Nghymru. 

 
Derbyn mewn egwyddor: Yn dilyn yr ymgynghoriad diweddar ledled y DU, rydym yn 
dadansoddi'r ymatebion, ac mae rhai ohonynt wedi bod yn fanwl ac yn wyddonol eu natur. 
Byddwn yn cyhoeddi Crynodeb o'r Ymatebion yn fuan. Bydd hyn yn amlinellu ein camau 
nesaf ac yn darparu amserlen ddangosol ar gyfer unrhyw gamau gweithredu yn y dyfodol. 
Byddaf yn ysgrifennu at y Pwyllgor a'r Senedd fel rhan o'r broses gyhoeddi. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 345

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales
mailto:SeneddClimate@senedd.wales


Argymhelliad 8. Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru a’i phartneriaid allweddol, gan gynnwys Dŵr 

Cymru, nodi ffyrdd o gyfathrebu’n effeithiol ddull Cymru o fynd i’r afael â gollyngiadau 

charthion o orlifoedd storm er mwyn gwella dealltwriaeth y cyhoedd o’r dull. 

 
Derbyn: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwneud ein dull o fynd i'r afael â gorlifoedd 
stormydd yn gyhoeddus drwy Ddatganiadau Ysgrifenedig a Llafar y Senedd, gan gynnwys y 
Datganiad Llafar ar Ansawdd Dŵr a ddarparwyd gennyf yn fwyaf diweddar ar 12 Rhagfyr. 
Fel y bydd y Pwyllgor yn ymwybodol, rwyf hefyd wedi rhoi tystiolaeth ar ein dull o ymdrin â 
gorlifoedd stormydd yn eich sesiynau tystiolaeth. Yn ogystal, rwyf wedi darparu tystiolaeth 
ysgrifenedig i Ymchwiliad Pwyllgor Materion Cymreig Senedd y DU i Ansawdd Dŵr (gweler 
Ansawdd Dŵr yng Nghymru - Pwyllgorau - Senedd y DU). Byddwn yn parhau i gyfleu ein 
dull drwy'r llwybrau ffurfiol hyn, yn ogystal ag yn fwy anffurfiol drwy sianeli cyfryngau 
cymdeithasol Llywodraeth Cymru, er mwyn sicrhau bod cynifer o'r cyhoedd â phosib yn 
deall ein dull gweithredu. Ar ben hynny, rwyf i a'm swyddogion yn cyfarfod yn rheolaidd â 
Dŵr Cymru i drafod pob maes gweithredu a byddwn yn parhau â'r trafodaethau hyn, gan 
gynnwys ar gyfathrebu ar orlifoedd storm.   
 
Argymhelliad 10. Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru ystyried ymestyn pwerau gorfodi CNC er mwyn 

galluogi’r rheoleiddiwr i dderbyn ymrwymiadau amgylcheddol am dorri amodau trwyddedau 

o dan Reoliadau Trwyddedu Amgylcheddol (Cymru a Lloegr) 2016.  Dylai adrodd yn ôl i’r 

Pwyllgor ar ganlyniad ei ystyriaeth. 

 
Derbyn mewn egwyddor: Gall sancsiynau sifil fel Ymgymeriadau Amgylcheddol (UE) fod 
yn offeryn gorfodi defnyddiol yn ogystal â phwerau gorfodi eraill. Nodaf fod gan Cyfoeth 
Naturiol Cymru eisoes bwerau i ddefnyddio'r UE mewn rhai achosion er nad yw hyn wedi'i 
ymestyn i'r Rheoliadau Trwyddedu Amgylcheddol ar hyn o bryd. Byddwn yn ystyried yr 
argymhelliad hwn ymhellach ac yn adrodd yn ôl i'r Pwyllgor maes o law. 
 
Argymhelliad 12. Dylai’r Gweinidog roi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am y camau a gymerwyd i 

leddfu’r pwysau ar y system garthffosiaeth ers cyhoeddi Adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar orlifoedd 

stormydd yng Nghymru (Mawrth 2022).  Dylai hyn gynnwys cynnydd tuag at weithredu'r 

argymhellion sy'n codi o'r adolygiad o Systemau Draenio Cynaliadwy. 

 

Derbyn: Ym mis Gorffennaf 2022, sefydlwyd y Tasglu Gwella Ansawdd Afonydd ar draws y 
llywodraeth a diwydiant i werthuso'r dull presennol o reoli a rheoleiddio gorlifoedd yng 
Nghymru ac i nodi cynlluniau manwl i sbarduno newid a gwelliant cyflym. Mae wedi 
cyhoeddi map ffordd gorlifoedd stormydd ar gyfer Cymru, sydd i'w weld ar-lein yn y Tasglu 
Gwella Ansawdd Afonydd | GOV. CYMRU. Mae'r cynlluniau hyn yn nodi amcanion clir a 
chanlyniadau mesuradwy ar gyfer cyflawni gwelliannau i reoli gorlifoedd nawr ac yn y tymor 
hir. 

O ran Systemau Draenio Cynaliadwy (SDCau), bydd y Pwyllgor yn ymwybodol bod yr 
adolygiad a wnaed gan Arup wedi'i gyhoeddi ym mis Gorffennaf 2023 a gwnaeth fwy na 70 
o argymhellion yn ymwneud â deddfwriaeth, canllawiau a gweithredu. Ers hynny, mae fy 
swyddogion wedi cynnal rhaglen adolygu ac ymgysylltu â rhanddeiliaid i ddatblygu 
strategaeth weithredu ar gyfer yr argymhellion. Rydym wedi gwneud cynnydd da hyd yn 
hyn. Mae hyn yn cynnwys sefydlu grŵp Cymuned Ymarfer (COP), a gyfarfu gyntaf ym mis 
Rhagfyr; cwmpasu Cyfrifiannell Symiau Gohiriedig Cymru Gyfan; a datblygu Cynllun 
Gweithredu SDCau, y byddaf yn ei gyhoeddi maes o law. 
 
 
A gaf i achub ar y cyfle hwn i ddiolch i'r Pwyllgor am ei waith parhaus i graffu ar y camau 
sy'n cael eu cymryd i wella ansawdd ein dŵr yng Nghymru. Mae llawer i'w wneud o hyd, 

Tudalen y pecyn 346

https://committees.parliament.uk/work/7260/water-quality-in-wales/publications/
https://www.llyw.cymru/tasglu-gwella-ansawdd-afonydd-cymru
https://www.llyw.cymru/tasglu-gwella-ansawdd-afonydd-cymru
https://www.llyw.cymru/datganiad-ysgrifenedig-sicrhau-manteision-gwell-ar-gyfer-natur-yr-amgylchedd-chymunedau-drwy


ond rwy'n hyderus ein bod ar y trywydd iawn i barhau i gyflawni gwelliannau ystyrlon i'n 
hamgylchedd dŵr.  
 
Yn gywir  
 

 
 
Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd 
Minister for Climate Change  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 347



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 348

Eitem 8 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 349

Eitem 9Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 350

Eitem 10 Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vi o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2 Cynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy (SFS) - sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda chynrychiolwyr ffermio
	Papur - Undeb Cenedlaethol yr Amaethwyr Cymru (saesneg yn unig)
	Papur - Undeb Amaethwyr Cymru (FUW) (saesneg yn unig)
	Papur - Tenant Farmers Association (saesneg yn unig)

	3 Cynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy (SFS) - sesiwn dystiolaeth gyda sefydliadau amgylcheddol
	Papur 2 - y Rhwydwaith Ffermio Cyfeillgar i Natur (saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 1 - Cymdeithas y Pridd (saesneg yn unig)
	Papur 2 - Cymdeithas y Pridd (saesneg yn unig)
	Papur - Cyswllt Amgylchedd Cymru (saesneg yn unig)
	Sustainable Farming Scheme
	March 2024
	Introduction



	4 Cynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy (SFS) - sesiwn dystiolaeth gydag academyddion
	General comments
	Issues with a ‘one size fits all’ approach
	Major gaps and issues with the current Proposals
	Matters around the Universal Actions (UA)
	The lack of just transition
	Issues around co-design/co-creation
	Relationship between farming, environment and food production: The need for an agri-food policy
	Potential economic impact of the Sustainable Farming Scheme
	Uncertainty around the budget/funding
	Obligation of reporting but lack of evaluation
	A perfect storm?
	The temporality of decisions and policies
	Papur - Yr Athro Iain Donnison (saesneg yn unig)

	5.1 Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol: Y Bil Diogelu Data a Gwybodaeth Ddigidol
	5.2 Cynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy
	Llythyr gan y Cadeirydd at Gadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig mewn perthynas â chynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy (SFS)
	Llythyr gan y Cadeirydd at y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd mewn perthynas â chynigion Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Ffermio Cynaliadwy (SFS)

	5.3 Rheoliadau Iechyd Planhigion (Ffioedd) (Lloegr) a Rheolaethau Swyddogol (Amlder Gwiriadau) (Diwygio) 2024
	Llythyr dilynol oddi wrth y Gweinidog Materion Gwledig a Gogledd Cymru, a’r Trefnydd, at y Cadeirydd mewn cysylltiad â Rheoliadau Iechyd Planhigion (Ffioedd) (Lloegr) a Rheolaethau Swyddogol (Amlder Gwiriadau) (Diwygio) 2024

	5.4 Ardaloedd Draenio Mewnol
	Llythyr oddi wrth Mabon ap Gwynfor AS at y Cadeirydd mewn cysylltiad ag Ardaloedd Draenio Mewnol.

	5.5 Rheoliadau’r Amgylchedd a Materion Gwledig (Dirymu a Darpariaeth Ganlyniadol) 2024
	5.6 Craffu ar Gyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-25
	5.7 Craffu ar Trafnidiaeth Cymru
	Llythyr oddi wrth Brif Weithredwr Trafnidiaeth Cymru at y Cadeirydd mewn perthynas â darparu gwasanaethau yn ystod gemau Pêl-droed yr Ewros 2024

	5.8 Grŵp Rhyngweinidogol ar Sero Net, Ynni a Newid Hinsawdd
	5.9 Safle glo brig Ffos-y-Fran
	Ymateb gan Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd at y gan y Cadeirydd mewn perthynas â gwaith glo brig Ffos-y-Fran ym Merthyr Tudful

	5.10 Perfformiad Dŵr Cymru
	Ymateb y Gweinidog Newid Hinsawdd i adroddiad y Pwyllgor: Adroddiad ar berfformiad Dŵr Cymru

	8 Trafod yr adroddiad drafft ar y Memorandwm Cydsyniad Deddfwriaethol ar y Bil Cerbydau Awtomataidd
	9 Trafod yr adroddiad drafft ar Gomisiwn Seilwaith Cenedlaethol Cymru - 2022-23
	10 Trafod blaenraglen waith y Pwyllgor - Haf 2024



